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Independent Auditor’s Report 

 
 

To the Board of Governors of Durham College of Applied Arts and Technology  

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Durham College of Applied 
Arts and Technology, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 
2015, and the consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets, cash flows and 
remeasurement gains and losses for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. 
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Durham College of Applied Arts and Technology as at March 31, 2015 and the 
results of its operations, cash flows and remeasurement gains and losses for the year then ended in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

 
 
 
 
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 
Mississauga, Ontario 
REPORT DATE 
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MANAGEMENT`S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
The consolidated financial statements of the Durham College of Applied Arts and Technology 
(the "College") are the responsibility of management and have been approved by the Board of 
Governors. 
 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with 
Canadian public sector accounting standards for government not-for-profit organizations, 
including the 4200 series of standards, as issued by the Public Sector Accounting Board 
(“PSAB for Government NPOs”).  When alternative accounting methods exist, management 
has chosen those it deems most appropriate in the circumstances.  Consolidated financial 
statements are not precise since they include certain amounts based on estimates and 
judgements.  Management has determined such amounts on a reasonable basis in order to 
ensure that the consolidated financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects. 
 
The College maintains systems of internal accounting and administrative controls of high 
quality, consistent with reasonable cost.  Such systems are designed to provide reasonable 
assurance that the financial information is relevant, reliable and accurate and that the 
College`s assets are appropriately accounted for and adequately safeguarded. 
 
The College`s insurance liabilities have been reviewed by management in consultation with its 
broker.  There are no material liabilities in either fact or contingency as at the date of this 
report. 
 
The Board of Governors is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities 
for financial reporting and is ultimately responsible for reviewing and approving the 
consolidated financial statements.  The Board carries out this responsibility principally through 
its Audit and Finance Committee. 
 
The Audit and Finance Committee is appointed by the Board of Governors and meets regularly 
with management, as well as the external auditors, to discuss internal controls over the 
financial reporting process, auditing matters and financial reporting issues, to satisfy itself that 
each party is properly discharging its responsibilities, and to review the consolidated financial 
statements and the external auditor`s report.  The Committee reports its findings to the Board 
for consideration when approving the consolidated financial statements.  The Committee also 
considers, for review and approval by the Board, the engagement or re-appointment of the 
external auditors. 
 
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by BDO Canada LLP, the external 
auditors in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, on behalf of the 
Board.  BDO Canada LLP has full and free access to the Audit and Finance Committee. 
 
 
 
 
__________________________  ________________________________________ 
College President    Vice-President, Corporate Services and CFO 
 
June 10, 2015 
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DURHAM COLLEGE OF APPLIED ARTS AND TECHNOLOGY

Year ended March 31, 2015, with comparative figures for 2014

2015 2014

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash 3,914,621$           -     $                       
Investments 14,880,592          14,474,315            
Accounts receivable 11,441,663          15,697,032            
Current portion of long-term receivable (note 3) 738,731               711,395                 
Inventories 889,276               820,709                 
Prepaid expenses 148,439               78,235                   

32,013,322            31,781,686              

Long-term receivables (note 3) 12,379,154          13,151,861            
Capital assets (note 4) 182,343,757        187,444,217          

226,736,233$        232,377,764$          

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities:

Bank indebtedness -$                       1,667,926$              
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 5) 21,497,876          20,139,087            
Accrued vacation 6,687,240            6,266,422              
Deferred revenue (note 6(a)) 9,601,852            8,228,535              
Current portion of debt (note 7) 5,765,145            4,654,937              

43,552,113          40,956,907            

Term debt due on demand (note 7) 41,458,877          45,409,321            

      85,010,990            86,366,228              

Deferred contributions (note 6(b)) 100,977,853        103,706,127          
Long-term debt (note 7) 19,471,209          22,091,216            
Derivative liability (note 7) 3,650,362            2,840,033              

4,943,222              5,028,725                

129,042,646          133,666,101            
 
Net assets:

Unrestricted
Operating (19,031,635)         (16,461,873)           

(4,943,222)             (5,028,725)               
Vacation pay (6,687,240)           (6,266,422)             

(30,662,097)           (27,757,020)             

Invested in capital assets (note 12) 28,321,613          24,982,214            
Internally restricted (note 9) 722,787               635,650                 
Endowments (note 9) 13,903,468          13,277,437            

12,285,771            11,138,281              

Accumulated remeasurement gains 396,826                 1,207,154                

12,682,597            12,345,436              

Commitments (note 14)

Contingencies (note 15)

Guarantees (note 16)

226,736,233$        232,377,764$          

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

On behalf of the Board:

Director

Director
1

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position  

Post-employment, retirement benefits and compensated 
absences (note 8)

Post-employment, retirement benefits, and compensated 
absences
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DURHAM COLLEGE OF APPLIED ARTS AND TECHNOLOGY
Consolidated Statement of Operations   
Year ended March 31, 2015, with comparative figures for 2014

2015 2014

Revenue:
Grants and reimbursements 64,929,382$      62,197,596$     
Student tuition fees 42,050,718        39,060,836       
Ancillary operations 11,393,307        11,522,217       
Rental Income 9,314,920          9,653,572         
Other income 22,432,150        21,776,475       
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (note 6(b)(i)) 6,402,733          6,197,462         

Total revenue 156,523,210      150,408,158     

Expenditure:
Salaries and benefits 96,222,544        90,274,691       
Instructional supplies 3,040,818          2,849,894         
Contracted services 6,090,613          6,516,261         
Utilities, maintenance and taxes 10,998,992        10,122,673       
Interest and bank charges 3,477,960          4,461,127         
Scholarships and bursaries 1,677,854          2,291,097         
Supplies and other expenses 20,078,152        19,053,869       
Amortization of capital assets (note 12(b)) 14,414,819        14,077,060       

Total expenditures 156,001,752      149,646,672     

 

Excess of revenue over expenditures 521,458$           761,486$          

 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

2
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DURHAM COLLEGE OF APPLIED ARTS AND TECHNOLOGY
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
Year ended March 31, 2015, with comparative figures for 2014

2015

Internally restricted net assets

Total internally
Invested in restricted

Unrestricted capital assets Residence Foundation net assets Endowments Total

(note 12) (note 17) (note 9) (note 9)

Balance, beginning of year (27,757,019)$             24,982,214$            51,597$              584,053$          635,650$             13,277,437$    11,138,282$      

Excess of revenue over expenditures 8,533,544                   (8,012,086)              -                         -                        -                           -                       521,458            

Invested in capital assets
(note 12(b)) (11,351,485)               11,351,485             -                         -                        -                           -                       -                         

Endowment contributions -                                  -                                 -                           -                          -                            626,031            626,031              

Transfer (note 17) (87,137)                       175,065               (87,928)              87,137                  -                         -                           

Net changes during the year (2,905,078)                  3,339,399               175,065             (87,928)            87,137                 626,031          1,147,489         

Balance, end of year (30,662,097)$             28,321,613$             226,662$             496,125$           722,787$              13,903,468$     12,285,771$       

2014

Internally restricted net assets
Total internally

Invested in restricted
Unrestricted capital assets Residence Foundation net assets Endowments Total

(note 12) (note 17) (note 9) (note 9)

Balance, beginning of year (38,486,530)$             34,398,588$            603,248$            584,053$          1,187,301$          12,749,968$    9,849,327$        

Excess of revenue over expenditures 8,641,084                   (7,879,598)              -                         -                        -                           -                       761,486            

Invested in capital assets
(note 12(b)) 1,536,776                   (1,536,776)              -                         -                        -                           -                       -                         

Endowment contributions -                                  -                                 -                           -                          -                            527,469            527,469              

Transfer (note 17) 551,651                      -                               (551,651)            -                        (551,651)              -                         

Net changes during the year 10,729,511                 (9,416,374)              (551,651)            -                        (551,651)              527,469          1,288,953         

Balance, end of year (27,757,019)$             24,982,214$             51,597$               584,053$           635,650$              13,277,437$     11,138,282$       

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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DURHAM COLLEGE OF APPLIED ARTS AND TECHNOLOGY
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows  
Year ended March 31, 2015, with comparative figures for 2014

2015 2014

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities:
  Excess of revenue over expenditures 521,458$         761,486$          
  Items not affecting cash:
     Amortization of capital assets 14,414,819      14,077,060       
     Amortization of deferred capital contributions (6,402,733)       (6,197,462)        

Endowment contributions 626,031           527,469            
Change in non-cash working capital:

Accounts receivable 4,255,369        (1,245,040)        
Inventories (68,567)            (38,863)             
Prepaid expenses (70,204)            191,004            
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,358,789        (5,101,542)        
Accrued vacation 420,818           937,292            
Post-employment, retirement benefits and compensated 
absences (85,503)          (427,064)          
Deferred revenue 1,373,317        1,359,529         

16,343,592      4,843,869         

Financing activities:
Acquisition of new long-term debt -                       4,075,000         
Repayment of long-term debt (5,460,240)       (3,067,690)        

(5,460,240)       1,007,310         

Capital activities:
Contributions received for capital purposes 3,674,459        3,365,514         
Purchase of capital assets (9,314,361)       (15,823,623)      
Sale of capital assets -                       13,732,274       

(5,639,901)       1,274,165         

Investing activities:
Decrease / (Increase) in long-term loan receivable 745,372           651,848            
Decrease / (Increase) in investments (406,276)          (1,648,875)        

339,096           (997,027)           

Increase in cash 5,582,547      6,128,317        

Cash / (indebtedness), beginning of year (1,667,926)     (7,796,243)       

Cash / (indebtedness), end of year 3,914,620$      (1,667,926)$      

Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paid 2,443,916$     3,516,787$       

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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DURHAM COLLEGE OF APPLIED ARTS AND TECHNOLOGY
Consolidated Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses
Year ended March 31, 2015, with comparative figures for 2014

2015 2014

Accumulated remeasurement gains at beginning of year 1,207,154$        65,448$              
Unrealized gains / (losses) attributable to:

Derivative - interest rate swap (810,328)            1,141,706           

Net remeasurement gains for the year (810,328)            1,141,706           

Accumulated remeasurement gains at end of year 396,826$           1,207,154$         

5
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DURHAM COLLEGE OF APPLIED ARTS AND 
TECHNOLOGY 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

6 
 

Durham College of Applied Arts and Technology (the "College") was established as a 
corporation without share capital, as set out in the Ontario Colleges of Applied Arts and 
Technology Act. The Corporations Act governs the corporate affairs of the College and 
became effective April 1, 2003. The College is principally involved in providing post-secondary 
educational services. Under the Income Tax Act (Canada), the College is considered a 
registered charity and, accordingly, is exempt from income taxes, provided certain 
requirements of the Income Tax Act (Canada) are met. 

 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES 

(a) Basis of presentation 

The financial statements of the College have been prepared by management in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards for government not-
for-profit organizations, including the 4200 series of standards, as issued by the 
Public Sector Accounting Board (“PSAB for Government NPOs”).  These 
consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and 
expenses of the College and its subsidiary Durham College Foundation (the 
“Foundation”).  All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been 
eliminated upon consolidation. 

 
 (b) Revenue recognition 

The College follows the deferral method of accounting for restricted contributions 
which include donations and government grants. 

Operating grants are recorded as revenue in the period to which they relate.  Grants 
earned but not received at the end of an accounting period are accrued.  When a 
portion of a grant relates to a future period, it is deferred and recognized in that 
subsequent period. 

Tuition fees and contract training revenues are recognized as income to the extent 
that the related courses and services are provided within the fiscal year of the 
College. 

Ancillary revenues including parking, bookstore, residence and other sundry 
revenues are recognized when products are delivered or services are provided to 
the student or client, the sales price is fixed and determinable, and collection is 
reasonably assured. 

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable. 

Externally restricted contributions, other than endowment contributions, are 
recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are recognized.   
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DURHAM COLLEGE OF APPLIED ARTS AND 
TECHNOLOGY 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued) 

Contributions restricted for the purchase of capital assets are deferred and 
amortized into revenue at a rate corresponding with the amortization rate for the 
related capital assets. 

Endowment contributions are recognized as direct increases in endowment net 
assets. 

Investment income earned on endowment funds which will be expended is 
recognized as revenue when the related expense occurs.  Restricted investment 
income is recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are 
recognized. Unrestricted investment income is recognized as revenue when earned. 
 

 (c) Financial Instruments   

The College classifies its financial instruments as either fair value or amortized cost. 
The College’s accounting policy for each category is as follows: 

Fair value 

This category includes derivatives and equity instruments quoted in an active 
market. The College has designated its bond portfolio that would otherwise be 
classified into the amortized cost category at fair value as the College manages and 
reports performance of it on a fair value basis. 

They are initially recognized at cost and subsequently carried at fair value. Changes 
in fair value are recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses 
until they are realized, when they are transferred to the statement of operations.  
Changes in fair value on restricted assets are recognized as a liability until the 
criterion attached to the restrictions has been met. 

Transaction costs related to financial instruments in the fair value category are 
expensed as incurred.  

Where a decline in fair value is determined to be other than temporary, the amount 
of the loss is removed from accumulated remeasurement gains and losses and 
recognized in the statement of operations. On sale, the amount held in accumulated 
remeasurement gains and losses associated with that instrument is removed from 
net assets and recognized in the statement of operations.   
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DURHAM COLLEGE OF APPLIED ARTS AND 
TECHNOLOGY 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued) 

Amortized cost 

This category includes accounts receivable, long-term receivable, accounts payable 
and accrued liabilities, bank indebtedness and long-term debt. They are initially 
recognized at cost and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective 
interest rate method, less any impairment losses on financial assets, except for 
contributions, which are recognized at fair value.  

Transaction costs related to financial instruments in the amortized cost category are 
added to the carrying value of the instrument.  

Writedowns on financial assets in the amortized cost category are recognized when 
the amount of a loss is known with sufficient precision, and there is no realistic 
prospect of recovery.  Financial assets are then written down to net recoverable 
value with the writedown being recognized in the statement of operations.  

(d) Capital assets 

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization.  
Contributed capital assets are recorded at fair value at the date of contribution when 
fair value is reasonably determinable.  Otherwise, contributed assets are recorded at 
a nominal value.  Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to expense.  
Betterments, which extend the estimated life of an asset, are capitalized.  When a 
capital asset no longer contributes to the College's ability to provide services, its 
carrying amount is written down to its residual value. 

Construction in progress is not amortized until construction is complete and the 
asset is put into service. 

Capital assets are capitalized on acquisition and amortized on a straight-line basis 
over their average useful lives, which have been estimated to be as follows: 

 

Buildings         40 years 
Building improvements         10 years 
Equipment and furniture                                      5 - 10 years 
Computer equipment            3 years 
 

 
Capital assets acquired during the year are amortized at half of the applicable rate. 
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DURHAM COLLEGE OF APPLIED ARTS AND 
TECHNOLOGY 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued) 

(e) Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.  Cost is 
determined on a first-in, first-out basis. 

 (f) Student organizations 

These financial statements do not reflect the assets, liabilities, and results of 
operations of the various student organizations as they are not controlled by the 
College. 

(g) Vacation pay 

 The College recognizes vacation pay as an expense on the accrual basis. 

 (h) Post-employment, retirement benefits and compensated absences 

The College provides defined retirement and post-employment benefits and 
compensated absences to certain employee groups. These benefits include 
pension, health and dental, vesting sick leave and non-vesting sick leave. The 
College has adopted the following policies with respect to accounting for these 
employee benefits: 

(i) The costs of post-employment future benefits are actuarially determined 
using management’s best estimate of health care costs, disability 
recovery rates and discount rates. Adjustments to these costs arising 
from changes in estimates and experience gains and losses are 
amortized to income over the estimated average remaining service life 
of the employee groups on a straight line basis 

(ii) The costs of the multi-employer defined benefit pension are the 
employer’s contributions due to the plan in the period. 

(iii) The cost of vesting and non-vesting sick leave benefits are actuarially 
determined using management’s best estimate of salary escalation, 
employees’ use of entitlement and discount rates. Adjustments to these 
costs arising from changes in actuarial assumption and/or experience 
are recognized over the estimated average remaining service life of the 
employees. 

(iv) The discount used in the determination of the above-mentioned liabilities 
is equal to the College’s internal rate of borrowing. 
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DURHAM COLLEGE OF APPLIED ARTS AND 
TECHNOLOGY 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued) 

(i) Foreign currency translation 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Canadian dollars at rates of 
exchange at the time of such transactions.  Monetary assets and liabilities are 
translated at current rates of exchange with the resulting gains and losses included 
in remeasurement gains and losses.   

 (j) Management estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with PSAB for Government 
NPOs requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amount of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue 
and expenditures during the year.  Actual results could differ from these estimates.  
Areas of key estimation include determination of fair value of investments and the 
derivative liability, allowance for doubtful accounts, deferred revenue and actuarial 
estimation of post-employment benefits and compensated absences liabilities. 
 

2. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT CLASSIFICATION  

The following table provides cost and fair value information of financial instruments by 
category.  The maximum exposure to credit risk would be the carrying value as shown 
below. 

 

Fair Value Amortized Cost Total
Cash 3,914,621$      -$                    3,914,621$      
Accounts receivable -                   11,441,663         11,441,663      
Current portion of long-term receivables -                   738,731              738,731           
Investments 14,880,592      -                      14,880,592      
Long-term receivable -                   12,379,154         12,379,154      
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities -                   21,497,878         21,497,876      
Current portion of debt -                   5,765,145           5,765,145        
Term debt due on demand -                   41,458,877         41,458,877      
Long-term debt -                   19,471,209         19,471,209      
Derivative liability 3,650,362        -                      3,650,362        

22,445,575$    112,752,657$     135,198,231$  

2015
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DURHAM COLLEGE OF APPLIED ARTS AND 
TECHNOLOGY 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
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2. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT CLASSIFICATION (continued) 

 

Investments consist of equity financial instruments in public companies (2015 - 
$10,739,702, 2014 - $11,291,973) and fixed income (2015 - $4,140,890, 2014 - 
$3,182,342). Investments include $14,731,962 (2014 - $14,461,705) of investments 
externally restricted for endowment purposes (see Note 9).   

 

Maturity profile of bonds held is as follows: 
             
 2015 
   Within 2 to 5 6 to 10 Over 10   
   1 year years years years Total 
             
 

Carrying value  $ 77,167   $ 2,509,906   $ 925,436  
 
$628,381    $4,140,890 

 Percentage of 
Total 2% 61% 22% 15%   

 
 
 2014 
   Within 2 to 5 6 to 10 Over 10   
   1 year years years years Total 
             
 Carrying value  $ 250,098   $ 2,495,668   $ 436,576   $        -     $3,182,342 
 Percentage of 

Total 8% 78% 14% 0%   

 

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent 
to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the 
fair value is observable: 

- Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities using the last bid price; 

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices 
included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and 

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include 
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs). 
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2.   FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT CLASSIFICATION (continued) 
 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash 3,914,621$      -$                    -$                 3,914,621$      
Investments 10,739,702      4,140,890           -                   14,880,592      
Derivative liability -                   -                      3,650,362        3,650,362        

Total 14,654,323$    4,140,890$         3,650,362$      22,445,575$    

2015

 
 

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for the years ended March 31, 2015 
and 2014.  There were also no transfers in or out of Level 3. 
 
The College has long-term investments in a managed portfolio of equities, fixed income 
investments and mutual funds.  
 

  (i)  Market risk:  

 Market risk arises as a result of trading fixed income securities.  The value of equity 
securities changes with stock market conditions, which are affected by general 
economic and market conditions.  Changes in interest rates may also affect the value 
of equity securities.  Fluctuation in the market exposes the College to a risk of loss. 

The College is exposed to this risk through its equity holdings within its investment 
portfolio.  At March 31, 2015, a 10% movement in the stock markets with all other 
variables held constant would have an estimated effect on the fair values of the 
College’s equities of $902,409 (2014 - $909,271). 

Risk management relates to the understanding and active management of risks 
associated with all areas of the College’s activities and the associated operating 
environment. Investments are primarily exposed to credit, interest rate, foreign 
currency, market and liquidity risks. The College has formal policies and procedures 
that establish target asset mix. The College’s policies also require diversification of 
investments within categories, and set limits on exposure to individual investments. 
 
(ii) Credit, interest rate and maturity risk: 
 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the College if a debtor fails to make payments 
of interest and principal when due. The College is exposed to this risk relating to its 
cash, debt holdings in its investment portfolio, long-term receivable and accounts 
receivable. The College holds its cash accounts with federally regulated chartered 
banks who are insured by the Canadian Deposit Insurance Corporation. In the event of 
default, the College’s cash accounts are insured up $100,000 (2014 - $100,000). 
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2.     FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT CLASSIFICATION (continued) 

The investment policy of the Foundation operates within the confines of the Trustees 
Act which places limitations on the composition of the investment portfolio. 

Accounts receivable and long-term receivable are ultimately due from students and 
UOIT. Credit risk is mitigated by financial approval processes before a student is 
enrolled and the highly diversified nature of the student population.  

The College measures its exposure to credit risk based on how long the amounts have 
been outstanding.  An impairment allowance is set up based on the College’s historical 
experience regarding collections. 

        The amounts outstanding at year-end were as follows: 
 
 

Total Current 1-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 91 - 120 days
Government receivables 837,743$         837,743$            -$                 -$                -$              -$              
Student receivables 2,428,074        -                      79,587             62,352             168,578         2,117,557      
Other receivables 9,388,789        7,580,526           710,493           698,036           66,593           333,141         
Gross receivables 12,654,606      8,418,269           790,080           760,388           235,171         2,450,698      
Less:  impairment allowances (1,212,943)       -                          -                       -                      -                    (1,212,943)    

Net receivables 11,441,663$    8,418,269$         790,080$         760,388$         235,171$       1,237,755$    

Past Due
2015

 
 

Total Current 1-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 91 - 120 days
Government receivables 2,269,566$      2,269,566$         -$                 -$                -$              -$              
Student receivables 2,334,804        -                      117,552           35,836             179,806         2,001,610      
Other receivables 12,056,901      10,193,419         711,686           776,490           34,195           341,111         
Gross receivables 16,661,271      12,462,985         829,238           812,326           214,001         2,342,721      
Less:  impairment allowances (964,240)          -                          -                       -                      -                    (964,240)       

Net receivables 15,697,031$    12,462,985$       829,238$         812,326$         214,001$       1,378,481$    

Past Due
2014

 
 
There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or 
policies, procedures and methods used to measure the risk. 

Interest rate risk is the potential for financial loss caused by fluctuations in fair value or 
future cash flows of financial instruments because of changes in market interest rates. 

The College is exposed to this risk through its interest bearing investments, bank loans 
and term debt. 
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2.     FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT CLASSIFICATION (continued) 

The College mitigates interest rate risk on its term debt through a derivative financial 
instrument that exchanges the variable rate inherent in the term debt for a fixed rate (see 
Note 10). Therefore, fluctuations in market interest rates would not impact future cash 
flows and operations relating to the term debt. 

The College’s bond portfolio has interest rates ranging from 1.75% to 6.50% (2014 – 
2.26% to 7.75%) with maturities ranging from February 22, 2016 to June 2, 2041 (2014 -  
January 22, 2015 to December 6, 2024). 

At March 31, 2015, a 1% fluctuation in interest rates, with all other variables held 
constant, would have an estimated impact on the fair value of bonds and the interest rate 
swap of $242,400 and $217,061 respectively (2014 – $103,613 and $290,012). The 
College’s term debt as described in Note 7 would not be impacted as the inherent 
variable rate of the debt has been fixed with the use of the aforementioned derivative 
interest rate swap.    

There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or 
policies, procedures and methods used to measure the risk.  

 (iii) Foreign currency risk: 
 
The value of securities denominated in a currency other than Canadian dollars will be 
affected by changes in the value of the Canadian dollar in relation to the value of the 
currency in which the security is denominated.   U.S. equities are held in U.S. dollars, 
which have been converted to Canadian dollars as at year-end, using the exchange rate 
at that date.  Investments held in U.S. dollars at March 31, 2015 were approximately 
$4,577,495 (2014 - $3,470,420) stated in Canadian dollars. 

(iv) Liquidity risk: 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the College will not be able to meet all cash outflow 
obligations as they come due. The College mitigates this risk by monitoring cash activities 
and expected outflows through extensive budgeting and maintaining investments that 
may be converted to cash in the near-term if unexpected cash outflows arise. The follow 
table sets out the contractual maturities (representing undiscounted contractual cash-
flows of financial liabilities):  
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2.     FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT CLASSIFICATION (continued) 

 

Within 6 months to
6 months 1 year 1 - 5 years > 5 years

Accounts payable 21,497,878$    -$                    -$                 -$                
Debt 2,862,334        2,902,811            20,315,518       40,614,568      

24,360,212$    2,902,811$         20,315,518$    40,614,568$    

2015

 
 

Within 6 months to
6 months 1 year 1 - 5 years > 5 years

Accounts payable 20,139,088$    -$                    -$                 -$                
Debt 2,306,880        2,348,057            17,723,277       49,777,259      

22,445,968$    2,348,057$         17,723,277$    49,777,259$    

2014

 

 
The College is also exposed to liquidity risk on its line of credit described in Note 7. 

Derivative financial liabilities mature as described in Note 7.  

There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or 
policies, procedures and methods used to measure the risk. 
 

3. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES 

(a)  Long-term loan receivable 

Includes a loan receivable from the Durham College Student Association Incorporated, 
amounting to $519,749 (2014 - $758,664) which is repayable from an annual special levy 
on student fees over a period not to exceed 40 years.  The loan bears interest at prime 
rate calculated monthly.   

 (b)  Student levy receivable 

Includes a receivable from future student levies as approved by the Durham College 
Student Association Incorporated, amounting to $11,130,628 (2014 - $11,542,957) for the 
financing of a new Athletic Fitness Health Centre (“the Centre”).  It is repayable from an 
annual special levy on student fees and bears interest equal to the debt incurred to 
construct the Centre (Note 10).  
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3. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES (continued) 

(c)  Other long-term receivable 

Includes an interest-free receivable from the University of Ontario Institute of Technology, 
amounting to $728,777 (2014 – $850,240) which is repayable at a fixed amount of 
$121,463 annually until September 2021.   

4. CAPITAL ASSETS   

2015 2014
Ending Accumulated Net book Net book 
Cost Amortization value value

Land 4,521,201$     -     $                   4,521,201$     4,521,201$       
Buildings 224,406,262    78,869,381          145,536,881    151,147,037     
Building 
   Improvements 52,199,336     32,364,171          19,835,165     17,823,032       
Computers, 
  equipment and
  furniture 99,426,836     87,003,431          12,423,405     13,708,242       
Construction-
  in-progress 27,105            -                          27,105            244,705            

380,580,740$  198,236,983$      182,343,757$  187,444,217$   

Construction-in-progress related to the Centre For Food was moved to buildings in 2014. 
 
 

5.    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 

On September 4, 2003, the College purchased the Windfields Farms property for 
$7,831,815, consisting of $1,000,000 of cash and $6,831,815 of debt, for the purposes of 
expansion including the future development of the University of Ontario Institute of 
Technology.  At the time of acquisition, the ownership of the land resided with the 
College. 

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities was $6,831,815 from 2007 due to the 
University of Ontario Institute of Technology relating to payments of $2,277,272 each in 
years 2005, 2006 and 2007 for the mortgage payments, paid by the University, for the 
Windfields Farms land. 
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5.    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES (continued) 

On April 1, 2013, Durham College received $1,000,000 from the University as repayment 
of the initial payment on the purchase.  During the year, the College and University 
signed an agreement such that title of the land was transferred to the University and thus 
the accounts payable extinguished for fiscal year 2014.  

 

6. DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS 

(a) Deferred revenue 

Deferred revenue represents grants, tuition fees and other revenue related to expenses 
of future periods. 

(b) Deferred contributions  

(i) Capital contributions 

Deferred capital contributions represent the unamortized amount of donations 
and grants for the purchase of capital assets.  The amortization of capital 
contributions is recorded as revenue in the Consolidated Statement of 
Operations at the same rate as amortization is recorded on the related capital 
assets. 

2015 2014

Balance, beginning of year 102,241,238$ 106,190,089$   
Contributions 3,031,363      2,248,611        
Less amounts amortized to revenue (6,402,733)     (6,197,462)        

Balance, end of year 98,869,868$    102,241,238$   
 
 

(ii) Foundation  

2015 2014

Balance, beginning of year 1,364,667$     347,986$        
Transfers (100,000)        (100,203)         
Net Investment Income and Deferred 
Contributions 1,127,590        1,355,637        
Scholarships & bursaries (313,324)        (238,753)         

Balance, end of year 2,078,933$      1,364,667$      
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6. DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS (continued) 

(iii) Expenses of future periods 

Deferred contributions represent unspent restricted donations for scholarships 
and bursaries. 

2015 2014

Balance, beginning of year 100,222$        -     $               
Contributions 52,500           100,222           
Transfers (100,000)       -                      
Disbursements (23,670)         -                      

Balance, end of year 29,052$           100,222$          

Total deferred contributions 100,977,853$  103,706,127$   
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7. DEBT  

2015 2014

Variable rate secured mortgage, with an underlying swap
fixing the rate at 5.14% on the Whitby Campus expansion,
due in April 2016, interest and principal paid monthly. 6,942,000$          7,229,000$      

3.123% unsecured mortgage on student residence, repayable in
semi-annual instalments of $753,625 principal and interest, 
due February 2024. 5,873,182            6,430,304        

2.67% unsecured mortgage on student residence, repayable in
monthly instalments of $280,000 principal and interest, due
May 2026. 32,336,181          25,090,894      

2.87% unsecured loan to finance the Student Centre, repayable 
in monthly instalments of $18,587 principal and interest,
due October 2018. 724,688               956,843           

Variable rate secured mortgage, with an underlying swap
fixing the rate at 5.38% on the Athletic and Health Centre,
due in November 2032, interest and principal paid monthly. 11,542,957          11,934,710      

4.89% unsecured mortgage on student residence, repayable in
monthly instalments of $74,505 principal and interest,
due in May 2014. -                       9,538,063        

5.51% unsecured mortgage on student residence, repayable in
monthly instalments of $61,392 principal and interest,
due July 2017. 6,535,157            6,900,659        

1.81% unsecured mortgage to finance the Centre for Food, 
repayable in semi-annual instalments of $700,841
principal and interest, due December 2016. 2,741,067            4,075,000        

66,695,232          72,155,473      
Less current portion 5,765,145            4,654,937        
Less term debt due on demand 41,458,877          45,409,321      

19,471,209$        22,091,216$    
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7.     DEBT (continued) 
 

Principal payments due in each of the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2016 5,765,145$          
2017 5,971,694            
2018 4,741,628            
2019 4,768,079            
2020 4,834,118            
Thereafter 40,614,569          

66,695,232$         
 
Interest expense on long term debt of $2,443,916 (2014 - $3,516,787) is included in 
interest and bank charges expense. 

                          
In the prior year, the College renegotiated one of its finance arrangements.  As a result, 
$5,873,182 of debt was no longer due on demand.  The prior year numbers have been 
restated to reflect this change. 

In 2014-15, the long-term debts on the South Village residence (phase 1 and phase 2) 
were amalgamated into one new debt upon renewal.   

The long-term debt has been secured by specific assets of the College.  

The College entered into an interest rate swap to manage the interest rate variability 
arising on the 25 year mortgage for the Athletic and Health Centre.   The mortgage bears 
interest at floating rates based on banker’s acceptances.  The swap effectively fixes the 
interest rate at 5.38% on an initial principal amount of $14,000,000 over the 25 year life of 
the mortgage.   

The College entered into an interest rate swap to manage the interest rate variability 
arising on the 10 year mortgage for the Whitby Campus.  The mortgage bears interest at 
floating rates based on banker’s acceptances.  The swap effectively fixes the interest rate 
at 5.14% on an initial principal amount of $9,100,000 over the 10 year life of the 
mortgage.   

The College has a credit facility agreement with a Canadian chartered bank, which 
provides for a revolving operating line of credit up to $10,000,000, bearing interest at 
prime plus 1.25%. At March 31, 2015, the College utilized nil (2014 - $3,205,729) of the 
operating line of credit. 
 
The College has a credit facility agreement with another Canadian chartered bank, which 
provides for a revolving operating line of credit up to $1,000,000 with a temporary bulge 
up to $6,000,000 during May 1 to August 30 and December 1 to January 15 each year.   
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7.     DEBT (continued) 

The facility bears interest at prime on the $1,000,000 portion and prime plus 0.50% on the 
excess.  At March 31, 2015, the College utilized nil (2014 – nil) of the operating line of 
credit. 

The College has entered into Irrevocable Standby Letters of Credit with a Canadian 
chartered bank.  The letters of credit consist of $177,200 bearing interest at 1.2%, 
$15,000 bearing interest at 1.2% and $43,025 bearing interest at 0.4%. 

 

8.    POST-EMPLOYMENT, RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
LIABILITY   

The following tables outline the components of the College’s post-employment and 
retirement benefits and compensated absences liabilities and related expenses: 
 

Post-
employment 

Benefits
Retirement 

Benefits
Non-vesting 
sick leave

 Vesting 
sick leave Total liability

Accrued employee future

benefits obligations 1,211,000$     496,222$       3,174,000$      $    391,000 5,272,222$    

Value of plan assets (212,000)        -                    -                    -                 (212,000)        

Unamortized actuarial 79,000           -                    (94,000)          (102,000)      (117,000)        

gains/(losses)

Total liability 1,078,000$     496,222$       3,080,000$     289,000$     4,943,222$    

2015

 
 

Post-
employment 

Benefits
Retirement 

Benefits
Non-vesting 
sick leave

 Vesting 
sick leave Total liability

Accrued employee future

benefits obligations 1,078,000$     463,725$       3,004,000$      $    426,000 4,971,725$    

Value of plan assets (173,000)        -                    -                    -                 (173,000)        

Unamortized actuarial 107,000         -                    222,000         (99,000)       230,000         

gains/(losses)

Total liability 1,012,000$     463,725$       3,226,000$     327,000$     5,028,725$    

2014

 

DRAFT - SUBJECT TO CHANGE

AGENDA PAGE   26



 

DURHAM COLLEGE OF APPLIED ARTS AND 
TECHNOLOGY 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

22 
 

8.    POST-EMPLOYMENT, RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
LIABILITY  (continued) 

      

Post-
employment 

Benefits
Retirement 

Benefits
Non-vesting 
sick leave

 Vesting 
sick leave 

Total 
expense

Current year 

benefit cost 90,000$         -$                  180,000$        $      13,000 283,000$       

Interest on accrued 3,000             12,521           82,000                   11,000 108,521         

benefit obligation

Amortized actuarial (10,000)          -                    (89,000)          24,000        (75,000)          

(gains)/losses

Total expense 83,000$         12,521$         173,000$       48,000$       316,521$       

2015

 

Post-
employment 

Benefits
Retirement 

Benefits
Non-vesting 
sick leave

 Vesting 
sick leave 

Total 
expense

Current year 

benefit cost (28,000)$        -$                  227,000$        $      22,000 221,000$       

Interest on accrued 6,000             12,638           86,000                     8,000 112,638         

benefit obligation

Amortized actuarial 4,000             -                    7,000             1,000          12,000           

(gains)/losses

Total expense / (recovery) (18,000)$        12,638$         320,000$       31,000$       345,638$       

2014

 

Above amounts exclude pension contributions to the Colleges of Applied Arts and 
Technology pension plan, a multi-employer plan, described below. 
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8.    POST-EMPLOYMENT, RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
LIABILITY  (continued) 

Retirement Benefits 

CAAT Pension Plan 

A majority of the College's employees are participants in the defined benefit contributory 
retirement pension plan of the Colleges of Applied Arts and Technology.  The plan is a 
multi-employer plan and therefore the College’s contributions are accounted for as if the 
plan were a defined contribution plan with the College’s contributions being expensed in 
the period they come due. Any unfunded liability is to be paid directly by the Ministry of 
Training, Colleges and Universities. Contributions by the College on account of total 
pension costs amounted to $8,742,836 of which $8,455,509 would be classified as 
Current Service (2014 – total $8,034,558 of which $7,771,498 were classified as Current 
Service) and contributions by employees amounted to $8,592,586 (2014 - $7,910,593). 
The most recent actuarial valuation filed with pension regulators as at January 1, 2015 
indicated an actuarial surplus of $773 million.  

Post-Employment Benefits 

The College extends post employment life insurance, health and dental benefits to certain 
employee groups subsequent to their retirement. The College recognizes these benefits 
as they are earned during the employees’ tenure of service. The related benefit liability 
was determined by an actuarial valuation study commissioned by the College Employer 
Council.  

The major actuarial assumptions employed for the valuations are as follows: 

a) Discount rate 

The present value as at March 31, 2015 of the future benefits was determined using 
a discount rate of 1.60% (2014 – 2.70%).   

b) Drug Costs 

Drug costs were assumed to increase at a 9% rate for 2015 and decrease 
proportionately thereafter to an ultimate rate of 4% in 2034. 

c) Hospital and other medical 

Hospital and other medical costs were assumed to increase at 4.0% per annum in 
2015 (2014 – 4.0%). 
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8.    POST-EMPLOYMENT, RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
LIABILITY (continued) 

Medical premium increases were assumed to increase at 7.5% per annum in 2015 
and decrease proportionately thereafter to an ultimate rate of 4.0% in 2034 for the 
fiscal 2015. 

d) Dental costs 

For the fiscal 2015 disclosure, dental costs and premiums were assumed to 
increase at 4.0% per annum (2014 – 4.0%).  

e)   Retirement rates 

3.1% per annum starting at eligibility for reduced pension, increasing to 16% per 
annum after reaching eligibility for unreduced pension, with the remainder at age 65.   

Compensated Absences 

Vesting Sick Leave 

The College has provided for vesting sick leave benefits during the year. Eligible 
employees, after 10 years of service, are entitled to receive 50% of their accumulated 
sick leave credit on termination or retirement to a maximum of 6 months’ salary. The 
program to accumulate sick leave credits ceased for employees hired after March 31, 
1991. The related benefit liability was determined by an actuarial valuation study 
commissioned by the College Employer Council. 

Non-Vesting Sick Leave 

The College allocates to certain employee groups a specified number of days each year 
for use as paid absences in the event of illness or injury. These days do not vest and are 
available immediately. Employees are permitted to accumulate their unused allocation 
each year, up to the allowable maximum provided in their employment agreements. 
Accumulated days may be used in future years to the extent that the employees’ illness 
or injury exceeds the current year’s allocation of days. Sick days are paid out at the salary 
in effect at the time of usage. The related benefit liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation study commissioned by the College Employer Council. 

The assumptions used in the valuation of vesting and non-vesting sick leave are the 
College’s best estimates of expected rates of: 
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8.    POST-EMPLOYMENT, RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
LIABILITY (continued) 

For fiscal 2015 disclosure and benefits cost: 

2015 2016 - 2017 Thereafter
Wage and salary escalation - support staff 1.0% 0.5% 1.5%
Wage and salary escalation - academic 1.5% 1.8% 1.5%
Discount rate 1.6%  

The probability that the employee will use more sick days than the annual accrual and the 
excess number of sick days used are within ranges of 0% to 24% and 0 to 44.3 days 
respectively for age groups ranging from 20 and under to 65 and over in bands of 5 
years.  
 

9. RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

Internally restricted 

Residence reserve:  These funds are expendable for major capital refurbishments.  
Income earned is expendable. 

Fundraising - General:  These funds are expendable as directed by the individual donors.  
Income earned is expendable. 

Endowments 

Endowment funds are restricted donations received by the College where the endowment 
principal is required to be maintained. The investment income generated from these 
endowments must be used in accordance with the various purposes established by 
donors. The College ensures, as part of its fiduciary responsibilities, that all funds 
received and transferred to the Foundation with a restricted purpose are expended for the 
purpose for which they were provided. 
 
Endowment funds include grants provided by the Government of Ontario from the Ontario 
Student Opportunity Trust Fund (“OSOTF”) and the Ontario Trust for Student Support 
(“OTSS”). Under these programs, the government matches funds raised by the College. 
The purpose of these programs is to assist academically qualified individuals who, for 
financial reasons, would not otherwise be able to attend College. 
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9.     RESTRICTED NET ASSETS (continued) 
 
The balance of endowments at March 31 consists of the following:  
 

2015 2014

OSOTF (Note 10) 4,811,222$    4,671,089$    
OTSS (Note 11) 5,916,037     5,743,725     
Other 3,176,209     2,862,623     

13,903,468$   13,277,437$    
 
These funds are donated specifically for student assistance.  Income earned is 
expendable to provide financial assistance to students. 
 
 

10. ONTARIO STUDENT OPPORTUNITY TRUST FUNDS 

Net assets restricted for endowments include monies provided by the Government of 
Ontario from the Ontario Student Opportunity Trust Fund matching program to award 
student aid as a result of raising an equal amount of endowment donations. 

The College has recorded the following amounts under the program:   
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10. ONTARIO STUDENT OPPORTUNITY TRUST FUNDS (continued) 

(a)  OSOTF I:

2015 2014

Schedule of Changes in Endowment Fund Balance

Endowment fund balance, beginning of year 2,337,343$ 2,269,265$ 
Preservation of Capital 70,120        68,078       

Endowment fund balance, end of year 2,407,463$  2,337,343$  

Schedule of Changes in Expendable Funds 
Available for Awards

Expendable balance, beginning of year 246,627$    50,031$      
Realized investment income 157,320     232,690     
Bursaries awarded (40,134)     (36,094)     
Expendable balance, end of year 363,813     246,627     

Number of bursaries awarded 45              43             

Market value of endowment 3,149,639$ 2,825,829$ 
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10. ONTARIO STUDENT OPPORTUNITY TRUST FUNDS (continued) 

(b)  OSOTF II:

2015 2014

Schedule of Changes in Endowment Fund Balance

Endowment fund balance, beginning of year 2,333,746$ 2,265,773$ 
Preservation of Capital 70,012        67,973       
Endowment fund balance, end of year 2,403,758$  2,333,746$  

Schedule of Changes in Expendable Funds 
Available for Awards

Expendable balance, beginning of year 246,248$    49,955$      
Realized investment income 157,078 232,332     
Bursaries awarded (40,072)     (36,039)     
Expendable balance, end of year 363,254     246,248     

Number of bursaries awarded 45               43               

Market value of endowment 3,144,792$  2,821,480$  
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11. ONTARIO TRUST FOR STUDENT SUPPORT 

Net assets restricted for endowments include monies provided by the Government of 
Ontario from the Ontario Trust for Student Support matching program to award student 
aid as a result of raising an equal amount of endowment donations. 

The College has recorded the following amounts in this program: 

2015 2014

Schedule of Changes in Endowment Fund Balance

Endowment balance, beginning of year 5,743,725$ 5,576,432$ 
Preservation of captial 172,312     167,293      
Endowment fund balance, end of year 5,916,037$ 5,743,725$ 

Schedule of Changes in Expendable Funds 
Available for Awards

Expendable balance, beginning of year 616,539$    126,555$    
Realized Investment income 393,430     578,682      
Bursaries awarded (98,624)     (88,698)      

Expendable balance, end of year 911,345$     616,539$     

Number of Bursaries awarded 112             106             

Market value of endowment 7,757,157$ 6,954,599$ 
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12. INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS   

 (a)  Investment in capital assets represents the following: 

 

2015 2014

Capital assets - net book value 182,343,757$  187,444,217$  
Less amounts financed by deferred
   capital contribution (Note 6(b)(i)) (98,869,868)     (102,241,238)   
Less amount financed by debt (55,152,275)     (60,220,765)     
Investment in capital assets 28,321,614$    24,982,214$    

 

 
 (b)  Change in invested in capital assets is calculated as follows: 

2015 2014

Amortization of deferred contributions related 6,402,733$      6,197,462$      
   to capital assets (Note 6(b)(i))
Amortization of capital assets (14,414,819)     (14,077,060)     

(8,012,086)$     (7,879,598)$     

Net change in investment in capital assets:
   Purchase of capital assets 9,314,360$      15,823,621$    
   Sale of capital assets -                       (13,732,274)     
   Amounts funded by:
      Deferred capital contributions (Note 6(b)(i)) (3,031,363)       (2,248,611)       
      Repayment of debt 5,068,488        (1,379,512)       

11,351,485$    (1,536,776)$     

 
 

13. SERVICE COSTS  

Durham College provides certain administrative services to the University of Ontario 
Institute of Technology (“University”) under a shared service agreement.  The cost of 
salaries, benefits and operating expenses allocated to the University has been calculated 
based on an individual percentage per department.   
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13. SERVICE COSTS (continued) 

During 2009, the College and University began reviewing the organization of the 
integrated services departments in order to best serve both institutions going forward.  In 
the review, a need was recognized for both the College and University to have certain 
dedicated teams to meet each of the institutions’ objectives and, as such, some of the 
departments were segregated.   
 
Both institutions have continued to review the remaining services to formalize service 
level agreements where collaboration is required.  During 2011, a master service level 
agreement was signed and service level agreements for three departments were 
finalized.  During 2012, a subsequent Memorandum of Agreement in Principle was signed 
with the remaining service level agreements to be finalized in 2015.  In March 2015, a 
new Service Level Agreement was signed  further clarifying the expectations and 
obligations of each party.  The Agreement is effective April 1, 2015 and shall continue 
until terminated in writing y the Parties in accordance with the Agreement or until April 1 
of any year in which there are no Services to be provided under any Work Description 
Document. 

 

14. COMMITMENTS 

Premises and equipment 

Future minimum lease payments, exclusive of taxes and operating costs, for premises 
and equipment under operating leases at March 31, 2015 are as follows: 

2016 501,024$     
2017 486,708       
2018 439,163       
2019 404,709       
2020 404,709       
Thereafter 1,254,673    

3,490,986$   

 

15.   CONTINGENCIES 

The College has been named as the defendant in certain legal actions, in which damages 
have been sought.  The outcomes of these actions are not determinable as at March 31, 
2015. 
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15.   CONTINGENCIES (continued) 

The College is involved in various legal actions that are within the normal course of 
operations.  In the opinion of management, any resulting liabilities are not expected to 
have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position or net operations. 
 

16. GUARANTEES 

The College’s primary guarantees are as follows: 

(a) Indemnity has been provided to all directors and or officers of the College for various 
items including, but not limited to, all settled suits or actions due to association with 
the College, subject to certain restrictions.  The College has purchased directors’ 
and officers’ liability insurance to mitigate the cost of any potential future suits or 
actions.  The term of indemnification is not explicitly defined, but is limited to the 
period over which the indemnified party served as a governor, director or officer of 
the College.  The maximum amount of any potential future payment cannot be 
reasonably estimated. 

 (b) In the normal course of business, the College has entered into agreements that 
include indemnities in favour of third parties, such as student work placement 
agreements, purchase and sale agreements, confidentiality agreements, 
engagement letters with advisors and consultants, outsourcing agreements, leasing 
contracts, information technology agreements and service agreements.  These 
indemnification agreements may require the College to compensate counterparties 
for losses incurred by the counterparties as a result of breaches in representation 
and regulations or as a result of litigation claims or statutory sanctions that may be 
suffered by the counterparty as a consequence of the transaction.  The terms of 
these indemnities are not explicitly defined and the maximum amount of any 
potential reimbursement cannot be reasonably estimated. 

(c) The College received approval from the Ministry of Finance, Ontario to guarantee 
$220,000,000 in Series A Debentures for the University of Ontario Institute of 
Technology.  These debentures bear interest at 6.351%, payable semi-annually, 
with the principal due in 2034. 

 
17.   INTERNALLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS - RESIDENCE 

On June 10, 2015 the Board resolved to approve a transfer of $175,065 from the 
Internally Restricted Net Assets to the residence for the purpose of capital improvements 
to the facility. 
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18.   COMPARATIVE FIGURES 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s 
method of presentation. 
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May 26, 2015 
 
Members of the Audit & Finance Committee      
Durham College of Applied Arts and Technology 
2000 Simcoe Road North 
Oshawa, Ontario 
L1H 7K4 
 
Dear Audit & Finance Committee Members: 
 
We are pleased to present the results of our audit of the consolidated financial statements of 
Durham College of Applied Arts and Technology (the “College”) for the year ended March 31, 
2015.  The purpose of our report is to summarize certain aspects of the audit that we believe 
to be of interest to the Audit & Finance Committee and should be read in conjunction with the 
draft consolidated financial statements and our draft independent auditor’s report which is 
included as Appendix B.  
 
Our audit and therefore this report will not necessarily identify all matters that may be of 
interest to the Audit & Finance Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities. 
 
This report has been prepared solely for the use of the Audit & Finance Committee and should 
not be distributed without our prior consent. Consequently, we accept no responsibility to a 
third party that uses this communication. 
 
We wish to express our appreciation for the co-operation we received during the audit from the 
College’s management and staff who have assisted us in carrying out our work. We look 
forward to meeting with you to discuss the contents of this report and any other matters that 
you consider appropriate.  
 
Yours truly, 
 
BDO Canada LLP 
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 
 
 
 
 
Robert E.J. Wilkes, CPA, CA          
Partner 
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STATUS OF THE AUDIT 
 
As of the date of this report, we have substantially completed our audit of the 2015 
consolidated financial statements pending the completion of the items highlighted below.  
These items will need to be completed prior to issuance of our audit report on the consolidated 
financial statements. 
 
 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

• Approval of consolidated financial statements by the Board of Governors 
 
 
COMPLETION OF AUDIT 

• Receipt of signed management representation letter 
• Subsequent events review through to consolidated financial statement approval date 

 
 
 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  
The objective of our audit was to obtain reasonable, not absolute, assurance about whether 
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.  The scope of the 
work performed was substantially the same as that described in our Planning Report to the 
Audit & Finance Committee dated November 3, 2014. 
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INDEPENDENCE 
 
At the core of the provision of external audit services is the concept of independence.  
Canadian auditing standards require us to communicate to the Audit & Finance Committee at 
least annually, all relationships between BDO Canada LLP and its related entities and Durham 
College of Applied Arts and Technology and its related entities, that, in our professional 
judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence with respect to the audit of 
the College. 
 
Our annual letter confirming our independence was previously provided to you.  

 
MATERIALITY 
Misstatements, including omitted financial statement disclosures, are considered to be 
material if they, individually or in aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the consolidated financial statements.   
 
As communicated to you in our Planning Report to the Audit & Finance Committee, preliminary 
materiality was $2,900,000.  Final materiality remained unchanged from our preliminary 
assessment. 
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RISKS AND AUDIT RESPONSES 
 
Based on our knowledge of the College’s operations, our past experience, and knowledge 
gained from management and the Audit & Finance Committee, we have identified the following 
significant risks; those risks of material misstatement that, in our judgment, require special 
audit consideration. 
  
Significant risks arise mainly because of the complexity of the accounting rules, the extent of 
estimation and judgment involved in the valuation of these financial statement areas, and the 
existence of new accounting pronouncements that affect them.   
 
 
 
Grant Revenue and Grants Receivable 
 

Risk  Approach  Results 

Risk is due to the complex funding 
formulas employed by the Ministry 
and the potential for misallocation 
between accounting periods.   

 
All grant revenue and grants 
receivable were confirmed with 
the Ministry, which ensures 
amounts recorded exist, are 
complete and recorded 
accurately. 

All audit testing in this area was 
executed as planned and no errors 
were noted. 

 
Tuition Revenue and Deferred Revenue 
 

Risk  Approach  Results 

Risk is due to the large dollars 
involved and the potential for 
misallocation between accounting 
periods. 

 
Tests of the controls surrounding 
the collection, classification and 
recording of tuition in the 
accounting system were 
performed to ensure tuition is 
accurate and complete.  In 
addition, analytical procedures 
will be performed and the 
calculation of the tuition deferral 
will be reviewed and assessed for 
reasonability.   

 

All audit testing in this area was 
executed as planned and no errors 
were noted. 

 
Payroll 
 

Risk  Approach  Results 

Risk is due to the magnitude of 
payroll expenditures at the College.   
 

 
Payroll was being tested using a 
combination of internal controls 
testing and analytical procedures, 
including analysis of the related 
year-end accruals. 

All audit testing in this area was 
executed as planned and no errors 
were noted. 
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AUDIT FINDINGS 
 
As part of our ongoing communications with you, we are required to have a discussion on our 
views about significant qualitative aspects of the College’s accounting practices, including 
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures. A summary of 
the key discussion points are as follows: 
 
ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT MATTERS 

Donation From Foundation to College 

During the year, the Foundation approved a one-time donation to the College to help fund the 
landscaping capital project for the Centre for Food.  The donation was expensed through the 
Foundation financial statements and added to deferred capital contributions in the records of 
the College; however it was not eliminated upon consolidation when the College and 
Foundation were consolidated.  Since the transfer was between the Foundation and College, 
the transaction should have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. BDO 
discussed this item with management, who agreed this treatment is not in accordance with 
PSAB, however, they chose not to adjust it. The impact of this unadjusted item has been 
reflected in Appendix C. 

 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 
 
Management is responsible for determining the significant accounting policies. The choice of 
different accounting policy alternatives can have a significant effect on the financial position 
and results of operations of the College. The application of those policies often involves 
significant estimates and judgments by management.  Based on the audit work that we have 
performed, it is our opinion that the estimates in the consolidated financial statements are 
reasonable and the disclosures relating to accounting estimates are in accordance with the 
requirements of Canadian public sector accounting standards. Significant estimates include: 
 
Fair Value of Investments - $14,880,592 (2014 - $14,474,315) 
The College’s investment portfolio contains instruments that are not quoted in an active 
market (bonds and other debt-backed securities) whose fair value is determined through the 
observation of market inputs; primarily prevailing interest rates. 
 
Fair Value of Derivative - $3,650,362 (2014 - $2,840,033) 
The derivative interest rate swap is measured at fair value and is largely influenced by the 
long-term interest rate yield curve relative to the fixed rate. The estimated fair value is 
provided by BMO Financial Services and the Royal Bank of Canada.  
 
Deferred Tuition - $4,419,330 (2014 - $4,055,327) 
A portion of the winter term’s tuition related to services provided after March 31 is deferred 
based on an estimate made by management. 
 
Capital Asset Amortization - $14,414,819 (2014 - $14,077,060) 
Capital assets are amortized based on their estimated useful lives, as described in Note 1.  
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued) 
 
Amortization of Deferred Capital Contributions - $6,402,733 (2014 - $6,197,462) 
Deferred capital contributions, which represent the unamortized and unspent amount of 
restricted donations and grants received for the purchase of capital assets, are amortized in to 
revenue on the same basis as the related capital assets are amortized. The change in the 
estimated useful life of certain assets referred to above had impacted this estimate in the 
current year.  
 
Post-Employment Benefits and Compensated Absences - $4,943,222 (2014 - $5,028,725) 
This liability includes vesting sick leave, sick leave that accumulated and does not vest and 
other post-employment benefits, including a retirement allowance. This liability is quantified 
by the College’s actuary.  
 
UNADJUSTED DIFFERENCES 
 
No financial statement disclosure omissions were discovered during the course of our audit.   

We have disclosed all significant unadjusted differences identified through the course of our 
audit engagement.  Each of these items has been discussed with Management. For purposes of 
our discussion, a summary of unadjusted differences has been presented in Appendix C. 

 

MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS 
 
During the course of our audit, management made certain representations to us.  These 
representations were verbal or written and therefore explicit, or they were implied through 
the consolidated financial statements.  Management provided representations in response to 
specific queries from us, as well as unsolicited representations.  Such representations were 
part of the evidence gathered by us to be able to draw reasonable conclusions on which to base 
our audit opinion.  These representations were documented by including them in the audit 
working papers memoranda of discussions with management and written representations 
received from management. 
 
A summary of the representation we have requested from management is set out in the 
management representation letter included in Appendix D to the report. 
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FRAUD DISCUSSION 
Canadian auditing standards require us to discuss fraud risk with the Audit & Finance 
Committee on an annual basis.  As an update to the discussion held with the Audit & Finance 
Committee during the planning of our audit, we have prepared the following comments: 
  

 
Required Discussion 

 
 

BDO Response 
 Question to Audit & 

Finance Committee 

Details of existing 
oversight processes 
with regards to fraud. 

 Based on our discussions during the 
planning of our audit, the Audit & 
Finance Committee’s oversight 
processes include: 

• Audit & Finance Committee 
charters; 
 

• Discussions at Audit & Finance 
Committee meetings; 
 

• Review of related party 
transactions; and 

 

• Consideration of tone at the top. 

 Are there any new 
processes or changes 
in existing processes 
relating to fraud 
since the date of our 
previous discussions, 
that we should be 
aware of? 

Knowledge of actual, 
suspected or alleged 
fraud. 

 Currently, we are not aware of any 
actual, suspected or alleged fraud. 

 Are you aware of any 
instances of actual, 
suspected or alleged 
fraud affecting the 
College? 

 
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR DETECTING FRAUD 
 
We are responsible for planning and performing the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that 
the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatements, whether caused by 
error or fraud.  
 
The likelihood of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the 
likelihood of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from error, because fraud may 
involve collusion as well as sophisticated and carefully organized schedules designed to conceal 
it. 
 
During our audit, we performed the following procedures in order to fulfill our responsibilities: 
 
• Inquire of management, the Audit & Finance Committee, and others related to any 

knowledge of fraud, suspected fraud or alleged fraud; 
• Perform analytical procedures and consider unusual or unexpected relationships indentified 

in the planning of our audit; 
• Incorporate an element of unpredictability in the selection of the nature, timing and 

extent of our audit procedures; and 
• Perform additional required procedures to address the risk of management’s override of 

controls including; 
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o Testing internal controls designed to prevent and detect fraud; 
o Examine a sample of journal entries and other adjustments for evidence of the 

possibility of material misstatement due to fraud; 
o Review accounting estimates for biases that could result in material misstatements 

due to fraud, including a retrospective review of significant prior years’ estimates; 
and 

o Evaluate the business rationale for significant unusual transactions. 

 
INTERNAL CONTROL MATTERS 
During the course of our audit, we performed the following procedures with respect to the 
College’s internal control environment: 

• Documented operating systems to assess the design and implementation of control 
activities that were relevant to the audit. 

• Discussed and considered potential audit risks with management. 

The results of these procedures were considered in determining the extent and nature of 
substantive audit testing required. 
 
We are required to report to you in writing, significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
have identified during the audit. A significant deficiency is defined as a deficiency or 
combination of deficiencies in internal control that, in the auditor's professional judgment, is 
of sufficient importance to merit the attention of those charged with governance.  
 
As the purpose of the audit is for us to express an opinion on the College’s consolidated 
financial statements, our audit cannot be expected to disclose all matters that may be of 
interest to you and, as a result, the matters reported may not be exclusive.  As part of our 
work, we considered internal control relevant to the preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements such that we were able to design appropriate audit procedures. This work was not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. 

DEFICIENCIES IN INTERNAL CONTROL 

During the course of the audit, no significant deficiencies in internal control were identified.  
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BDO RESOURCES 
 
BDO is one of Canada’s largest accounting services firms providing assurance and accounting, 
taxation, financial advisory, risk advisory, financial recovery and consulting services to a 
variety of publicly traded and privately held companies. 
 
BDO serves its clients through 95 offices across Canada.  As a member firm of BDO International 
Limited, BDO serves its multinational clients through a global network of over 1,100 offices in 
110 countries.  Commitment to knowledge and best practice sharing ensures that expertise is 
easily shared across our global network and common methodologies and information technology 
ensures efficient and effective service delivery to our clients. 
 
Outlined below is a summary of certain BDO resources which may be of interest to the Audit & 
Finance Committee. 
 

ASSURANCE AND ACCOUNTING PUBLICATIONS 

BDO’s national and international accounting and assurance department issues publications on 
the transition and application of Public Sector Accounting Standards (“PSAB”) as well as 
common differences between PSAB and Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.  
 
For additional information on PSAB including links to archived publications and model financial 
statements, refer to 
http://www.bdo.ca/library/publications/assuranceandaccounting/index.cfm. 
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APPENDIX A – Other Required Communication 
 
  
 
 
 
Required Communication 

Audit 
Planning 

Presentation 

Audit 
Results 

Presentation 
Auditor 

Comments 
1. Our responsibilities under Canadian 

Auditing Standards (CAS) 
  Included in our 

engagement 
letter dated 
November 11, 
2013.    

2. Our audit strategy and audit scope   Included in our 
audit planning 
letter which 
was presented 
to the Audit & 
Finance 
Committee on 
November 11, 
2013. 

3. Fraud risk factors   Included in our 
audit planning 
letter which 
was presented 
to the Audit & 
Finance 
Committee on 
November 11, 
2013. 

4. Going concern matters   None. 
5. Significant estimates or judgments   See pages 7, 8.
6. Unadjusted differences   See page 8 and 

Appendix C.  
7. Omitted disclosures   None.  See page 

8. 
8. Disagreements with management   There were no 

disagreements 
with 
management. 

9. Consultations with other 
accountants or experts 

  No external 
experts were 
consulted 
during this 
engagement. 

10. Major issues discussed with 
management in regards to 
retention 

  None. 

AGENDA PAGE   50



  
 

 

Durham College of Applied Arts and Technology     13 

 

11. Significant difficulties encountered 
during the audit 

  No difficulties 
were 
encountered 
during our 
audit. 

12. Significant deficiencies in internal 
control 

  None.  See page 
10. 

13. Material written communication 
between BDO and management 

  No material 
written 
communications 
were noted. 

14. Any relationships which may affect 
our independence 

  No 
independence 
issues noted. 

15. Any illegal acts identified during 
the audit 

  No illegal 
activities 
identified 
through the 
audit process. 

16. Any fraud or possible fraudulent 
acts identified during the audit 

  No fraud 
identified 
through the 
audit process. 

17. Significant transactions with 
related parties not consistent with 
ordinary business operations 

  None noted.

18. Non-compliance with laws or 
regulations identified during  the 
audit 

  No legal or 
regulatory non-
compliance 
matters were 
noted as part of 
our audit. 

19. Limitations of scope over our audit, 
if any 

  None. 

20. Written representations made by 
management 

  See Appendix D.

21. Any modifications to our opinion, if 
required 

  None. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report

 

To the Board of Governors of Durham College of Applied Arts and Technology 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Durham College of Applied Arts and 
Technology, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015, and the 
consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets, cash flows and remeasurement gains and losses for the 
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and 
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Durham College of Applied Arts and Technology learning as at March 31, 2015 and the results of its operations, cash 
flows and remeasurement gains and losses for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector 
accounting standards. 

 
 
 
 
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 
Mississauga, Ontario 
REPORT DATE 
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Unadjusted Differences 
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SUMMARY OF UNADJUSTED DIFFERENCES 
 
The following is a summary of uncorrected misstatements noted during the course of our audit engagement: 
 

 Increase (Decrease) 

Assets Liabilities Net Assets Net Income 

Donation from Foundation to College to fund CFF landscaping not 
eliminated upon consolidation 

$  $ (345,000) $  $ 345,000 

Income impact of of non-eliminating deferred capital contribution 

that was amortized during the year 

   20,125    (20,125) 

         

         

         

         

         

         

Total $ - $ (324,875) $ - $ 324,875 

Effect of Prior Year’s Reversing Errors  -  -  -  - 

Total Unadjusted Differences  $ - $ (324,875) $ - $ 324,875 
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REPORT DATE 

BDO Canada LLP 
Chartered Professional Accountants 
1 City Centre Drive 
Suite 1700 
Mississauga, ON 
L5B 1M2 

Dear Sirs/Mesdames: 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audits of the consolidated financial 
statements of Durham College of Applied Arts and Technology for the year ended March 31, 2015 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the consolidated financial statements 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position as at March 31, 2015, and the results 
of its operations, cash flows and remeasurement gains and losses for the year then ended of 
Durham College of Applied Arts and Technology in accordance with Canadian public sector 
accounting standards. 

 
We confirm that: 

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated 
November 11, 2013, for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards; in particular the consolidated 
financial statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith.  

2. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured 
at fair value are reasonable. 

3. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of Canadian public sector accounting 
standards. 

4. All events subsequent to the date of the consolidated financial statements and for which 
Canadian public sector accounting standards require adjustment or disclosure have been 
adjusted or disclosed. 

5. The consolidated financial statements of the College use appropriate accounting policies 
that have been properly disclosed and consistently applied. 

AGENDA PAGE   57



 

  

 

Information Provided 

6. We have provided you with:  

- access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements, such as records, documentation and other matters; 

- additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audits; and 

- unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary 
to obtain audit evidence. 

7. We are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls to 
prevent, detect and correct fraud and error, and have communicated to you all deficiencies 
in internal control of which we are aware. 

8. We have made available to you all:  

- minutes of the meetings of the Board of Governors and Audit & Finance Committee 

9. The minute books of the organization are a complete record of all meetings and resolutions 
of the Board of Governors and the Audit & Finance Committee throughout the year and to 
the present date.  

10. We have disclosed to you all significant matters contained in the minutes of all meetings and 
resolutions of the Board of Governors and the Audit & Finance Committee throughout the 
year and to the present date.     

11. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the 
consolidated financial statements. 

12. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected 
non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when 
preparing consolidated financial statements. 

13. We have identified to you: 

- guarantees 

- Indemnifications against damages, liabilities, costs, charges or expenses suffered or 
incurred by officers or directors as a result of their service, and/or by any subsidiaries; and 

- non-monetary transactions and transactions for no consideration. 

14. We have disclosed to you the identity of the College’s related parties and the related party 
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.    

15. We are aware of the environmental laws and regulations that impact our organization and 
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we are in compliance. There are no known environmental liabilities or contingencies that 
have not been accrued for or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.  

Fraud and Error 

16. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the consolidated 
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud, and have determined 
such risk to be low. 

17. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are 
aware of and that affects the entity and involves: 

- management; 

- employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

- others where the fraud could have a material effect on the consolidated financial 
statements. 

18. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected 
fraud, affecting the College’s consolidated financial statements communicated by 
employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others. 

19. We have reviewed and approved all journal entries recommended by the auditors during the 
audit. 

20. We believe that the effects of unadjusted misstatements are immaterial, both individually 
and in the aggregate, to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. 

 

Existence, Completeness and Valuation of Specific Financial Statement Balances 

21. All assets, wherever located, to which the College had satisfactory title at the year end, 
have been fairly stated and recorded in the consolidated financial statements. There are no 
liens or encumbrances on the organization's assets.  

22. All financial instruments have been appropriately recognized and measured in accordance 
with Canadian public sector accounting standards. Significant assumptions used in arriving at 
fair value of financial instruments are reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances. 

23. Where the value of any asset has been impaired, an appropriate provision has been made in 
the consolidated financial statements or has otherwise been disclosed to you. 

General Representations 

24. The nature of all material uncertainties have been appropriately measured and disclosed in 
the consolidated financial statements, including all estimates where it is reasonably possible 
that the estimate will change in the near term and the effect of the change could be 
material to the consolidated financial statements. 
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25. We have provided you with significant assumptions that in our opinion are reasonable and 
appropriately reflect our intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on behalf 
of the entity when relevant to the use of fair value measurements or disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements.  

26. There were no direct or contingent liabilities (including those associated with guarantees or 
indemnification provisions), unusual contractual obligations nor any substantial 
commitments, whether oral or written, other than in the ordinary course of business, which 
would materially affect the consolidated financial statements or financial position of the 
organization, except as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements. 

27. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible claims, whether or not they have been 
discussed with legal counsel. When applicable, these claims have been appropriately 
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.  

28. We confirm that there are no derivatives or off-balance sheet financial instruments held at 
year end that have not been properly recorded or disclosed in the consolidated financial 
statements.  

29. We have disclosed to you all significant customers and/or suppliers of the organization who 
individually represent a significant volume of business with the organization. We are of the 
opinion that the volume of business (sales, services, purchases, borrowing and lending) done 
by the organization with any one party is not of sufficient magnitude that discontinuance 
would have a material negative effect on the ongoing operations of the organization. 

30. There have been no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or 
classification of assets and liabilities. 

31. No significant matters, other than those disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, 
have arisen that would require a restatement of the comparative consolidated financial 
statements. 

 
Yours truly, 
 
 
 

  
Signature Position 

  
Signature Position 
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DURHAM COLLEGE OF APPLIED ARTS AND TECHNOLOGY 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS REGULAR MEETING 

Public Session - MINUTES 
 

Date: 

Location: 

May 13, 2015 

Community Room, Gordon Willey Building, A144 

 

Members Present: Ron Chatterton, chair 

Pierre Tremblay, vice-chair – arrived at 6:55 p.m. 

Doug Allingham 

Nneka Bowen 

Ivan DeJong 

Kevin Dougherty 

Joanne Dykeman 

Darren Fisher 

Renate Ilse 

Don Lovisa, president (ex-officio) 

Paul Macklin 

Debbie McKee Demczyk 

Heather Quantrill 

Steve Stewart – arrived at 6:15 p.m. 

Doug Wilson 

  

Members Absent: Dan Borowec 

Donna Raetsen-Kemp 

 

Staff Present: Scott Blakey, vice-president, Administration 

Jennifer Clark, board secretary 

Tony Doyle, chief of staff 

Nevzat Gurmen, vice-president, Corporate Services & CFO 

Meri Kim Oliver, vice-president, Student Affairs 

Judy Robinson, vice-president, Academic 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

AGENDA PAGE   61



FOR APPROVAL – Minutes- Board of Governors meeting of May 13, 2015 – public session Page 2 of 7 

 

2. INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS 

The following guests were in attendance: Andrea Bourrie, MMM Group; Sarah 

Brathwaite, President's Office; new Student Association executives Jesse Cullen, 

president; Mike Guerard, Vianney Nengue, Reina Rexhmataj and Siraj Sayed;  

Rashmi Gupta, Manager, Institutional Research; Greg Murphy, Phil Raby and students 

Koree Wait and Khalila DeGrasse, School of Media, Art and Design; Pam Stoneham 

and Don Fishley, School of Skilled Trades, Apprenticeship & Renewable Technology; 

and Karen Young, UOIT  

 

3. ADDITIONS/DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

None. 

 

4. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATIONS 

Governor Quantrill declared a conflict of interest relating to the Joint DC and UOIT 

Campus Master Plan, item 5.1, due to her employment with the Regional Municipality of 

Durham. 

 

5. PRESENTATIONS 

5.1. Joint DC and UOIT Campus Master Plan (Our Business) 

A. Bourrie of MMM Group presented highlights of the joint Durham College and UOIT 

Campus Master Plan of April 2015. She acknowledged contributions by Ken Greenberg, 

Greenberg Consultants Inc. and Michel de Jocas, Educational Consulting Services. The 

same presentation and draft will be received by the UOIT Board at their June 2015 

meeting; endorsement is anticipated. The Board The DC ad hoc committee struck last 

year to monitor and support development of the plan has achieved its purpose and been 

disbanded. The Board expressed appreciation to the consultants and the joint DC and 

UOIT campus master plan team for their work and collaboration on the plan. The plan 

was well received by the Board.  

 

Governor Stewart arrived at this point.  

 

ACTION: Add standing section to Board Reports to ensure continued thoughtful 

consideration of implications to Joint DC and UOIT Campus Master Plan of 

recommendations presented in the report. 

 

Moved By Governor Allingham         Seconded By Governor Wilson 

THAT the Board of Governors approves the Joint DC and UOIT Campus Master 

Plan and Land Use Protocol. 

CARRIED. 

 

Governor Quantrill was present, but did not vote. 
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5.2. DC Support for Pan-Am Games (Our Community) 

Greg Murphy, dean, School of Media, Art and Design (MAD) and Pam Stoneham, 

associate dean, School of Skilled Trades, Apprenticeship and Renewable Technology 

(START) introduced the presenters. Securing work placements for students is an 

ongoing high priority at the college; the Pan-Am Games have provided a unique 

opportunity for students from MAD and START. Professors Phil Raby and Don Fishley 

each utilized their professional networks to assist students in securing positions at 

Canada Broadcasting Corporation and Zegas Group Ltd. All the MAD students that 

applied received placements; they comprise 10% of student placements at CBC 

nationally. Twelve START students have been hired to assist with construction and 

repair of the athletes’ village. Knowledge of accessibility requirements learned in the 

carpentry program are directly applicable to the work underway for the para-Pan 

Games. MAD students Khalila DeGrasse and Koree Wait described their efforts in 

securing these placements and the anticipated impact of these opportunities on their 

futures.  

 

5.3. Records and Information Management (Our Business) 

S. Brathwaite outlined the work undertaken to date over the past five-years in shaping 

corporate culture and establishing the common records schedule in place for physical 

records across the college. The focus has now turned to electronic records. Updates in 

progress for the enterprise applications system, Banner, will support enhanced 

document management. The long-term goal is to eventually store all records 

electronically. Sheridan College was identified as a best-practice model. 

 

Governor Tremblay arrived at this point. 

 

ACTION: Obtain IT input to respond to question regarding back-up and security of 

electronic records. 

   

5.4. Advanced Good Governance Certificates  

 Advanced Good Governance certificates from the College Centre of Board Excellence 

were presented to Doug Allingham, Nneka Bowen, Paul Macklin, Heather Quantrill, 

Steve Stewart, Pierre Tremblay and Doug Wilson. 

  

6. CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items were addressed through the consent agenda: 

  

7 - Minutes of the meeting of April 19 

THAT the minutes of the April 19, 2015 Board of Governors meeting, public 

session, be approved as read. 

11 - President's Report, for information 
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13 - Program Advisory Committee Minutes, for information  

 

Moved By Governor Wilson     Seconded By Governor DeJong 

THAT the Board of Governors approves the consent agenda as presented. 

CARRIED. 

 

7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS MEETING of April 19, 

2015  

Received under the Consent Agenda. 

 

8. ACTIONS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MINUTES 

None were addressed. 

 

9. CHAIR`S REPORT 

The Board was informed of the recent passing of Media, Art and Design student Sean 

Sutcliffe and condolences were expressed to his family, friends and Durham College 

faculty, students and staff who knew him. Management provided a brief update on 

college plans to accommodate and support applicants from secondary schools affected 

by the public school board teachers’ strike.   

 

10. CO-POPULOUS GOVERNORS' REPORT (Our Community) 

Recent Advancement Committee meetings are focused on upcoming major capital 

campaign; KCI retained to perform a campaign study which will be presented at the 

June Board meeting. Board succession and related staffing matters are high priorities 

for the Governance, Nominations and HR Committee. UOIT convocation ceremonies 

will take place June 4 and 5.  

  

 Appreciation and congratulations was extended to staff of both DC and UOIT and to the 

 consultants who worked together to develop the Joint Campus Master Plan and to the 

members of the Campus Master Plan Committee 2014 who advised on, monitored and 

supported the plan’s preparation. 

 

11. PRESIDENT`S REPORT 

Received under the Consent Agenda. 

 

12. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

None. 

 

13. CONTINUING BUSINESS 

13.1. Program Advisory Committee Minutes (Our Students) 

 Received under the Consent Agenda. 
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14. NEW BUSINESS 

14.1. Approve New Local Certificate Programs (Our Students) 

Highlights of the proposed new Fundamentals of Correctional Practices and Diversity 

and Intercultural Relations Durham College Certificate programs to be offered through 

Continuing Education were presented.   

 

Moved By Governor Dougherty     Seconded By Governor Tremblay 

THAT the Durham College Board of Governors approves the programs of 

instruction for the Fundamentals of Correctional Practices and Diversity and 

Intercultural Relations certificate programs. 

CARRIED. 

 

14.2. Receive DC-UOIT Pathways Report (Our Community) 

DC and UOIT are committed to providing students with a transparent and effortless 

credit transfer system. Each year the college and university collaborate on data 

exchange and analysis to continue to assess the pathways framework and the mobility 

of students between them. Collaboration continues between deans at the college and 

university to support and enhance existing pathways for students identify pathways of 

future demand. Since 2012-13, 13 additional articulation agreements establishing new 

pathways or upgrading existing ones between the two institutions have been signed. 

Pathways of greatest demand from UOIT to DC include critical care nursing, accounting, 

and court and administrative tribunal agent; from DC to UOIT include the Criminal 

Justice bridging program, nursing and the legal studies bridging program.  

  

In response to questions it was noted that DC and UOIT have a well-developed tracking 

and reporting system; presentations are offered in secondary schools to build 

awareness of these opportunities; pathways are available locally, provincially, nationally 

and internationally. Engineering and health care, especially nursing are in high demand; 

pathways to professional programs such as these are the most difficult to establish 

given the presence of regulatory bodies. The two institutions will be working to brand 

our partnerships much like those of Guelph-Humber and York-Seneca. 

 

Moved By Governor Dougherty   Seconded By Governor McKee Demczyk 

THAT the Board of Governors receives this Academic Pathways Report update 

for information. 

CARRIED. 

 

14.3. Receive PQAPA Update Report (Our Students, Our People) 

The college’s most recent Program Quality Assurance Process Audit (PQAPA), which is 

undertaken every five years by external reviewers to assess the effectiveness of each 
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college’s quality assurance processes, was conducted in 2013. The college met all 6 

criteria and received 2 commendations. The Audit identified 10 recommendations for 

consideration by the college, most of which are focused on prior learning assessment 

recognition (PLAR) and which also include increasing awareness of students regarding 

credit-transfer, pathways to teaching practices and evaluation of full-time faculty. Many 

of the recommendations have been completed or processes have been developed for 

implementation. All are anticipated to be in effect by September 2015. A voluntary 

accreditation model has been introduced to the sector; Durham College is preparing for 

its first voluntary accreditation review in 2016-2017.  

 

Moved By Governor Quantrill               Seconded By Governor Ilse 

THAT the Board of Governors receives the update on the progress in addressing 

the recommendations of the 2013 Program Quality Assurance Process Audit 

Review for information. 

CARRIED. 

 

14.4. Receive 2015 Key Performance Indicators Report (All Pillars) 

Durham College’s 2014-2015 results in the five high-level KPIs were presented, 

compared to last year and to the system average for both years. Student Satisfaction 

and Graduate Satisfaction at Durham College were both modestly up this year 

compared to last while the sector overall was down slightly. Graduate Employment was 

modestly down at the College and compared to modestly up sector wide. Employer 

Satisfaction was down at the College and across the sector (response rates were also 

down). Graduation rate was up at the College and modestly up sector-wide.  

 

 Student satisfaction results at GTA colleges are consistently lower compared to non-

 GTA colleges; Employer Satisfaction sample size is often low, and may not be a good 

 indicator of reality. As is done each year, schools and programs will analyze relevant 

detailed KPI results to understand the implications for their areas and take action as 

necessary. 

 

Moved By Governor Dougherty        Seconded By Governor Macklin 

THAT the Board of Governors receives the 2015 Key Performance Indicators (KPI) 

Update for information. 

CARRIED. 

 

15. OTHER BUSINESS 

None. 

 

16. INQUIRIES AND COMMUNICATIONS 

None. 
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17. UPCOMING EVENTS 

Governors were encouraged to attend Convocation the evening of June 8 and mornings 

and afternoons of June 9 and 10. Notice was given of the June 18 School-College-Work 

Initiative Centre for Success Completion Ceremony. This is a by-invitation event; 

expressions of interest are to be sent to the Board secretary. The juried student art 

show, Art – Becomes You! is taking place May 14 at Station Gallery in Whitby. 

 

18. MOVE TO IN-CAMERA SESSION 

Durham College by-law No. 1. provides for the Board of Governors to address, in-

camera, items of corporate business respecting human resources or litigation matters, 

confidential items covered under the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy 

Act and, items that the Board deems to be confidential to the College. 

 

Moved By Governor DeJong    Seconded By Governor Stewart 

THAT the Durham College Board of Governors move in-camera to address 10 

items of business.  

CARRIED. 

 

19. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting returned to public session and adjourned at 8:37 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Ron Chatterton, chair 

 
Jennifer Clark, secretary 
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Our Students 

Students Recognized for Unique Approach 

to Emergency Preparedness 

May 2015 

 
DC Students in the Interactive Design and 

Media program were recognized by the Ontario 

Office of the Fire Marshal and Emergency 

Management and the Insurance Bureau of 

Canada for their work on a series of posters 

and videos to promote emergency 

preparedness in Ontario. This project also 

included students from the Contemporary Web 

Design program, who created mock web pages 

on emergency preparedness. Successful 

entries were posted on the OFMEM website 

and YouTube channel, and promoted via 

Twitter and Facebook. 

 

Multiple Medals Presented to Durham 

College Students at Skills Competitions  

March 2015 

Durham College (DC) students owned the 

podium at Skills Ontario, Canada’s largest 

skilled trades’ competition. Our students 

excelled in the competition, earning gold and 

silver medals in multiple categories. 

 

 

 Adam Leadbetter, a level-three apprentice 

in DC’s Industrial Mechanic – Millwright 

program, won gold in the Industrial 

Mechanic Millwright category earning the 

opportunity to compete at the National 

Skills Competition where he took home the 

silver medal. 

 Mike Bachand, a second-year Mechanical 

Technician – Mechanical Maintenance and 

Control student took home the silver in the 

Industrial Mechanic – Millwright program. 

 Bryan Chamberlain, a Computer Systems 

Technology student, won silver in the IT 

Network Systems Administration category; 

 Blake Jessup, a level-three welding 

apprentice in the Welding program, won 

silver in the Welding category.  
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DC Hosts Introduction to College Sessions 

for Students Affected by Teacher Strike   

May 2015 

 
Graduating high school students affected by the 

teacher strike and their parents have been 

invited to attend introduction sessions in June.  

The sessions provide an opportunity to engage 

in Qs and As with a panel of faculty and 

students; participate in a financial aid 

workshop; meet with their coach who will work 

with them throughout their time at Durham 

College; and learn about additional support 

services dedicated to helping them succeed. 

  

Our People 

Faculty Celebrate College Teaching 

Certificate Graduation 

May 2015 

 

 

Another class of faculty have successfully 

completed their Durham College Teaching 

Certificates.  This program supports faculty in 

their transition from subject matter expert to 

professional educator.  The program offers 

resources and support to allow faculty to learn 

new skills, consider new theories, and think 

about their career skills in new ways.  Faculty 

engage in courses offered face-to-face and 

online, developing a foundation of adult 

learning theory and building a multitude of 

practical teaching skills. 

 

Employee Town Hall 

May 2015 

 

Our annual Employee Town Hall is an 

opportunity to share our successes over the 

past year and discuss issues of importance to 

the college and reconnect with colleagues 

across both campuses.  This year’s agenda 

included a discussion about our role in online 

learning, a look at our current and future 

enrolment, Key Performance Indicator results 

and trends, our upcoming PD Day, details 

about our building plans for this summer, and a 

financial update. 
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Journalism Faculty Host Ontario Journalism 

Educators Association Conference. 

May 2015 

 

Durham College was 

the host of this annual 

conference held in 

Toronto, inviting award-

winning reporter and 

host of the CBC’s 

World Report, David 

Common to be the 

guest speaker. The 

conference provides journalism instructors and 

professors across Ontario with a chance to get 

together to share their successes and 

challenges over the past year, as well as 

brainstorm ways to boost enrolment and 

discuss the latest software and industry trends. 

This year, representatives from Algonquin, 

Conestoga, Niagara, Centennial and  

Humber colleges attended the event, which 

was held in conjunction with the Newspapers 

Canada – Ontario Community Newspapers 

Association conference. 

 

Faculty Host College Association for 

Language and Literacy (CALL) Conference  

May 2015 

 

 

Faculty from the School of Interdisciplinary 

Studies and Employment Services recently 

organized and hosted the annual CALL 

conference on campus. This year’s conference 

theme, Impact, Inspire and Engage, focused on 

the ability to communicate effectively as one of 

life’s most important skills. The conference 

delegates enjoyed guest speakers, over 20 

breakout sessions, and an evening of wine 

tasting at the Centre for Food. 

 

Dave Hawey Featured on Daily Planet 

May 2015 

 

 
 

Dave Hawey, Chair, Centre for Food was 

recently featured showing some handy kitchen 

tricks to Jay Ingram on Daily Planet’s 

Seriously?! The segment which aired on 

Discovery Channel, Thursday, May 21 followed 

Chef Hawey along with culinary students as 

they walked the host through a series of 

“kitchen hacks” including how to sharpen a 

knife on a cup. To view please go to 

http://youtu.be/xadhTjo2atU  
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 Our Business 
 

Whitby Campus Hosts Minister Kellie 

Leitch’s Roundtable on Women in Skilled 

Trades 

May 2015 

 
 

The School of Skilled Trades, Apprenticeship 

and Renewable Technology hosted a group of 

Durham College graduates and their employers 

to meet with Federal Labour and Status of 

Women Minister Kellie Leitch at the Centre for 

Food.  Employers discussed their experiences 

with regards to hiring and employing women in 

skilled trades.  The roundtable is part of series 

of events organized by the Group of Leaders on 

Women in the Economy. 

 
New GM Canada President Visits Durham 
College 
May 2015 

Stephen Carlisle, the new President, General 
Motors of Canada, visited Whitby Campus for 
an opportunity to discuss Durham College, our 
long partnership with GM and to share some of 
his priorities for the years ahead. 

 

 

 

  
 

It was a good discussion that will lead to new 
ways to further work together in the future. 
 

Messier-Bugatti-Dowty Tour 

May 2015 

 

Bryan Teed, President and Vice-President of 

Finance, led us on a tour of the very 

impressive Messier-Bugatti-Dowty 

operations in Ajax. It was a fascinating look 

at this world leader in the manufacturing of 

aircraft landing gear and a chance to discuss 

possible new opportunities for our students. I 

was particularly proud to have Ryan Beatty, 

a Durham College graduate and MBD’s 

Director of Manufacturing, join us for the 

tour. I was very impressed by his expertise 

of all aspects of the operation.    
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Our Community 

Durham Learning and Business (dLAB) 
Public Launch Event 
May 2015 

  

dLAB hosted over 35 municipal, 

development, educational and other 

community leaders, including Whitby Mayor 

Don Mitchell and Oshawa Mayor John 

Henry, reinforcing their support for the 

project.  Featured at the luncheon was guest 

speaker Richard Joy of the Urban Land 

Institute (ULI).  Executive Director of ULI in 

Toronto, Richard spoke about general 

demographic trends and shifts occurring in 

other cities across North America, why work-

life balance is critical, and how Whitby and 

Oshawa can capitalize on these shifts.   

Science Rendezvous Attracts 650 Visitors to 

Oshawa Campus 

May 2015 

Science Rendezvous offered families more 

than 60 activities spread across DC and UOIT’s 

shared campus in Oshawa, providing 

something to pique the interests of all 650 

visitors. The day proved to be an engaging, 

informative and a fun-filled adventure into the  

 

impact that science and technology has on our 

everyday lives.   

 

Highlights included: building a balloon dragster 

while learning about Newton’s law of motion; 

launching bottle rockets using only air and 

water; making ice cream out of liquid nitrogen;  

2015 Campus Clean-up 

May 2015 

 

Durham College (DC) students and employees 

put on gloves, collected empty garbage bags 

and took to the outdoors to make the campus 

beautiful during the 2015 Campus Clean-up.  

Events like this play a key role in DC’s Living 

Green mandate, which includes environmental 

stewardship and raising awareness while 

promoting sustainability in its goals. By the end, 

243 kilograms of waste, such as planks of 

wood, shopping carts and buckets, and 182 kg. 

of recycling were removed from the stream and 

trail path behind the South Village Residence.  
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May 12, 2015 

Summary of Committee of Presidents’ meeting 

May 11, 2015 

Decision items: 

Nominations of presidents to committees 

The Committee of Presidents (COP) approved recommendations for the appointments and 

reappointments of presidents to various college committees for 2015-16. The appointments were 

recommended by the sector’s nominating committee. 

Discussion items: 

Meeting of the sexual assault task force 

Linda Franklin, the president and CEO of Colleges Ontario, provided an update on the work of the 

sector’s task force on sexual assault. 

The task force is working on next steps after the public release in March of each college’s policy and 

protocol on sexual assault. A meeting was held last week in Toronto to determine what is needed for the 

student orientations in the fall and for staff training. 

The task force meeting included a review of the work done by other groups such as the Metropolitan 

Toronto Action Committee on Violence Against Women and Children (METRAC), the Canadian 

Federation of Students (CFS) and the College Student Alliance. There were presentations on public-

awareness materials created by the CFS and on the campus audits that METRAC has done at some 

colleges and universities to identify potential risks. 

The task force determined there are many resources available for student orientations and colleges are 

encouraged to submit materials to Colleges Ontario. The materials will be made available to all colleges 

in June on Colleges Ontario’s portal. 

Online materials are also being developed to assist with staff training. The online training resource will 

be developed by a task force, led by Centennial and Humber colleges, and will be available to colleges in 

August. 
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Meanwhile, the provincial government is continuing to work on the implementation of its action plan on 

sexual assault. At this point, it has not been announced how the provincial funding to support the action 

plan will be allocated. 

Provincial consultations on universities’ funding formula 

Sue Herbert, the executive lead for the provincial government’s consultations on the universities’ 

funding formula, met with presidents to discuss the process for the review that was officially launched 

last week. 

Herbert, a former deputy minister in the Ontario government, said her consultations will be looking at 

how funding is allocated and will not be examining the level of overall funding provided. She said there 

is no new funding and the new model might mean more funding for some universities and less for 

others. The consultations are looking to achieve the following principles: 

 Enhanced quality and improving the student experience. 

 Support for the existing differentiation process. 

 Financial sustainability. 

 Increased transparency and accountability. 

Ministry grants account for 40 per cent of universities’ overall funding. The current model for allocating 

the funds to specific institutions was essentially created in 1967 and is primarily enrolment based. 

Herbert said it doesn’t address issues such as research, student outcomes or teaching quality. 

Herbert will be meeting with universities and other stakeholders, including the colleges, during the 

consultations. It will also be consulting outside experts such as former Sick Kids Hospital CEO Mary Jo 

Haddad, post-secondary consultants David Trick and Alex Usher, ONCAT executive director Glenn 

Craney, HEQCO president and CEO Harvey Weingarten and others. Herbert will be looking to add a 

college expert to that group. 

The decisions about changes to the funding formula will be made by the Ministry of Training, Colleges 

and Universities. Herbert said she has been asked to provide advice to the ministry but will not be 

making formal recommendations. 

The ministry’s review of the college sector’s funding formula is scheduled for 2017. 

50th anniversary of Ontario’s colleges in 2017 

Don Lovisa, the president of Durham College and chair of the Ontario colleges’ task force on the 50th 

anniversary, gave a presentation on the ideas that are being planned for the sector’s 50th anniversary in 

2017. 
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Following interviews in April, the task force has selected an agency to work with the colleges on the 

anniversary. LOFT Communications + Events has been selected as the lead agency for the marketing and 

event planning for the 50th anniversary. Working in collaboration with the task force and the colleges, 

LOFT will be developing a number of events and communications for the anniversary that are based on 

the theme The Start of Something of Amazing. The tactics and products to be developed include: 

 The creation of a logo and a dedicated website. 

 Videos for use in social media and to support a central video at the 2017 Higher Education 

Summit and Premier’s Awards. 

 A fall 2017 road trip featuring a branded and retrofitted charter bus. 

 A 50th anniversary digital yearbook campaign. 

 A commemorative letter or certificate to the Class of 2017. 

 A Gold Scholarship Award for students. 

 An award recognizing outstanding teaching at the colleges. 

There will be a strong social media campaign that promotes the colleges’ leading role in innovation and 

looks ahead to the next 50 years. The proposal is to include free interactive educational events that are 

conducted at the colleges. 

The task force and representatives from LOFT are planning to host a meeting in Toronto in June with all 

of the local leads at the colleges who are responsible for the celebrations at each college. 

Funding for deferred maintenance 

In an update for presidents from the Ministry of Training, Colleges and Universities, acting deputy 

minister Marie-Lison Fougère said the allocation of increased funding this year for deferred 

maintenance projects will use the same methodology from past years to determine what gets funded. 

However, she said the ministry will be consulting this year with stakeholders on a new methodology for 

subsequent years. 

The Ontario government announced last year that deferred maintenance funding is increasing to $40 

million for the post-secondary sector this year, up from $26 million a year in the past. The funding will 

ultimately increase to $100 million per year starting in 2019-20. 

Section 28 approvals under the Financial Administration Act 

Presidents received an update from Scott Porter, the vice-president of finance at Fanshawe College, on 

the college sector’s working group that is looking at the Section 28 requirements affecting colleges. 
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As Crown agencies, Ontario’s public colleges are required under Section 28 of the Financial 

Administration Act to seek Ministry of Finance approval for any expenditure that could increase the 

province’s liabilities. While the requirement has been in place for years, it became an issue in 2013 

when the government announced it was seeking strict adherence to the requirement. 

The colleges have been lobbying for changes and the government is responding. The 2015 Ontario 

Budget released in April included a commitment to amend the act to help facilitate approvals. 

Porter said the college sector’s working group is looking to identify classes of transactions that could be 

recommended to the province as areas that might be exempted from the approvals. 

OCQAS accreditation process 

The Committee of Presidents received an update on the work being done by the Ontario College Quality 

Assurance Service (OCQAS) to establish an accreditation process at the colleges. 

Joy Warkentin, the chair of OCQAS, said a trial run of the accreditation process audits for the five 

colleges that were audited this spring had gone well. She said OCQAS had received excellent comments 

from the colleges that participated and from the auditors who visited the colleges, including an Alberta 

expert who said Ontario is far ahead of Alberta. Warkentin said there will likely be some modifications 

to the accreditation standards as the process continues. 

Colleges will be eligible to apply for accreditation starting this fall. It has been determined that the 

rendering of accreditation decisions will be done in January 2017. Colleges will have the option to seek 

accreditation or to stay with OCQAS’ existing audit process. 

Aboriginal education 

The Ministry of Training, Colleges and Universities’ acting deputy minister, Marie-Lison Fougère, spoke 

with presidents about Minister Reza Moridi’s recent comments about a stand-alone policy on aboriginal 

institutes operated by and for First Nations. 

The minister made the comments as part of a speech he delivered on May 7 to the Canadian Club of 

Toronto. Fougère said she would not interpret this as a shift in policy. She said the government plans to 

strengthen aboriginal education and will build on what exists now. She said this will be done in 

partnership with existing institutions. 

OSSTF strike – applications to colleges 

Karen Creditor, the CEO of the Ontario College Application Service (OCAS), provided an update on how 

OCAS is managing applications from students in secondary schools where the teachers are on strike. 

She said OCAS has interim grades for students in all seven of the boards that have been identified for 

strikes by the Ontario Secondary School Teachers’ Federation. Plans are being developed for the mid-

term and for the longer term if the labour disputes continue. 
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Enactus national competitions 

Nicole Almond, the president of Enactus Canada, spoke to presidents about Enactus’ national 

competitions that were running May 11 to 13 at the Metro Convention Centre in Toronto. 

Enactus is a non-profit organization that teaches post-secondary students how to be entrepreneurs. It 

provides a platform for teams of outstanding students to create community development projects that 

put people’s own ingenuity and talents at the center of improving their livelihoods. 

Almond said about 1,500 students were participating in the national competitions that are judged by a 

variety of business leaders. A national champion will be named and that champion will represent Canada 

at the Enactus World Cup in South Africa. 

The 2016 Enactus World Cup will be held in Toronto. 
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Public Audit and Finance Committee Report No. 1 of 2014-2015 
to the Durham College Board of Governors for consideration at its  

public meeting held June 8, 2015 
 

                                                                                 
 

THE AUDIT AND FINANCE COMMITTEE, AS A RESULT OF ITS MEETING 
HELD ON JUNE 1, 2015, REPORTS AND RECOMMENDS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. 2014-2015 Audited Financial Statements  

 The auditors reported that their audit proceeded as per their initial plan, with no 

changes. There was no change in materiality. Identified risks requiring special 

attention included grant revenue and grants receivable, tuition revenue and deferred 

revenue and payroll; no errors were noted in these areas. Attention was brought to 

how the Foundation’s one-time donation to the College to help fund the CFF 

landscaping capital project is handled and its impact on the consolidated financial 

statements of the College. Although not in accordance with public sector accounting 

standards (PSAB), the amount is not material; the treatment used serves the 

purposes of the Foundation and the College. As per Canadian auditing standards, 

the auditors confirmed that no committee members are aware of any new processes 

or changes in existing processes relating to fraud since the previous discussion with 

the auditors on this topic, nor are any members aware of any instances of actual, 

suspected or alleged fraud affecting the College. Auditors noted that no significant 

deficiencies in internal control were identified. All topics considered to be best-

practices for audits under PSAB have been addressed. The Audit and Finance 

Committee recommends that the Board of Governors approves the 2014-15 

Audited Financial Statements. 

 

2.  Receive Annual Investment Report (DC Foundation) for 2014-2015  

Total equity of the DC Foundation increased by 6% during 2014-15. Withdrawals 

from the portfolio funded the annual scholarship and bursary awards, athletic awards, 

a one-time capital grant to the Centre for Food (CFF) campaign, and other support 

for CFF. The total gain on the portfolio exceeded the goal set for the year. By 

Foundation policy, total investments in Fixed Income are to remain above 30% and 

Equity below 65%. The portfolio mix complies with this policy. Appreciation was 

extended to the DC Foundation Investment Committee and the Durham College 

Department of Finance for their assistance. The Audit and Finance Committee 

recommends that the Board of Governors receives the 2015 DC Foundation 

Investment Report for information. 

 

All of which is respectfully submitted, 

 
Kevin Dougherty, vice-chair 

Audit and Finance Committee, June 1, 2015   
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Public Governance Review Committee Report No. 4 of 2014-2015 
to the Durham College Board of Governors for consideration at its 

public meeting held June 2, 2015 

1 of 6 
 

 

 

THE GOVERNANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE, AS A RESULT OF ITS MEETING 
HELD ON JUNE 2, 2015 REPORTS AND RECOMMENDS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. Review and Amend By-Laws 

Recommended amendments to By-Law 1 (11-001) are attached as Schedule 1; no 

amendments are recommended to By-Law 2 nor By-Law 3.  

 

Amendments to subsections 4.5 – 4.8 clarify the role of elected internal governors. The 

Minister’s Binding Policy Directive (MBPD) on Conflict of Interest states that “Each 

governor, regardless of how he or she becomes a member [of the Board], has a 

responsibility first and foremost to the welfare of the institution and must function 

primarily as a member of the board, not as a member of any particular constituency.” 

Elected internal governors do not represent their constituency. Rather, they bring the 

perspective of their respective constituencies to the Board.  

 

Amendment of subsection 5.2 removes redundancy in the context of subsection 5.1 and 

therefore clarifies the term of office. 

 

Amendment of subsection 19.1 (e) aligns with recent consideration of and decision not 

to provide for leaves of absence from the Board. 

 

Amendment of subsection 23.1 aligns with the Board’s decision in 2014 to reduce the 

number of required meetings of the Board, knowing that the By-Law provides for special 

meetings to be called if required.  

 

As Board Officers who are non-governors are included in the membership of 

committees, amendment of subsection 31.1, clarifies that only voting-members count 

toward quorum for committee meetings. 

 

Amendment of subsection 33.1 aligns with the new Canadian public sector accounting 

standards (PSAB) adopted by the College in 2012. 

 

Addition of statement d) to subsection 34.1 explicitly provides for a Board responsibility 

of similar importance to that described in statement c) that has been delegated through 

policy and practice to the Nominating Committee. It is added for consistency. 

 

Amendment to subsection 35.1 distinguishes Board-level by-laws and policies 

(governance) from Foundation by-laws and College-level policies (operations). 
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Amendment to subsection 35.3 aligns the subsection with the prior rationalization for in-

camera meetings, for consistency. 

 

A change in format to section 17 does not affect the meaning or content of the By-Law.  

 

Subsection 25.2 (a) currently explicitly references Board meetings; no similar 

requirement is specified for committee meetings. The amendment provides for the 

Conflict of Interest section to also apply to Committees.   

 

2. 2014-2015 President's Verification Letter  

Under the policy governance model the Board has delegated broad authority to the 

president to carry-out the operation of the college within the limits defined by Board 

policy. The monitoring section of a number of Board policies requires confirmation of 

compliance with the policy by the president, annually. This year for the first time, and at 

the request of the Board, a statement confirming compliance with legislated health and 

safety reporting requirements of the Ministry of Health and WSIB is included. The 

Governance Review Committee recommends that this information be presented in 

a formal report to the Board of Governors on June 8, 2015. 

 

3. Board Decisions Made In-camera  

Consideration was given to the question posed at the May 13, 2015 meeting of the 

Board regarding achieving consensus in-camera and confirming decisions in public 

session. By-Law 1 (11-001) provides for decision-making by vote and does not require 

nor provide for decision-making by consensus. Ontario Regulation 34/03 to the Ontario 

colleges of Applied Arts and Technology Act, 2002, provides for in-camera consideration 

and decision-making of confidential issues as defined in By-Law. By-Law 1 (001) 

provides for  in-camera meetings to deal with items of corporate business respecting 

human resources, litigation or contractual matters; items of confidentiality covered under 

the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act; and any matter determined by 

the Board to be confidential to the College. The committee recommends that no 

change be made to the current Board practices relating to in-camera decision-

making by the Board. 

 

4. Review Meeting Critique Form  

The committee considered the need to review the critique form and to define “right 

participation”. It was noted that the critique was designed to support Board goals and 

needs at the time it was implemented, including modelling behaviour that you want to 

see in others, focus on Board ownership of the annual workplan, and alignment of Board  
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meeting agendas with the four pillars of the strategic plan. Use of the phrase “right 

participation” is intended to allow the person critiquing the meeting the opportunity to 

consider what they believe is the best type of participation and evaluate the meeting in 

that context. The committee supports the use of the phrase “right participation”, 

encouragement of more governor participation at meetings and consideration of the 

addition of a self-reflected question to encourage governors consider the effectiveness 

of their own participation in the meeting. A question and answer opportunity for new and 

early-term governors will be held in January as a continuation of orientation; 

encouraging questions and contributions by new governors at meetings will be included. 

It was noted that further analysis of some aspects of the Board Effectiveness Survey has 

been requested by the Executive Committee. The committee will revisit the critique 

form in the context of the outcome of further analysis of the Board Effectiveness 

Survey responses. 

 

 

All of which is respectfully submitted, 

 
 
 
Renate Ilse, chair 
Governance Review Committee 
June 2, 2015

AGENDA PAGE   81



Public Governance Review Committee Report No. 4 of 2014-2015 
to the Durham College Board of Governors for consideration at its 

public meeting held June 2, 2015 

4 of 6 
 

 

Schedule 1.  
 

DURHAM COLLEGE OF APPLIED ARTS AND TECHNOLOGY 
BY-LAW NUMBER 15-001 

 
A BY-LAW TO AMEND DURHAM COLLEGE BY-LAW #1 (11-001), A BY-LAW RELATING 
GENERALLY TO CONDUCT OF THE AFFAIRS OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF THE 
DURHAM COLLEGE OF APPLIED ARTS AND TECHNOLOGY PURSUANT TO 
REGULATION 34/03 UNDER THE ONTARIO COLLEGES OF APPLIED ARTS AND 
TECHNOLOGY ACT, 2002 (THE “ACT”). 
THE DURHAM COLLEGE BOARD OF GOVERNORS HEREBY AMENDS AS FOLLOWS:  
 
1.  SECTION 4. GOVERNANCE 

4.5  One (1) member of the College’s Academic Staff representative  (faculty 

member), duly elected by the members of the Academic Staff, in accordance 

with the Board Policy for Election of Internal Board Members (hereinafter 

called the “Election Policy”), shall be a voting member of the Board for the 

term prescribed by the Board, and identified as an internal member. 

4.6   One (1) member of the College’s Administrative Staff representative, duly 

elected by the members of the Administrative Staff, in accordance with the 

Board Policy for Election of Internal Board Members (hereinafter called the 

“Election Policy”), shall be a voting member of the Board for the term 

prescribed by the Board and identified as an internal member. 

4.7   One (1) member of the College’s Support Staff representative, duly elected by 

the members of the Support Staff, in accordance with the Board Policy for 

Election of Internal Board Members (hereinafter called the “Election Policy”), 

shall be a voting member of the Board for the term prescribed by the Board, 

and identified as an internal member. 

4.8    One (1) Student representative, duly elected by the Students, in accordance 

with the Board Policy for Election of Internal Board Members (hereinafter 

called the “Election Policy”), shall be a voting member of the Board, and 

identified as an internal member. 

2. SECTION 5. TERM OF OFFICE 

5.2 A Governor other than a Student Governor is eligible for reappointment or re-

election after two (2) years absence from the Board., for successive terms not 

to exceed (6) years in total. 
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3.  SECTION 17. PROTECTION OF GOVERNORS AND BOARD OFFICERS 

 The last phrase of the sentence is moved to the left to align with the start of the 

sentence, rather than aligning with the six items. 

4. SECTION 19.  REMOVAL OF A BOARD MEMBER 

19.1  Grounds for Removal 

 

(e)  the Governor is absent for three (3) consecutive meetings or for more than 

50 percent of the regular meetings in a twelve (12) month period, without 

leave permission from the Board; 

 
5.   SECTION 23. FREQUENCY AND LOCATION OF MEETINGS 

23.1  The Board shall meet at least eight (8) six (6) times per year, unless 

otherwise determined by the Board.   

 
6. SECTION 30 COMMITTEES – GENERAL 

 

 30.5 Section 25.0 Conflict of Interest applies to Committees. 

 
7.  SECTION 31 QUORUM - COMMITTEES  

 

31.1  A quorum for each Committee consists of a simple majority of the voting 

members (half plus one). 

 
8. SECTION 33. AUDIT AND FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 

 33.1  Terms of Reference  

 

There shall be an Audit and Finance Committee.  Subject to the direction of the 

Board, the Audit and Finance Committee shall ensure the financial integrity of the 

College compliant with applicable legislation, Minister’s Binding Policy Directives 

and Board Policy; review financial reports and policies appropriate to generally 

accepted accounting principles (GAAP Canadian public sector accounting standards 

for government not-for-profit organizations including the 4200 series of standards, 

as issued by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB); oversee financial risk 

assessment, risk management and accountability and long-term capital projects; 

review proposed private-public partnerships and financial implications of major 

initiatives; review regular financial report of major projects; receive information and 
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consider recommendations of the external auditor on behalf of the Board of 

Governors. 

 

….. 

 

The Committee shall fulfill its responsibilities consistent with Board and 

institutional policy, financial literacy, guided by general accepted accounting 

principles (GAAP)the Canadian public sector accounting standards for government 

not-for-profit organizations (PSAB), within the context of the annually approved 

Board work plan. 

  
9.  SECTION 34. NOMINATING COMMITTEE 

34.1 Terms of Reference 

 

d) To oversee the re-appointment process for external Governors and recommend 

re-appointments to the Board. 
 
10.  SECTION 35. GOVERNANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE 

 

35.1 Terms of Reference  

 

f) To annually review the Durham College Board By-laws and Board Policies;  

 

35.3 Meetings 

All meetings will be held in public, unless an item of business falls under the 

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (FIPPA)meets the 

requirements for an In-Camera meeting under sub-section 22.3, at which 

time the Committee shall move in-camera.  
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BOARD REPORT 
 
        Action Required: 
Public:        Discussion  
In-Committee:       Decision  

 
MEETING DATE: June 8, 2015 
 
REPORT DATE: June 5, 2015 
 
FROM:  Don Lovisa, president 
 
SUBJECT:  Program Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 
 
A. Purpose 
 
To inform the Board of Governors of the activities of the Program Advisory Committees 
(PAC) of Durham College.  
 
B. Background 
 
The Minister’s Binding Policy Directive 3.0 Programs – Framework for Programs of 
Instruction, Section C: Advisory Committees provides for the Board of Governors to 
ensure that an advisory committee for each program of instruction or cluster of related 
programs offered at the college is established. Committees are to be made up of a 
cross-section of persons external to the college who have a direct interest in and a 
diversity of experience and expertise related to the particular occupational area 
addressed by the program. The Board of Governors is to establish in by-law the 
structure, terms of reference, and procedures for program advisory committees. 
 
The Durham College Board of Governors By-Law No. 2, a By-Law regarding Advisory 
Committees for Programs of Instruction, sets out in section 3.6, in part, that “…The 
Board of Governors will acknowledge receipt of the minutes [of PAC meetings] by 
resolution.” 
 
C. Discussion/Options 
 
Minutes summaries of 33 PAC meetings held between March 9, 2015 and May 27, 2015 
are provided for review. 
 
D. Financial/Human Resource Implications 
 
N/A 
 
E. Implications for UOIT (if applicable) 

 
N/A 
 
F. Recommendation(s) 
 
That the Durham College Board of Governors receives these minutes summaries from 
Program Advisory Committee meetings, for information.  
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911 Emergency & Call Centre Communications Committee 
School of Justice & Emergency Services 

Minutes of May 20, 2015 
 

 
911 Emergency & Call Centre Communications Program Advisory Committee Membership List 
 

Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair 

*Theresa Virgin 

 

External Committee Members 

 

APCO Canada Representative 

  

APCO Canada 

*Nicole Bolotenko 

Diane Douglas 

Kim Rigden 

*Irene Marceau 

Brenda Jeffs 

Lee Ana Carleton 

Sharon Noble 

*Adam Kelly 

Susan Sharp 

Brenda Wrethan 

*Clyde Haggart 

Anna Halkidis 

*Lisa Nash 

 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

Director of Programming 

Communicator 

Commander, CACCr 

Operations Manager 

Customer Service Manager 

Training & Recruitment 

Chief Communications Officer 

Unit Leader Communications/911 

Training Unit 

Training Unit, Communications 

Performance Leader 

Manager, Dispatch Operations 

Training Coordinator 

 

 

Year/Program/Alumni  

Distress Centre Durham 

Oshawa Fire Services 

Toronto EMS 

Minacs 

City of Oshawa 

Toronto Police Service 

Ajax Fire & Emergency 

Durham Regional Police 

Toronto Police Service 

Toronto Police Service 

On Star 

CAA South Central Ontario 

Durham Regional Police 

 

TBA 

 

Elected Faculty/Staff   
Representatives 

Name 

 

 

 

Title 

 

 

 

Organization 

Stephanie Ball/Moreen Tapper* 

*Margot Murray 

*Annette Patrick 

 

Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff  

Name   

*Donald Smith 

*Emilie Hibbs 

 

Dean/Associate Dean 

Faculty 

Coordinator/Faculty 

 

 

 

Title 

2
nd

 Year Student 

1st Year Student 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

 

 

 

Organization 

Durham College 

Durham College 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 
 
1. The minutes of October 22, 2014 were approved by A. Patrick and seconded by M. Murray.  CARRIED. 
2. Industry Updates:  OnStar has moved away from APCO curriculum and instead uses the curriculum 

provided by IAED (International Academies of Emergency Dispatch).  On Star/Minacs are looking for 
graduates for full time summer employment.  Minacs reported that students do not perform well in 
behavioural event interviews and do not seem to understand the concept of the transferability of skills, 
such as customer skills in their own life experiences, nor are they able to articulate competencies.  
Durham Distress Centre is offering two training sessions in August and more information is available on 
their website. Their website address is www.distresscentredurham.com. 

3. Enrolment:  Applications for this program have increased this year with 72 confirmed and 7 already 
paid for one of the 55 seats in first year.  A plan of action is being developed for the successful transition 
of high school students coming from Durham Region due to the work stoppage. 

4. Employment Stats:  Current and recent graduates have attained call centre/communication positions 
with agencies including Minacs, RCMP, Peel Police, Thunder Bay Police, CAA, Durham Regional Police 
and Central Ambulance Communications. 

5. Volunteer Opportunities/Experiential Learning:  Students are expected to complete 120 hours of 
volunteer work as part of their Experiential Learning course prior to the end of the 4

th
 semester.  E. 

Hibbs volunteered at a church you group and was involved in retreats as leader and part of a group.  D. 
Smith completed his experiential learning at Durham Regional Police Service.  Both found their 
experiences to be very rewarding.   

6. NFPA 1061:  The National Fire Protection Association sets out the standards for fire protection and 
guidelines for fire communications training/certification and NFPA 1061 (Standards for Professional 
Qualifications for Public Safety Telecommunications Personnel) has been endorsed by the Ontario 
Association of Fire Chiefs.  It was reported that the Ontario Fire Marshall Office is not aware of our 
program and our graduates are not eligible to challenge the certification exam.   

7. TERT (Telecommunicator Emergency Response Task Force):  Is there a rapid intervention (dispatchers) 
team/mutual aid set up in any municipality that can be called upon in the case of a disaster?  Members 
agreed that it was an interesting concept but equipment and geography may be some of the main 
issues. 

8. APCO Canada:  APCO Canada manual has rewritten and will be circulated soon.  The president of 
APCO Canada is extending an invitation to our students and staff to attend their 2-day symposium being 
held on September 29 and 30 at the Sheridan on Airport Road.   The APCO/NENA Conference is being 
held on November 3 and 4 at the Sheridan in Niagara Falls. 

9. DRPS Recruitment:  Arrangements are being made for the recruiters to come on site and meet/greet 
with our current students and graduates. 

10. Niagara College:  There was an interest in offering a 911 program but due to lack of funding will not 
pursue it for this fall. 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
 
1. Any student or professor interested in attending the APCO and/or the APCO/NENA Conference should 

contact T. Virgin. 
2. The Office of the Fire Marshal will be contacted by A. Patrick to discuss our program and certification 

requirements regarding NFPA 1061. 
3. Any feedback on the experiential learning process should be forwarded to A. Patrick. 
4. A representative from DEMO (Durham Emergency Management Office) will be contacted by M. Murray 

to investigate the feasibility of initiating a TERT program. 
 

  

 

 

 

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM (October 22, 2014) MEETING 

 

1. B. Anta will be invited to attend a group panel discussion for industry experts to answer students’ 
questions for November 10, 2014 by A. Patrick.  COMPLETED 

2. A spring mapping session to review all the courses will be scheduled by A. Patrick.   COMPLETED 
3. Discussions will be held and a decision on continuing with APCO curriculum or switching to the 

International Academy of Emergency Dispatch’s curriculum will be made by the program team.    
ONGOING 
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4. M. Murray will connect with IT regarding compatibility/set up of the DRPS Versadex system for a new 
communications lab.    ONGOING 

5. Students are to be encouraged to write a story or essay for possible publication about their experience 
in the program or placement and/or job opportunities by all of the faculty.  A number of professional 
organizations offer student scholarships and awards.  ONGOING 

 
 

 

REPORT PREPARED BY: M. Bartosik DATE:    May 21, 2015 
 
DRAFT REVIEWED BY ASSOCIATE DEAN:   

                                                          M. Tapper       SIGNATURE: __ ______________ 
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR                    T. Virgin        SIGNATURE:                                                                                                                                                                                            

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA PAGE   88



 
 
 

Accounting Program Advisory Committee 
School of Business, IT & Management 

Minutes of May 5, 2015 
 

 
Accounting Program Advisory Committee Membership List 
 
Note:  an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for this meeting. 
 

Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair 
  

*Paula Van Kessel Manager Ritchie Shortt & Tully LLP 
   

External Committee Members 
  

Grant Gervais Finance Manager 360 Incentives 
*Mariela Gregory Manager, Planning & Budgeting Lakeridge Health Oshawa 
Charlotte Heath Accountant Manufacturing & Technology Centre 
Sean Hewlett Accountant Collins Barrow Durham LLP 
*Stephen Hughes Student Success Coordinator Durham Catholic District School Board 
*David Jones Financial Assistant Durham Region Police Service 
Jane Lalonde Student Recruitment CGA of Ontario 
Ken Lowrie Accountant Padgett Business Services 
*Meryan Madden Accountant Don Wilson Foods Ltd. 
John Rycroft Financial Services Manager Durham Region Police Service 
   

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

Year/Program/Alumni  
 

 

*Gillian D’Alleva Year 2, ACTU Durham College 
*Matthew Davey Accounting Society President Durham College 
Derek Smith Year 2, ACTU Durham College 
*Joanna Towns Alumni/UOIT Student UOIT 
   

Elected Faculty/Staff   
Representatives 

  

*Denise Cook Program Coordinator and 

Professor 

School of Business, IT & Management 

Joe Pidutti Professor School of Business, IT & Management 
*Pat Sauve Professor School of Business, IT & Management 
Cheryl Wilson Professor School of Business, IT & Management 
   
Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff   
*Jackie Bathe Associate Dean School of Business, IT & Management 

*Donna Boyd Program Officer School of Continuing Education 
*Victoria Kee Secretary Durham College 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 AGENDA PAGE   89



KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 
1. Additions to Agenda:  

 Accounting Society update 

 Program Review update 
2. Agenda:  accepted by M. Davey. 
3. Minutes from November 17, 2014 were approved by D. Cook. 
4. External Membership Information Sharing: 

 Field placement students have been successful but sometimes lack the soft skills necessary to 
operate successfully in the workplace.  It is necessary to be able to explain the process and reasoning 
used when submitting work and recommendations to managers.  A lot of students seem unable to 
explain how or why they did the work. 

 There is a movement in the industry towards an increased amount of data analysis such as 
forecasting for budgets more accurately. 

 Alumni of the program who are now working in the field, felt that they were well prepared for the 
workplace.  The biggest gap may be knowledge of Excel, which has been greatly expanded upon 
once in the workplace.  However, it is much easier to retain knowledge about the program when using 
it on a regular basis and in context.  

 Alumni also felt that students should take advantage of the Accounting Society as it can be beneficial 
in assisting students to develop soft skills. 

 The main software used in many organizations is MS Excel.  Adding context to the Excel course may 
help students gain a deeper understanding of how to use the program. 

 Students at placement have commented that the best part of the experience has been learning more 
about the use of Excel.  The students did learn very quickly. 

 Curriculum covering MS Outlook should be included in the program, either in the computers or 
communications course.  It is a very powerful and complex program.  Students also need to be aware 
of what content emails should contain and how to use carbon copy/blind carbon copy. 

 Students should learn where and how to save data so that it is consistent.   

 SBAR is a helpful acronym that stands for Situation, Background, Analysis and Recommendation.  
This is a guideline for creating a one page summary of important points when submitting work. 

 Tedx training is available to teachers of the Durham Catholic District School Board as one way to 
combat the perceived issue of the lack of soft skills in students.  A future goal is to implement Tedx 
clubs in the schools.   

 The Golden Speakers Club is dedicated to help improve public speaking skills and they are reaching 
out to educational organizations. Their website is: http://goldenspeakersclub.com/. 

 Teachers at the high school level are receiving help to allow them to educate students and their 
parents on pathways at the post-secondary level.  The more teachers feel empowered to provide 
career education the more students will benefit. 

5. College/School and Program Update:  

 The School of Business, IT & Management will be offering new programs in the fall that include 
Accounting and Payroll, International Business Management and Insurance.  Applications for the 
Accounting and Payroll program have been quite impressive.  Will provide an update on this program 
at the fall meeting.   

 Have received CVS approval to offer Business – Finance and Business Administration – Finance.  
There will be lots of jobs in the financial sector, particularly in areas of data analysis and 
management.  This program will be offered in the fall of 2016. 

 The Excel certification will be moved to the first year computer course so that the second year course 
can teach a greater depth of information. 

 Field placement is very successful with all 32 students placed this year and more employers available 
than positions needed. 

6. Continuing Education:  

 Start-up for Continuing Education has been strong this spring.  There is good enrolment in almost all 
courses offered this semester. 

 The trend for enrolment for in-class courses is still down but for online courses it has increased. 
7. Student Voice:  

 Students felt that there is currently a large gap between computer courses and that it may help them 
retain more information if the courses were closer together. 

 A greater understanding of pivot tables would be beneficial as they are very complicated and are used 
frequently in the work place.   

 ACTU students felt that the program could improve from better communication between Durham 
College and UOIT.  Specifically, it would be helpful to students to understand the different program 
requirements between the general Bachelor of Commerce and the accounting major. 

 Increased focus on learning to use Outlook would be very beneficial as this is a powerful program and 
commonly used in the workplace. 
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8. Additional Agenda Items: 

 ACAF update from CPA – ACAF will be another option for future students entering the accounting 
field as this certification will build from a two year accounting diploma.  The concern is that this 
program may draw students from the three year diploma option; however, the field placement in third 
year is very valuable.  There may be potential in the future to incorporate some of the ACAF material 
into the third year of the diploma. 

 Accounting Society update – Overall, there were great numbers of students involved over the last 
year.  The last event held was a dinner event with guest speakers.  Jane Lalonde has been an 
amazing supporter of the society.  The society attempted to hold elections in the spring instead of the 
fall; however, this did not work out very well due to conflicting commitments. 

 Program Review update – Each spring programs undergo annual curriculum review and make 
changes to content or program of studies.  Every 5-7 years each program undergoes an in-depth 
review.  The review of the Accounting program will take place this year and will begin with mapping 
courses to program standards with faculty representatives.  Next fall there will be student focus 
groups and two external assessors will be invited to the campus for a day to examine all areas of the 
program and write a report with recommendations.  Program information is prepared by ORSIE with a 
full analysis on where the jobs are in the industry, who is getting hired and what other colleges are 
doing.  By next spring, there will be data for a new program of study. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1. Investigate methods to improve communication between DC and UOIT with regards to the ACTU 
program. 

2. Update on the addition of course material on MS Outlook to the computer courses. 
3. Investigate the possibility of increasing the development of soft skills in curriculum and implementing a 

system such as SBAR. 
4. Update on the new Accounting and Payroll program. 
5. Send out program learning outcomes to committee before the program review. 
6. Next Meeting:  Wednesday, November 18

th
, 2015    Location:  CFF 

7. Adjournment: 8:00pm  

  

 

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM November 17, 2014 MEETING 

1. Follow up regarding etiquette dinner for students prior to field placement – the etiquette dinner did take 
place through the Accounting Society.  

2. Results of investigation into the possibility of introducing development of communication skills to 
accounting course – this is an ongoing process made more difficult by the fact that communication 
courses are being standardized and are not developed through the School of Business, IT & 
Management.     

3. Discuss possibility of increasing focus on management’s use and analysis of data in the Management & 
Information Systems course – this process has been completed and there is an additional focus on the 
use of information technology for management and how and why data is analyzed. 

4. Obtain feedback from members regarding program learning outcomes – we will send these program 
outcomes out again to ask for feedback as the program review begins this spring. 

  

 
REPORT PREPARED BY:  V. Kee           DATE:    May 5, 2015 
 
DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN:  J. Spring SIGNATURE:     
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR:  P. Van Kessel  
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Activation Coordination in Gerontology 
Program Advisory Committee 

School of Health & Community Services 
Minutes of April 30, 2015 

 
 

 
Activation Coordination in Gerontology Program Advisory Committee 
Note:  an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for this meeting. 
 
Membership List 
 

Name Title Organization 
Committee Chair 
 
To be determined 
 
External Committee Members 
 
Jennifer Leo 
 
*Deb DiMauro 
 
 
 
*Laura Forsyth 
 
Andrea Deluca 
 
 
Amanda Laird 
 
Carol Lavoie 
 
 
 
Mona Babb 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Director, Research 
 
Corporate Programs & 
Support Services Consultant 
– LTD Division 
 
Director of Life Enrichment 
 
Resident Services/ Staff 
Education 
 
Manager – Nursing Practice 
 
Regional Manager of 
Education & Resident 
Services 
 
Clinical Nurse Specialist 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
Abilities Centre 
 
Chartwell Retirement Residences 
 
 
 
Chartwell Retirement Residences 
 
Bay Ridges 
 
 
Fairview Lodge 
 
Revera Inc. 
 
 
 
Community Lifecare Inc. 

Elected Student/Alumni 

Representatives 

 

*Nicole Davison 

*Virginia Buchanan 

 

 

 

 

Student 

Student 

 

 

 

 

ACGR Program 

ACGR Program 

 

Elected Faculty/Staff   

Representative 

 

*Judeline Innocent 

Carol Burke 

*Kimberlee Neault 

 

 

 

 

Dean 

Associate Dean 

Faculty/Program Coordinator 

 

 

        

School of Health & Community Services 

School of Health & Community Services 

ACGR Program 

Guests/Unelected 
Faculty/Staff  
 
Mary Noble 
 
 
*Stephanie Tufts 

 
 
 
 Employment Advisor/ 
Internship Coordinator 

   
 Student Advisor/ Placement 
Officer 

 
 
 
Durham College 
 
 
Durham College 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 
 

1. Welcome and introductions were done around the table. 
2. Minutes of October 23, 2014, were approved by J. Innocent and seconded by N. Davison.  Carried.  
3. J. Innocent asked if anyone is interested in being the Chair to please let her know. 
4. M. Reid from the retirement side of Chartwell is representing L. Forsyth.  Moving forward with 

enhancing what they currently offer.  Balance of program is for very independent clients or those 
requiring more care/modification.  They would be happy to have more student placements.  A lot of 
time is spent in senior fitness.  They value the staff who come in with a Kins background or Fitness 
is beneficial as well.  Cognitive type programs that keep residents engaged mentally.  A good 
opportunity to start at the Manager level – some of our students are prepared for that. 

5. D. DiMauro from Chartwell:  D. DiMauro made some suggestions at the last meeting which were 
added to the program successfully such as smart goals and feeding certificate.  DC needs to make 
sure that Managers understand this program – need to get the info out there.  K. Neault will follow-
up and is willing to go out into the Community and spread the word.  Feels the students should 
receive a lecture on Montesorri, perhaps expose the students with a guest speaker.  Chartwell is 
also in the process of implementing ‘memory living’. 

6. K. Neault provided updates for the program:  The Program has been progressing in a positive 
direction and has been very successful in delivering content.  We received good feedback from 
students at the second program focus group which was held by Dean Innocent.  Students are 
having wonderful exposure to “day programs” as potential future employment – as part of 
Psychogeriatrics students had opportunity to visit Oshawa Senior Citizens’ Centre Specialized Adult 
Day Program.  We have added additional certifications as suggested at the last PAC meeting by our 
members.  They include Smart Serve, St. Peter’s feeding certificate, P.I.E.C.E.S and GPA training.  
Students are going into placement this coming semester.  Part of their evaluation includes setting 
smart goals for placement (personal growth, client-directed and agency-projected).  K. Neault will 
be the students’ placement supervisor.  We had a successful Open House with four students and 
two faculty volunteering at the event to talk to potential students and showcase the program.  We 
ran a slide show of pictures taken of students in activation and leadership classes.  Students invited 
all faculty and external guests into their activation classroom to view their sensory assignments.  A 
Portfolio seminar was held in leadership class by Career Services to support their portfolio as a 
cornerstone of program where students can showcase samples of their work and certifications at 
interviews.  Students have high praise for additional certifications which they feel sets them apart 
from others entering the industry.  Students felt they gained confidence and quality leadership/team 
building skills in the Leadership and Management course that would allow them to step into a 
management position with ease.  K. Neault designed evaluation paperwork for when the students 
are on placement.  Course outlines and samples of student assignments from the past two 
semesters were made available as a show-and-tell for members. 

7. J. Innocent updates:  We are seeing a decrease as a whole in enrolment across the Province.  High 
schools are closing which has a ripple effect on us but there is a new trend with a spike in Second 
Career applicants.  Durham College is establishing relationships internationally i.e. affiliations and 
pathways with Universities in Ireland, England.  This is opening the door so that students can do 
their placements abroad.  We encourage international students to come in so that we can diversify 
and enrich the programs within the College.  Durham College is now offering a FastStart program 
which provides an opportunity for students to become involved in Entrepreneurship - more 
information will be provided as it unrolls.  The School of Health & Community Services is hosting a 
Community Appreciation Event on June 10

th
 – invitations will be going out shortly.  A flyer from the 

Centre of Food promoting their culinary classes was provided to all members. 
8. Student Voice:  Students received a Certificate for ‘Me & U-First’ which is an 8 hour on-line module.  

They feel ACG is a great interactive program and they are well prepared to go out on placement.  
They enjoy the fact that there are a lot of guest speakers and mask fit testing was arranged for 
them.  They were able to prepare their portfolios in leadership class which they can take into the job 
market.  They would like to see a preparatory class for placement become part of the curriculum.  
The Hillsdale Day Program is very beneficial – they were able to talk to the Manager about her 
background and received a tour.  The Leadership and Management class helps students with team 
building and it was great to see the class come together, more confident.  Student is doing her 
placement at Chartwell in Waterloo.  Students really appreciate being able to obtain additional 
certifications throughout the year.  There is some concern about getting a job in this industry as 
there is legislation and policy which says you need a leisure degree or KINS or a related field. 
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One of her classmates went into placement with a SSW background and was told she would not be 
able to gain employment in this field.  LTC facilities will look at academic background and 
transferable skills.  One of our students is with Revera and the trend they are pushing for is 
Montessori as well as spontaneous programming.  Calendar/scheduling are important but push is 
on for spontaneous.   

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1. K. Neault has agreed to speak with the Chartwell Managers about the ACG Program. 
2. Next meeting Thursday, November 5, 2015, 9:00-11:00 am in SW106 Boardroom. 
3. Adjournment at 10:15 am. 

 

  

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OCTOBER 23, 2014 

1. Members have been provided with the Terms of Reference and Suggested Speaking Points. 
2. Continue to work on securing additional members and a Chair for the PAC. 

 

 

 

  

 
REPORT PREPARED BY:         Sandra Thomson           DATE:                  May 13, 2015 
 

DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN: Judeline Innocent           SIGNATURE:     
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR:            Judeline Innocent           SIGNATURE:     
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 Advertising Advisory Committee  
School of Media, Art & Design 

Minutes of May 20, 2015 
 

 

 
Advertising Marketing Communications - Membership List 
 
Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair 

*Jeff Quipp 

External Committee Members 

 

CEO 

 

  

Search Engine People 

 

Alex Berube  

Samantha Catherwood  

*Shannon Cone 

Catherine Childerhouse 

Amanda Desouza  

Kory Gray 

*Paul Irving 

*Bruce Hillcoat 

*Michael McFayden 

Doug Poad 

Erica Brodie  

Mike Burton 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

Jaden Heffering 

*Erin Chappell 

Project Manager 

Media Director 

Digital & Social Media Specialist 

Account Supervisor 

Senior Designer 

Senior Designer 

CEO / Designer 

Sr. Copywriter/Partner 

Media Planner 

Partner / Strategic Planning 

Jr Search Specialist 

Jr Digital Media Coordinator 

 

Year/Program/Alumni  

2
nd

 Year Advertising 

2
 nd

 Year Advertising 

Adbloc Media 

Promotivate Media 

Tag Ad Agency 

DDB Ad Agency 

Freelance 

The Unitas Reputation Agency 

Chatterbox Branding Agency 

Interroband 

Mindshare Media 

Chatterbox Branding Agency 

OMD Media Agency 

Media Experts 

 

 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Elected Faculty/Staff   
Representatives 

Name 

Greg Murphy 

*Charlotte Hale 

*Dawn Salter 

Kevan Drinkwalter 

 
 

Title 

Dean 

Associate Dean 

Coordinator 

Professor 

 

 

Organization 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 
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___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

 Approval of minutes of December 8, 2014 moved by S. Cone and seconded by B. Hillcoat. 
CARRIED. 

 Approval of agenda was moved by J. Quipp and seconded by S. Cone. CARRIED 

 

Industry trends 

 Throughout April and May, several team members attended industry events and conferences 
and shared key learnings/insights.  Behance TO was an Adobe sponsored event in Toronto that 
showcased their open-sourced software.  The Behance software has become one of the most 
widely used programs for displaying portfolio work; it has the capability for users to demonstrate 
the creative process followed to achieve the finished pieces.  Currently, this software is being 
used by the media schools at George Brown, Seneca, and Centennial and may be something 
Durham College Advertising should consider.  MAD is under contract with Filemobile for 2015. 

 In April, the FITC event was held in Toronto.  This event featured the latest innovations and 
emerging trends occurring in Digital, Video Effects, and Design areas.  Many media schools 
participate but it has not been attended by DC in the past. The Advertising team and/or Media 
Art & Design School should strongly consider being involved next year if program budgets 
permit.  This event serves as an excellent networking/recruitment opportunity for faculty and 
students 

 The Yahoo Next Conference was held in Toronto in early May and focused on the ‘next big thing 
in Digital Advertising’.   Flurry was a feature sponsor and is a provider of a free Software 
Developer Kit (SDK) for digital applications.  Flurry revealed data supporting that 33% of all 
application traffic in the US comes from mobile usage.  86% of Canadians currently spend more 
time accessing applications on their phones than any other mobile feature.  As Mobile and Video 
Content are becoming increasingly popular, the current two-year curriculum needs to address 
these areas;  it was suggested this content be included in the two current media courses offered 
(there is currently a course dedicated to these topics in the Graduate Certificate launching Fall 
2016) 

 Martec (Marketing Technology Conference) was also held in May where it was discovered 
companies are beginning to hire Marketing Technology Officers to manage the integration of 
technology within their firms.  As firms seek to increase efficiency and profitability, automating 
specific marketing functions is becoming more attractive.  The cost and timing to implement 
such systems will continue to be investigated and updates shared at future meetings 

 Programmatic Buying:  There has been a dramatic increase industry wide in purchasing media 
through the programmatic space.  At its most basic level, programmatic buying can be described 
as using machines and machine learning to buy and sell media automatically and in real time, 
instead of manual negotiations.  Why is this important?  DMPs (data management platforms) 
feed 1

st
 and 3

rd
 party data and cookies into the DSP (demand side platform) to buy individual 

impressions in front of relevant consumers wherever they are across public and private ad 
exchanges 

 Mobile Advertising: Mobile will continue to increase in both relevance and importance to any 
digital media plan.  Given the high propensity of “second screen” usage, high engagement and 
time of use and accessibility numbers, mobile strategies should be much more than simple 
standard display banners.  Native, in-stream, video interstitial and location based targeting 
should be considered and leveraged on any mobile ad campaign 

 Marketers really need to focus on developing ads that are ‘contextually relevant’ as they 
generate higher responses among consumers.  Students need to understand the importance of 
having all communication partners’ work together to deliver more strongly integrated campaigns. 
Content explaining the planning, development, and execution phases of communication 
programs is key and should be reinforced in each of the campaign type courses (e.g. Media 
Planning, Advertising Campaigns, Planning for Integrated Communications, Video Production 
etc.) 

 There was some discussion around whether the Media Planning courses should have a title 
change to Media Creativity to entice students to get more excited about the content and 
opportunities available in the media area.  This will be discussed more with Program Team 

 

College and School Updates 

 The Associate Dean explained the current enrollment challenge many colleges within the 
system are facing due to the shift in demographics affecting high school age students available 
to attend post-secondary. This will continue for another five years or so as a result of a decline AGENDA PAGE   96



in births in the late 90s and early 2000s.  The competitive situation has intensified given the 
reality and colleges will need to work (are working on)on their marketing efforts with local high 
schools 

 

Student Voice 

 Students requested reinforcement to know which project work from courses should be retained 
and crafted for inclusion in portfolios.  Faculty can certainly offer guidance throughout the 
program on the pieces to be included or revisited to help strengthen the work to be showcased 

 Presently the winter semester in second year (Semester 4) is a modified 11-week semester 
versus the regular 14-weeks.  This is due to field placement.  Students expressed a desire to 
have more time to craft portfolio pieces.  There was some discussion around shifting the field 
placement to begin in the spring, delaying convocation to the fall so the regular 14-week 
semester could occur.  This will be discussed in more detail with the Program Team. 

 Students expressed a desire to be informed by faculty of popular and upcoming industry events 
so they have the opportunity to participate.  The Program Team will request faculty/instructors to 
post any relevant events they feel students may be interested in on DCConnect.  As there is a 
cost to most of these events, it will be a student responsibility to investigate opportunities. 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1. Next meeting –Thursday, November 5, 2015 @ Mindshare Media, 6:30PM – 8:30PM (M. 
McFayden to confirm.) 

2. Adjournment:   8:30 p.m. 
3. Program Team to discuss moving field placement to the Spring and delaying convocation to the 

Fall for the second year students. 
4. Program Team to discuss whether or not to change the name of the Media course (Media 

Creativity?). 
5. Program Team to develop a Tip Sheet on Effective Group Work to distribute to all faculty within 

Advertising Program.  This sheet should contain at least 5 tips and must be reinforced with 
students each time a group project is assigned. 

6. D. Salter to provide a Peer Evaluation Template to faculty. 
 

  

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM December 8, 2014 MEETING 

1. D. Salter will again solicit current second and third year students requesting mentorship 
participation for incoming first year students. 
 

  

 
REPORT PREPARED BY:  D. Salter                       DATE:  May 20, 2015 
 

DRAFT REVIEWED BY ASSOC. DEAN:  SIGNATURE:     
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR:   SIGNATURE:    via email 
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Animal Care PAC Committee 
School of Interdisciplinary Studies & Employment Services 

Minutes of Thursday, April 23, 2015 
 

 
Animal Care Membership List 
 
Note:  an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for this meeting. 
 
 
Name Title Organization 

External Committee Members 

Carol Smith 

Carolin DeBenedictis 

Joan Weston 

*Laura Norton 

Leah Spiering 

*Megan Koressis 

Michelle Payne 

Tanis Manahan 

*Judi Cannon 

 

Vet Tech 

Manager 

Animal Behaviour Consultant 

Vet Tech 

Vet Tech 

Vet Tech 

 

Manager 

 

 

 

East Oshawa Animal Hospital 

Durham Animal Emerg Clinic 

K9 Shrink/DC P/T 

Fenelon Animal Clinic/DC P/T 

Toronto Vet Clinic/DC P/T 

Locum Tech/DC P/T 

Main Street Vet Hospital 

Durham Animal Emerg Clinic 

OSPCA 

   

 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

Katie Gifford 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Elected Faculty/Staff   
Representatives 

*Bev Neblett 

*Keri Semenko 

*Robin Voisey 

 

 

 

Associate Dean 

Professor 

Professor 

 

 

 

 

 

Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff  

Name 

 

 

Title 

 

Organization 

 Janice Haslett , Recording Secretary 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 
1. Approval of minutes of October 23, 2014 was deferred as quorum was not achieved. 
2. Additions to the agenda – there were no additions. 
3. Approval of Agenda was moved by Keri Semenko, seconded by Megan Korressis, Carried.  
4. External Membership:  Laura Norton, now at Southside Clinic in Port Perry, reported that they are not 

seeing much in the way of heartworm and lyme disease at this point.  Judi Cannon provided an 
overview of current role at OSPCA.  OSPCA went to native reserves with the portable spay/neuter 
clinic.  Spay/neuter clinic was also held in St. Catherines.  Youth groups doing blitz across the 
province.  The I Adopt Program is in full swing. 

5.  College Updates: 

 Actively sending out offers offers and converting application offers to confirmations for next 
academic year has begun.   

 The Spring Open House was March 21
st
.  We had a good turn out 

 Spring Convocation for our School is set for Tuesday June 9
th
 at 10:00 am at the GM Centre. 

 Durham College KPI scores highest among GTA colleges in key areas.  Durham College (DC) is 
committed to the success of our students while meeting the needs of our local communities and 
business and industry partners. One of the ways we evaluate our performance is through the 
Ontario government’s Key Performance Indicators (KPI) surveys and results.  The college is 
pleased to share that our efforts to ensure the student experience continues to come first at DC 
have translated into increases in three of five benchmark areas, as measured by the KPI surveys 
conducted over the last number of months. Our student satisfaction; graduate satisfaction; and 
graduation rates have all improved, some significantly more than the system average, and are now 
highest of all colleges in the Greater Toronto Area (GTA).  

 Key Performance Indicator results are as follows: 

Graduate 
Employment 

Employer 
Satisfaction 

Graduate 
Satisfaction 

Student 
Satisfaction 

Graduation 
Rate 

85.1 per cent 87.7 per cent 78.7 per cent 75.5 per cent 69.0 per cent 

6. School Updates: 

 Target enrollment for the fall is projected 805 students for the fall semester.  

 Will be launching a pilot project for Communication course revisions Fall 2015 in GAS. 

 OFAD program is going through curriculum revisions for year 2 programming.  Year 1 curriculum 
revisions will be in effect Fall 2015.  The compressed delivery format of 3 days classroom 
instruction/week for OFAD will begin in the fall 

 We have approval to develop two new programs, Office Administration – Real Estate and Office 
Administration – Records Management 

 April 22
nd

, the School hosted an Employer Appreciation reception for field placement 
agencies/organizations that had our students (CICE, OFEX, and OFMD) on placements this past 
academic year.  

7. Program News: 

 Key Performance Indicator results for the program will be available at the fall meeting – Action 
item 

 To date, the program has 77 applicants confirmed for fall intake, 48 applicants waitlisted, and 3 
applicants paid.  Maximum enrollment capacity for the fall intake is 80 students. 

 Canadian Council on Animal Care (CCAC) interim site monitoring visit was done April 8
th
.  We 

received recertification.  There are some changes that will be coming in regards to CCAC 
certification requirements.  A letter will be forthcoming from them in regards to the details of these 
changes.  An update on the information received will be provided at next meeting – Action item 

 The program will be going to a compressed delivery format for Fall 2016.  This will consist of 
students having classes scheduled over 2 ½ - 3 days/week.  There are some logistics to still work 
out over the next year to ensure a successful roll out of this initiative.  The premise of this delivery 
format is to allow for increased growth in the program without increasing the classroom space that 
is already used for programming.  Once the compressed delivery format is in effect, we will look at 
adding an additional winter intake in January (an increase of 40 students), and an additional spring 
intake in May (an increase of about 60 students) 

 Curriculum revisions are being made for 2015/16 and 2016/17 academic years.  For the 2015/16 
academic year, four courses will be delivered in a hybrid format (2 hours in class, 1 hour online).  
The Interpersonal Communication course will be replaced with a Customer Service in Animal Care 
course.  For the 2016/17 academic year, 9 of the 14 courses will be delivered in a hybrid format and 
Field Placement will be re-introduced back into the program. 

 The revised program of studies for 2015/16 and 2016/17 were reviewed and discussed based on  
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curriculum revisions previously mentioned 

 With the changes being made to the program, it was suggested that admission requirements for the 
program also be reviewed – Action item 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1. Update on CCAC site visit report.  
2. Share program KPI data. 
3. Discussion on Admission requirements for program. 
4. Next meeting date – October 22, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. at the Whitby Campus, Room TBD. 

 

  

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM October 23, 2014 MEETING 

1. Deferred as quorum was not achieved. 

 

 

  

 
REPORT PREPARED BY:  J. Haslett DATE:    April 24, 2015 
 
DRAFT REVIEWED BY ASSOCIATE DEAN:   SIGNATURE:    ____________________________ 
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR:   SIGNATURE:    ____________________________ 
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Biomedical Engineering Technology 
School of Science and Engineering Technology 

Minutes of March 9, 2015 
 

 
Biomedical Membership List 
 
Note:  an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for this meeting. 

 
 

Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair 

*Michele Roberts 

External Committee Members 

 

Installation Team Leader 

  

Philips Healthcare Canada 

*Ravindra Anand 

*Marco Capilongo 

Gabe Gasparotto 

*James Linton 

Bryan Trussell 

 

 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

*Sean Noseworthy 

Area Service Manager 

TLP and Education Leader 

Regional Support/Technical Acct. Mgr. 

Biomedical Eng. & Equipment Mgr. 

Manager, Clinical Engineering 

 

 

 
Year/Program/Alumni  

3, Biomedical Technology Student 

Siemens Canada Ltd. 

General Electric 

North York General Hospital 

Aramark Healthcare Technologies 

Lakeridge Health 

 

 

 

 

Elected Faculty/Staff   
Representatives 

Name 

*Louis Bertrand 

*Lauren Fuentes 

*Sandra Kudla 

Bill Lewis 

*Pravin Patel 

Rick Tidman 

*Susan Todd 

 

 

 

 

 

Title 

Professor 

Professor 

Professor 

Professor 

Professor 

Professor 

Dean 

 

        

 

 

 

Organization 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

 

 

Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff  

Name 

 

 

 

 

Title 

 

 

 

 

Organization 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1.  Welcome and Introductions:  M. Roberts welcomed members to the meeting.   

2. Additions to the Agenda:  None 

3.  Acceptance of the Agenda:  Accepted 

4. Previous Minutes:  The minutes of October 7, 2014 were approved by S. Kudla and seconded by L. Dillon. 

5. Business/Actions Arising from the Previous Minutes: 

    The updates have been reflected in the minutes under “Status of Recommendations”.   

6. Discussion Items 

 6.1 External Membership/Information Sharing - Industry members reported the following:  

 The college should stay flexible in what it is teaching to students. 

 Biomedical people are starting to go in different streams versus the traditional stream. 

 More skills in programming are being used versus electronics that was used in the past.  Students need to be 
taught Networking.  Network Plus is better than CISCO (students can go outside or to Continuing Education as 
an option to get CISCO).  People can become HP certified if they already have their CISCO certification.   

 HL7 is “hot” and is becoming huge with how vendors are communicating and transferring information.    

 Customer service skills are important. 

 It is advantageous to have SIGMA. 

 Home health care is becoming popular.   

 Troubleshooting is being done from remote locations. 

 Medical band stickers are coming out. 

6.2 Ideas for Nano Courses 

The international pool of students is growing.  The following suggestions were made for Nano courses: 

 Short, mini courses could be developed for a certificate. 

 1 extra course is needed to get Biomedical Management or Imaging included under Nano. 

 Technical Writing for a Second Language (including writing policies, memos, service manuals, grammar with a 
written report).  M. Capilongo offered to send the name of the textbook he used when he took the course). 

 Remote diagnostics. 

 Medical equipment (a graduate course for nurses). 

 Nursing applications for technical staff (delivery could be on-line at their hospital). 

 Include on-line courses in general. 

6.3 Program of Studies 2015 – 2016 

The School of Science and Engineering Technology is developing two of their own communication courses -                                                                          
Career Development and Planning (CARR 2130) and Technical Report Writing for Science and Technology (TECH 
1130) commencing fall 2015.     

Suggested topics to include - Resumes and cover letters - Reinforce that these should be error free, professional, 
include words from the job description in the resume and have good formatting.  An awareness of what the manager’s 
job/role is would be advantageous.  Students need to be realistic with their salary expectations and have a strong work 
ethic.  

Members suggested that the school invite a panel into one of the Communication classes or have 2 evenings set up in 
the October and February timeframe so that students have an opportunity to hear employers speak.  This should 
happen before students potentially go out for co-op.  It was also suggested that a guest speaker be invited from the 
Engineering Society at Durham College.  

CAD for Electronics - The power supply course is being redesigned.  What requirements will be needed for EKG?  

Learn circuit board technology and troubleshooting at the machine level.  There could be a direct collaboration for data 
collection possibly with the School of Business.  Microcontrollers will be embedded into programming.  Programming II 
may include SQL. 

New Programming Course – IP addressing, Introduction to Programming has no processor in it and transferring data 

for an understanding in programming at the network level.     

 Scratch Programming being used in C – This course has been revamped with exposure to C programming.  Rhythm 

is also being used.  It is hoped that the course will end up with C++ in Arduino and introduces hardware control through 
C++.  It was suggested that perhaps HL7 could be incorporated in C Programming and parsing.  This could be used for 
bigger projects in the year 3 class.  M. Roberts noted that she will see if she can share the HL7 book and DCOM.  

Networking – Include remote access, IPN, RDP, secure socket link into Networking.   

Computer Systems II – HL7 could be included in Computer Systems I or II.  Pms, repair time biorepairs and 

scheduling need to be incorporated.  Look at offering Networking I and II and then DCOM (employers could benefit if 
Networking I and II were offered).  Some DCOM is already covered in S. Kudla’s course.  L. Bertrand to speak with D. 
Schuett regarding suggestions discussed for the Networking and Computer Systems II courses.  

6.4 Co-op and Field Placement 

Field Placement if completed during the school term, is non-paid placement.  Students should get paid if they are doing 
co-op.  Currently the Biomedical students are out on an 8 week placement which started from April 27 to May 29

th
, 2015 

for the current academic year.  An additional 3 weeks would be advantageous to the students.   

One member noted that their company can only pay expenses for co-op but cannot pay in dollars due to affordability at 
the moment.  Another company pays $100/month for placement.  The question was asked “Should the placement AGENDA PAGE   102



model be the same for all students and would the college support a 2-3 month placement period?” It was mentioned 
that if co-op was optional for 4 months, students could still graduate.   

The Field Placement professor noted that there are still a few students that do not have employment and that the 
market for getting jobs is harder.  Places like Durham Biomedical Groundwater are being approached for additional 
placement opportunities.  A concern was expressed that some lab companies will not let Biomedical students into a lab 
unless they have Chemistry; therefore, the need for more liaison with these companies.     

The college needs to look at how they are preparing students for a co-op position and develop a 3 year plan.   

6.5 Conferences to Attend in Spring 2015 - S. Kudla to provide S. Todd with upcoming conference information. 

6.6 Renovations - The student project area will be renovated this summer. 

6.7 Health Care Technology Management Degree 

S. Todd provided an update on the degree document submission noting that the document is still with the Ministry. 

6.8 Pathways 

Biomedical Technology for Limerick University in Ireland.  The program will be launched on April 2, 2015. 

Philippine Project – Donations and equipment are needed for the two professors coming to Durham College.  S. Todd 
will follow-up with the International Office.  

6.9 Research Update 

P. Patel noted that there is $2,000,000 available over 5 years.  An initial proposal should be submitted by the May 2015 
deadline and by October 20 a final proposal.  Research ideas and a letter of support can be submitted to Pravin and 
then Pravin will send the template to advisory members to complete.    

7. Student Voice 

The student representative mentioned that the Networking course that he took through the School of Business which 
included computer based applications was very helpful. 

Students need a co-op which includes a good duration of time to ensure that they get good knowledge and experience 
with the company.  Students in year 2 can benefit from seeing what is out there relating to co-op for exposure only. 

Students could job shadow and then come back and complete a report about their experience so that students can see 
what is out there and get an idea of the bigger picture (this could be done at a Mix and Mingle event). 

A bus tour could be arranged in 1 or 2 days to visit companies. 

Students in year 3 must complete placement first before year 2 students to ensure that there are enough placement 
opportunities available for the graduating students.   

8. Next Meeting:  Monday, October 19, 2015, 6:00 p.m. 

9. Adjournment – 8:15 p.m.  

 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1.  M. Capilongo to send S. Todd the book details for Technical Writing for a Second Language. 

2. S. Todd to pass on the suggested topics under 6.3 to M. Calhoun for the two new Communication courses CARR 
2130 and TECH 1130 for review and inclusion into the new course outlines.  L. Bertrand to advise D. Schuett of ideas 
relating to Computer Systems II under 6.3. 

3.  P. Patel/L. Bertrand to look at incorporating HL7 into some courses. 

4. Co-Op – S. Todd/S. Kudla to review suggestions for Co-Op noted under 6.4. 

5. Conferences – S. Kudla to provide S. Todd with all conference information. 

6. Philippine Project – S. Todd to follow-up with the International Office regarding donations and equipment relating to 
the two Philippine professors.  

7. Research Project – Advisory Members to provide P. Patel with any research ideas they have.  P. Patel to send 
interested advisory members the template for a Letter of Support.  

 

 

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OCTOBER 7, 2014 MEETING  

1. Biomedical faculty to give students a “heads up” about Vendor Link (credential program) as they may have to sign up 

for a vendor badge. COMPLETED. 

2. Circulatory design soldering irons and component level repairs are dead now.  Some troubleshooting is still beneficial 
though.  S. Todd, L. Fuentes, R. Gorantla to review the Program of Studies. COMPLETED.  

3. Computer Networking courses – P. Patel will send the course outlines to the faculty one more time to make sure they 
are relevant. Maybe a graduate certification in Networking is needed for the future. COMPLETED. 

4. Program Orientation/Customer Care Course - Biomedical faculty to make students aware that they may be required 
to get a police check. COMPLETED. 

5. Biomedical faculty to advise students that they may need a flu shot as flu shots and masks will be coming in the 
future.  S. Kudla to call Carol Burke about Mask Fit Testing. COMPLETED.   

6. Biomedical faculty to keep reminding students that they can do CISCO training through Continuing Education.  
CISCO is also offered on-line. COMPLETED. AGENDA PAGE   103



7. L. Dillon to obtain a video clip from M. Capilongo on Home Health Care and send it out to advisory members. 
COMPLETED. 

8. L. Dillon to obtain new hospital contact information for Neal Dardaine relating to equipment. ON-GOING. 

9. M. Roberts to obtain anesthesia equipment for the Biomedical lab. IN PROGRESS. 

10. P. Patel/S. Kudla to investigate the co-op/field placement model at Centennial College.  A survey needs to be 
developed to give students an opportunity for student feedback on a placement or co-op stream to see what would 
enhance students’ careers. IN PROGRESS. 

11. L. Dillon to send out the First Year Profile Report with the advisory minutes. COMPLETED. 

12. Marketing – P. Patel to get new testimonials and ensure the employment rates are advertised.  M. Roberts will 
assist in promoting the program and reach out to former graduates Justin Prescott and Cody Lang. COMPLETED.    

 

   

 
REPORT PREPARED BY: L. Dillon   DATE:    May 22, 2015 

DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN: Sue Todd  SIGNATURE:    

APPROVED BY CHAIR:  Michele Roberts      SIGNATURE:     
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Broadcast for Contemporary Media Program Advisory Committee 
School of Media, Art & Design 

Minutes of April 30, 2015 
 
 

 

 
Broadcast for Contemporary Media Program Advisory Committee  Membership List 
 

Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair 

*Sandi Grant 

 

External Committee Members 

 

Producer 

  

Rogers TV 

*Colin Burwell 

Richard Chesworth 

*Geoff Grant 

*Terry Johnston 

Mark Kingston 

Kerri King 

Andrew Santos 

Heather St. Amand 

*Kate Stollar 

Jeff Wood 

 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

Owner, Manager 

Professor 

Director of Production & Scheduling 

Morning Announcer 

Manager, Media Presentation 

Tourism Manager 

Associate Producer 

Reporter 

News Director 

Sr. Photojournalist 

 

 

Year/Program/Alumni  

Empty Cup Media 

Loyalist College 

Bell Media 

CKDO 

CBC – Radio-Canada 

Region of Durham 

Salt and Light Television 

Chex TV 

Durham Radio News 

CTV News 

 

Oumalkhaire Abdallah 

 

Elected Faculty/Staff   
Representatives 

Name 

*Charlotte Hale 

2
nd

 Year Broadcast Student 

 

 

 

Title 

Associate Dean 

Durham College 

 

 

 

Organization 

Durham College 
Greg Murphy Dean Durham College 
*Phil Raby 
*Anna Rodrigues 

Professor 
Coordinator 

Durham College 
Durham College 

   

Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff  

Name 

 

Title 

 

Organization 

Donna Boyd Continuing Education Officer Durham College 

Sandra Hibbard-Ramsay 

*Craig Robertson 

Professor 

Professor 

Durham College 

Durham College 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1. Approval of agenda was moved by T. Johnston and seconded by A. Rodrigues.  Carried. 
2. Approval of October 16, 2014 minutes was moved by G. Grant and seconded by C. Robertson. 

Carried. 
3. Industry trends:  G. Grant noted that Dejero and other products are expensive but broadcast 

goal oriented, and stated that there are inexpensive services are out there such as intercoms 
through iPhones and other broadcast products.  T. Johnston mentioned that news moves fast, 
especially in radio.  A discussion ensued about on demand news that is up to the minute, short 
and succinct.  Having a social media person there at hand is helpful for up to the minute news.  
C. Burwell noted that DSLR use in the program is very beneficial and suggests that this 
equipment be up to date, and also suggested GoPro cameras as an option for future equipment 
as part of the program.  C. Robertson mentioned that the techniques students are learning in 
their courses are important and beneficial in industry.  It was mentioned by K. Stollar that 
iPhones are used more frequently for news reporting, in addition would like to see more writing 
and not just a story, but quick thirty to sixty second stories on the news, for example.  That 
more dynamic writing format is what they are looking for in industry.  C. Robertson added that 
Twitter is used in his class to capsulize what a radio bit should be.   

4. College/School Updates:  C. Hale noted that the post-secondary sector’s enrollment is down, 
and that more University students are applying to college.  The school structure has gone to 
two year programs and the graduate certificates create a niche market for graduates.  C. Hale 
mentioned that the Summer Shorts program, which now includes Radio 101, will be starting in 
July.  A. Rodrigues discussed revamping the Writing for Broadcast and Introduction to News 
Writing course, and also noted that the Diversity Project that the second year students, A. 
Rodrigues and C. Robertson have been working on is complete and will be posted soon. This 
year for placement, the students are working at Global, CP24, Corus Entertainment, Rogers 
and the Region of Durham.  There are eight Broadcast Educators Association of Canada 
(BEAC) entries in audio and video this year from Durham College, and it was noted that 
Durham College won for radio news story a few years ago.  This year a student is entering with 
a podcast, documentary in video.  This is the first year BFCM students will be out on 
placement. 

5. Student Voice:  Representative not present. 

  

 RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

1. Recommend that the program add a social media course.   ACTION:  Program Team 
2. It was recommended to incorporate the use of iPhones into the program.   ACTION:  Program 

Team 
3. The committee has recommended that podcasts be incorporated more, into the program.  

ACTION:  Program Team 
4. To explore concepts of teaching students on how to cut stories down, make them quick and 

succinct.  ACTION:  Program Team 
5. Next meeting:  Thursday, October 15, 2015 at 5:00 p.m. 
6. Adjournment 7:00 p.m. 

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM October 16, 2014 MEETING 

7. The recommendation to adopt the Dejero technology within the program is ongoing as there is a 
cost factor.  ACTION:  Ongoing  

8. The recommendation that the program look at how to create multiplatform content is ongoing; 
however, P. Raby noted some courses within the program allow students to host on Riot Radio to 
receive on-air experience.  ACTION:  Ongoing 

9. The recommendation that the writing content taught in the curriculum be more rigorous, and two 
courses in the first year will be modified to fit the more rigorous intent for the program, and will 
include writing for broadcast.  
 

  

   

REPORT PREPARED BY:  Stacy Leaming-Conroy                    DATE:    April 30, 2015 
 

DRAFT REVIEWED BY ASSOCIATE DEAN:  C. Hale           SIGNATURE:      
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR:  Sandi Grant                    SIGNATURE:   via email 
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Chemical Engineering Advisory Committee 
School of Science & Engineering Technology 

Minutes of May 14, 2015 
 

 

 

Chemical Engineering Advisory Committee Membership List 
 
Note: An asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for this meeting. 
 

Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair   

*Mike Sheedy VP – Technical Development Eco-Tec Inc. 

Greg Johnston Site Manager Rohm and Haas - Dow Chemical 

External Committee Members Title Organization 

*Steven Cake Section Manager, Chemistry & 
Environment 

Ontario Power Generation 

*Colin Davidson Systems Engineering General Electric  

*Corey Kachmar Process Engineer Woodbridge Foam Corporation 

*Andrew Pearce Senior Recruiter SGS Canada Inc. 

*Eric Perry Process Supervisor Del Monte 

*Nick Taylor Supervisor, Technical Services Eco-Tec Inc. 

Jason Edward Henry High School Teacher, Donald A. 
Wilson 

Durham District School Board 

Elected Student/Alumni Representatives Yr/Program/Alumni Organization 

*Natasha Beattie 1
st
 Year Chemical Eng. Tech Durham College 

*Brandon Cole 2
nd

 Year Chemical Eng. Tech Durham College 

*Kyle Hulse 2
nd

 Year Chemical Eng. Tech  Durham College 

Kristina Dodsworth 3
rd

 Year Chemical Eng. Tech Durham College 

Brendan Doran 3
rd

 Year Chemical Eng. Tech Durham College 

Stephanie Manning Graduate Chemical Eng. Tech Durham College 

Elected Faculty/Staff Representatives Title Organization 

Laura Benninger Professor Science & Engineering Technology 

*Dave Duncan Professor Science & Engineering Technology 

Tanya Jessup Professor Science & Engineering Technology 

Joy Lavergne Program Officer Durham College 

*Joyce Myers Program Coordinator Science & Engineering Technology 

*Susan Todd Dean Science & Engineering Technology 

Guests/Unelected Faculty 
Representatives 

Title Organization 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1. Welcome & Introductions:  M. Sheedy welcomed members and asked everyone to introduce 
themselves. 

2. Acceptance of the Agenda:  D. Duncan approved and M. Sheedy seconded.  
3. Approval of Minutes from November 4, 2014:  The minutes were approved by D. Duncan. 
4. Actions arising from previous minutes:  None. 
5. Discussion Items: 

5.1) External Membership Information Sharing/Industry Trends:  M. Sheedy shared with the 
group that the drop in the price of oil is causing some stress in the sector, capital spending is on 
hold, causing a ripple effect of reduction in business.  Mining sector seems to fare much better, 
along with pulp and paper. 
A. Pearce said that minerals have had a rough few years, resulting in lay-offs and work shares 
although in the past few months, hiring has resumed.  Currently five to ten positions will be 
available, and things are looking promising in Lakefield.  Remote places have a harder time trying 
to fill positions as it is difficult to find people to live far away. Up north minerals play a big part of 
when hiring is done, when business is better, hiring starts. 
S. Cake said that OPG (Ontario Power Generation) is going through high attrition rates and that 
there is a high turn-over in the Chemistry sector (35-40%); Bruce Power and Darlington are the 
same.  The power demand is down, but there are many projects on the go; for example the 
refurbishment on Darlington.  There are postings for Environmental and Chemical Techs, 
although they are internal (approx. 10 positions) but it looks like they will become external 
postings – subject to audits if hiring practices. 
E. Perry said that Delmonte is breaking into Canada (very big in the United States) with fresh cut 
fruits, not canned.  Four Durham College grads are currently working at Delmonte and QC 
(Quality Control) is impressed with the Food & Farming students. 
C. Davidson said that GE is working to break into the UK (United Kingdom) to build four reactors 
and a new power plant.  
5.2) Student Voice:  Some students felt that the Applied Mechanics course seemed to be the 
deciding factor as to whether they were going to stay in the program, or switch to another 
program – although, the students who did stay in the Chemical Engineering program are very 
happy.  D. Duncan puts the attrition rate for the Chemical Engineering program, at approximately 
50%.  B. Cole felt that the way to succeed in Applied Mechanics was to make sure that all home 
work was completed.  The instructors for the course, C. Daniels and M. Jelavic, were very 
realistic when teaching, and the students knew what to expect.  S. Cake inquired as to how much 
of an effort students were putting into the Applied Mechanics course, if there is such a high failure 
rate.  
5.3) College/School Update:   
5.3.1) Field trips:  The group discussed the value in taking the students to see what real labs 
and work environments are like.  It is beneficial to the students, but also to the College as it 
strengthens employer/college relationships. The trip to Eco-Tec for staff went very well.  Trip to 
Cameco for students was excellent.  Looking to add more trips, possible trip to visit OPG could 
happen if cleared by security, but only for small groups (5-6 students at a time). 
5.3.2) Career Night:  D. Duncan thanked M. Sheedy for participating in Career Night and 
contributing to its success.  The group discussed the value in events such as Career Night, and 
how they help the student connect with potential employers in the area.  
5.3.3) Nuclear Physics:  It was decided to leave the Nuclear Physics course in the program.  It 
was felt that the course differentiates Durham’s Chemical Engineering program, from the other 
colleges.  The benefit of keeping the Nuclear Physics course was that it helped with the UOIT 
Pathways program to the Nuclear Power program.  

6. Program Review:  D. Duncan provided the group with documents relating to the Program 
Review. 
6.1) Capstone Project:   Having difficulty with creating a capstone project, unlike in other 
programs, this program does not really lend to a summation of “making something that goes or 
does x”.  Ideas were brought up about how this can be addressed; could companies come to the 
students and ask for a project to be completed; could labs play a bigger part and be translated 
into bigger projects.  It was suggested by N. Taylor to provide a baseline design and have 
students complete the process and provide mass or energy balances for the process.  
Alternatives suggested industry using lab trainers and having students optimize one of these 
systems 
6.2) KPI Student Satisfaction rates:  S. Todd discussed how KPIs are done and how the data is 
interpreted to better understand how to capture/keep students.  The school assessment shows 
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how and why we are losing students to other colleges was discussed. 
6.3) Employer Feedback:  The return of employer feedback was disappointing, only one 
employer gave feedback.  To encourage more feedback, D. Duncan said that during the plant 
visits where students have been hired, he would chat with the employers and solicit feedback and 
build a network.  As D. Duncan passes on job opportunities to students from the employers, the 
employers would in theory, return feedback.  M. Sheedy suggested that Durham College contact 
the Human Resources departments of the primary employers of our grads to see if we can solicit 
feedback that way. 
6.4) Basic Electricity and Automation Course:  This course will start up in January 2018.  The 
group discussed the modifications and the consensus is that this will be a welcome update to the 
Chemical Engineering program. 

7. CCTT (Canadian Council of Technicians and Technologists) or CTAB (Canadian 
Technology Accreditation Board) Accreditation:  The Chemical Engineering program is 
recognized by the Ministry of Colleges and Universities, but does not have any national 
accreditations.  The group was asked how important it was to employers and for students to be 
attached to an accrediting body. The general consensus within the committee was that they are 
nice to have, but not a necessity when it comes to hiring – most companies will do their own 
certification as per their specific requirements once a student has been hired. 

8. New Courses: Technical Writing & Career Development:  These courses are now in 
development to be taught in Fall 2015.  The Technical writing course was created with the 
Science & Engineering student in mind, teaching important and specific writing skills.  The group 
was asked what they feel would be important additions to the courses.  C. Davidson 
recommended that the Canadian Journal of Chemical Engineering is the standard in the industry; 
it would be a very helpful addition to this course.  A. Pearce recommended that he finds that most 
grads have a difficult time selling themselves during interviews; could Durham College do mock 
interviews with actual employers who will provide feedback – Fleming College does this.  The 
group agreed that researching and showing interest in the company that you are applying for is 
definitely important, and should be stressed in the class. 

9. Additional Agenda Items:  D. Duncan shared with the group that student Owen Johnson and 
several others did the six-sigma greenbelt course and is working in Cobourg and already applying 
it.    

10. Future Meeting Date:  Thursday, November 26, 2015 at 5:00 p.m.  
11. Meeting Adjourned:  7:00 p.m. 

 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1. PAC evaluation forms need to be reviewed and recommendations to improve/change the 
meetings to be made.  ACTION BY:  D. Duncan & J. Myers. 

2. D. Duncan to define and articulate what a capstone project is and ask other colleges what they 
are doing as a capstone project.  Also, to see if current trainers can be used as a “capstone” by 
having students write an in-depth report on its operation.  ACTION BY:  D.Duncan 

3. D. Duncan to review possibility of trainer use for Capstones.  ACTION BY:  D. Duncan 
4. E-mail reminder to be sent out to S. Cake regarding student tours of OPG in Fall semester. 

ACTION BY: D. Duncan 
 

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM June 12, 2014 MEETING 

1. Look at tempering the Calculus course so to be less advanced but still acceptable for the Bridge 
program at UOIT.  ACTION BY:  D. Duncan, J. Myers, T. Jessup – completed, keeping as is 
because if you take out some of the curriculum, then another course is required to 
continue education. 
Liaise with J. Henry and arrange a meeting with the Durham District high school teachers, 
possibly including Durham College students.  Perhaps set up a time to speak to the grade 12 
classes as well.  ACTION BY:  S. Todd, D. Duncan, J. Henry – On hold. 

2. Look into Career Services portion being brought into the Communications course.  Also, look into 
a Durham District High school student professional development day.  Ask Paul Bishop for 
assistance on this.  ACTION BY:  J. Myers, D. Duncan – ongoing, new communications 
courses are in development. 

3. Look at finding another hour for Chemistry 1 or some kind of modification to the course.  ACTION 
BY:  J. Myers, S. Todd – ongoing, will be addressed at departmental meeting.  
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4. PAC Members to review the ACR report and make suggestions, and provide comments on 

courses, changes etc. to D. Duncan.  ACTION BY:  PAC Members, D. Duncan – complete, 
addressed during May 14

th
 PAC meeting. 

PAC Members to complete PAC Assessment form (sent out with minutes) for next meeting. 
ACTION BY:  PAC Members – complete. 

5. Work with M. Sheedy for tours with Eco-Tec on what is needed of graduates of the program? 
ACTION BY: J. Myers, D. Duncan, M. Sheedy – complete. 

6. Look into providing something for recognition for member participation.  ACTION BY: S. Todd & 
J. Head – complete – D. Duncan & S. Barrett issued certificates for PAC participation. 

 
 
 

 
REPORT PREPARED BY:  Sarah Barrett              DATE:   June 1, 2015 
 
DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN:   SIGNATURE:   
 
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR:  Mike Sheedy  SIGNATURE:    
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Community Integration Through Co-operative Education  
School of Interdisciplinary Studies & Employment Services 

April 28, 2015 

 

 
Membership List 
 
Note:  an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for this meeting. 

 
Name Title Organization 

 
*Donna McAlister Executive Director   Durham Region Employment Network 
 PAC Chair    
 
External Committee Members 

 
Name Title Organization 

 
Cathy Windfield Employment Support Specialist  ODSP 
Leslie Yeates PEng     Collins Barrow Consulting 
*Sharon Burgess Employment Counsellor   Community Living Ajax/Pickering 
Lisa McLinden Teacher    J. Clarke Richardson H.S., Ajax 
Cheryl Cove Vocational Specialist   Northern Lights 
*Terri Korkush Director of Operations   Community Living Oshawa/Clarington 
Amanda Carkner Team Lead    Community Living Durham North 
 
 
Elected Student/Alumni 
 
Name Yr/Program/Alumni  

    
*David Itineman First year CICE 
*Brandon Nathaniel Second year CICE 
*Alex Duffy First year CICE 
 
 
Faculty/Staff Representatives 
 
Name Title Organization 
 

*Elizabeth Campbell Learning Facilitator/Team Lead  Durham College 
Ann Conroy Administrative Coordinator  Durham College 
*Bev Neblett Associate Dean   Durham College 
*Linda Lyons Learning Facilitator   Durham College 
*Grace Smith Learning Facilitator   Durham College 
 
 
Guests 

 
N/A 
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 KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

 1.  Minutes of October 21, 2014 were approved as presented. 

 2.  Addition to the agenda – Ride for Inclusion  

 3.  External Membership  

 Community Living Oshawa/Clarington completed the ministry’s compliance of quality assurance 
measures and received accreditation.  They are now able to offer two types of assistance to families 
on the waitlist. 

 DREN-ETSI is on hold due to computer issues but is expected to roll out later this year.  The roll-out 
for peer support trial service has been extended.  Employment for those with mental health issues is 
not promising.  Currently looking for partnerships with Ontario Shores and various Durham services.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.  College Updates 

 Actively sending out offers and converting application offers to confirmations for next academic year 
has begun.   

 The Spring Open House was March 21
st
.  We had a good turn out. 

 Spring Convocation for our School is set for Tuesday June 9
th
 at 10:00 am at the GM Centre. 

 Durham College KPI scores highest among GTA colleges in key areas.  Durham College (DC) is 
committed to the success of our students while meeting the needs of our local communities and 
business and industry partners.  One of the ways we evaluate our performance is through the Ontario 
government’s Key Performance Indicators (KPI) surveys and results.  The college is pleased to share 
that our efforts to ensure the student experience continues to come first at DC have translated into 
increases in three of five benchmark areas, as measured by the KPI surveys conducted over the last 
number of months.  Our student satisfaction, graduate satisfaction, and graduation rates have all 
improved, some significantly more than the system average, and are now highest of all colleges in the 
Greater Toronto Area (GTA).  

 Key Performance Indicator results are as follows: 
 

Graduate 
Employment 

Employer 
Satisfaction 

Graduate 
Satisfaction 

Student 
Satisfaction 

Graduation 
Rate 

85.1% 87.7% 78.7% 75.5% 69.0% 

 
5.  School Updates 

 Projected target enrollment for the fall semester is 805 students.  We have 458 confirmed applicants 
for our programs, 67 waitlisted, and 27 paid applicants. 

 Will be launching a pilot project of Communication course revisions Fall 2015 in GAS. 

 OFAD program is going through curriculum revisions for year 2 programming.  Year 1 curriculum 
revisions will be in effect Fall 2015.  The compressed delivery format of 3 days classroom 
instruction/week for OFAD will begin in the fall. 

 We have approval to develop two new programs, Office Administration – Real Estate and Office 
Administration – Records Management. 

 April 22
nd

, the School hosted an Employer Appreciation reception for field placement 
agencies/organizations that had our students (CICE, OFEX, and OFMD) on placements this past 
academic year.   

6. Program News 

 Key Performance Indicator results for the program will be available at the Fall meeting. 

 75 applicants applied to the program for the 2015-16 academic year.  To date, the program has 19 
applicants confirmed for fall intake, 10 applicants waitlisted, and 5 applicants paid.  Maximum 
enrollment capacity for the fall intake is 20 students. 

 The program is going through a program review over the next year.  This review consists of a review 
of the program of study through a program mapping exercise that will look at the alignment of the core 
courses in the program to the program learning outcomes; two focus groups with students and 
external stakeholders, graduates, employers, and a SCOT analysis of all program review data which 
is completed by the team.  A final report with recommendations will be finalized by June 2016.   

 As we have just finished the current recruitment cycle, it will now be reviewed in the following months 
along with the program admissions requirements. 

 20 first year students successfully completed year.  

 17 second year students graduating in June.  One graduate has been hired at the Abilities Centre. 

 L. Kozma, a graduate from the program, won the Helping Hands of Clarington Volunteer Service 

Award. 

 D. Patterson and J. Silverstein both won the Roger Anderson Scholarship award. 

 4 first year students have been offered employment opportunities based on their placement. 

 A 2
nd

 year student was asked to attend and support the Sustainability Office at the College’s Open 

House.  This student also won 2
nd

 place for their design submission for the DC waste management 

containers. This was part of their Sustainability Energy class 
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 Marketing the Program 

 Team attended various transition events – York, York Catholic Board, Durham Board, Durham 

North Board, Durham Catholic. 

 CICE information sessions will be held in September and October.  Application packages will 

be handed out at these events 

 CICE Team Update 

 Team members arranged and attended several PD sessions (i.e. Professional boundaries and 

wellness)  

 Respondus is a program used to export tests from DC Connect so that Learning Facilitators can 

modify and return test to DC Connect. 

 Assistive technology sessions -  Kurzweil, read & write, dragon is utilized for students  

 First Aid/CPR session and first aid mental health have been completed by Learning Facilitators. 

 DC Placement Students 

 Supported 2 DSW students this semester. 

 Had two computer programmer analyst students complete their placement with the program.  
They developed a program to assist with the scheduling for Learning Facilitators timetables. 

. 7.  Student Voice 

Alex - Gained experience, and received a lot of help from Learning Facilitators (LF).  Placement was at 
the Abilities Centre; worked closely with his supervisor and found it very interesting.  Gave it 5 stars!    

Brandon - will graduate from CICE in June.  Enjoyed his first year, and made the Dean’s each semester.  
Very proud of himself and what he achieved.  Says college was one of the best times in his life.  CICE is a 
great program and LF’s have been very helpful and have faith in him.  Gained self-confidence, and wants 
to do youtube videos of him cooking. 

David - Placement was at East Side Mario’s and he enjoyed it.  At first he struggled to get out of his 
comfort zone, but learned to vocalize, self-advocate and ask for help; made good friends. 

. 8.  Additional Agenda Items 

Ride for Inclusion - Kevin Baker, Dean of ISES is doing month-long charity bike ride in July to raise money 
for a bursary/scholarship for the students of the CICE program at Durham College.  Will ride his 
motorcycle from Deadhorse, Alaska to Key West, Florida.  Goal is to raise $30,000.  Can donate online/at 
ISES office or on social media. More details can be found about the Ride for Inclusion at: 
www.rideforinclusion.com  

  

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

1. Program key performance indicators will be shared at next meeting,  
2. Program of Study will be discussed at Fall meeting. 
3. Update on Program review process will be provided. 

   

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM October 21, 2014  

 Future Meeting Date:  October 21, 2015, 6:00 pm, Whitby Campus, room TBD 

 

REPORT PREPARED BY: J. Wingate DATE:  April 29, 2015  
  
DRAFT REVIEWED BY: Associate Dean:   SIGNATURE:    ____________________________ 
                                                                                                                     Bev Neblett, Associate Dean 
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR:   SIGNATURE:    ____________________________ 
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Community Services (ADMH, CSCSF & SSW) 
 Program Advisory Committee 

School of Health & Community Services 
Minutes of April 28, 2015 

 

 
Community Services (ADMH, CSCSF & SSW) Program Advisory Committee Membership List 
 

Name Title Organization 
 

Committee Chair 
 

*Douglas Matheson 
 
External Committee Members 
 

*Kim Lepine 
 
 
*Jennifer Iantomasi 
 
Krista Bull 
 
Garfield Bembridge 
 
Ali Juma 
 
Heather Stewart 
 
Jennifer Brunt 
 
Maria Perrino 
 
Mark Hammann 
 
Sarah Dixon 
 
Soraya Attai 
 
Wendy Rechanicz 
 
 

 
 
Senior Lead 
 
 
 
Director, Mental Health and 
Specialized Geriatrics 
 
Addiction Counsellor 
 
Program Coordinator 
 
Executive Lead 
 
Director Family Services 
 
Kinship Worker 
 
Human Resources Manager 
 
Manager 
 
 
 
Program Manager 
 
School Settlement Worker 
 
Program Manager 

 
 
CMHA Durham 
 
 
 
Community Care Durham 
 
 
Lakeridge Health 
 
Durham Mental Health Services 
 
CMHA Toronto 
 
Durham Children’s Aid Society 
 
Children’s Aid Society 
 
Enterphase Child & Family Services 
 
John Howard Society 
 
AIDS Committee of Durham 
 
Frontenac Youth Services 
 
Community Development Council 
 
Frontenac Youth Services 
 
 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 
 
Krista Schmidt 
 
*Nicholas Ringwood 
 
Erin DeMelis 
 
*Jaimee Rodrigues 
 
Victoria Howarth 

 
 
 
ADMH Student 
 
SSW Student 
 
ADMH Student 
 
SSW Student 
 
ADMH Student 

 
 
 
Durham College 
 
Durham College 
 
Durham College 
 
Durham College 
 
Durham College 
 
 

 
Elected Faculty/Staff Representatives 
 

*Judeline Innocent 
 
Carol Burke 
 
Ken Lomp 
 
*Randy Uyenaka 
 
Pat Mongeon 

 
 
 
Dean 
 
Associate Dean 
 
Faculty/Coordinator 
 
Faculty/Coordinator 
 
Faculty/Coordinator 

 
        
 
School of Health & Community Services 
 
School of Health & Community Services 
 
Addictions & Mental Health Program 
 
Social Service Worker Program 
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Dan Blomme 
 
*Donna Boyd 

 
Faculty/Acting Coordinator 
 
Program Coordinator 

 
Addictions & Mental Health Program 
 
Continuing Education 
 

 
Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff  
 
Stephanie Tufts 
 
 
Mary Noble 

 
 
 
  Student Advisor/Practicum 

Officer 
 
  Employment Advisor/ 
  Internship Coordinator 

 
 
 
School of Health & Community Services 
 
 
Durham College 
 

 
 
 

KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1.   Minutes of January 22, 2015, were approved by J. Iantomasi and seconded by J. Innocent.  Carried. 

2.   The Community Services & Child Studies Program is joining the ADMH & SSW Program Advisory 
Committee as of today.  Approval of the November 14

th
 CSCSF PAC meeting Minutes will be deferred until 

the Fall. 

3.  J. Iantomasi from Pinewood.  Correction to the January 22
nd

 minutes:  there is a new position for pregnant 
and parenting woman for opiate use.  Their Accreditation took place on April 30, 2015. 

4.  D. Matheson CMHA Durham is ramping up for Accreditation happening in 2016. 

5.  K. Lepine Community Care Durham:  7 out of their 10 staff come from Durham College.  For student 
placements, they prefer a long placement and to do their own interviewing.  They are looking for students with 
maturity.  Community Care offers ‘The Home at Last’ program which supports adults who are aging or have 
special needs as they come home from the hospital.  They can receive assistance with this transition from a 
trained and qualified PSW at no cost to them. 

6.  R. Uyenaka SSW updates:  We are having a smooth running Academic year; 120 first years started and there 
has been very low attrition (110 first year students remain).  Exceptionally high GPA’s in both first and second 
year; in the case of the latter, this has been reflected in a number of successful University applicants.  There 
are a few program issues such as interpersonal issues that have been reported in both years.  This may be 
attributable to our efforts to communicate better as a team, increased emphasis on students’ rights and 
responsibilities and new program specific student conduct expectations.  Approximately 90 students will 
graduate in June – largest graduating class yet.  Several good news stories:  confirmations of acceptance into 
University including BSW programs at York, Trent & Ryerson and several students have been hired at 
Pinewood, DMHS and Community Living.  The SSW Program Review continues with the last and final step in 
the process to conduct a SCOT analysis happening tomorrow.  Some of the Program challenges are 
increasing enrolment and the number of appropriate field placement spots available.  We continue to look into 
the addition of value add-ons into the program to increase student readiness/marketability for placement and 
employment.  Conversations continue to take place with Trent University to develop a formal pathway into 
their BSW program.  

7.  D. Blomme provided some ADMH updates (absent):  We had three recent grads get accepted into Masters 
programs for September.  I am aware of 2 students from the cohort which just finished who have gained 
employment.  I am in my final semester as Acting Program Coordinator.  Ken will be returning to the role in 
September.  Spring convocation is on Monday, June 8 from 6:30 to 8:30 at the GM Centre in Oshawa.  
Students from the Jan 2014 – Dec 2014 and the May 2014 to Apr 2015 cohorts will be graduating that 
evening.  The first semester orientation is on Tuesday, May 5 from 9:10 am to 11:00 a.m. at the Pickering 
Learning Site.  The CRPO was officially granted recognition by the Province and has started registering 
psychotherapists. 

8.  J. Innocent updates: We are seeing a decrease as a whole in enrolment across the Province.  High schools 
are closing which has a ripple effect on us but there is a new trend with a spike in Second Career applicants.  
Durham College is establishing relationships internationally i.e. affiliations and pathways with Universities in 
Ireland, England.  This is opening the door so that students can do their placements abroad.  We encourage 
international students to come in so that we can diversify and enrich the programs within the College.  
Durham College is now offering a FastStart program which provides an opportunity for students to become 
involved in Entrepreneurship - more information will be provided as it unrolls.  The School of Health & 
Community Services is hosting a Community Appreciation Event on June 10

th
 – invitations will be going out 

shortly.  A flyer from the Centre of Food promoting their culinary classes was provided to all members. 
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9.  J. Innocent reviewed the 2013-2014 KPIs for the ADMH & SSW programs with the Membership. 
10.D. Boyd provided updates from the Continuing Education Department:  Con.Ed. is offering SSW courses on-

line through Ontario Learn but not all of them are available.  Developing more courses over the summer.  The 
full-time faculty are very supportive. 

11.The ADMH and SSW student voices were heard and the concerns they raised i.e. textbooks, scheduling, 
food services, etc. are reflected in the KPI results and they will be addressed by the School.                       

 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1. Next meeting – October 28, 2015, 2:00 – 4:00 pm. 
2.  Adjournment 3:45 pm. 

 
 

  

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM JANUARY 22, 2015 MEETING 

1.  D. Blomme & J. Innocent addressed the safety concerns at the Pickering Learning Site. 
 

 

     

 
REPORT PREPARED BY:          Sandra Thomson           DATE:    May 12, 2015 

DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN:  Judeline Innocent   SIGNATURE:     
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR:             Douglas Matheson SIGNATURE:      
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Computer Programmer Program Advisory Committee  
School of Business, IT & Management 

Minutes of April 21, 2015 
 

 
Computer Programmer Analyst Membership List 
 
Note: an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for this meeting. 

 

Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair 
  

*Yasser Khan Manager of Technical Solutions McGraw Hill 

External Committee Members 
  

Robert DeSanti VP Deighton Associates Limited 
Maddy Dilski Business Partner Cisco Canada 
Tim Fenton Executive CIO & N. American CRM IT GM Canada 
*Judy Gauvin Programmer Analyst Ministry of Community and Social Services 
*Dave Jewell IT Architect IBM Canada 
*Lee Kichko Software Developer Mojility 
Yasmine Moolla Project Manager Ministry of Revenue 
*Chris Reid Senior Developer Salentica Inc. 
Tyler Savery Business Owner Young Astronauts 
*Murray Schock Director CIBC Infrastructure Client Services – 

Mainframe Operations 
Jennifer Short IT Software Deployment Coordinator ITS, UOIT 
Favour Umokoro Director of Technology Amazing Print Corporation 
*Mark Wilton Applications Analyst Town of Ajax 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

  

Name Year, Program   
*Jillian Arnott Year 2, CPA  
Ian Manley Alumni  
*Tyler Martin Year 1, CPA  
*Scott Nice Year 3, CPA  
Mike Schnurfeil Alumni  
Kyle Sullivan Recent Graduate  
   

Elected Faculty/Staff   
Representatives 

  

Name Title Department 
*Kevin Dougherty Program Coordinator/Professor/Acting 

Chair 
School of Business, IT & Management 

Thom MacDonald Professor School of Business, IT & Management 
Darren Puffer Professor School of Business, IT & Management 
   
Guests/Unelected 
Faculty/Staff 

  

Name Title Department/Organization 
*Jackie Bathe Associate Dean  
*Donna Boyd Program Officer School of Continuing Education 
*Victoria Kee Secretary School of Business, IT & Management 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1. Additions to Agenda: none 
2. Agenda: accepted by Y. Khan, seconded by D. Jewell. 
3. Minutes of November 24, 2014 were approved by consensus of committee members. 
4. External Membership Information Sharing:   

 Students need to learn the importance of testing coding to make sure it is going to behave in the expected manner.  If a code is 
changed a test will reveal if it is failing.  Failure to test borders on unethical.  Discussed that this is currently introduced in Intro to 
Programming and will be expanded in the future to expand as a regular lab requirement for planning and testing. 

 There was some concern regarding the reduction in written exams because sometimes in the field academic status is used to 
assist with choices between job candidates.  Discussed that this program is no less vigourous due to the reduction in formal 
testing.  Student averages are the same for take home tests as they are for in-class tests.  Furthermore, other methods of 
evaluation can be much more effective in determining the knowledge, skills and abilities that a student has acquired such as 
problem-based learning involving case work, team work and presentations. 

 A problem in the industry is that developers can make changes as directed but do not understand what they have actually 
changed or what the potential consequences will be.  There needs to be an understanding of the context so that what is being 
done can achieve its purpose. 

 To answer the context problem, CIBC has developed Banking acumen courses for internal staff to help employees removed from 
the front line understand how their job is related to the success of the organization. 

 The banking industry is currently experiencing cost containment and has been downsizing.  It is not easy to obtain hiring approvals 
due to so many budget pressures. 

 Team work is not always successful in the industry depending on the environment.  Sometimes employees have difficulty 
adjusting to Java and have trouble working as a team. 

 Discussed an article about a billionaire in Paris who has created a highly competitive school called École 42 with no teachers, 

curriculum or textbooks but has 1000 Macintosh computers and 70,000 applicants.  The program will involve problem-based 
learning in teams.  Innovative solutions are important for success in today’s industry.  
http://www.universityworldnews.com/article.php?story=20131016172904469 

 The publishing industry is no longer defining themselves as textbook publishers but instead as the learning sciences industry.  
There is a fear of disintermediation and the discovery of a model of delivering content to students that is more effective than a 
textbook.  The industry in investigating innovative ways to deliver content to students. 

 Many IT companies are finding themselves to be too large in size, causing reduced flexibility.  Many companies have split and are 
trying to establish smaller, niche companies.  Downsizing is a strong consideration. 

 There can be a lot of resistance among employees to using new technologies such as analytics tools instead of spreadsheets that 
contain large amounts of data. 

 Discussion about the information taught in C++ course.  The expectations of basic knowledge have changed and students are 
more employable if they have the most up-to-date knowledge.  However, the C++ course is shared by four programs and the 
curriculum is based on provincially mandated learning outcomes.  Recommendations from the program review were to keep on 
the same path as this is a generalist program and students need to be prepared for an interview in any industry.  Knowledge from 
C++ can be applied to other languages. 

5. College/School and Program Update:  

 Enrolment is down across all 24 Ontario colleges due to low high school enrolment. 

 Durham College is actively marketing right now and held an Open House a few months ago.   

 This fall IT will have approximately 190 students entering the program. 

 Three new programs start this fall:  Accounting and Payroll, International Business Management and Insurance.       

 We are hoping that Computer Foundations will receive all approvals allowing it to start in the winter of 2016.  This one year 
certificate will help with student retention after first semester and allow students who aren’t sure which program they would like, to 
try a one year program, with the option to continue on. 

 The college is at a maximum capacity and scheduling into evening classes.   
6. Continuing Education: 

 The trend in Continuing Education is for a reduced demand for in-class courses; however, demand for online courses continues to 
increase.  All new development will be in online courses. 

7. Student Voice: 

 Suggestion to implement agile development in the final database course.  This has been tried in the past without success but will 
be implemented into the Capstone project.  

 Students find they encounter difficulty with the internet development exams as the computers crash when students are all trying to 
upload within the last 20 minutes of the exam.   

 A large number of second year students have obtained IT jobs this summer. 

 Students do not like the costs on campus for parking and food. 

 Students do feel like exams are unfair evaluations of a student’s skills and abilities and not an accurate representation of the kind 
of challenges they would find in the work place.  Exams are often the only way to ensure academic integrity.  Students who cheat 
will not have the necessary skills when it comes to finding employment.   

 The workload in each course can be heavy but material makes sense and meets business requirements. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1. Investigate dual credit with Introduction to Programming.   
2. T. Martin to determine a good time to present to high school students next fall. 
3. External members may be contacted this spring to discuss curriculum development. 
4. Next meeting:  Tuesday, November 17, 2015  Location:  CFF 
5. Adjournment:  8:15pm 
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STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM November 24, 2014 MEETING 

1. Feedback regarding possible security issues to cover in curriculum – although Bill Marlow will be retiring this spring, he is very active 
working towards the completion of course outlines for Systems Analysis and Systems Development streams.  He is also working on 
three new mainframe stream courses. 

2. Results of investigation for possibility of workshops held by student society – There is an IT Student Society and a very active third 
year graduating student who is currently running as president of the SA.  He would like to see a strong society moving forward and is 
hoping to implement some workshops this fall. 

3. Discuss full report on Program Review – This academic year, 2014-2015 is the first with the new POS.  This spring will be dedicated 
to working on the development of the second year courses.  During the program review, two external assessors were brought to the 
college and produced reports after spending a day on campus speaking to students and faculty.  Strengths included: multiple real 
world projects that span multiple courses; authentic assessments predominant in both programs; many opportunities for collaboration 
and team building in each semester of study that emulates the IT workplace; program team provides rich and timely feedback on 
assignments and projects based on student needs; industry guest speaker series; continued course development in the areas of 
problem-based learning and peer assessment; scaffolding present through the program; dedicated communication courses that are 
tailored to the IT field; innovators in student success interviews and intervention at midterm; and a dedicated faculty team and 
innovative assessment practices.  Program areas for development included: further developing writing, speaking and teamwork skills 
for the IT professional; nurture an environment for development of an identity for CPGM students; recognition of the high attrition rate 
as an attribute of a highly popular computer program along with the flexible nature of first year; develop a natural flow-through path 
from CPGM to CPA; further development of real-world cases for lower year courses; work with CST faculty to balance the needs of 
CPGM/CPA students for systems content within delivery of that content for the first year IT students; increased content in SAAD and 
PM stream; maintain the business context for IT, perhaps strengthening to provide an IT view of support for all functional areas as 
well as the overall business plan and strategy; integrate a co-op work term for CPA students; maintain the generalist approach; 
incorporate technologies to support development for social media and small devices; develop more IT-focused math content along 
with remedial modules; expand cross-course projects to incorporate cross-year projects; continue to reduce the number of textbooks 
in use in favour of e-books.  The top five recommendations included: 

i. Develop a four-month optional co-op work term between 2
nd

 and 3
rd

 year – this is under development, planned to roll out for 
Spring 2016.  Unfortunately, there is very low uptake by students for internships at all colleges and Durham College will need 
to evaluate its ability to support the program. 

ii. Communications for IT, SAAD, PM, Security and math content changes/improvements to better align with MCTU program 
standards – complete, rolled out in the fall of 2014. 

iii. Systems content aligned to CPGM/CPA needs in first year to address caps and non-essential content found in the curriculum 
review – complete, will roll out in the fall of 2015. 

iv. Further increase the number of informal, formative assessments and a reduction in the number of smaller, summative 
assessments – this is ongoing with further improvements being made each term.  The new course development includes this 
criterion. 

v. Develop a flow-through model for students, wishing to transfer directly from the CPGM program in second year to the CPA 
program – completed. 

4. Follow up of results from one-on-one meetings between committee members and faculty – Committee members may be contacted 
this spring to communicate regarding curriculum and course development. 

5. Feedback from high school visit to speak to students about the program – Planning on scheduling this for the fall of 2015.  T. Martin 
feels that high school students would benefit from being aware of this program as early as possible.  Additionally, increasing 
awareness of the program may assist with the attrition rate. 

  

 
 
REPORT PREPARED BY:  V. Kee           DATE:    April 21, 2015 
 
DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN:  J. Spring SIGNATURE:     
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR: Y. Khan  
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Computer Systems & Information Systems Security        
Program Advisory Committee 

School of Business, IT & Management 
Minutes of April 7, 2015 

 

 
Computer Systems & Information Systems Security Program Advisory Committee Membership List 

 
Note: an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for this meeting. 
 

Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair   

*Keith White IT Director Oshawa Clinic/Taunton Health Care 

External Committee Members   

Karl Alexander Lab Technician Durham College 
Derek Corneil Professor, Computer Science University of Toronto 
*John Fledderus Vice President Owasco 
*Derek Goreski Systems Engineer Cisco Canada 
*Andrew Kelly   Manager of Technical Services Lakeridge Health 
Arjun Kumar CEO Kela Medical Inc. 
Jason Kyle Manager, Distribution Support TD Direct Investing 
Mauro Lollo Co-Founder, CTO UNIS LUMIN INc. 
Josh Lowe Senior Lecturer and Laboratory 

Coordinator 
UOIT 

Adrian Lupea Network System Administrator Durham College 
David Martin Instructor Maxwell Heights Secondary School 
*Dragos Preoteasa ICT Director Durham College 
*Andrew Sutton Network Consulting Engineer Cisco Canada 
*Wadih Zaatar Area Manager for Canada Cisco Canada 
   

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

  

Name Year, Program  
*Brandon Arathoon Year 1, CSTY  
Nabil Choudhury ISCN Graduate Certificate  
*Jordon Crawford Year 3, CSTY  
Neil Groat Alumni Durham College 
*Cody Hardy Alumni Durham College 
*Andrew Hinett  Year 2, CSTY  
Sahil Mandot ISCN Graduate Certificate  
Shahrukh Mohammed Year 2, CSTY  
Genevieve Pulvermacher Year 3, CSTY  
*Jessica Sopha-Wright Alumni  
   

Elected Faculty/Staff 

Representatives 

  

Name Title Department 
*Danny Aniag Professor School of Business, IT & Management 
*Laura Franks Professor School of Business, IT & Management 
*Stephen Franks Coordinator/Professor School of Business, IT & Management 
   

Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff   

Name Title Organization/Department 

*Jackie Bathe Associate Dean School of Business, IT & Management 

*Donna Boyd Program Officer Continuing Education 

*Victoria Kee Secretary School of Business, IT & Management 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1. Additions to Agenda: 
 Update to year one program – Judy Spring has proposed a one year Computer Foundations certificate program to 

the Program Approval Committee.  This allows students to add the certificate on after completing other programs or 
to switch to a different program after the first year if they would like to try something different.  This is also a great 
retention strategy because it offers students an incentive to return to the second semester in first year.  If students 
do graduate with the certificate they can choose to return into the second year of the program. 

 Changes to lab – discuss at fall meeting. 

 Change to Windows 2012 server – discuss at fall meeting. 

 Optional co-op – Students would benefit from paid co-op opportunities that are not a requirement for graduation but 
do provide some work experience.  The procedures and policies for this type of program would need to be 
formalized.  Generally, OSAP does not need to be repaid during the co-op because students are returning to school.  
Students expressed that they would appreciate the availability of option.  Suggestion was made to introduce this co-
op between semesters in third year instead of between years 2 and 3 to reduce the number of students that may 
choose to remain in the workforce.  It was agreed that some research should be done to determine whether other 
colleges offer something similar and how it is structured. 

2. Agenda:  accepted by A. Hinett, seconded by A. Sutton. 

3. Minutes from October 21, 2014 were approved. 
4. External Membership Information Sharing:   

 Committee members discussed that some knowledge of the Mac Operating System is critical as they are utilized by 
a large number of organizations.  Unfortunately, Mac is very inflexible and requires machines to be serviced only by 
Mac branded personnel.  There is only a very small educational discount on Mac material and therefore students 
would have to pay the full cost.  Therefore, in the Linux cluster as many flavours should be integrated as possible, 
including Mac.   

 Students in field placements have been doing very well.  The quality of teaching in this program is great and seems 
to keep abreast of the industry changes. 

5. College/School and Program update:   
 Durham College is continuing to actively market for the fall semester and held an open house two weeks ago.  

 Four new programs will be introduced next year in the School of Business, IT & Management including Accounting 
and Payroll, Insurance, Human Resources – University Transfer and an International Business Management 
graduate certificate.  Approval is hoped to be obtained for offering Finance programs in 2016. 

 The IT program is growing and the school will be accepting 195 students next fall.   

 A January intake will be added for the Information Systems Security graduate certificate and has been marketed to 
other programs in the college. 

6. Continuing Education: 
 Will provide update at fall meeting. 

7. Student Voice:  
 The increase in difficulty between semester one and semester two is quite significant. Moving Computer Systems I 

would be very beneficial.  S. Franks commented that the new POS addresses this issue and will be distributed to 
committee members.   

 Students require encouragement to access help when they need it.  It was very helpful that Heather Dunlop stopped 
by each stream to discuss with the students different resources available. 

 Third year is quite a bit less instructor based and students need to self-instruct.  The change between second and 
third years was quite intimidating; however, students felt that they learned more than any other semester.  S. Franks 
commented that this is another area that will be addressed in the future. 

 The embedded CRTU program will be a great benefit to Durham College as it shares campuses with UOIT and this 
means easier transitions for students.   

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1. Research co-op structures at other colleges – S. Franks. 
2. Review changes to Lab. 
3. Update on change to Windows 2012 server. 
4. Review progress on development of an online course for DCOM 1100. 
5. Distribute new POS to committee members for feedback. 
6. Follow up on new POS after first students begin courses in the fall of 2015. 
7. Send out Linux through Cisco update.  Ensure course outline for Linux is synchronized and include Mac. 
8. Follow up on workspace for students – J. Bathe 
9. Investigate “Algonquin model” further – J. Bathe 
10. Next Meeting:  Tuesday, November 10, 2015   Location:  CFF 

Adjournment:  8:15 p.m. 

  

 

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM October 21, 2015 MEETING 

1. Discuss three vs. four week placement – Three week placement began this semester.  Students have had the 
option to continue with the one day a week arrangement if that works better with their schedule.  Employers do not 
seem to have a preference between a three or four week duration in the placement.  Benefit to students would 
depend on what projects are in progress at that time.  Some students will graduate later as employers are 
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staggering the placements; however, eventually the goal will be to send all students on placement at Week 12.  
Will be putting procedures into place to monitor student hours more closely and also implementing a procedure to 
follow up on student progress during their placement.   

2. Feedback regarding POS – Intake this fall will be the first students with the new POS.  Will discuss again at the fall 
meeting.  The goal is to re-align courses and the next POS change will come from an examination of common 
learning outcomes across the courses. 

3. Results of research regarding Linux upgrade and strengthening Windows courses – This has been the first 
semester using IDG’s online Linux courses through the Cisco Academy.  Cisco is the portal to IDG’s environment 
and there seem to be some gaps within that structure but the virtualization of Linux environment has gone well 
and there is no charge to students for a textbook.  The online testing is not useful because an all class activation 
is required, which leaves no room to accommodate students with disabilities.  The online labs are binary – once 
students open the lab they are given full marks – but these can be used for practice work.  The written course 
material is appropriate and convenient.  In May/June, will send update on the course outline.  The plan is to 
increase hours on Linux to match those on Windows delivery and align courses so they reinforce each other.  The 
third Linux course will be strengthened and the virtualization course outline will be under heavy development this 
spring and will introduce a new, younger approach.  Suggestion was made to make sure containerization is 
included in the curriculum. 

4. Update on dedicated work area for students – No update at this time as this is still a challenge. 
5. Result of investigation regarding the use of LabSim by TestOut as an alternative to textbooks – Currently 

investigating this option and examining the price difference between electronic books and hands-on books.  Other 
colleges sometimes receive negative feedback for e-books but this seems to be school and program dependent.  
Student committee members felt that a physical textbook was preferable and easier to use while doing work on 
the computer and also more portable.  The goal would be to give students a choice and avoid a mandate towards 
either option.  Another possibility would be to buy a textbook that provides access to the e-book.  There would 
also be benefits to bundling textbook costs with lab fees.  Algonquin College has the “Algonquin model” in which 
fees include all textbooks, software and everything needed for courses that year.  This levels the field for students 
who all have everything they need on day one of classes.   

6. Update on Capstone projects – The Student Trade Show was successful.  Student presentations were very well 
done.  Next year seminars will start an hour out of sync to give more time for the trade show as well as attending 
the seminars.  Asked for feedback from the committee on how to attract more attendees.  Ideas included inviting 
keynote speakers, or introducing prizes.  Please send any additional suggestions to S. Franks.   

7. Discuss development of embedded program with DC/UOIT pathway – The development for a program with five 
embedded university courses is underway that will allow students to move from second year at Durham College to 
the third year of a degree program at UOIT.  A joint development team has been formed with the university and 
will be creating university hybrid courses that meet the learning requirements of both Durham College and UOIT.  
Students must maintain a fairly high GPA of 3.5 to remain enrolled in this program.  This program will hopefully be 
introduced in the fall of 2015.   

8. Review progress on development of an online course for DCOM 1100 – Will discuss at fall meeting. 

 
 

REPORT PREPARED BY:  V. Kee           DATE:    April 7, 2015 

DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN:  J. Spring SIGNATURE:     
 
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR:  K. White  
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Construction & Hoisting 
School of Skilled Trades, Apprenticeship & Renewable Technology 

Minutes of March 12, 2015 
 

 

 
Construction & Hoisting Membership List 
 
Note:  an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for the meeting. 

 
 
Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair 

Jim Howard 

*Fred Ogden 

 

 

 

Skycrane 

Kenaidan Contracting 

 
External Committee Members 

  

Name Title Organization 
Michael Cianchetti  Deep Foundations 

Contractors INC 
Mark Dean  Dean Construction 

Company 
Jill Frazer/Paul Fraser OYAP Program Facilitator Durham District School 

Board 
*Dave Gallagher   

Steve Gibson  Kiewit Corporation 
Lee Goodfellow  Mammoet 

Paige Marlow Researcher Durham Workforce 
Authority 

Andrew McNally  McNally Construction 
Don Medeiros  Deep Foundations 

Contractors INC 
Matt Stack  Anchor Shoring 

Tom Stack  Anchor Shoring 

Andrew Weltz  Bermingham Foundation 
Solutions 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

 

  

Name 

Brad Milne 
Year/Program/Alumni  

Alumni 

 

*Mike Moore Year 1 Student  

Elected Faculty/Staff   
Representatives 

 

  

Name Title Organization 

*Kevin Keays Program Coordinator Durham College 

*Jonathan Kelly Faculty Durham College 

*Pam Stoneham Associate Dean Durham College 

Guests/Unelected 
Faculty/Staff  

  

Name Title Organization 

*Emma Cronin Admissions Durham College 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

 Discussion regarding the changes in industry needs due to the drop in oil prices has led to 
companies choosing the best workers with maximum skill sets. Harder for new grads to get their foot 
in the door. 

 Kevin Keays mentioned that despite the downturn in the oil economy, there are plenty of 
opportunities locally.  Anchor, McNally, and Birmingham have all indicated they will be hiring some of 
our grads to fill entry level labourer positions. 

 The members liked the math pilot where the student strengths and weaknesses are identified and 
forwarded to SALS to obtain the tools for improvement. 

 Kevin made a request to the industry members for donations in tools. 

 Discussion around which certificates would be beneficial to the graduating students in helping them 
to gain employment.  WHIMIS, fall arrest, safety awareness certificate, Tele-handler, 0-8ton and 
forklift training is currently provided.  Industry members felt that working at heights training, propane 
handling, and chainsaw operation should be implemented.  

 Kevin provided an update on the Tower Crane training which is currently with the ministry.  It was 
mentioned that there may be some difficulties with equipment rentals.  Although offsite training is not 
ideal, there may be land available from Ray Goodfellow (Whisky Jacks crane company) at the south 
end of Simcoe Street in Oshawa. 

 The student, Mike Moore, commented that many of the students do not complete the homework nor 
ask for assistance.  Although Mike had some experience in the hoisting field, he feels he has learned 
a lot from the program.  Mike volunteered his time through a co-op in order to get his foot in the door 
with a crane company in his area. 

 Fred Ogden mentioned the government has challenged industry to hire apprentices and support 
development of the skilled labour force.  Fred provided us with information on the Cardus workshop 
he attended on the subject, see the following website: http://www.cardus.ca/ for more information.  

 Pam Stoneham advised the group of Darrin’s retirement and provided the dates of the Open house 
(March 21

st
) and the Part Time Teaching Job Fair being held at the Whitby campus on March 26

th
.  

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

 More hands on training with diesel, more safety training within the program and provide an actual 
machine, not just the simulators to enhance training.  

 

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM PREVIOUS MEETING 

 Additional simulator obtained. 
 

 
Next Meeting Date:  September 22, 2015 

 
 
REPORT PREPARED BY:  Mary Pearce               DATE:  March 18, 2015 
 
 
DRAFT REVIEWED BY :       Pam Stoneham        SIGNATURE:     :    
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR:                                         SIGNATURE:  
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Construction Carpentry-Sustainable 
School of Skilled Trades, Apprenticeship & Renewable Technology 

Minute Summary of April 20, 2015 
 
 

Construction Carpentry-Sustainable Membership List 

 
Note: an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for the meeting. 

 

Name 
 

Committee Chair 

Title Organization 

*Steve Snider Owner Steve Snider Construction 

External Committee Members 
Name 

 

 
Title 

 

 
Organization 

*Steve Snider Owner Steve Snider Construction 

*Mike Dipalo Contractor Sales RONA Millwork 

*Peter Brooks Owner HM Brooks LTD. 

Andy Van Hoof Building Inspector Town of W hitby 

John Lucyk Owner John Lucyk Renovations 

 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

  

Name Year/Program/Alumni 
 

*Brandon Ballantyne 1   year Construction Carpentry - 
Sustainable 

 
Rebecca Olajos Alumni Construction Carpentry- 

Sustainable 

Elected Faculty/Staff 
Representatives 

Name Title Organization 

*Don Fishley Full time Faculty/ Program 
Coordinator, Construction Carpentry- 
Sustainable program 

*Alan Doyle Full time faculty, Construction 
Carpentry-Sustainable program 

School of Skilled Trades, Apprenticeship 
and Renewable Technology 
 
School of Skilled Trades, Apprenticeship 
and Renewable Technology 

Mike Henderson Carpentry technologist School of Skilled Trades, Apprenticeship 
and Renewable Technology 

 
 

Guests/Unelected 
Faculty/Staff 

Name Title Organization 

*Greg Durkee 
 
 
 

*Darrin Caron 

PT Faculty-Construction Carpentry- 
Sustainable and construction 
carpentry business owner. 
 
Principal/Dean 

School of Skilled Trades, Apprenticeship 
and Renewable Technology 

 
School of Skilled Trades, Apprenticeship & 
Renewable Technology 

 

*David W atson Licensed Carpenter and Retired 
Fleming College Faculty 

 
n/a 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION: 

External/Membership Information Sharing: 

- Steve Snider (Chair) commented that the industry will be possibly booming for the next 10 years 

because of the 407 coming our way. 

- Average pricing for new construction homes is $470K and that people are taking down a home to its 

foundation and rebuilding a more energy efficient home. 

- Greg Durkee commented he is finding his customers and people in general are pouring money into 

their current homes and that 80% are additions onto their homes. 

- In 2017 there will be a big change to the Ontario Building Code around energy efficiency. Steve 

Snider mentioned a pilot project for “Net Zero Energy (NZE)” homes in Ontario. “NZE” homes are 

homes that have enhanced energy efficiency designs i.e. solar panels/geothermal that will 

reduce energy consumption so that the house consumes equal to or less energy than it 

produces on an annual basis. 

- A discussion on how important is it for a construction labourer to have computer skills. Mike Dipalo 

from Rona advised that construction site managers email daily work schedules and he has seen lots 

of ipads on the job. 

College/School Update and Program Update: 

- The college system is experiencing a decrease in applications applying to college.  Competition 

is becoming fierce and colleges are marketing their programs in all jurisdictions.  In fact, Loyalist 

College held an open house at the Oshawa Golf Club and Fleming College is investigating 

applying for apprenticeship training status in a number of programs, including Carpentry. 

- The committee members were asking if our grads can get advanced standing in a Carpentry 

apprenticeship. Darrin Caron advised that any student can take the Ministry’s challenge exams and 

that this exam can take place here on site in the Whitby Campus Test Centre but they are not awarded any 

on-the-job hours for the college courses. 

- Don Fishley spoke about the Construction Carpentry students participating in the set up and take 

down of housing for the PAN AM Games this summer. The students will work as carpenters and 

carpenters assistants at the residences for the athletes. There were approximetly14 students that 

applied, and 12 of them were accepted. The athletes change week by week and each "condo unit" 

needs to be in good condition for the next group to move in.  There will be broken windows/doors to 

repair, damaged drywall, keys broken off in doors, people locked out, damaged cupboards, 

damaged vanities, etc. The repair teams will be broken into three-8 hour shifts, so there will be 

someone available to tackle the concerns 24 hours /day. W hen the athletes are gone, each unit will 

be completely gutted, redone, and sold as condo units. Most of the residences are in the Distillery 

area of Toronto, so they will probably be quite elegant when completed. The students will have an 

opportunity to conduct the repairs and gain valuable knowledge in the field. 

- Darrin Caron advised the committee that he will be retiring June/July 2015. 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: 

 
1.   Steve Snider to find out cost of a “Net Zero Energy (NZE)” home for builders in the Durham Region. 

2.   Don Fishley to have feedback from the PAN AM game students and possibly from the company 

that hired our students. 

3.   Don Fishley to find out if Durham College is a member of the Durham Home Builders Association 

and if not, purchase the membership. 
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STATUS OF PREVIOUS RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

1.   Julie Hauber presented and reviewed the CCI Employer KPI used by Career Services that provides 
the data for the Program Statistics to the committee. The committee expressed disappointment that 
only 2 employers responded. The committee expressed interest in conducting their own survey and 
also wanted to know why the CCI survey could not be emailed to the employers. Darrin Caron 
explained that CCI is used by all Ontario colleges and we follow their process/procedures. 

2.   Two recommendations for a Renovation Program were forwarded by Andy Van Hoof to Julie Hauber 

prior to the April 13
th
, 2015 meeting (i) students understand how important good drawings and specs 

are; (ii) to have the proper insurance for the size of the project. Steve Snider added to Andy Van 
Hoof’s suggestion to teach student how to operate legally (i.e. insurance). Darrin Caron explained 
that the Renovation Program will be taking a “backseat” due to space issues. Darrin Caron is 
looking into rezoning the carpentry shop to accommodate more than 20 students at a time. 

 
 
Next meeting date: October 21, 2015 

 
REPORT PREPARED BY: Julie Hauber DATE: May 29, 2015 

 
 

REVIEW ED BY: Darrin Caron SIGNATURE:   

APPROVED BY CHAIR: 
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Court Support Services Program Advisory Committee Meeting 
School of Justice & Emergency Services 

Minutes of May 6, 2015 
 

 
Court Support Services Program Advisory Committee Membership List 
 

Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair 

*Jenna Harper 

External Committee Members 

 

MAG Courtroom Clerk OCJ 

  

Durham Courthouse 

*Catherine Dutton 

*Martha De Gannes 

Colette Dwyer 

*Leona Kristensen 

Brian Garrah 

Sarina Kashak 

*Rebekah McNeill 

*Grace Mazzotta 

Lloyd Passey 

Sue Reck 

Allan Rowsell 

Jaimie Lee 

David Salmers 

Kim Skyers 

Karen Sparkes 

 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

Court & Client Representative 

Justice of the Peace 

Manager, Court Operations 

Provincial Offences Court Services 

 

Director of Court Operations 

Supervisor of Court Operations 

Client Services Representative 

Court Services Officer 

President 

Justice – Superior Court of Justice 

 

Justice – Superior Court of Justice 

A/Supervisor, Court Operations 

 

 

 

Year/Program/Alumni  

Durham Courthouse 

Durham  

Durham Courthouse 

Region of Durham 

MAG 

Central East Region 

Durham Courthouse 

Durham Courthouse 

Durham Courthouse 

Durham Reporting & Med. 

Durham  

MAG, Ottawa 

Durham  

Durham Courthouse 

Professional Court Reporter 

 

 

 

Brooke Boddis 

 

Elected Faculty/Staff   
Representatives 

Name 

Student Rep 

 

 

 

Title 

Durham College 

 

 

 

Organization 

Stephanie Ball/Moreen Tapper* 

Josie Fogal 

*Debbie Miller 

Lesley Wagner 

 

Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff  

Name 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dean/Associate Dean 

Professor 

Professor/Coordinator 

Professor 

 

 

Title 

 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

 

 

Organization 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1. Minutes of October 29, 2014 were approved by D. Miller and seconded by M. Tapper. 

CARRIED 

2. Industry Trends/External Membership Update:  Talent pools of people that will be hired for future 
positions are being created in various agencies.  It has been difficult to find volunteers in the 
Durham Courthouse for second semester who would like a student to shadow them.   

3. Field Observation Update:  January Start students will start their observations starting on May 6 
until July 15.  Observation locations include the Durham Courthouse, Scarborough Courthouse, 
Victim Crisis Assistance & Referrals Services and College Park Courthouse. 

4. Enrolment:  To date, there are 16 applicants confirmed for September.  The January Intake 
program for 2015-2016 academic year has been suspended. 

5. Best Practices:  This year’s best practices included resume booklets, facebook page, mock 
interviews, guest speakers, student graduate panel, shadowing placement experiences, 
courtroom simulations, reflection papers, peer vision leadership teams, and annual student 
debriefing. 

6. Court Clerk Competition:  The Provincial Offences court proposed students be presented with 
scenarios of the responsibilities of a court clerk by incorporating problem based learning in the 
course.  The scenarios would be graded and a minimum standard of 70% must be reached in 
order to move to the next phase of testing.  A court manager is working with MAG to have a 
procedure in place for the accreditation of a courtroom clerk/registrar. 

7. Employment Update:  Graduates are being hired in the newly created Court and Client Services 
Representative in full time positions.  Our graduates have attained positions at Durham 
Courthouse, University Avenue Courthouse, Durham Reporting Services, Family Responsibility 
Office and Children’s Aid Society, and Provincial Offences courts.  Managers are hiring from the 
CTSS Resume Booklet that is distributed to all host agencies.  There are open targeted positions 
in the Toronto region for our graduates.   

8. Highest GPA Award:  Janie Ward will be presented with a monetary award in recognition in 
having achieved the highest GPA in the September program. 

9. Program of Studies for 2015-2016:  The only change is the Court Monitor/Reporter courses 
being renamed to Court Reporter next year. 

10. KPI Recommendations:   Based on the results of the surveys, the program team will ensure 
textbooks are being utilized, continue to use UDL principles and practices in their course, 
promote and share good teaching methodologies and provide students with constructive 
feedback in a timely manner. 

11. CTSS Program Review:   The CTSS program mapping is completed.  A SCOT analysis and 
focus groups are also scheduled. 

12. CTSS Online Development/Demonstration:  The OCJ Criminal Clerk and Court Reporter I 
courses have been developed and offered through Continuing Education on-line.  A 
demonstration of the Criminal Clerk on-line courses was viewed by the members. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

1. Introduce the concept of problem-based learning and embed it in the Court Clerk course in the 
first semester by the faculty team. 

2. More information will be presented at the fall meeting regarding the courtroom clerk/registrar 
accreditation process by D. Miller. 

 

 

 

 

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OCTOBER 29, 2014 MEETING 

1. A discussion will be held on whether to include the topic, conflict in the workplace, within one of 
the courses by the program team and D. Miller.  COMPLETED 

2. The Ministry of the Attorney General Office offers a conflict course and a copy will be attained by 
G. Mazzotta.   COMPLETED 

3. J. Fogal will make a comparison of the conflict course that MAG has and the workshop that is 
embedded in the Mediation program.   COMPLETED 
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Culinary Management/Skills Membership List 
 

Note: an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for this meeting. 
 

Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair 

*Ron Subden Chef Professor Durham College 

External Committee Members 

Don Andrews Owner/Operator Tin Mill Restaurant 

*Kevin Anyan General Manager/Owner Kings Court Catering 

Bob Brown Program Facilitator SCWI/SHSM Durham Board of Education 

Sharon Doyle Manager Taunton Mills LTC Facility 

*Penny Johansen Owner/Manager Chatterpaul’s 

Penny Kertsos President PennyKertsos.com 

*Georg Krohn Hospitality Consultant  

Stacey Ritchie OYAP and Pathways Coordinator Durham Catholic District School Board 

Mary Solomon Production and Retail Manager Ontario Shores Centre for Mental Health Sciences 

Kevin Thompson Hospitality Educator Durham District School Board 

Michael Guzzo-Foliaro Owner/Manager Bella Notte Ristorante 

Stefanie Martin Kitchen Manager/Production Chef Halenda’s Fine Foods 

Tracey Running SHSM & Tech Facilitator Durham District School Board 

Jill Frazer OYAP/DDSB Durham District School Board 

Derek Leung Chef/Owner Chanterelle Bistro 

Sean Ashley Executive Chef Deer Creek Golf Club 

*Amy Robertson Food Services Manager Northumberland Hills Hospital 

*Lindsay Harris Executive Chef Viva Pickering Retirement Community 

*Josh Heuvelmans Executive Chef Off the Cleaver 

*Chris Weber Nutritional-Care Manager OMNI Health Care 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

Year/Program/Alumni  

Tara Haugton 2, Culinary Management Durham College-Centre for Food 

Elected Faculty/Staff 
Representatives 

*Dave Hawey Program Coordinator/Professor Centre for Food 

Peter Lee Professor Centre for Food 

*Tanya Heck Professor Centre for Food 

Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff 

*Darrin Caron Dean Durham College - Whitby 

*Amy Serrano Administrative Support Centre for Food 

Culinary Management/Skills 
Centre for Food 

Minutes of April 21, 2015 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1. Industry trends indicate:   There is a campaign starting to encourage the industry – restaurant owners should 

consider setting up a menu that could be bought local; for example, craft breweries looking to buy local hops – 
telling growers that if they grow hops locally they will buy from them.  Look to approach those with large property 
who do not know what to do with it.  Consistency of product is a challenge; allergies are a challenge to 
accommodate; operating costs as an independent business are high.  Minimum wage is going up again which is 
tough as a small business owner.  Education – how to put the information in place so that businesses can deal 
with the demand.  There is a platform that needs to be more implemented; food hubs exist (i.e. Pingles and 
Watson’s farms); an abundance of produce is coming out of the Toronto food terminal.  In process – any institution 
in Ontario will be looking to impose legislation around what they should spend locally (roughly 8-9% of spending); 
mass producers face challenges with keeping product local; smaller stores are not buying the farmer’s bounty due 
to pre-determined agreements; volume, seasonal. There are no shortcuts to accommodate everyone.  Awareness 
is key.  The push for organic foods has waned.  Early intervention to help students figure out what they want to do 
is important.  Encourage students to tweet/Instagram their food photos on a regular basis to self-advertise for 
themselves and their programs (which our students are active in doing).  Students should maybe approach 
employer with recipes; there is a disconnect; students are told that they should bring their lab manuals to field 
placement DC needs to separate itself from the competition; what needs to be done to be unique?  Look into being 
involved in events such as rib-fest. 

2. College/school update and program update: Dip in numbers – 7% less applications from direct entry out of high 

schools; competition is aggressive; DC is making attempts to keep share of market. Non-direct student – more than 
half of our students do not come straight from high school. Seventy-one percent of DC students come from the 
local region; Durham will continue to grow.  Hospitality numbers are low provincially.  Planting around the CFF will 
start in the fall. The Dean for the School of Skilled Trades, Renewable Technology & Apprenticeship and the 
Centre for Food is retiring in June.  The new V.P. Academic was recently been announced.  Convocation is June 
9; it is early due to the Pan Am Games.  Enrolment numbers; 60 returning to year 2 of Culinary Management; 40 
expected to graduate.  The retention rate is about 70%. Apprenticeship numbers are extremely low; enrolment 
strategies – mac n’ cheese competition was a recruitment effort. 

3. Continuing education: courses continue to run; daytime hands-on classes and evening demonstrations.  

Students are enjoying it. A kids cooking camp will be offered this summer. 
4. Student Voice:  Deferred. 
5. Upcoming Events: the goal is to differentiate the CFF; make it a community hub.  This fall the first annual harvest 

dinner will be held on Sept. 23 and 24; designed to create a community buzz and showcase food events. This is 
also designed as a fundraiser for student bursaries. Food and Farming students have grown produce and are 
partnering with local producers.  The price is $60/head (taxes and gratuities included, alcohol extra).  A 
gingerbread competition will be held in late November/early December.  There will be amateur and professional 
categories.  DC’s Special Events Planning students are working on this project as well.  Some of the money raised 
will go to a local food bank. 

6. Baking program: Advanced Baking and Pastry Arts post-graduate certificate program (one year) to run in 

September; 75% lab time; theory and entrepreneurship section; eligible candidates must have one of the 
following - level 1 and 2 cook apprenticeship, cook Red Seal, or Culinary diploma from a 2-year program. 

7. Peru: the Canadian government has initiatives to help others in other countries to help themselves; D. Hawey went 

to Peru for one week in the winter to help identify what the school needed.  It is a two-year project; the school is 
interested in DC’s field-to-fork ideas, curriculum development, creating a PAC. 

8. Skills Ontario: May 4-6 in Kitchener; DC will have a first-year student in the cooking category and a 

second-year student in the baking category. 
9. Skills audit of culinary labs: Activity - Membership broke into small groups to do an audit of our culinary 

labs; they were asked to identify and list the important skills that culinary students should possess. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

1. Re-evaluate how the industry is presented to potential students – does anyone know any elementary school 

teachers to talk to regarding this point? 

2. Email membership CFF/Dave’s Twitter and Facebook links. 

3. Create standard form for student-volunteer requests. 

4. Send PAC membership CFF information as events are planned (thus far, send information regarding the harvest 

dinner and gingerbread competition). 

5. Future meeting date: November 9, 2015 at 8 a.m.  Location:  TBA 

6. Adjournment:  10:30a.m. 
 

 
STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM November 3, 2014 MEETING 

1. Forward Con Ed flyer to PAC members with minutes.  Completed. 

2. Recruit more industry members for the PAC.  Students can approach employers about being a part of the 

PAC. Include an invitation with OYAP package to their employers.  Can a network event be set up between 

employers and students?  Include information on job fair – Ongoing. 

3. Send flyer with minutes from D. Hawey – Ongoing. AGENDA PAGE   132



4. Newsletter format of PAC minutes – include student pictures; employers can post “help wanted” ads.  In the 

meantime, please send posting to T. Heck/D. Hawey to post on FB – Ongoing. 

5. Reach out to PAC members for interviews next semester – Completed. 

6. Revisit Apprenticeship offering.  OYAP will now be the only apprenticeship training offered. 
 

 

 

REPORT PREPARED BY: A. Serrano DATE: April 21, 2015 
 
 

DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN: SIGNATURE: 

 
APPROVED BY CHAIR: R. Subden SIGNATURE: Via Email – May 12, 2015 
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Developmental Services Worker Program Advisory Committee 
School of Health & Community Services 

Minutes of April 9, 2015 
 
 

 

 
Developmental Services Worker Program Advisory Committee Membership List 
 

Name Title Organization 
Committee Chair 
*Terri Korkush 
 
External Committee Members 
 
*Leeanna Cliff 
 
Christine Robinson 
 
*Kim Nevilles 
 
Lisa Binns 
 
Wendy Holliday 
 
Doris Maniacco 
 
 
Cindy Mitchell 
 
 
*Jon Gelinas 
 
 
*Sue Pereira 
 
 
Ann Gyurmanczi 
 
*Clar Hayes 
 
Carolyn Shaw 
 
K. Bird 
 
*Jennifer Crilly-Glover 

 
Director of Operations 
 
 
 
Human Resources Manager 
 
Human Resources Manager 
 
Manager 
 
Manager 
 
CPP Supervisor 
 
Human Resources Manager 
 
 
Facilitator 
 
 
Adult Community Support 
Services Worker 
 
Director of Operations 
 
 
Area Manager 
 
Passport Coordinator 
 
Assessor 
 
CEO 
 
Coordinator of Volunteers 

  
Community Living Oshawa/Clarington 
 
 
 
Community Living Durham North 
 
Community Living Durham North 
 
Kerry’s Place Autism Services 
 
Kerry’s Place Autism Services 
 
Community Living Ajax/Pickering/Whitby 
 
Community Living Oshawa/ 
Clarington 
 
Durham Association Family 
Respite Services 
 
Family Services Durham 
 
 
The Participation House Project 
Durham Region 
 
Christian Horizons 
 
Tri-Community Support Services 
 
Developmental Services Ontario 
 
WindReach Farm 
 
Christian Horizons 
 

 
Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

Siobhan Hall 

Paige Anderson 

Chelsey McGrath-Gushue 

*Abigail Holmes 

 

 

 

Alumni 

First Year Student 

First Year Student 

Second Year Student 

 

 

 

DSW Program 

DSW Program 

DSW Program 

DSW Program 
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Elected Faculty/Staff   
Representatives 

*Dr. Judeline Innocent 

Carol Burke 

*Mary Helen Leddy 

Kay Corbier 

Karen Anderson 

 

 

Dean 

Associate Dean 

Faculty/Program Coordinator 

Faculty 

CICE Program Liaison 

 

 

School of Health & Community Services 

School of Health & Community Services 

DSW Program 

DSW Program 

Durham College 

 

 

Guests/Unelected 
Faculty/Staff  

Donna Boyd 

Mary Noble 

 

*Stephanie Tufts 

 

 

 

Program Officer/ConEd 

Employment Advisor/ 

Internship Coordinator 

Student Advisor/  

Practicum Officer 

 

 

 

Durham College 

Durham College 

 

Durham College 

 

 

 

KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1.    Minutes of October 9, 2014, were approved by L. Cliff and seconded by K. Nevilles.  Carried. 
2.    J. Innocent provided an update from D. Boyd from Continuing Education.  The Ministry denied our 

application for the DSW Apprenticeship.  The DSW PAC members are very disappointed and 
concerned.  Is there any action they can take i.e. Letter of Support?  Con.Ed. had identified a need for 
the apprenticeship.  Some of the barriers could have been Loyalist being a strong player and Learn 
Ontario may have played a part as well. 

3.     S. Pereira:  Participation House currently has a vacancy for Director of Operations.  Our students are 
encouraged to apply for two student positions; 8 weeks in length from June to mid/late August.  
Several of our students have had very successful placements so Participation House would be looking 
to possibly hire them.  Thank you from Participation House. 

4.     K. Nevilles:  Kerry’s Place has opened another apartment – 2 clients to 1 staff so they have done quite 
a bit of hiring.  Our students’ interview very well and there may be more opportunity for students in 
September.  Kerry’s Place hopes to open some sort of program in Peterborough.  They continue to 
hire part-time as full-time staff tend to stay for years and years. 

5.     L. Cliff:  received approval for some summer students which will be posted soon.  They have 
decreased their part-time positions by 40 people.  As of the end of February, they now have day 
service on the weekends.  They will be hiring more casual staff to cover full-time vacations, etc. at all 
18 locations.  They became a smoke free workplace as of April 1

st
.  Community Living North Durham 

has 7 of our first year students and 2 second year students.  They could take more students but 
transportation is an issue.     

6.     J. Gelinas:  As always housing is an issue with it being a crisis in Durham Region.  There is an 
increase in need for urgent response.  Passport dollars can be used.  Individuals can reach out to 
Family Services Durham and their Headquarters is in Whitby. 

7.    C. Hayes:  It has been an extremely busy year with Passport – 280 individuals or families have 
received funding or enhancement to present funding.  Part time employment is a great opportunity to 
provide direct support to a family who will pay $25 an hour.  Clar has offered to do small group 
mentoring.  There is a wait list for assessment in Durham of 200+ which is down from a year ago when 
it was around 450-500.  New guidelines were established last October which removed some things 
from the eligibility list such as food, electronic equipment, etc.  Important that people are prepped for 
their assessment interview with accurate information; do not underestimate the need of the client and 
apply for everything. 

8.     T. Korkush:  Community Living Oshawa/Clarington does not have any issues with our students.  They 
have four of the second year DSW students.  They have been going through negotiations all year – 
they now have a new collective agreement just in time to start negotiating again.  DSW programs do 
not have a lot of curriculum around employment and would like to see an employment component in 
the program.  Terri offered to guest lecture in the Fall. 

9.     J. Crilly-Glover:  They are in the process of making tweaks to their hiring process but individuals can 
be hired as casual relief and they apply for any internal postings right away.  There is a need for casual 
on-call work through school with one shift every 3 months and they can still keep their Summer and AGENDA PAGE   135



Christmas jobs.  Two facilities became one which reduces the number of students they can take as 
well as transportation is an issue – they need their G licence.  Feedback from Managers regarding our 
students has been awesome. 

10.   M.H. Leddy Program Updates:  K. Corbier has submitted the final report to the Ontario Human Capital 
Research and Innovation Fund for her research study entitled “The Experience of Simulation and the 
Perception of Preparedness of Developmental Service Worker Students to Practice in Field 
Placement”.  Kay will be presenting her findings later this month at the Durham College Research Day.  
She has also submitted the poster for presentation at the Ontario Simulation Network SIM-one 
conference which will be held in December.  Overall, the vast majority of students in the DSW program 
that responded to the surveys indicated that they were both satisfied with their experiences with the 
simulation activity and believe that it helped them to feel more prepared while they were completing 
their field placement.  Respondents agreed that the simulation provided them with the skills and 
knowledge that they required to perform their tasks in field placement and the simulation provided 
them with a variety of materials and activities to promote their learning about the competencies of a 
Development Services Worker.  The DSW Program has 39 students graduating in June, 40 Year 1 
students on track to enter their second year and 7 off stream students will be continuing the program 
on a part-time basis.  We continue to expand on the variety of field placement opportunities we are 
able to provide student with new partnerships established as follows:  Courtice North Public School, 
Ontario Deaf Blind Services, Access Community Support Services and Kennedy House Youth 
Services (Developmental Services Branch).  Several of the schools we partner with have also agreed 
to support students in inclusive educational placements in addition to their specialized classrooms.  A 
meeting has been scheduled with Jay Fisher, Coordinator of the FastStart entrepreneurial training 
program for later this Spring to discuss support to DSW students who have an interest in establishing a 
private practice or small business. 

11.   J. Innocent updates:  We are seeing a decrease as a whole in enrolment across the Province.  High 
schools are closing which has a ripple effect on us but there is a new trend with a spike in Second 
Career applicants.  Durham College is establishing relationships internationally i.e. affiliations and 
pathways with Universities in Ireland, England.  This is opening the door so that students can do their 
placements abroad.  We encourage international students to come in so that we can diversify and 
enrich the programs within the College.  Durham College is now offering a FastStart program which 
provides an opportunity for students to become involved in Entrepreneurship - more information will be 
provided as it unrolls.  The School of Health & Community Services is hosting a Community 
Appreciation Event on June 10

th
 – invitations will be going out shortly.  A flyer from the Centre of Food 

promoting their culinary classes was provided to all members. 

12.   A. Holmes is in her second year currently completing her 7 week block placement.  Five students have 
got jobs through their field placement.  Not having a driver’s licence is certainly a barrier for students.  
Otherwise all three placements have been fantastic learning experiences. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1.  J. Innocent will meet with D. Boyd to talk about the denial of the DSW Apprenticeship application and the 
response received from the DSW PAC Membership. 

2.  A copy of K. Corbier’s Research poster will be sent to all PAC members. 

3.  Next Meeting – October 8, 2015, 9:30–11:30 am in the SW106 Boardroom. 

4.  Adjournment 11:35 a.m. 

 

  

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OCTOBER 9, 2014 MEETING 

1.  D. Boyd was unable to attend today’s meeting so J. Innocent provided an update on the Apprenticeship 
in her absence. 

  

 
REPORT PREPARED BY:          Sandra Thomson           DATE:       May 4, 2015 
 

DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN:  Judeline Innocent SIGNATURE:     
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR:             Terri Korkush SIGNATURE:    
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Electronics Advisory Committee 
School of Science and Engineering Technology 

Minutes of April 1, 2015 
 

 
Electronics  Membership List 
 
Note:  an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for this meeting. 

 
 

Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair 

Dave Palachik 

External Committee Members 

 

Installation Manager, Central 
Canada 

  

Stanley Security 

*Hooman Nabovati 

*Jean-Marc Fauteux 

Pierre Hinse 

Michael Thibeault 

Brian Wright 

 

 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

*Kyle Aus 

*Ken Gardner 

*Nathan Mueller 

Research Associate Elect. & Comp. Eng. 

Electrical Engineering Manager 

Engineer, Wind Tunnel 

Senior Mgr. Maintenance Staffing 

Training Technician Control 

 

Year/Program/Alumni  

 

3 

3 

2 

University of Toronto 

ABI Automation Ltd. 

ACE 

Darlington Nuclear Generation 

Ontario Power Generation 

 

 

Elected Faculty/Staff   
Representatives 

Name 

*Louis Bertrand 

*Lauren Fuentes 

*Phil Jarvis 

*Pravin Patel 

*Sue Todd 

*Dave Schuett 

*Tony van Schyndel  

 

 

 

 

Title 

Professor 

Professor 

Professor 

Coordinator/ Professor 

Dean 

Professor 

Professor 

 

        

 

 

Organization 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

 

 

 

Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff  

Name 

 

 

 

 

 

Title 

 

 

 

 

 

Organization 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 AGENDA PAGE   137



 

KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1.  Welcome and Introductions: 

  Sue Todd acted as chair and welcomed members to the meeting.  A chair will be elected at tonight’s meeting. 

 

2. Additions to the Agenda:  Program of Studies. 

 

3.  Acceptance of the Agenda:  Accepted. 

 

4. Previous Minutes:  The minutes of the October 29, 2014 were approved by D. Palachik, seconded by L. Dillon. 

 

5. Business/Actions Arising from the Previous Minutes 

Updates have been reflected in the minutes under “Status of Recommendations”.   

 

6. Discussion Items 

 6.1 External Membership/Information Sharing - Industry members reported the following:  

 It is hard to find someone who fits into design. 

 Machine safety is important. 

 A new low temperature Microelectronic fabrication process is developed.  The technology can be used to 
implement flexible (and also printable) electronic devices and circuits. 

 In the security area, it is everywhere and is very busy.   Four employees moved on to better jobs.  It does 

help to have a technical background in sales. 

 Analogue is losing out to digital communication. 

 Companies are going IP and Networking as a standard electronics in security.  Security and automation is 
going beyond information technology.  They are trying to tie data networks into security.  I.T. is tying into 
security and into the computer world versus wire signals. 

 ISE West - Security Association is the largest show in the world for security.   Security/security integration 
and automation will be the focus. Some “hot” new items will be brought back form the show for the next 
meeting.    

 University Research Project – Is there any opportunity to work with University of Toronto?  H. Nabovati will 
think about this. 

 
6.2 Advisory Chair Position 

Dave Palachik submitted his name to be the chair of the Advisory Committee.  This was accepted by the advisory 
committee. 

 
6.3 College/School Update 
6.3.1 Ireland - S. Todd provided the following update on her visit to Ireland noting that Ireland’s learning style is 

similar to ours at Galway.  The “Sligo” Institute does things mostly through simulation, but faculty can troubleshoot 
what students are doing.  It is an excellent opportunity for our students to go and study in Ireland.  There are 14 
different institutes in Ireland with 10 levels of education (level 7-college, level 8-degree, level 9-masters, level 10-
PhD).  Jonathan Warner, a former electronics graduate is doing an on-line degree in Ireland now.  There is 
accreditation in Ireland as they work through the Washington Accord and after two years can apply for professional 
designation.  Cost is approximately $10,000 Canadian dollars.  
S. Todd encouraged the faculty team to set up a global classroom for technical report presentations.   
6.3.2 Program of Studies – 2015-2016 

The following new courses have been added or modified:  TECH 1130 – Technical Report Writing for Science and 
Technology and CARR 2130 - Career Development and Planning.  These two course outlines will be developed by 
the School of Science and Engineering Technology for Science and Engineering students.  Other changes are 
Programming for Technology I has been added to semester 2 and Programming for Technology II replaces C 
Programming in Semester 4.  Electronic Circuits I and Electricity II will be 1 lecture hour less to make room for the 
new courses.  Circuit Analysis and Microprocessors will be hybrid in semester 5. 1 hour has been added in semester 
5 (there will be no exam but students will be required to complete a final project).  
MPRO 1131 – P. Jarvis to touch base with M. Calhoun regarding Microprocessors I lab allocation of 2 hours, with no 
face to face time for lecture.  The lab portion is hybrid now.   
6.3.3 AEET 6101 - Adv. Electronics–Emerging Technologies – This has been moved from semester 6 to 

semester 5 with 2 faculty teaching it in the lab.  The class will need to be split for this course.  This is a joint project 
between Oshawa and Whitby Campuses that relates to the Whitby Smart House.   
6.3.4 Whitby Smart House Technology IT Project 

For Advanced Electronics-Emerging Technologies, Arduino YUN’s, Raspberry Pi’s and other type of controllers will 
interface with different sensors and actuators (the loT things).  Students will develop applications for various tablets 
platforms that will monitor and control these loT things between the Whitby and Oshawa campuses by means of 
using cloud services to store/gather the collated data. 
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(6.3.4 Whitby Smart House Technology IT Project continued) 
There will be robotic arms in the house (Whitby) and in H223 (Oshawa) that will be controlled remotely and locally.    
Cameras have been donated from Stanley Security.  D. Palachik noted that he would like to give the college IP 
based sensors, an axis control system/intercom and burglary system in IP.  In the future, cameras will be installed in 
the greenhouse.  Signs will need to be posted to indicate “under surveillance”. 
6.3.5 Telecommunications - T. van Schyndel provided the following update and some of the challenges: 

The course includes Bluetooth theory in Telecommunications I.  There is no suitable test equipment for measuring 
Bluetooth or WIFI signals in Telecommunications.  In terms of issues with the radio kits, the test equipment supports 
the lab experiments.  The test equipment is restricted in the Telecommunications lab due to the student numbers 
and the number of pieces of equipment to support the students for the lab.  The course includes 25% Brazilian and 
Indian students with the rest being domestic students.  The international students do not have the hands-on skills to 
bring them up to the level of domestic students and a lot of equipment was damaged due to this.  International 
students did not have any equipment experience as the courses taken in India were only theory based with no lab 
component.  The international students do not have any experience In “C” programming.  Students need to learn to 
solder as well.  It was noted that we do not differentiate between the domestic and international students.  It was 
suggested that faculty look at putting on a mini orientation course for the international students to help decrease the 
amount of electronics equipment being broken, or raise the bar for the international students.  The electronics team 
has created a parts kit for international students that will provide them with the same tools that the domestic students 
have.    
H. Nabovati mentioned that Bluetooth is good experience and that we need to follow the rapid advancement of 
Telecommunications.  Simple simulations should be added to the course (i.e. LabVIEW, Advanced Design System, 
Sonnet Lite) to analyze simple devices (e.g. transmission linesm matching networks).  The Learning Outcomes in 
Telecommunications will be reviewed and the faculty will look at getting the equipment that is needed for the course 
and provide S. Todd with the information.   
Humber College presents a one year graduate certificate program on Wireless Telecommunication.  To be eligible 
for admission, students must have a bachelor degree in a related discipline.  The curriculum and the lab instruments 
are developed and kept up-to-date with collaboration of the industrial partners.  The program includes the following 
courses: Semester 1: Applied Electromagnetics, RF Technology, Telecommunication Systems, Data Networks, 
Microwave and Fibre Optics.  Semester 2: Broadband Communications and Security, Mobile Technologies, Wireless 
Data networks, LTE Core, Wireless Project and ITIL. 
 6.3.5 Computer Networking I – D. Schuett reported that in the level I course, that Raspberry Pi and Bluetooth were 

included and it linked in semester 4.  This is the only wireless that the Electro-mechanical Technology students 
would get versus the Electronic Technology students who take Telecommunications I and II.  Students are 
discussing using GSM modules with Raspberry Pi to make a cell phone networked project.  The IT stream will be 
looked at for analogue principles and be digitized with hands-on wireless with Telecommunications II.  The faculty 
will complete an annual curriculum review this spring for Telecommunications and Networking so that the Electronic 
Technicians go more in depth into the theory. 
6.3.6 Canadian Council of Technicians and Technologists and Accreditation – Members felt that this is not 

important for hiring.  Employers look at what was taken at college when hiring.  This may be more of a trend in IT 
than Electronics. 

 6.3.7 Research Update 

P. Patel noted that the college would like to send in a proposal to the Federal Government for two million dollars for 
a 5 year grant.  It would have to be a solid proposal for a project.  The idea suggested was “Improving Patient Health 
Care and Mobility Issues Using Contextually Aware Devices”.   Advisory members can send P. Patel and email 
about what the context would consist of and Pravin will send them the form to be completed. 

 
7. Student Voice 

 The student representative noted that he is happy to hear the challenges in Telecommunications and hear 
the possible changes that will be implemented.   

 Students receive their marked work back or emails from professors much quicker than another college. 

 Administratively in terms of paperwork it went smoothly at Durham.  Transfer credits can be a challenge 
sometimes. 

 Not all professors use DC Connect.  At times, labs are posted in many different areas. D. Schuett offered to 
do professional development for faculty on DC Connect. 

 The Communication for Career Development and the Field Placement course were almost identical courses.  
Communications II and the seminars were also very close in topics.  How to write an email is too basic in a 
Communications course.  How to make a meat loaf was covered in one of the Communication courses.  

 L. Bertrand mentioned that in Technical Writing students got a lot of feedback in this technical course.  Some 
technical reports that students submitted were very good and taught students how to do technical writing.  
Students seemed to learn more in this course and be able to apply it than in the Communications courses 
offered in the Program of Studies.    

 The School of Science and Engineering Technology will be writing the course outlines for the two new 
Communication courses.  The Field Placement workshops and the two communication courses need to be 
mapped.  W. Smith is good at this. 

 Labs were too easy in Networking I and II.  Students need to be pushed harder.    

 In Electronic Circuits there were some lab issues with bread boarding with some basic circuit issues. 

 Computer Applications and Simulation – A lot of time was spent on Microsoft Excel. 

 Computer Programming – A lot of time was spent on Scratch. The research experience has been really good 
for students.  April 30

th
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 International students not having the basics was mentioned.   
 The Engineering Society Club is all Durham College students at the moment.  This club likes to run 

workshops.  Topics such as breadboard, basic CAD soldering, basic test equipment or games from the CIRE 
course could be put on.   S. Todd noted that Kenny Gardner can remain on the advisory committee as a 
representative from the Engineering Society Club.   

 
8. Continuing Education - Joy Lavergne, program officer is looking for a night school teacher for Electricity. 

 
10. Next Meeting - Wednesday, October 28, 2015, 6:00 p.m. 

    Kyle Aus and Kenny Gardner to be invited to future meetings. 
 

11. Adjournment – 8:30 p.m. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS – April 1, 2015 Meeting 

1. University Research Project – H. Nabovati to let S. Todd know if there is an opportunity to work with the 
University of Toronto.   

2.  Whitby Greenhouse – L. Fuentes to initiate signs to be made which will be posted in the Greenhouse so that 
 people know that the area is “under surveillance”. 

3.  Faculty to look at putting on a mini orientation course for the international students to help decrease the 
amount of electronics equipment being broken, or raise the bar for the international students.   

4. Telecommunications/Networking – Faculty to review Learning Outcomes and any equipment needed for the 
Telecommunications courses.  This will include an annual curriculum review for the courses to include more in 
depth theory for the Electronic Technicians.  

5.  DC Connect Training – D. Schuett to look at providing some training to faculty who are not as familiar as they 
should be with the posting marks section to students.  

6. Look at mapping Field Placement workshops with the two Communication courses.  S. Todd will see if this is 
feasible with W. Smith. 

7. Advisory Committee Members – Kyle Aus (student representative) and Kenny Gardner (as a representative 
from the Engineering Society Club) to remain on the committee. 

 

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OCTOBER 29, 2014 

1. P. Patel will prepare a report for the next meeting showing what courses have safety covered in them and he 
will touch base with B. Wright on the 4 hour safety awareness course. The Electronics faculty to look at adding 
more Health and Safety into courses and look at including Safety Regulations into the Industrial Controls 
course.  The faculty to look at an on-line safety quiz in the spring of 2015. ON-GOING 
WHMIS needs to be put in the printed circuit lab.  This needs to be documented in the CAD 1133 outline.   
P. Patel to look at the house located at the Whitby Campus being linked to the Advanced Technology course 
(see 6.3.4).  

2.  D. Palachik to get a Letter of Understanding for the Smart Technology Building initiative. PENDING 

3. D. Palachik to create the necessary skill set for people needing to be hired for the spring 2015 meeting. 
PENDING   

4.  L. Dillon to send out the Student Profile and Key Performance Indicator information with the minutes.  

5.  Career Night 2015 – Food and Beverage will be included as a discussion item. COMPLETED 

6. The student representative will contact OACETT about doing a session with the graduates.  PENDING 

7. L. Dillon to invite T. van Schyndel and D. Schuett to the spring 2015 meeting regarding discussion on the 
Telecommunications courses. COMPLETED 

 

 

  

   

REPORT PREPARED BY:  L. Dillon DATE:    May 29, 2015 
 

DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN:  S. Todd SIGNATURE:    
 
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR:  D. Palachik SIGNATURE:    Dave Palachik 

 

 
 
 

AGENDA PAGE   140



Environmental Technology Advisory Committee 
School of Science & Engineering Technology 

Minutes of May 7, 2015 
 

 

 

Environmental Technology Advisory Committee Membership List 
 
Note: an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for this meeting. 
 

Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair   

*Amanda Huxter Environmental Specialist Covanta Durham York Renewable Energy L.P. 

External Committee Members Title Organization 

Kevin Bailey Environmental Compliance Cameco Corporation 

Mary Jo Bronson Head of Science, Maxwell Heights Durham District School Board  

Adam Cochrane Chemical Technician Ontario Power Generation 

*Philip Gleeson Geochemist SGS  

Lorelei Hepburn President The Environmental Factor Inc. 

Amy Hogan Climate Change Coordinator Regional Municipality of Durham 

*Stewart McLellan President Cardinal Environmental Consulting Services 
Ltd. 

Dan Moore Aquatic Resource Analyst Central Lake Ontario Conservation Authority 

*Tim Mullings Environmental Due Diligence 
Group Manager 

Golder Associates Ltd. 

Rebecca Peters Superintendant, Radiation 
Protection, Environnent & Quality 

Cameco Corporation 

*Kyle Schumacher Technician Miller Waster Systems 

*Sandra Thomas District Supervisor (Acting) Ontario Ministry of Environment 

Elected Student/Alumni Representatives Yr/Program/Alumni Organization 

*Samantha Moore 

*Erica Lacina 

 

1
st
  year Environmental 

1
st
 year Environmental 

 

Durham College 

Durham College 

 

Elected Faculty/Staff Representatives Title Organization 

*Joyce Myers Program Coordinator School of Science & Engineering Technology 

Ross Stevenson Professor School of Science & Engineering Technology 

*Sue Todd Dean School of Science & Engineering Technology 

John White Professor School of Science & Engineering Technology 

*Katherine Wilson Professor School of Science & Engineering Technology 

Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff Title Organization 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1. Welcome and Introductions:  A. Huxter welcomed members and asked everyone to introduce 
themselves. 
 

2. Additions to the Agenda: Career Night in September 2015. 
 

3. Acceptance of the Agenda: S. Todd accepted, J. Myers seconded 
 

4. Approval of Minutes from October 30, 2014:  A. Huxter approved the previous minutes.  
 

5. Business Arising from Previous Minutes:  All recommendations have been fulfilled, with co-op 
and ongoing discussion (paid co-op vs. placement). 

 
6. Discussion Items: 

 
6.1)  External Membership Information Sharing:  S. McLellan discussed with the group that he 
would prefer the placement model, rather than the co-op model if he were taking students into his 
company.  The work environment can be a dangerous one, and without consistent exposure and 
training, there is little educational and experiential value.  S. McLellan also discussed the quality 
of the resumes that he is receiving from our grads is disappointing.  Most are inarticulate and 
difficult to read as they are filled with short forms, slang and ineffective structuring.  He 
recommends stressing that there is only one chance to impress a future employer.  S. McLellan 
also discussed that there is now a high demand for people who have AERMOD experience.  
There has been a rise of almost 30%; by 2020 he believes that everyone will be required to be 
AERMOD certified.  He feels that the students need experience with AutoCAD; it is very difficult 
to find students with AutoCAD exposure.  S. Todd proposed the idea of having grads take Con-
Ed classes in AutoCAD & GIS if it would help them.  K. Wilson believes that the current AutoCAD 
should be sufficient experience as it has been re-aligned to better teach students. 
 
T. Mullens agrees that the quality of student resumes are low and inarticulate.  Students should 
highlight anything they feel would highlight experience.  In regards to placement, he would like 
the students to show more initiative and drive – distinguishing how they are different from others. 
One day per work week is not ideal but believes that it can still be done as a way to continue a 
good relationship with Durham College.  S.Todd inquired if Durham College were to send student 
to the company, what time would be best.  T. Mullens feels that any time after the 1

st
 quarter 

would be ideal. 
 
K. Schumacher is pleased with the placement students that he has worked with.  A one day per 
week model would work for his employer as there is not always things available for students to 
do; planning for one day per week is easier than for five days.  He also remarked that they did not 
receive any student resumes this year.  K. Wilson will look for someone to recommend.   
 
A. Huxter says that once new employees are hired, they go through internal training, plus they 
are required to be eligible for “Class 4” registration.  S. Todd inquired if Covanta would be 
interested in a student from the Power Engineering program from Skilled Trades school in 
Whitby.   A. Huxter said that they were in talks about acquiring a summer student.  Their 
experience with a co-op student from Durham was positive. 
 
S. Thomas says that climate change is a big push in the government.  There is a discussion 
paper out and many consultations regarding climate change policy.  The ministry is becoming 
very policy driven, students are recommended to be able to understand and interpret policies. 
The College needs to stress the importance of reading and writing correctly.  Industry is getting 
more commercialized, with major changes to pesticide regulations (watershed, effluent testing) 
and regulating agricultural communities.  Carbon credits and emissions trading are unclear, the 
four year agenda is going to be completely overhauled.  Carbon credit policy may increase 
opportunities for ENVT grads to work doing carbon emission audits. 
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6.2)  College/School Update and Program Update:   
 
6.2.1)  Retirements:  John White and Teresa Sweetman are retiring this year and the School of 
Science & Engineering Technology will be conducting interviews to replace them.  The postings 
have gone up for internal candidates; the next move will be to post externally.  S. Todd also 
added that the school is still looking for part-time professors. 
 
6.2.2) MOE – Water Quality Analyst Certification:  The group discussed the possibility of the 
Ministry of the Environment recognizing the Environmental students as certified Water Quality 
Analysts as the training that they undertake meets the requirements for that certification.  
 
6.2.3) Enrolment:  Program has seemed to have flat-lined, and no one is sure why.  There were 
14 enrolments for first year and 2 fast track applicants.  Fast track is filling the 3

rd
 year program 

seats; retention is poor between 1
st
 and 2

nd
 year; there were 24 students that started in 1

st
 year 

and only 12 made it to graduation.  Of the 125 applicants that applied last year, 77 declined when 
they received their offer.  A large portion of students selected Environmental as their second 
choice.  J. Myers said that losing students is not unusual for 1

st
 year.  S. Todd discussed how at 

the Heads of Technology seminar that she attended, the subject of student retention was brought 
up and strategies were discussed to keep students in the programs.  S. Moore brought up that 
the qualifications and pre-requisites for the Environmental program are not as high as other 
programs, perhaps that draws in a student that are not suited for the program.  S. Todd 
recognized that Fleming College is a major competitor with Durham College for Environmental 
students.  
 
6.2.4) Facility Tours:  S. Todd asked the external members if they would be interested in 
providing the students with tours of their individual facilities.  Students have visited a wastewater 
facility and a chemical facility with success.  The consensus is that there is value in showing 
students what to expect and exposing them to what a real facility looks like.  
 

7. Student Voice:  The student representatives felt that they had a rough first semester; could not 
complete the environmental science lab as there were no samples available due to the weather.  
They asked if it was possible to spend more time outside; the marketing for the program shows a 
lot of students outside and they were surprised that there was so much “inside work”.   J. Myers 
said that our program emphasizes the connection between environmental chemistry and biology 
courses.  Many grads get jobs that are related to chemistry. 
 

8. ECO Canada Accreditation:  S. Todd proposed the idea to the group and discussed how some 
other schools are offering accreditation; is it something that Durham should be looking into?  The 
group discussed that, while there is always some value in the school being accredited; personal 
accreditations are much better for the students.    
 

9. Technical Writing Course:  A new Technical Writing course is in development.  S. Todd invited 
the memberships to add their thoughts and recommendations for the development of this course. 
S. Todd then asked the membership if they could submit any templates that they use to herself or 
to J. Myers so that they may be used as a teaching tool.  Some suggestions that we discussed 
was a SOP from Covanta and ministry guidelines. 
 

10. Career Development Course:  This course is designed to assist students with deciding their 
future career goals, building skills with resume writing, interviewing skills and job searching.  This 
will address the feedback that has been received by employers that resumes that students are 
sending are poor quality and their interview skills need to be worked on.  Any additional 
suggestions/recommendations are welcomed. 
 

11. Project Management Course (Fall 2015):  This course is currently being developed to teach 
students proper project management.  As it stands, the course will flow as a 2 hour per week 
course with one hour as a lecture and one hour in the computer lab.  Some components will be 
Excel, MS Project, proper minute taking, proposals, etc.  A. Huxter said that work at Covanta is all 
project management based; the addition of using checklists and milestone lists would be helpful. 
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12. Additional Agenda Items:  
Career Night – Career night will take place in September (tentatively 29

th
, will check to see if 

there are labs running that night); K. Wilson will provide focus; volunteers are needed to make the 
night successful.  Ideally, there will be returning grads to tell their stories regarding where they 
have gone with their education for 10 – 15 minutes; employers would talk about what they are 
looking for in a future employee.  The night would also stress communication, accountability and 
professionalism. 

 

13. Future Meeting Date:  Thursday, November 19
th
 , 2015 at 5:00 p.m. 

 
14. Adjournment:  7:20 p.m. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1. Ross Stevenson to email membership in regards to changing policies on agriculture.  ACTION 
BY:  R. Stevenson 

2. S. Barrett to pass on Pam Stoneham’s contact information to A. Huxter for potential START 
student at Covanta.  ACTION BY:  S. Barrett – complete 

3. Facility tours for students to be investigated and report back in regards to the possibility.  
ACTION BY: Membership  

 

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM October 2014 MEETING 

1. Invite approximately five volunteers to career night, and inform them of the date.  ACTION BY:  
T. Mullings and K. Wilson - ongoing 

2. Email to Katherine Wilson any suggestions for Project Management course.  ACTION BY: 
Membership 

3. Email Katherine Wilson suggestions regarding soil sampling.  ACTION BY:  T. Mullings 
4. Look at Communications outlines.  ACTION BY:  J. Myers, M. Calhoun - complete 
5. Speak to Maureen Calhoun about GIS issues.  ACTION BY:  J. Myers 
6. Report back on the placement, co-op models.  ACTION BY:  Program Team - complete 
7. Email Katherine Wilson if there is any interest for students to work during the summer for a two 

week period.  ACTION BY:  Membership – ongoing 
 

 
REPORT PREPARED BY:  Sarah Barrett              DATE:  May 26

th
, 2015 

 

DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN:  Susan Todd SIGNATURE:   
 
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR:              DATE:   May 28, 2015 
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Fine Art Advisory Committee 
School of Media, Art & Design 

Minutes of May 6, 2015 

 

 
Fine Art Membership List 
 

Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair 

Linda Jansma 

 

External Committee Members 

 

Curator 

  

Robert McLaughlin Gallery 

Anne Callaghan 

James Campbell 

Curator/Artist 

Executive Director 

Freelance 

Visual Arts Centre 

Darlene Cole Artist Freelance 

Jeremy Desjardine 

Jessica Field 

High School Teacher 

Artist 

Bowmanville H. S. 

Freelance 

*Patrick Macaulay 

*Sally Thurlow 

*Francis Muscat 

Todd Tremeer 

*Olex Wlasenko 

 

Director, Visual Arts 

Professional Artist 

Artist/Professor 

Artist 

Curator 

Harbour Front Gallery 

Iris Group 

Freelance/Durham College 

Freelance 

Whitby Station Gallery 

 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

*Sara Bugden 

Kevin Cormier 

*James McFarland 

*Kristen Sali 

 

 

Year/Program/Alumni 

3
rd

 Year Fine Art 

3
rd

 Year Fine Art 

3
rd

 Year Fine Art 

2
nd

 Year Fine Art 

 

 

 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Elected Faculty/Staff   
Representatives 

Name 

*Herb Klassen 

*Charlotte Hale 

*Sean McQuay 

Greg Murphy  

 

 

Title 

Coordinator, FAD 

Associate Dean 

Coordinator, Fine Art 

Dean 

 

 

Organization 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

 

Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff  

Name 

Donna Boyd 

*Susan Campbell 

*Stuart Ellis 

*Steven Evans 

*Darren Fisher 

Jo-Ann Jordan 

Laurie LaFrance 

 

 

 

Title 

Continuing Education Office 

Professor 

Professor 

Professor 

Technical Support Specialist 

Professor 

Professor 

 

 

Organization 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1. Acceptance of Minutes of November 26, 2014 was moved by S. McQuay and seconded by S. 
Evans.  Carried. 

2. Acceptance of the agenda was moved by H. Klassen and seconded by D. Fisher.  Carried. 
3. Industry Trends:  P. Macaulay spoke to the program’s context at Durham College, and asked 

for an overview.  It was shared that the second and third year students are refining their fine art 
skills as well as elements of design.  The Harbourfront Centre’s role in the GTA with students in 
the fine art industry was discussed.  Cross-discipline artists is an emerging trend.   There is a 
need for support for artists as well as institutions to help support those artists.  Teaching 
students how to present themselves more “aggressively” needs to be stressed more in the 
classroom.  Training people to be “makers” as opposed to being artists who just talk about 
being makers was discussed.  Foundational years are very important to students who are 
entering in this field. 
Whitby Station Gallery shared that this is the 8

th
 year for the juried art show to be showcased at 

the gallery and O. Wlasenko feels this will be a record year for the students.  Curators 
searching out new artists to be shown in the galleries are looking for new work on-line.  
Teaching students how to show their work on-line and the ability to promote themselves is 
important.  Recognizing the difference between a commercial gallery and a public gallery was 
discussed.  There was some positive feedback on the Field trips and Visiting lecturer’s class.  
Would like to see more communication and presentation skills, with an emphasis in the third 
year as they will need to have the writing skills for artist brochures, and self-promotion.  “Person 
to person communication skills” need to be advanced more in the program, with less focus on 
the web skills as the generations today are very much technical savvy in the area.  

4. College/Program Updates:  Across the post-secondary sector, enrollment is lower due to a 
demographic shift in high school age students.  However, there is a marked increase in 
university students enrolling in college programs.  This creates a very good new learning 
environment and an interesting dynamic.  Durham is healthy with good relationships and 
pathways between our local universities that are continuing grow.  The School of Media, Art& 
Design has had a number of graduate certificates in development and has been focused on 
continuing to raise the profile of the school in the GTA as a destination of choice for an 
exceptional educational experience in our creative sector programs.  S. McQuay spoke about 
the ongoing success of our two annual student exhibitions - scholastically and as a visual 
recruitment tool, and again, how this success could someday relate to the enlightened addition 
in the curriculum of a student (and faculty) operated gallery space which would showcase our 
program and provide an educational community connection vis-a-vis student run exhibits and 
public workshops etc.  Ideally in a visible downtown (Oshawa) location. 

5. Continuing Education Update:  The Continuing education rep. was unavailable.   
6. Student Voice:  The students shared that the web development course was not beneficial, a 

suggestion to move it from second year to third year last semester was made as the students 
would have more work to form a better showcase on the website was noted.  Next steps for the 
students is varied:  some want to teach in a program such as Fine Art and well as being a 
practicing artist.  Advanced degree programs are also an option for many. Would like to see a 
small separate student gallery off campus started.   

 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1. Recommend that the Program of Studies will be sent out to the members of the PAC for review.  
ACTION:  Administrative Coordinator 

2. Recommend that the Web Development course be reviewed and possibly moved to third year.  
ACTION:   Program Team 

3. Recommend that the communication skills be evaluated in how it is delivered within the 
curriculum.  ACTION:  Program Team 

4. Recommend that an off-site gallery is explored with student involvement.  ACTION:  Dean 
5. Meeting adjourned at 7:45 p.m. 
6. Next meeting – Thursday, November 5, 2015, room on the Oshawa Campus with tour of B112. 
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STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM  November 26, 2014 MEETING 

1. New members were recommended to the Dean and approved for the PAC committee. 
2. The length a member can be on hiatus from a specific advisory committee is still being reviewed 

with the Board secretary.  
3. First aid kits and fire extinguishers to be installed in the studio and labs will be discussed with the 

Health and Safety committee. 
4. Outside venting to be installed in B112 is still being discussed with the facilities department. 
5. Having the next meeting in the B112 studio will be brought back to the Dean for discussion. 

 

 
 
REPORT PREPARED BY:  Alanna Desaillier                  DATE:  May 6, 2015 
 

DRAFT REVIEWED BY ASSOC. DEAN:  C. Hale                  SIGNATURE:     
 

APPROVED BY COORDINATOR:                   SIGNATURE:    via email 
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Fire & Life Safety Systems Technician Program Advisory Committee 
School of Justice & Emergency Services 

Minutes of May 13, 2015 
 

 
Fire Life Safety Systems Technician Program Advisory Committee Membership List 
 

Name Title Organization 
Committee Chair 
 
*Kirk Harris 
 
External Committee Members 
 
*Evan Bombiono 
Carmen Bozzo 
*Ray Collins 
 
Terry Dorgan 
 
Julie Hutchinson Marzinotto  
Steve Penna 
Paul Schuster 
David Toland 
Rick Kurelo 
Jarod Regan 
Robert Williams 
Beth Weckman 
*Mike Zukov 
 

 
 
President 
 
 
 
Head of Fire Alarm Inspect. 
Central Region Sales & Op Mgt. 
Service Supervisor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contractor 
Operations Manager 
Senior Fire Alarm Technician 
 
Professor 
 
 

 
 
Harex Inc. 
 
 
 
Simplex and Grinnell 
Chubb Edwards 
Electrician Mircomr 
Engineered Systems 
International Brotherhood of 
Electrical Workers 
ARC Fire Services 
 
PC Fire Code 
Microm Group of Companies 
Trinity Fire Protection Inc. 
Harex Inc. 
Harex Inc 
University of Waterloo 
Arencon Inc. 
 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

 

Vince Tripp 

 

Year/Program/Alumni  

 

 

Alumni 

 

 

 

Durham College 

Elected Faculty/Staff   
Representatives 

 

*Stephanie Ball 

*Randy Panesar 

*Marie Sforza 

 

Title 

 

Dean 

Professor 

Professor/Coordinator 

 

 

Organization 

 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff  
 
None 
 

 
Title 
 
 

 
Organization 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1. Minutes of November 5, 2014 were approved by R. Panesar and seconded by M. Zukov.  CARRIED 

2. Industry Trends:  There are not enough graduates from this program for all the job opportunities in the 
field.  There is a great interest amongst many of the industry specialists in providing co-op opportunities.  

3. Program of Studies Changes:  Several of the changes include the addition of another lab course and 

the courses, Sprinkler Design, Critical Environments and Fire Alarm Design.  The Mass Notifications will 

be dropped. 

4. FLST Lab:  Several improvements have been implemented into the new lab.  Tyco expressed an 

interest in conducting a ’60 minute’ segment using our lab. 

5. Start-Up Orientation:  Several members indicated an interest to coming as guest speaker. 

6. Co-Op Opportunities Spring/Summer 2015 and 2016:  The industry does provide co-op opportunities 
to students during the summer period.  The students would have the opportunity to continue working for 
the host industry on a paid co-op basis which may lead to full time employment.   

7. Field Placement:  The industries are willing to come to the college to interview students for potential 
placement and job opportunities.  However, there seems to be a lack of professionalism and 
unprofessional attire by many of the students at the interviews.  The external members would prefer the 
students do more placement hours.  They would also like to have students do co-op placement in the 
summer as well as a block placement where they are at the job site each day for a period of time rather 
than two days a week. 

8. Marketing:  A letter of endorsement will be sent out to various PAC members requesting a quote on 
employment opportunities and sent to all applicants in order to increase enrolment.  

9. Career Fair:  We will continue to host a career fair with industry specialists being invited to participate. 

10. Enrolment:  To date, there are 29 confirmed applicants for fall 2015.  The program is also being 
promoted to the students in the Pre-Service Firefighter program. 

11. Employment:  Many of our graduates from the program have full time employment.  There are 12 
students graduating this June. 

12. Election of Chair:  E. Bombiono was elected as the new Chair of this committee. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

1.  Marketing the program by getting endorsements from PAC members will be explored by R. Panesar 
and S. Ball. 

2. Members interested in being guest speakers are to email R. Panesar on their availability and topic for 
the Start-Up Orientation session. 

3. A pathway between the Fire & Life Systems and Firefighter programs will be pursued by R. Panesar and 
S. Ball. 

4. The details for a formal agreement for the use of FLST lab by Tyco will be formulated by R. Panesar and 
S. Ball. 

5. Students will be canvassed by R. Panesar for representation on this committee for the fall meeting. 

 

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM November 5, 2014  MEETING 

1. The advisory committee members will be contacted by R. Panesar about their participation in the FLST 
Career Fair.  COMPLETED 

2. Further discussion and investigation on extending the length of field placement will be pursued by R. 
Panesar. ONGOING 

3. Bridging with Waterloo will continue to be pursued by S. Ball and R. Panesar.  ONGOING 

4. Further discussion and investigation on a specialized third year of the program will be pursued by R. 
Panesar and S. Ball.  ONGOING 

5. Committee members are asked to forward news items and/or job postings to R. Panesar.  ONGOING 

   

 
REPORT PREPARED BY:  M. Sforza/M. Bartosik           DATE:    May 15, 2015 

DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN:  S. Ball                             SIGNATURE:    ____ _______ 

APPROVED BY CHAIR:  K. Harris SIGNATURE:     ____ _____ 
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Foundations in Art & Design Advisory Committee 

School of Media, Art & Design 
Minutes of May 5, 2015 

 

 
Foundations in Art & Design Membership List 
 

Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair 

*Dani Crosby 

 

External Committee Members 

 

Illustrator/Professor 

  

Freelance/Durham College 

*Richard Brown 

*Neville Clarke 

Artist 

Artist/Professor 

Freelance 

Centennial & Seneca  

Lynn Dooly-Marek Artist/Professor Freelance/Durham College 

*Darren Fisher 

*Laura Hair-Desveaux 

*Brian Ho Sang 

*Laurie Lafrance 

Donna Raetsen-Kemp 

Margaret Rodgers 

Artist/Mac Technologist 

Artist/Professor 

Freelance Designer 

Artist/Professor 

Executive Director 

Artist 

Durham College 

FreelanceDurham/ College 

Monsterpilot 

Durham College 

Station Gallery 

Freelance 

*Peter Smith Artist/Professor Freelance/Durham College 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

 

Jamie McFarlane 

Year/Program/Alumni 

 

3
rd

 Year Fine Art 

 

 

 

Durham College 

Elected Faculty/Staff   
Representatives 

Name 

Charlotte Hale 

*Herb Klassen 

*Sean McQuay 

*Greg Murphy  

 

 

Title 

Associate Dean 

Coordinator, FAD 

Coordinator, Fine Art 

Dean 

 

 

Organization 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff  

Name 

Donna Boyd 

*Gary Chapple 

*Steven Evans 

*Matthew Grabinsky 

Ray Gubala 

*Jo-Ann Jordan 

*Nathalie Stutt 

 

Title 

Continuing Education Office 

Professor 

Professor 

Professor 

Professor 

Ceramist/Professor 

Admissions & Recruitment Officer 

 

Organization 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 AGENDA PAGE   150



KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1. Acceptance of Minutes of November 6, 2014 was moved by J. Jordan and seconded by P. 
Smith.  Carried. 

2. Acceptance of the agenda was moved by G. Murphy and seconded by J. Jordan.  Carried. 
3. External/Membership Information Sharing:  A discussion arose around the suggestion to 

explore the use of iPads for sketching digitally and/or to create sketchbook work digitally using 
this technology.  B. Ho Sang noted that the Ideas and Images course is beneficial especially for 
students going into a receiving program such as Graphic Design.  H. Klassen explained that the 
students in this program are still exploring, and they need to understand the value of visualizing 
conceptual processes which is important before moving on to a receiving program.  S. McQuay 
mentioned that a journal of ideas is kept to broaden the student’s concepts and process.  G. 
Chapple is looking for basic drawing skills for storyboarding and as a tool to help them in the 
Animation program.  M. Grabinsky mentioned that there are more applicant portfolios for the 
Game Development program this year, but he is looking for technical, drawing and conceptual 
skills, and how utilizing thumbnails is important.  It was also noted that sketchbooks and 
storyboards are a continuing learning outcome in the Game Development program.  N. Clarke 
noted that students, especially High School students, are inattentive and unambitious and find 
that the need to push students to be successful in their classes is important, and the need to 
show the value of sketchbooks to get a sense of importance of concepts; drawing is beneficial 
at the High School level.  J. Jordan discussed the difficulty in drawing classes. It is challenging 
that entering students have no experience or skills in drawing.  

4. College/Program Updates:  G. Murphy noted that S. Evans will be taking over as Program 
Coordinator as of June 30, 2015.  

5. Continuing Education Update:  No Continuing Education representative. 
6. Student Voice:  No student representative. 
7. Nomination of Chair:  D. Crosby was nominated as PAC Chair. Motion carried. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1. Explore the idea of expanding the conceptual content and/or process within the program. 
ACTION:  Program Team 

2. Determine the purpose of drawing across all courses within the program, and re-think the 
weighting and value of cumulative or preparatory drawings relative to finished drawings.  
ACTION:  Program Team 

3. Explore the idea of separating streams of drawing experience for new students.  ACTION: 
Program Team  

4. Explore a way of helping student embrace drawing and creativity in general.  ACTION: 
Program Team 

5. Meeting adjourned at 8:05 p.m. 
6. Next meeting – Wednesday, November 4, 2015 

  

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM November 6, 2014 MEETING 

1. It was recommended to nominate a new Chair.  D. Crosby has accepted the nomination.  
2. The recommendation that the use of digital sketchbooks has been introduced but is ongoing. 

ACTION:  Program Team  
3. The recommendation of a focus group on content and process within drawing classes is 

ongoing.  ACTION:  Program Team  
4. The recommendation to integrate drawing across the curriculum is ongoing.  ACTION: 

Program Team 
 

  

 
REPORT PREPARED BY:  Stacy Leaming-Conroy                  DATE:  May 5, 2015 
 

DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN:  G. Murphy                  SIGNATURE:     
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR: Dani Crosby                  SIGNATURE:    via email 
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Graphic Design Committee 
School of Media, Art & Design 

Minutes of April 29, 2015 
 

 
 

 
Graphic Design Membership List 
 

Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair 

*Grant Cleland 

External Committee Members 

 

Senior Art Director 

 

Leo Burnett Canada 

*Randal Boutilier 

Katie Brown 

Steve Dunk 

*Heather Lee 

Erica Rodrigues 

*Marcel Tualla 

Graphic Designer 

Graphic Designer 

Partner/Designer 

Interactive Studio Artist 

Junior Designer 

Creative Director 

12thirteen Design Inc. 

Freelancer 

Reactor art + design 

Grip Limited 

Chatelaine 

Incryptex 

 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

Emma Deugo 

Leah Francis 

Ashleigh Johnston 

*Jack Lang 

Dave Malarenko 

Samantha Spykerman 

Merissa Vuylsteke 

 

 

 

Year/Program/Alumni  

3
rd

 Year Graphic Design 

1
st
 Year Graphic Design 

3
rd

 Year Graphic Design 

2
nd

 Year Graphic Design 

Graphic Design Alumni 

2
nd

 Year Graphic Design 

Graphic Design Alumni 

 

 

 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

 

Elected Faculty/Staff   
Representatives 

Name 

*Reid Anderson 

Stuart Ellis 

Charlotte Hale 

Greg Murphy 

 

 

 

 

Title 

Coordinator, Graphic Design 

Professor, Graphic Design 

Associate Dean 

Dean 

 

 

 

 

Organization 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

 

Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff  

Name 

*Arlene Allen 

Tracey Hanson-Parry 

*Barb Suen 

 

 

Title 

Con. Education Program Assistant 

Professor, Graphic Design 

Professor, Graphic Design 

 

 

Organization 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1. Approval of minutes of October 7, 2015 was moved by G. Cleland and seconded by H. Lee.  
Carried. 

2. Additions to the agenda – R. Anderson added new program standards. 
3. Approval of agenda with additions was moved by R. Anderson and seconded H. Lee. Carried. 
4. Industry Trends indicate:  a discussion around digital production in industry ensued.  The 

differences between print productions compared to digital production was discussed.  G. Cleland 
asked what marketing and promotion the college is taking to promote the new program.  R. 
Anderson shared that visits to high school are taking place, using a program Facebook page, Open 
House and on-line methods are being used.  A suggestion to have Alumni at the Open House to 
speak to perspective students was deemed as being beneficial and a useful tool for recruiting and 
promoting.  Having a social media group formed by the third year students could be used in their 
portfolio.  Members were asked to form some ideas  

5. Continuing Education Update:  A. Allen shared that enrollment is down in-class for the Graphic 
Design certificate; the Continuing education office is looking at moving some of the classes to on-
line.  A meeting between R. Anderson, A. Allen and D. Boyd will be set-up to discuss. 

6. College/School Update:  Across the post-secondary sector, enrollment is lower due to a 
demographic shift in high school age students.  However, there is a marked increase in university 
students enrolling in college programs.  This creates a very good new learning environment and an 
interesting dynamic.  Durham is healthy with good relationships and pathways between our local 
universities that are continuing grow.   The School of Media, Art& Design has had a number of 
graduate certificates in development and has been focused on continuing to raise the profile of the 
school in the GTA as a destination of choice for an exceptional educational experience in our 

creative sector programs.   AODA design needs to be stressed with the students as it is becoming 

more necessary in the industry especially in non-profit companies. 
7. Student Voice:  an assessment of the student’s technology background could be explored in the 

first year.  Concerns around less drawing classes was noted; how will the students be taught how 
to draw by hand?  This will be addressed in the new Photography and Illustration course.  Having 
the program team promoting at Comic Con conventions was recommended. 

8. New Program Standards:  R. Anderson shared the new program standards and compared them 
to the old standards and noted the changes.  Members shared feedback on the new standards and 
this information will be shared at the program meetings in the spring. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1. There were no recommendations as quorum was not achieved.  
2. Next Meeting – Wednesday, October 7

th
, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. 

3. Adjournment 8:30 p.m. 

  

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM October 7, 2014 MEETING 

1. More Interactive Media will be introduced into the new curriculum and was a recommendation in the 
program standards.  This includes push notifications.   

2. The new Program of Studies was approved and the first cohort will begin in September 2015.  
3. An introduction to Interactive Media production will be taught in the first semester of the new 

program.  
4. An increase in rigor in the InDesign course will take place in the Design Tools II course, offered in 

semester two instead of the Publication Design course which has been phased out. 
5. The integration of Illustrator, Photoshop and InDesign into single projects within the Design tools 

course was brought back to the program team and will be worked on through exercise based 
teaching in the new curriculum. 
 

  

REPORT PREPARED BY:  A. Desaillier           DATE:  April 29, 2015 
 
DRAFT REVIEWED BY COORDINATOR:                        SIGNATURE:    via email 
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR: G. Cleland                           SIGNATURE:  via email 
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Human Resources Program Advisory Committee 
School of Business, IT & Management 

Minutes of April 1, 2015 
 
 

 
Human Resources Program Advisory Committee Membership List 

 
Note: an asterisk in front of the name indicates that the member was present for this meeting. 

 
Name Title Organization 

 

Committee Chair 
 

*Melissa Beckette-Batchellor 
Human Resources Business 
Partner 

 
The Scarborough Hospital 

 

External Committee Members 
 

*Doug Campbell HR Manager McNairn Packaging 

Kevin Chhangte Human Resources Generalist Paramed Home Health Care 

*Jan Herington Career Coach Queen’s University, School of Business 

Aranka Mason Manager Ministry of Government Services 

*Jaime Sheepwash Senior Employee Relations Officer Durham Catholic District School Board 

*Peter Spratt Vice President, Consulting Services Collins Barrow 
 
 
 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

Name Year, Program 
*Craig Armstrong 2, Human Resources 

*Naomi Carmichael 2, Human Resources 

*Dawn Kalina 2, Human Resources 

*Donna Umpleby 2, Human Resources 
 
 

Elected Faculty/Staff  

Representatives 

Name 

 
Title 

 
Department 

*Gary Gannon Program Coordinator/Professor School of Business, IT & Management 

 
 

Guests/Unelected 
Faculty/Staff 

Name Title Department/Organization 

*Jackie Bathe Associate Dean School of Business, IT & Management 

*Lorie Blundon Manager, RTW and Employee 

Relations 
Durham College 

*Donna Boyd Program Officer School of Continuing Education 

*Victoria Kee Secretary School of Business, IT & Management 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1.   Additions to Agenda: no additions. 
2.   Agenda: accepted by consensus of committee members. 
3.   Minutes of November 3, 2014 were approved by consensus of committee members. 
4.   External Membership Information Sharing: 

  There is a trend towards leaner workplaces and vacated jobs are not always filled. This creates a 
greater workload and added pressure to reduce the cost of processes. Employees find it more 
difficult to achieve what is expected of them. Due to this increased stress the number of 
grievances is increasing. 

  Employees do not generally handle change well and change management is a critical 
competency for students who will be entering this profession. Communication is the key to 
effective change management because employees will suffer from lower levels of stress if they 
understand what is happening and why.  It was discussed that students do currently have the 
opportunity to take a leadership inventory and focus on how change happens in an organization 
but it would be important to ensure that there is some course material covering culture and 
engagement. 

  Business analytics is growing in importance to human resources because there is pressure to 
deliver evidence to support recommendations. Human resources must be able effectively 
demonstrate value and discuss the expected outcome. 

  A huge challenge in human resources is the increase in mental health issues. A lot of education 
and support is needed in order for human resources to effectively manage this area. 

  There is sometimes pushback from managers who do not know how to handle mental health 
issues. Managers need to be coached in this area and taught how to identify when there is a 
problem and how it should be handled. 

  The war for talent is not over. Employees need support and it is important to talk to co-workers to 
identify what kind of support they need. 

  Union buy-in can be critical when creating effective plans to deal with mental illness in the 
workplace. 

  The concept of a buddy system may be introduced for new employees in the health sector to help 
earlier identification of mental health problems, with a focus on being “head healthy”. 

  Statistically, mental health issues occur in higher numbers in the education sector and additionally 
the rate of incidents tends to statistically rise after the March break. 

  Wellness committees can be an effective tool to develop and implement wellness plans and 
employee assistant programs. 

  There should be curriculum in the program that addresses gender issues and new laws. 
5.   College/School and Program update: 

  Durham College is doing well with 10,000 full time students and expected to grow about 3% in the 
next academic year. 

  The college is currently in the process of seeking approval for a new capital element, a health 
building that will be shared with Trent and UOIT. 

  Insurance and Accounting & Payroll programs will be introduced this fall. Currently in progress is 
an application for approval of a Finance program, with two and three year diploma options, for the 
fall of 2016. 

  A one-year Computer Foundations program is being developed. 

  HURM will now be a laptop program, as well as the first year business programs. 

  Dave Morrison retired at Christmas and we will soon be in the process of interviewing for a new 
faculty member. 

  Congratulations to Gary Gannon, who has co-authored a Labour Relations textbook, which will be 
published by Pearson. 

  Student members of this committee will be graduating this spring. Thank you for your 
contribution! 

6.   Continuing Education: 

  There is a continuing trend for increased online enrolment. Moving forward Continuing Education 
will be increasing their development of courses and programs that are offered online. 

  The Ontario Online Institute intends to increase technology used in online courses and as this 
happens, there will likely be less focus on the final exam, which can be heavily weighted to 
address the challenges of verifying credibility in an online course. 

  The equivalent for Psychology for HR offered through Continuing Education will be the online 
general psychology course and similarly, Business Law will likely be allowed as an equivalent to 
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the Employment Law course. The Economics for Canadian Business is a combination of both the 
Macroeconomics and Microeconomics courses and ideally it will eventually be offered through 
Continuing Education; however, it may not be currently offered through OntarioLearn. 

7.   Student Voice: 

  Curriculum should address interpersonal communication, especially for difficult conversations, in 
the program curriculum. Many students could benefit from experience in this area.  Specifically, a 
suggestion was made to include case studies and in-class simulations to help students learn the 
best ways to handle these situations. 

  More information should be taught regarding EAPs and wellness programs and specifically, what 
is involved in creating them. 

  Organizational Behaviour and Business Law are great courses with excellent content; however, 
they both lack opportunities to apply knowledge. 

  Field Placement has been a highlight and students feel that it has really helped them apply the 
knowledge gained throughout the program. 

  Third year students feel that the third year of the program is very beneficial and would highly 
recommend that students continue on from the two year program. 

  Labour relations is a good course and provides a foundation of knowledge about labour laws and 
unions. 

  Guest speakers to address issues surrounding mental health in the workplace would be very 
beneficial in Occupational Health & Safety or Organizational Behaviour. 

  The Human Relations general elective was complementary to the other courses in the program. 
8.   Additional Agenda Items: 

  HURT and HURM Advanced Standing – A pathway has been negotiated with UOIT for Human 
Resources students with 5 embedded courses throughout the two year diploma. After completion 
of this diploma, if students have maintained a GPA of 3.5, they will be eligible to transfer directly 
into the third year of the Bachelor of Commerce program at UOIT with an HR major.  After four 
years of schooling, students will have both a diploma and a degree. The UOIT courses are 
subsidized by the college for the amount of $220, so the university courses cost students 
approximately $500 each. Intake will begin in September; however, current year one students 
are being offered the opportunity to pick up the second semester UOIT course over the summer 
and enter the program in the fall.  January intake students can take the university course as part 
of their program over the summer semester. Additionally, students of UOIT who are majoring in 
Human Resources can now take three courses from the HURM program at Durham College, 
complete the field placement and earn the graduate certificate to complement their degree. 

 ONCAT Transfer agreement for HR – There are vocational learning outcomes for both the two 
and three year diploma that are set by the government and which are a minimal requirement for 
the program at any post-secondary institution. Students can transfer with a two year program 
from another institution and enter the third year at Durham College. However, now credit needs 
to also be given for one year completed at another institution and this will be done on a case by 
case basis. 

 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

1.   Follow up on success of strategies to strengthen network for field placements. 
2.   Review completed Employment Law course outline at fall meeting. 
3.   Follow up on the inclusion of a greater number of practical learning opportunities in courses. 
4.   Report on HRTU transfer program and follow up on the Advanced HURM standing. 
5.   Next Meeting: Tuesday, November 3, 2015 at 6:00pm Location: CFF 
6.   Adjournment: 8:20pm 

 
 
STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM November 3, 2014 MEETING 

1.   Consider Employment Law Course topics to obtain suggestions – This course has been developed in 
response to concerns regarding the general nature of the Business Law course. L. Blundon has 
developed a list of topics to cover in the course which were distributed to members prior to the 
meeting. Students will not likely have a legal background so it is important to keep that in mind and 
organize the information so it is presented as a process, from recruitment to termination. The 
textbook that will be used for the course is already used in the Paralegal program. Feedback from the 
committee was very positive and it was agreed that this more specific focus will be very helpful to 
students. A suggestion made was to ensure the inclusion of case studies to help students apply and 
retain the knowledge they have gained. Please email L. Blundon with any additional comments at 
Lorie.Blundon@durhamcollege.ca. 
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2.   Discuss recommendations from Communications and Marketing in regards to locating field 
placements – As it has been a challenge to coordinate field placements in Durham Region, 
particularly with expanding enrolment, G. Gannon has been meeting with Communications and 
Marketing to develop some strategies to create a stronger network with employers and tapping into 
the alumni group. These plans will be further developed over the next couple months to increase 
awareness of the program in the Durham community. 

3.   Review Human Resources Psychology and Economics for Canadian Business course outlines that 
were sent to membership – These two course outlines were distributed to the committee prior to the 
meeting for review in order to obtain feedback and close any existing gaps in material. Committee 
members felt primarily that there should be a stronger emphasis in the psychology course on mental 
health issues in the workplace because of their increasing prevalence. P. Spratt suggested referring 
to the Canadian Health Association as they currently have several modules of 2-3 hour duration 
prepared that may be helpful and can provide contact if needed. Another contact suggested was 
Heather Bickle at the Campus Health Centre. 

4.   Highlight HURM Program Review – Full review was performed on the graduate certificate program. 
Two external examiners came to review the program. Conclusions of the review were positive. There 
is currently a September and January intake with a total of 51 students. Graduate rate and retention 
rates are both higher than competitors. Other strengths discovered include: the field placement, an 
effective program mapping with no gaps or redundancies, a cohesive teaching unit and strong school 
leadership. The program also takes advantage of innovative teaching and learning practices 
including a hybrid delivery model as well as the use of simulations and “Real World” presentations. 
Additionally, the program will be adopting a “mobile learning” environment starting in the 2015-2016 
academic period. Key areas of improvement include expanding external awareness of the HURM 
field placement program with GTA employers and curriculum development for SAP integration which 
is in progress. During May-June 2015 the faculty team will be examining ways to reduce any areas of 
overlaps between HRM Principles and other courses in each semester. 

 

 
 
REPORT PREPARED BY:  V. Kee DATE: April 1, 2015 

 
DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN: J. Spring SIGNATURE: 

 

APPROVED BY CHAIR: M. Beckette-Bachellor 
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Interactive Media Design and Contemporary Web Design  
Advisory Committee 

School of Media, Art & Design 
Minutes of May 7, 2015 

 

 
Interactive Media Design and Contemporary Web Design Membership List 
 
Note:  an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for this meeting. 
 

Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair 

*Stacey Vetzal 

External Committee Members 

 

President 

  

Three Wise Men Software  
Development 

*Dave Bobak 

Brandon Carson 

Rick Dolishny 

Chris Erwin 

*Brendan Farr-Gaynor 

Alex Jansen 

*Jason King 

Jeff Martin 

*Andrea Seepersad 

 

Web Developer 

Web Specialist 

Project Manager 

Web Developer 

Partner 

Owner/Operator 

Content/Culture/Community 

Creative Director 

Senior Web Developer 

Teehan+Lax 

Durham College 

nteractive 

Teehan+Lax 

Olio Digital Labs Inc. 

POP Sandbox 

360incentives 

Addictive Mobilty 

Desire2Learn 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

*Yvonne Berg 

Nicole Black 

Joyce Chan 

Justin Gillis 

Agnes Jankiewicz 

Andrew Phillips 

Ashley Schofield 

Matthew Sullivan 

 

Elected Faculty/Staff   
Representatives 

Name 

*Linda Cheng 

*Wade Clarke 

*Kris Felstead 

*Charlotte Hale 

Greg Murphy 

 

Year/Program/Alumni  

Contemporary Web Alumni 

Multimedia Design Alumni 

Contemporary Web Alumni 

3
rd

 Year Multimedia Design 

3
rd

 Year Multimedia Design 

Multimedia Design Alumni 

Multimedia Design Alumni 

Multimedia Design Alumni 

 

 

 

Title 

Co-Coordinator, Interactive Media 

Co-Coordinator, Interactive Media 

Coordinator, Contemporary Web Design 

Associate Dean 

Dean 

 

 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

 

 

 

Organization 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

 

Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff  

Name 

*Arlene Allen 

Steven Evans 

Brent Hudson 

 

 

Title 

Continuing Education Assistant 

Professor 

Professor 

 

Organization 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1. Approval of minutes from October 15, 2014 was moved by B. Farr-Gaynor and seconded by K. 
Felstead.  CARRIED. 

2. Acceptance of agenda was moved by B. Farr-Gaynor and seconded by K. Felstead.  CARRIED. 
3. Industry trends:  Embracing open sourcing of frameworks.  Would like to see the students given 

an overview on more than a couple of software’s being used in development.  Soft skills are being 
taught in the Collaborative Projects class as well as project management within the portfolio 
classes.  ThoughtWorks, a privately owned global software development and products company is 
closely associated with the movement for agile software development, and has contributed to a 
range of open source products and is a useful tool to track popular tech items.  Trend of moving 
platforms is happening.  The use of PHP and Laravel (a free, open source PHP web application 
framework, designed for the development of model–view–controller (MVC) web applications) is on 
the rise for developing apps.  Gera – a tracking or cross management tool needs to be introduced.  
Trello was also discussed.  Feel that the Contemporary Web Design program could graduate really 
good front end developers based on the current curriculum.  Would like to see the PHP taught in 
the post-diploma program.  Programming cannot be removed from the program curriculum as it is 
very important in industry, even on basic level. 

4. College/School Updates:  Across the post-secondary sector, enrollment is lower due to a 
demographic shift in high school age students.  However, there is a marked increase in university 
students enrolling in college programs.  This creates a very good new learning environment and an 
interesting dynamic.  Durham is healthy with good relationships and pathways between our local 
universities that are continuing to grow.  The School of Media, Art& Design has had a number of 
graduate certificates in development and has been focused on continuing to raise the profile of the 
school in the GTA as a destination of choice for an exceptional educational experience in our 
creative sector programs.  Several community projects are on-going with the Contemporary Web 
Design students; there have been several successful completed projects that will be showcased in 
Durham Region.  Planned spring meetings for the Interactive Media Design program will focus on 
more interactive within the curriculum.  Three student projects from both programs are being 
showcased at Digifest and have a good chance of winning a prize.  Three students have been hired 
from their internships before they will even graduate.  As well, some students from both programs 
have been recommended to work on an Internal Research project alongside L .Cheng. 

5. Continuing Education Update:  The ability to offer the post-diploma program through night school 
or on-line needs to be explored.  Several members shared that in-class with some on-line 
components would be beneficial.  6 week courses would gather a more positive response then a 14 
week class.  From perspective students within industry.  Also a weekend seminar/workshop was 
discussed (i.e. Saturday mornings). 

6. Student Voice:  Feel that this program should be spread out over three years as there is just so 
much to take in over two years.  Could additional workshops be offered to supplement the 
curriculum was discussed.  A suggestion was to have each student choose, research and present a 
specific workflow.  This could allow students to see what else is out in industry.  Presentation skills 
need to be emphasized in all classes. 
 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1. Recommend that external members from industry be involved in the critique process in all 
stages as well as the professors in the post graduate program.  ACTION BY:  Program Team 

2. Recommend that the post diploma offerings are explored through Continuing Education.  
ACTION BY:  Program Coordinators and Continuing Education Officer. 

3. Recommend that Communication/Presentation/Time Management skills are emphasized within 
the curriculum.  ACTION BY:  Program Team 

4. Next meeting – Tuesday, October 20, 2015 at 6:30 p.m. 
5. Adjournment 8:10 p.m. 

 

  

 

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OCTOBER 15, 2014 MEETING 

1. Inviting external members from industry to be involved in the critique process in all stages as 
well as the professors in the post graduate program is still on-going and will be brought forward 
in the next meeting. 
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2. The recommendation to have the proposed program name modified for the Graduate 
Certificate was brought back to the Ministry and is still pending 

3. Approval on the new Interactive Graduate certificate is still pending approval with the Ministry. 
 

 
 
REPORT PREPARED BY:  A. Desaillier                  DATE:  May 7, 2015 

DRAFT REVIEWED BY ASSOC. DEAN:  C. Hale SIGNATURE:    
 

APPROVED BY CORDINATORS: SIGNATURE:    via email 
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Legal Research & Information Management Program Advisory Committee 
School of Justice& Emergency Services 

Minutes of May 15, 2015 
 

 
Legal Research & Information Management Membership List 
 
Note:  an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member is present for this meeting. 
 

Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair 

TBA 

 

External Committee Members 

 

 

  

 

*Connie Crosby(Acting Chair) 

Marilyn Elkin 

*Amy Kaufman 

 

John Olver 

*Michael David Reansbury 

 

*Ryan Ban 

Jade Noble 

 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

Consultant 

Law Librarian 

Head Librarian 

 

Lawyer 

Acting Manager, Library Services 

 

 

Young Adult Services Librarian 

 

 

Year/Program/Alumni 

Crosby Group Consulting 

 

William R. Lederman Law  

Library 

Scott and Olver LLP 

Canadian College of Naturopathic 
Medicine 

OpenText 

Shelburne Public Library 

 

*Justin Harvey 

*Caroline Konsik 

 

Elected Faculty/Staff   
Representatives 

Name 

Alumni 

Student 

 

 

 

Title 

Durham College 

Durham College 

 

 

 

Organization 

*Stephanie Ball 

*Dalton Burger 

*Nicole Doyle 

 

 

Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff  

*Shanna Giguere 

Olivia Jenkins* 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dean 

Professor 

Professor/Coordinator 

 

 

Title 

Student 

Student 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

 

 

Organization 

Durham College 

Durham College 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1. The minutes of November 12, 2014 were approved by R. Ban and seconded by J. Harvey. 

CARRIED 

2. Industry Trends:  From the Canadian Association of Law Libraries (CALL) Conference (May 
2015), we learned that WestlawNext will be more fully rolled out this year and LexisNexis 
Quicklaw Advance (new offering) is coming within the next 18 months. The CALL mentorship 
program is free and students can be matched with someone who is working in a particular area 
of interest to the student.  Also, student memberships are now only $15 so students should be 
encouraged to join especially since members are able to apply for awards and scholarships. 
The CBA Futures Report outlined the unbundling of legal services giving rise to new roles for a 
variety of professionals and the future of legal publishing with old models such as loose leafs. 
There was also discussion about an IBM Watson project called ROSS which uses artificial 
intelligence to respond to legal queries.  The Canadian Library Association is considering 
reorganization as memberships drop and members are looking for value added offerings from 
their associations.  In general libraries are looking at billing models, use of space for print 
versus for collaboration and creativity in budgeting due to cutbacks.  There is a Legal 
Innovation Roundtable that meets monthly in Toronto.  Records management is a key area of 
growth with a need for policies around emails, email retention, email management and 
implications for litigation when employees store email histories offline to meet mailbox size 
limits.  Records managers are also dealing with the issues of people bringing their cell phones, 
iPads to work and even Hillary Clinton “bringing her own server”, which has given rise to who 
owns the data on such devices.  The Crown’s office/Ministry of the Attorney General has rolled 
out SCOPE which is a system used for disclosure, sharing briefs, etc. and it is used in the 
courtroom in real time, inputting data while proceedings are ongoing.  Information management 
is still a challenge for the Defence side.  Some offices have built tracking systems for 
scheduling court dates, but encountered capacity issues and other IT problems.  Some are 
even using Google/cloud spaces to store information which gives rise to privacy concerns. 

3. Review/Debrief of Program this Year:  Faculty noted that while some students struggled to 
get through the heavy content of the second semester, all were successful.  Faculty also 
learned about accommodating students with hearing disabilities, especially with respect to the 
quality and scheduling of note-takers, and the quality of closed captioning on some video 
resources that had been previously used.  Student debrief results showed marked improvement 
in many key areas and has provided faculty with valuable feedback on teaching and 
assessment going forward. 

4. New Delivery Format/Marketing:  Several marketing and networking activities have been 
undertaken by N. Doyle with the support of S. Ball.  This includes exhibiting at the OLA 
Superconference in January 2015, presenting at the Prosecutors Association of Ontario 
conference in April, and marketing through an insert in all conference bags at the Canadian 
Association of Law Libraries conference in May 2015.  Information about the program has also 
been distributed via email to a wide variety of contacts.  

5. Enrolment:  Application numbers remain low at this time, but the full effect of some of the 
initiatives noted above may not have occurred as yet. 

6. Student Voice.  Students felt that the program was extremely valuable and of high quality. 
They appreciated the efforts of faculty to ensure their success.  Students presented the results 
of their applied projects.  O. Jenkins presented her project on an annotated bibliography for 
legal taxonomy, C. Konsik presented her online website related to tribunals: 
http://carolinekon.wix.com/canadatribunals, and S. Giguere presented her 
redesign/improvement in the program’s wiki page: http://dc-lrim.wikispaces.com.  

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1. Program marketing options at the Law Society of Upper Canada will be explored, including 
submitting courses for CPD Accreditation by N. Doyle. 

2. Program Advisory Committee members will forward any program marketing ideas and/or 
connections to N. Doyle for follow up. 

3. Course-based registration will be promoted, if feasible, to enhance enrolment by N. Doyle and 
S. Ball. 
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STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM November 12, 2014 MEETING 

1. The new program delivery format will be implemented for the fall of 2015 by N. Doyle and S. 
Ball.  COMPLETED 

2. The course title of “Records Management” will be retained as part of the new program format 
by N. Doyle.  COMPLETED 

3. Communication on part-time completion of the program for prospective students will be 
developed by N. Doyle.   COMPLETED 

4.    An “Industry Night” or other wrap-up activity as part of the Applied Project course with the new 

       delivery format will be explored by N. Doyle.   ONGOING 

  

 
 
 
 
REPORT PREPARED BY:  N. Doyle//M. Bartosik                         DATE:   May 19, 2015 
 

DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN:  S. Ball            SIGNATURE:  ____ __ __ 
 

APPROVED BY ACTING CHAIR :Connie Cosby              SIGNATURE:     __ __ 
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Library and Information Technician Program Advisory Committee  
School of Business, IT & Administration 

Minutes of May 14, 2015 
 

 
Library and Information Technician Program Advisory Committee Membership List 
 
Note: an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for this meeting. 
 

Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair 
  

*Michael David Reansbury Acting Manager, Library Services Canadian College of Naturopathic Medicine 
   

External Committee Members 
  

Debbie Arsenault Library Technician Lakeridge Health 
Teresa Austin Library Technician McMillan LLP 
*Aaron Bangay Acting Archivist & Records 

Manager 
Northumberland County 

Emily Cartlidge Records Manager and Archivist Northumberland County 
*Pamela Drayson University Librarian UOIT 
Lisa Elchak Library Technician Crescent School 
*Christine Evans Library Support Specialist PVNCCDSB 
Ian Heckford CEO Oshawa Public Library 
*Liz Kerr SuperConference Convenor Ontario Library Association (OLA) 
*Becky MacDonald  Manager, Member Services Ontario Library Association (OLA) 
*Mary McDiarmid Librarian Ontario Shores 
*Ian Ross Chief Executive Officer Whitby Public Library 
*Jennifer Weymark  Archivist Oshawa Community Museum 
Sarah White Public Service Coordinator Scugog Memorial Public Library 
   

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

  

Name Year, Program  

Jennylynn Brown Alumni  
*Amanda Perriman 1, Library & Information Tech  
Dawn Wright 2, Library & Information Tech  
   

Elected Faculty/Staff   
Representatives 

  

Name Title Department 
*Anne Donnellan Professor School of Business, IT & Management 
*Nicole Doyle Professor School of Justice and Emergency Services 
*Susan Pratt 
 

Program Coordinator/Professor School of Business, IT & Management 

   
Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff   
Name  Title Department/Organization 
*Jackie Bathe Associate Dean School of Business, IT & Management 
Donna Boyd Program Officer School of Continuing Education 
*Victoria Kee Secretary Durham College 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1. Additions to Agenda:  no additions. 
2. Agenda:  accepted by P. Drayson and seconded by J.Weymark. 
3. Minutes from November 13, 2014 approved by I. Ross and seconded by P. Drayson. 
4. External Membership Information Sharing:    

 The CLA has published new Standards of Practice for School Library Learning Commons in Canada.  The launch of 
the publication will take place at the annual CLA National Conference and Trade Show in Victoria, BC at the end of 
May.  The publication can be accessed at this link: http://clatoolbox.ca/casl/slic/llsop.html.     

 Treasure Mountain Canada will take place at the OLA conference next January in Toronto.  This is an initiative to 
encourage practitioners and academia to research library-related topics.   

 The OLA Super Conference is coming up and has an excellent in-service program for practitioners.  If any 
committee members have ideas for presenters please contact L. Kerr. 

 Students need to know and understand the use of statistics in order to be able to justify budgets and decisions. 

 A current trend in the industry is to closely examine records management and issues around privacy.  

 There is a lot of discussion in the industry about the future of legal publishing, specifically with reference to loose-
leaf, which is costly and time consuming.  This was an important topic of discussion at the CALL Conference and 
there is a hashtag for this topic: #killlooseleaf. 

 Artificial intelligence is a growing technology used to answer questions and provide a measure of the accuracy of 
the answers.  This accuracy increases the more the system is used.  This technology could be used to automate 
many processes and remove librarians or other intermediaries. 

 A 21
st
 century library scheme focuses on implementing IT aspects into the library. 

 Health Sciences libraries are offering more webinars because they offer increased flexibility for those attending and 
they are included with membership.  The OLA offers a stream for Health Libraries. 

 Any researcher who is funded by the Tri-Council will now be required to publish with Open Access.  Knowledge 
about digital repositories and Open Access journals will be very important for technicians entering a university 
setting. 

 There is growing demand for the use of 3D printing and technology. 

 It is increasingly necessary to expand knowledge of using data resources and of research data management.  This 
is an increased focus in academic libraries but may cause a ripple effect for public libraries in time. 

 Libraries need to market themselves and ensure people are aware of the value of the services they provide in order 
to protect their futures. 

 It is important to determine the impact of programming and libraries need to be prepared to divest old programs if 
needed in order to offer new ones. 

 There are a growing number of entrepreneurs and they do take advantage of opportunities at public libraries for 
work space and access to resources. 

 Budgeting requires negotiations with vendors and students should have the opportunity to develop these skills 
during the program.  It is also important that students understand the costs of incorporating a new service, including 
staff time, and the work involved. 

 There is more digital scanning of photographs and over the past 10 years this has been the number one topic at 
archival conferences.  Students need to know how to use a flatbed scanner.  

 Members felt that students were very successful in their field placements.  

5. College/School and Program Update:  
 College enrolment is flat or slightly declining for the fall.  This trend was predicted 4 to 5 years ago due to lower 

enrolment in high school.   

 The Communication and Marketing group launched an active campaign in March and have been calling applicants. 

 There will be three new programs in the fall, International Business Management, Accounting and Payroll, and 
Insurance.  Insurance is currently an area of high employment and this information needs to be communicated to 
high school students. 

 The FAST start program at the college provides current students or people in the community access to services 
such as assistance with business plans and financing. 

 Library students will take part in a pilot program next fall for post-admission testing of communication skills.  If a 
student is not successful, they will be asked to take an additional fundamentals course. 

 28 applicants to the Library & Information Technician program have confirmed for next fall and the target is 27 
students.   

 23 students are graduating from the program in June and several have already obtained jobs in the field. 

 An informal, five question survey was sent to employers who reported they are satisfied or very satisfied with the 
technical services and public services skills of students.   

 The graduate surveys revealed that students really enjoy the hands-on learning in the program.  They feel that 
having the field placement in February is too hectic; however, this allows students to do placements where other 
colleges cannot.  Students seemed to feel more positive about the February field placement at the end of the 
semester and stated that it helped them learn to organize and balance responsibilities.  Students also requested a 
full records management course.  An informal exit survey of students revealed that they felt that there was overlap 
in Special Libraries and wanted to learn more about financial management.  They enjoy field trips, and would like a 
greater amount of curriculum covering the use of Excel.   
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 There is now a list for students to consult to help them arrange their placements.  Many students go the OLA and 
many volunteer there to make connections for future placements.  Students all successfully located a placement.  It 
has been important to make sure that the field placement structure is different from other colleges to maximize 
flexibility and increase the number of placements available in order to remain competitive for placements. 

 Faculty professional development has been ongoing in areas such as indexing and best practices.   

 The Legal Research and Information Management graduate certificate is a great pathway for graduates of the 
Library & Information Technician program.  This program has been restructured and is now offered with larger 
online components.  It is modular with 3 courses at a time for a period of 7 weeks.      

6. Continuing Education:   
 An update will be provided at the next meeting. 

7. Student Voice: 
 The computer course went well.  Although students were familiar with most of the material already everyone was 

able to learn additional information. 

 Students enjoyed guest speakers and field trips, including the OLA conference. 

 Students appreciated the hour after Acquisitions and Processing, and would appreciate it again in other courses for 
next year. 

 It is very helpful to receive feedback after assignments to help students be more aware of their progress. 

 Alumni felt that the program does a great job preparing students for the workforce.  In particular, the database 
course was very helpful at placement and experience with Access has helped with understanding of larger 
databases used.   

 The placements are very valuable because they help students confirm that this is the career they are interested in 
and provide valuable experience. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1. Review KPI results next fall. 
2. Report results of post-admission communication skills testing. 
3. Increase curriculum covering budgeting in library operations as well as other courses.  
4. Next meeting:  Thursday, November 5, 2015   Location:  CFF 
5. Adjournment:  8:05pm 

 

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM November 13, 2015 MEETING 

1. Discuss KPIs – These are not yet published so will follow up again at the fall meeting.  Current focus on KPIs has 
changed from analyzing and creating report cards to putting efforts into analyzing where students are going and 
what programs they want. 

2. Discuss feedback regarding updates to the field placement manual – Responsibility will be placed on students to 
ensure they are on track; however they will also be notified early in second year if they are missing courses that will 
prevent them from taking the placement.  The GPA requirement for field placement has been removed.  
Additionally, field placement evaluation forms now only require an initial on each page by the employer as well as a 
one page questionnaire on topics such teamwork and communication skills.  It is hoped that this change will make 
the process easier for employers.   

3. Follow up on review of computer and database courses – More marketing of these courses to the students is 
necessary so that they are aware that the computers courses are two completely different courses, not level 1 and 
level 2.  The computer course covers basics such as the use of Outlook, PowerPoint and Excel.  If students have 
good computer skills they can take a PLAR test.  The database course covers the use of access.  The learning 
outcomes for this program state that students must know how to create a database.  

 
 
 
REPORT PREPARED BY:  V. Kee           DATE:    May 14, 2015 
 
DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN:  J. Spring SIGNATURE:    ____________________________ 
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR: M.D. Reansbury  
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Marketing Program Advisory Committee Meeting 
School of Business, IT & Management 

Minutes of April 15, 2015 
 
 

 
 

 
Marketing Membership List 
 

Note: an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for this meeting. 
 

Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair   

*Rob Mattacott Category Development Manager Kruger Products 
   

External Committee Members   

*Joel Beaulieu Marketing Coordinator Deighton 
*Kate Bell Sr. Marketing Manager SMB Ceridian HCM 
*Callaghan Brown (for Bob Verwey) Marketing & Business Development 

Manager        
Owasco Inc 

*Traci Ellis Senior Marketing Planner Durham College 
Dave Follert Strategic Agency Manager Market Wired 
Zach Gilbert Alumni Durham College 
*Celeste Howe Learning Solutions Consultant McGraw-Hill Ryerson 
Dave LaPenta Global Program Delivery Manager & 

Leadership Facilitator 
IBM Canada Ltd. 

Tracey Parsons Manager Energizer 
Marissa Potts Project Manager, Operations IMI International 
*Julie Rennie Manager, Major Gifts Ontario Shores 
Ashley Richardson Officer, Communications, Public & 

Media Relations 
Toronto Catholic District School Board 

*Tyler Ryll Customer Success Specialist Uberflip 
Danielle Smith Marketing Specialist DMZ - Ryerson University 
Daria True Alumni Durham College 
Gary Vaughan Canadian Sales Manager Gerdau Ameristeel Corporation 
Bob Verwey Sheriff Owasco Inc. 
   

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

  

Name Year/Program/Alumni  
*Mehran Khavarian 3, Marketing  
Sam Morris 2, Marketing  
Christian Schortemeyer 3, Marketing  
Tyler Vass 2, Marketing  
   

Elected Faculty/Staff  

Representatives 

  

Name Title Department 
*Ingrid Brand Program Coordinator/Professor School of Business, IT & Management 
*Sam Plati Professor School of Business, IT & Management 
   

Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff   

Name Title Organization/Department 

*Jackie Bathe Associate Dean School of Business, IT & Management 

Donna Boyd Program Officer Continuing Education 

*Victoria Kee Secretary Durham College 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1. Additions to Agenda: No additions.  
2. Agenda: accepted by consensus of committee members. 
3. Minutes from September 23, 2014 were approved by consensus of committee members. 
4. External Membership Information Sharing:  

 Committee members felt that the increased focus on digital methods in marketing of the program was very beneficial to students.   

 Programs used in the field include Salesforce, Skype, Slack, Trello, Evernote and OneNote. 

 Salesforce would be an excellent addition to the program because it is commonly used in the industry; however, it is costly due to 
the fact that it holds a monopoly.   

 Free online certifications are available for students.  Hubspot provides free online certification for Marketing Automation systems, 
and there is also a Google Analytics Certification. 

 Recently the industry is trending towards the use of contact marketing, which requires people to input their contact information 
before they receive information.  Typically this type of marketing is not as effective in service industries; however, Algonquin 
College will be implementing this type of system. 

 Research and data is a growing area in marketing.  The inclusion of metrics in the program will benefit students because 
everything in the marketing world deals with numbers.  It is important to have the ability to turn data into actionable insights.   

 Students need to be familiar with different website platforms and the fundamental tools and formatting.  They do currently cover 
WordPress. 

 Video marketing is an important trend with which students should be familiar. 

 In the not-for-profit sector, overall donors are starting to give again.  However, donors feel that their donations are their personal 
investment to achieve good and they want to know what impact their donation made, which requires analysis of data. 

 Crowd funding is a new trend and research shows that contributions from all age groups will increase in the future.  Crowd 
marketing is generating a lot of donations and also commonly targets 13 to 16 year olds.  The teen market has more disposable 
income than most adults and is very cause oriented. 

 The publishing industry is going through a period of change from traditional print to some combination of e-books and digital 
learning.  The challenge that publishers are having is getting information out. 

 Students should have more curriculum covering project management and implementation.  They should know what parameters to 
be aware of and what steps are necessary to go from start to finish with a project.  

 Industry members felt that this program would benefit from a bridge to the UOIT Communications undergraduate program.  A 
pathway to a four year degree would be a fantastic tool to attract students to the Marketing program at Durham College.  There 
are two majors in the UOIT Communications program including Digital Media, Culture & Society and Globalization, 
Communication & Social Change. 

 The marketing field has changed in recent years with a shift from marketing of traditional media to the necessity for those in the 
industry to be online marketing developers with tools such as Twitter, Facebook and other social media.   

 Adobe Creative Cloud now hosts several features in the cloud and is very user friendly.  Students need to know how to use 
programs such as Premiere Pro and Photoshop.  Once you are familiar with one the skills are transferrable.  GIMP is an open 
source program that would allow students to learn what Photoshop can do.  Illustrator was easy to learn with an understanding of 
Photoshop.    

 Students need to be taught now to understand the fundamental message they are trying to communicate, and how to captivate 
people and get it across.   

 Lots of jobs are available in Western Canada.  Saskatchewan has an unemployment rate of 3.5%.  The population of British 
Columbia is growing by 10% and the ethnic population by 143% in the next 10 years.  On the other hand, Newfoundland has an 
unemployment rate of 17%.  This type of information, as well as discussing other industries that students are not exposed to 
during the program, should be communicated so they know where to look for jobs.   

 Students need to understand what an entry level job looks like so that their expectations are managed.   

 Quick and easy way to show students the breath of tools available is to assign students to find a company with a marketing tool 
that begins with each letter of the alphabet.  http://www.toprankblog.com/2015/04/content-marketing-tools/ is an example. 

5. College/school and Program update:   

 The school will be interviewing for a full time faculty member for Marketing and Entrepreneurship. 

 Durham College will roll out another marketing campaign this week in an effort to attract an increased number of applicants.  
There is an expected depletion in target numbers of high school students due to a decreased number of students graduating from 
high school.   

6. Continuing Education update:  

 Will provide update at fall meeting. 
7. Student voice: 

 It would be helpful if students were notified of CMA events or seminars that are available, such as finance or marketing metrics.  
The CMA sends so much material it can be overwhelming and lots of students don’t look at them.   

 All job ads seem to require Salesforce.  The focus on WordPress seems like a poor use of time. 
 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1. Investigate Adobe Photoshop membership fee for students. 
2. Investigate simulation or trial of Salesforce for students. 
3. Investigate the possibility for student workshops. 
4. Follow-up on the inclusion of a project management course in the program. 
5. Investigate the possibility of a bridge with UOIT. 
6. Review software content in computer applications and Advanced Computer Applications during the springtime review and make sure 

they are consistent.   
7. Follow-up on internships. 
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8. Next Meeting:  Wednesday, October 14, 2015   Location: CFF   
9. Adjournment:  8:30pm  

 

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM MARCH 4, 2014 MEETING 

1. Outcome of review of Computer courses – currently being reviewed. 
2. Follow up on focus on collaborative learning methods -  
3. Results from evaluation of possibility of adding SPSS training and update on Market Research courses – The Market Research 

Technique I course is an introductory course to research with basic analysis; however, the second year Market Research course is 
quite heavy in analytics.  Data analysis is very important in the field and this focus will benefit students after graduation.  A creative 
solution to introducing the expensive SPSS software into the course is to use PSPP which is open source for PC and Macintosh.  
PSPP uses the same functions and screens as SPSS.  The committee felt that if the PSPP allows students to claim they have worked 
with SPSS that it would be beneficial, especially since other colleges are not covering SPSS.  Members mentioned that Salesforce is 
commonly used in the field and suggested that perhaps it would be possible to obtain a simulation or trial for students. 

4. Pre-work and feedback on sales and data analysis – Feedback from students has been positive.  They seem to feel that the course is 
improved and has an increased practical component. 

5. Highlight Marketing program review – Two focus groups were held in the fall and major concerns included the sales and research 
courses.  These areas have now been addressed and going forward are confident that the program is offering the right material to 
prepare students for the workplace.  Additionally, two external assessors spent the day at the college and met with students, PAC 
alumni and industry members.  Highlights of the review found that the program is broad with good scaffolding and is updated to reflect 
changes in the industry.  Recommendations included: 

 Increased social media and digital content in the second year – this has been implemented. 

 Field placement should have closer association with industry in GTA – addressed through marketing communications but would 
like to find more placements in Toronto to increase opportunities for better contacts, jobs and networks for the students.  Will 
continue to follow up in this area. 

 Strengthen content in communication courses with skills such as writing an RFP, specific reports or media items – these aspects 
can be included in the curriculum of other courses where possible. 

 Focus on marketing metrics, ROI and budgets – this has been implemented.     

 Changes to increase the focus of the program on digital and social media to make it more marketable and increase its 
competitiveness with other colleges. 

 Ongoing professional development for faculty.   
   

  

 
 
REPORT PREPARED BY:  V. Kee           DATE:   April 15, 2015  
 
DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN:  J. Spring SIGNATURE:     
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR:  R. Mattacott    
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Mechanical Technician – Plumbing Techniques 
School of Skilled Trades, Apprenticeship & Renewable Technology 

Minutes of April 28, 2015 
 

 

 
Mechanical Technician – Plumbing Techniques Membership List 
Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair 

*Brandon Bird 

 

 

 

Bird Mechanical 

External Committee Members   
Name Title Organization 
Brian Cochrane  Integracon Inc. 
Bill Clarke  Bill Clarke Plumbing & Heating Ltd. 
John Foster  Prairie Plumbing Ltd.  
Ryan Johnston  Brent’s Plumbing & Heating Ltd. 

*Jeff Hayes  Hayes Plumbing 

Jim Metrow  Mutual Mechanic 

Boris Varga  Mutual Mechanic 

*Kelly Vallencourt  Plumbing Doctor 

Ryan Voscek  Brent’s Plumbing & Heating Ltd. 
   
   
Elected Student/Alumni Representatives 
Name Year/Program/Alumni  

*Matt Murphy Alumni  

   

Elected Faculty/Staff   Representatives 

Name Title Organization 

*John Platnar Plumbing Program Coordinator Durham College 

*Richard Lamarche Plumbing Faculty Durham College 

Darrin Caron Dean/Principal Durham College 

*Pam Stoneham Associate Dean Durham College 

*Ed Westerdyk Plumbing Faculty Durham College 

   

   

Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff  
Name Title Organization 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

The Program team reviewed the curriculum with the attending members. Communications deals with cover 
letters, resumes, and references.  Proper plumbing trade terminology is extremely important for the students 
to understand. 
 
Benefit to students if they come out of the program with mandatory training certifications such as working at 
heights, worker awareness, etc.  
 
Employers felt the program provided students a good base upon completion. 
 
The role of SALS (academic upgrading) was discussed and how it can benefit more mature students who 
have been away from the math for an extended period. Pam Stoneham will follow up to see who can have 
access to the additional resources on the website. 
 
Instilling work ethic will be included in the theory course outline via the essential employability skills.  
 
Industry would like to see the following topics in the curriculum:  soldering, basic oxy-acetylene, cutting 
torches, filtration, softeners and basic water treatment.  
 
Pam announced Darrin’s retirement at the end of June.  
 
The program is expected to take in 80 students in January 2016.  
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

Put the mandatory training certifications in the program and add water conditioning into the program.  Pam 
Stoneham to investigate a MATH pre-test (ESCOT – Essential Skills Testing for the trades) before students 
start the program.  

 

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM PREVIOUS MEETING 

Send the Terms of Reference, program of study, and course descriptions to the members for review prior to 
next meeting.  Complete 
 
 
Next meeting date:  November 24, 2015 

 
 
REPORT PREPARED BY:  Mary Pearce DATE:  May 27, 2015  
 
DRAFT REVIEWED BY:  Pam Stoneham SIGNATURE:   
 
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR:   SIGNATURE:   
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Mediation – Alternative Dispute Resolution Program Committee 
School of Justice& Emergency Services 

Minutes of May 27, 2015 
 
 
 

 
Mediation – Alternative Dispute Resolution Programs Advisory Committee Membership List 
 
Note:  an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for the meeting. 
 

 
 
Name 

 
 
Title 

 
 
Organization 

Committee Chair 

Lorraine Joynt 

 

External Committee Members 

 

Mediator 

 

FSCO 

 

*Peter Spratt 

Debbie Hastings 

*Audrey Lea 

*Cathy Salmers 

*Kam Lovel 

*Susan Parsons 

Louise Lloyd 

 

 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

VP, Consulting Services 

Executive Director 

Accredited Family Mediator 

Mediatory & Collaborative Lawyer 

Family Mediator – Arbitrator 

Mediator 

Manager, Finance & Admin.  

Family Responsibility Office 

 

Collins Barrow DC 

Durham Community Legal Aid 

Ontario Court of Justice 

Salmers Law 

Ontario family Mediation 

Crossroads Family Solutions 

*Bryanne Gates 

Deena Misale 

Catherine Chan 

 

Elected Faculty/Staff   
Representatives 

Name 

Student 

Graduate 

Alumni 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Stephanie Ball (*Moreen Tapper) 

*Helen Lighstone 

*Suzette Lewis 

 

Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff  

None 

Dean/Associate Dean 

Faculty Rep//Coordinator 

CJA/Faculty Rep 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

   

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 

KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1. Minutes of October 15, 2014 were approved by P. Spratt and seconded by A. Lea.  CARRIED 
2. Industry Trends:   Legislation is currently being introduced for dispute resolution to be included in 

the Condominium Act.  ADRIO is offering training to deal with extended family before a senior 
family member’s health deteriorates.  Conflict in the workplace encompass boundaries within and 
the issue is how to assess this type of conflict.  Students should be encouraged to belong to a 
professional body and attend workshops/conferences for current trends and networking. AGENDA PAGE   172



3. Enrolment for fall 2015:  There are 50 applications with 11 confirmed, to date, with a projected 
enrolment of 25 students.  The Ministry has instituted a new policy that all students must pay a 
$500 deposit which may be non-refundable. 

4. Mediation Observation Opportunities:  The program and students are always seeking new 
opportunities to observe a mediation.  Establishing a Family Clinic onsite to provide mediations in 
areas such as landlord/tenant disputes or custody assess was suggested. 

5. Campus Conflict Resolution Services (CCRS):  The students were involved with only two 
mediations as students are reluctant to come forward.   As a pilot this winter, the tasks required of 
the students were handled partly in a classroom setting and partly on-line with great success and 
will be fully implemented next year.   The services are promoted/marketed by visiting classes and 
displays in vendor’s alley.  

6. Program of Studies Changes:  Two new courses are being introduced next year:  Community 
Mediation Training & Preparation and Community Mediation Field Placement.  The curriculum was 
originally part of the Campus Conflict Resolution Services course. 

7. Partnership with Community Justice Alternative:  Guest speakers from the Ontario Human 
Rights Commission and the Diversity Office provided students with a broader spectrum for 
mediations. 

8. MADR 5
th

 Anniversary:  It was held on campus in May and was a successful event.  Guest 
speakers included a former graduate and from the ADR Institute.  It also gave the students the 
motivation to continue through the end of the semester.  The program plans to have this type of 
event each year. 

9. Durham Catholic District School Board Initiative:    The Board has a dedicated classroom on 
campus and works with the college in providing high school students with the opportunity to attend 
classes and attain transferable credits.  The Board invited our students to do a mediation with four 
of their at-risk students and want to establish a working relationship with our program. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1. Information will be provided at the fall meeting on the training with extended family members by A. 
Lea. 

2. Workplace conflict assessment will be investigated further by H. Lightstone. 

3. The committee members are asked to forward any new mediation observation opportunities to H. 
Lightstone. 

4. The creation of a Family Clinic on campus will be discussed with S. Parsons and H. Lightstone.  

5. Advisory Committee members will be invited the yearly MADR event by H. Lightstone. 

6. Further discussion will be held on a partnership with W. Kane of the Durham Catholic School Board 
by S. Parsons, A. Lea and H. Lightstone. 

 

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM October 15, 2014 MEETING 

1. A proposal to market the program at university events will be pursued further by S. Ball.  
ONGOING 

2. A review of the delivery of the Legal Relationships for Non-Lawyers (on-line) course will be 
addressed during the mapping exercise by H. Lightstone    ONGOING 

3. The feedback from the CJA-DC pilot project will be reviewed for consideration in expanding it to 
other programs by H. Lightstone.   COMPLETED 

4. Observation opportunities should continue to be forwarded by the members to H. Lightstone.  
ONGOING 

5. CCRS and its services will be promoted at the school divisional meeting by S. Ball and H. 
Lightstone.  COMPLETED 

 
REPORT PREPARED BY: /M. Bartosik                                DATE:    May 28, 2015 

 DRAFT REVIEWED BY ASSOCIATE  DEAN: M. Tapper     SIGNATURE: __ 

APPROVED BY ACTING CHAIR:  H. Lightstone                 SIGNATURE: __ __ 
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Motive Power Technician Advisory Committee 
School of Skilled Trades, Apprenticeship & Renewable Technology 

Minutes of March 24, 2015 
 

 

 
Program Name Membership List 
Note:  an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for this meeting. 

 
Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair 

*Steve Good 

 

Service Manager 

 

Nurse Chevrolet Cadillac 

External Committee Members   
Name Title Organization 
   
Paul Fraser Technology coordinator Durham Catholic District School 

Board 
Jill Frazer OYAP Program Facilitator Durham District School Board 

*Gord Garner Owner Garner’s Auto Pro 

Ming Kong Service Manager Volkswagen 

*Stuart Peak Service Manager – Auto OWASCO 

Mark Verwey/*Adam Closter Service Manager – RV OWASCO 

*Keith Weidmark Owner LRP Automotive 

Tom Zekveld Owner Tomlin Auto 

   
Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

  

Name Title Organization 

Jake Burrows Year 2 Student  

Patrick Gould Year 2 Student  

Charles Fallow Year 1 Student  

*Johnathan Figueiredo Year 1 Student  

Elected Faculty/Staff 
Representatives  

  

Name Title Organization 

*Robert Grant Motive Power Professor Durham College 

*Darrin Caron Dean/Principal Durham College 

*Ralph Ruffo Motive Power Professor Durham College 

Guests/Unelected 
Faculty/Staff  

  

*Steve Quantrill Motive Power Professor Durham College 

*Muhammad Ali Year 1 student Durham College 

*Gary Lin Motive Power Contract Faculty Durham College 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

 External members indicated that business had been slow through February and March. Dealers do not 
feel the same slowdown as customers are buying new cars and therefore require warranty work. 

 Students would like to see MATH 1424 more trade specific, have the use of ShopKey5 and an 
opportunity to shadow employers to see a day in the life of an auto shop. 

 Motive Power program has recently under gone a program mapping; the results will be brought back 
to the committee for their review. 

 Students attending the meeting inquired about Automotive business-fix-operations, which will be 
addressed in the Intro to Small Business course..  

 Students indicated they would like the math to be automotive trade related versus the generic math 
they receive in MATH 1424.  Emphasis on trade examples to demonstrate the calculations will be 
used to apply the connection between the general math formulas and automotive trade calculations. 

 Faculty invited employers to the classroom to re-enforce the skills (customer service) they are looking 
for. 

 The employers indicated they would welcome student tours of their shops. 

 Darrin announced his and Judy Robinson’s retirement in June 2015. 
 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

 Implement an estimating component into the curriculum. 

 Next meeting:  Date to be confirmed. 
 

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM PREVIOUS MEETING 

 Steve Quantrill reported on his trip to Guyana, indicating the conditions under which the students are 
learning are less than ideal. They have a small shop, very few tools, and a limited budget. Donations 
would benefit the program tremendously. 

 
 
 
REPORT PREPARED BY:  Mary Pearce DATE:  May 22, 2015  
 

DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN:  Darrin Caron SIGNATURE:    
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR:  Steve Good SIGNATURE:   
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Office Administration Program Advisory Committee 
School of Interdisciplinary Studies & Employment Services 

Minutes of Wednesday, April 29, 2015 
 

 
Office Administration Membership List 
 
Note:  an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for this meeting. 
 
 
Name Title Organization 

 

External Committee Members 

 

 

 

*Donna Boyd 

Melissa Picard 

*Marianne Boucher 

Marnie Salonius 

Tina Powers 

*Suzanne Barrett 

 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

 

*Lisa Copson 

Korina Keays 

Genvieve Vezina 

Amy Serrano 

Michelle Osborne 

*Jennifer Wingate 

 

Program Officer 

 

Clerk 

Fundraising & Events Planner 

Education & Student Affairs 

Board Secretary 

 

 

 

 

Graduate 

Graduate 

Graduate 

Graduate 

Graduate 

Current Student 

Durham College 

 

Lakeridge Health Oshawa 

Community Living Oshawa/Clarington 

Ontario Shores 

ICSA 

 

 

 

 

 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Elected Faculty/Staff   
Representatives 

 

*Bev Neblett 

*Fran Jeffery 

*Dina Papaiakovou 

 

 

 

Associate Dean 

Professor 

Professor 

 

 

 

 

 

        

 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

 

Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff  

Name 

 

Title 

 

Organization 

  Jennifer Wingate, Recording Secretary 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 
1. Acceptance of Minutes of October 29, 2014 was deferred as quorum was not achieved. 
2. Addition to the agenda – Ride for Inclusion. 
3. External Membership:   

 Suzanne Barrett – first attendance at these meetings; introduced ICSA (Institute of Corporate 
Secretary’s Association) which has its head office in Ottawa, and allows students to experience 3 
streams of administration at one time; finds that Durham and ICSA have similar expectations; ICSA 
board meets in June, so will have more updates for Fall meeting; a high level of typing speed is 
required for graduates. 

 Marianne Boucher – handed out job postings to show what is being expected for applicants; 
summer is when people go on vacation, so more openings in summer; lots of abbreviations in 
medical jobs, and requires some entry level testing of these for employment; prefers being in 1 unit 
as gets to know Doctors and their writing, systems etc.; currently in Critical Care Unit at Lakeridge 
Health in Oshawa; finds that every hospital has different systems and runs differently even though 
under same “umbrella” of Lakeridge Health; does not remember billing practices as that is now a 
different department. 

4. College Update:   

 Actively sending out offers and converting application offers to confirmations for next academic 
year has begun. 

 The Spring Open House was March 21, 2015.  We had a good turn-out.  Spring Convocation for 
our school is set for Tuesday, June 9, 2015 at 10:00 a.m. at the G.M. Centre. 

 Durham College KPI scores highest among GTA colleges in key areas.  Durham College (DC) is 
committed to the success of our students while meeting the needs of our local communities and 
business and industry partners. One of the ways we evaluate our performance is through the 
Ontario government’s Key Performance Indicators (KPI) surveys and results.  The college is 
pleased to share that our efforts to ensure the student experience continues to come first at DC 
have translated into increases in three of five benchmark areas, as measured by the KPI surveys 
conducted over the last number of months.  Our student satisfaction, graduate satisfaction, and 
graduation rates have all improved, some significantly more than the system average, and are now 
highest of all colleges in the Greater Toronto Area (GTA).  

 Key Performance Indicator results are as follows: 
 

Graduate 
Employment 

Employer 
Satisfaction 

Graduate 
 Satisfaction 

Student 
Satisfaction 

Graduation 
 Rate 

85.1% 87.7% 78.7% 75.5% 69.0% 

5. School Update: 

 Target enrollment for the fall is projected 805 students for the fall semester.   We have 458 
confirmed applicants for our programs, 67 waitlisted, and 27 paid applicants. 

 Will be launching a pilot project of Communication course revisions Fall 2015 in GAS 

 April 22
nd

, the School hosted an Employer Appreciation reception for field placement 
agencies/organizations that had our students (Community Integration through Co-operative 
Education, Office Admin - Executive, and Office Admin - Medical) on placements this past 
academic year.   

6.  Program News: 

 Key Performance Indicator results for the program will be available at the fall meeting. 

 To date, the program has 90 applicants confirmed for fall intake, and 1 paid applicant.  Maximum 
enrollment capacity for the fall intake is 125 students:  25 Office Admin Certif., 20 Office Admin - 
Executive, 60 Office Admin – Medical and 20 Office Admin. Medical Fast Track. 

 Office Admin is going through curriculum revisions for year 2 programming.  Year 1 curriculum 
revisions will be in effect Fall 2015. The compressed delivery format of 3 days classroom 
instruction/week for Office Admin will begin in Fall 2015. The premise of this delivery format is to 
allow for increased growth in the program without increasing the classroom space that is already 
used for programming.   

 Year 2 curriculum development will occur over the 2015/16 academic year.   

 Approval was given to develop two new programs, Office Administration – Real Estate and Office 
Administration – Records Management.  Focus groups with external stakeholders to provide input 
on the curriculum content have been planned for the next month.  An update on the Program of 
Study for these courses will be provided at the next meeting. 

 Keyboarding expectations have changed, used to have to reach speed above what was required 
to pass, and now it is at level to pass. A lot of students were failing keyboarding with old 
expectations. 

 For medical jobs, need average of 40 words per minute (wpm) in typing speed. AGENDA PAGE   177



 For banking and legal jobs, need average of 80-120 wpm. 

 Students know how to type because of social media and online chat rooms etc., but not how to 
type properly. 

 Have looked into covering keyboards so students could learn the proper placement of fingers on 
keyboard. 

 Students lose speed as they have to look at the keys and switch back and forth to and from the 
screen and lose their place. 

7. Continuing Education Update: 

 Decrease in face-to-face enrolment, online enrolment is up. 

 Focusing more programs to be online based. 

 Office Administration Medical is holding its own in terms of in class enrolment. 

 8-10 students per class. 

 30 students in transcription, typing/keyboarding is built into the class. 

 If a course needs to be cancelled, used to do it 3 days prior to the start of the class, now do it the 
day before. 

 Class size can depend on the professor, if they are well liked, students will follow them. 

 Students register class by class not by stream, so do not know what stream they are in until they 
apply to graduate.  

 Currently is a very manual process to be in touch with students as have to go through class lists. 

8.  Student Voice: 

 Lisa - Currently looking for work. Graduated from medical administration program in December; 
placement was amazing; OBGYN in Ajax; learned a lot, and it assured her that is what she wants 
to do for a living; got very positive feedback from supervisors; did more work with patients than 
computer work; got asked to come back and volunteer after placement.  

 Jennifer - Current student in administrative executive program; just completed 1
st
 year; different 

experience, as already has 2 degrees so not first time in post-secondary environment; has 
experience doing administrative work, but will not be hired unless acquires post-secondary 
certificate in program; favorite class is based on the professor and how they teach, rather than the 
course subject. 

9.  Ride for Inclusion:  Kevin Baker, Dean of ISES is doing month-long charity bike ride to raise money for a 
bursary/scholarship for the students of the CICE program at Durham College; will ride his motorcycle 
from Deadhorse, Alaska to Key West, Florida; goal is to raise $30,000; can donate online/at ISES office 
or on social media; more details can be found about the Ride for Inclusion at: www.rideforinclusion.com   

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1. Program key performance indicators will be shared at next meeting,  
2. Program of Study and new curriculum will be discussed at Fall meeting. 
3. Select a committee chair. 
4. Next meeting date – October 28, 2015 at 6:00 p.m., Whitby Campus, Room TBD 

 
 

  

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM October 29, 2014 MEETING 

1. Deferred as quorum was not achieved. 

 

  

 
REPORT PREPARED BY:  J. Wingate           DATE:    April 29, 2015 
 
DRAFT REVIEWED BY ASSOCIATE DEAN:   SIGNATURE:    ____________________________ 
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR:   SIGNATURE:    ____________________________ 
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Operations Management Program Advisory Committee 
  School of Business, IT & Management 

          Minutes of April 8, 2015 
 
 
 
Operations Management Program Advisory Committee Membership List 
 
Note: an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for this meeting. 

 

Name Title 
Organization 

 

Committee Chair   

*Neil Harris Director of Content McGraw-Hill 

External Committee Members 
  

Helaman Charlesworth Operations Supervisor Oshawa Stevedoring Inc. 

Brent Coros Material Specialist Creation Technologies 

Colin Deans Materials Handling Coordinator Cameco Corporation 

Steve Elford Oshawa Terminal Operations 
Manager 

Canada Cartage 

Tim Hogenbirk Production Coordinator Ironstone Media 

*Cameron Munro Senior Production Team Lead Maple Leaf Foods 

*Carmelo Scaffidi Manager, Purchasing Lakeridge Health 

Michelle Shurland-Jadoo Solutions Performance Analyst Aecon Group Inc. 

Meaghan Snow Material Specialist Ontario Power Generation 

David Thebeau Global SCM Celestica 

Amy Wilkins Value Creation & Process 
Improvement 

Messier-Bugatti-Dowty Incorporated 

*John Wilson Owner Northern Technology Inc 

   
 
 
Elected Student/Alumni Representatives 

 
 

Year/Program/Alumni 

 

Jared Cory Alumni  

Adrienne Gulyas Alumni  

*Waleed Hamed 2/Operations  

Alex Hoddinott 3/Operations  

   
 
Elected Faculty/Staff 
Representatives 

  

*Dave Fletcher Professor School of Business, IT & Management 

*Jackie Shemko Program Coordinator/Professor School of Business, IT & Management 

*Jennifer Souch Professor School of Business, IT & Management 

   

Guests/Unelected 
Faculty/Staff  

  

*Jackie Bathe    Associate Dean    School of Business, IT & Management 

*Donna Boyd Program Officer School of Continuing Education 

*Victoria Kee Secretary School of Business, IT & Management 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1. Additions to Agenda:  none 
2. Agenda:  accepted by consensus of the committee. 
3. Minutes from October 22, 2014 were approved by consensus of the committee. 
4. External Membership Information Sharing: 

 In the automotive industry, limited assembly plants are booming.  Due to large expenditures for capital equipment the budget 
for payroll does not allow sufficient staffing.  Employees are commonly working six or seven day weeks.   

 The rapid drop in the Canadian dollar – 20% in five months – has caused significant increase to expenses.  The cost of oil is 
very resistant to decreases and electrical costs have increased from .08 cents to 18.5 cents over a short period of time.  
Additionally, there has recently been an increase in minimum wage.   

 Although 40-50% of the manufacturing industry in Ontario has been decimated in the last five years, it does seem to be 
increasing at this time.  If costs go down may continue to see an increase; however, Canada is now competing with Mexico, 
which has a very low labour cost. 

 Trend has been to move away from manufacturing products in China due to the instability there, increasing labour costs and 
high costs of transportation.  

 It is important to make sure students have sufficient curriculum covering the topic of supply change management.  It is very 
complex.   

 Students need to learn to communicate with individuals from different cultures without inadvertently causing offence.  
Bargaining is a very important skill when negotiating with some cultures.   

 Student expectations could be managed in the curriculum with regard to the demands of a job in Operations.  Industry 
members feel that contract positions and relocation may be barriers that prevent students from accepting positions.  Educating 
students about the structure of jobs in the field, including the likelihood of shift work, would help prepare them for their job 
search. 

5. College/School and Program update:  

 The program name for the three year diploma has been changed to Operations and Materials Management.  Students entering 
the three year program in the next academic period will graduate with the new title.   

 The school has been actively campaigning for conversion, with events such as the recent Open House and an active call 
campaign, because the number of applications is currently lower due to smaller pool of graduating high school students. 

 There will be new programs in the fall including Accounting and Payroll, International Business Management and Insurance.  
An application is in progress to introduce a Finance program in the fall of 2016. 

 Recently, approval has been given from SAP UA to grant additional recognition to students who achieve a minimum of 60% in 
the three SAP courses offered in the 3 year diploma.  Current year three students will be eligible. 

 An investigation is in progress to add a certificate in Excel through Microsoft as another credential for students to add to their 
resume. 

 Finding a placement for all students this semester has been a struggle.  The students from Brazil in a special international 
program still need to find unpaid placements that begin on May 4

th
.   

 Wal-Mart came to the campus and held a presentation for students to inform them of roles available in the organization.  
Students who were hired in the organization last year, shared their success stories.  

 There will likely be a program review in the near future due to the necessity of recent program standards review by the Ministry.  
These changes must come from the PAC recommendations so this will be discussed in more detail in the future. 

6. Continuing Education:   

 The number of enrolments for courses offered in class continues to trend downwards; however, online enrolment increased 
this year by 100-200 registrations.  The focus going forward will continue to be on providing online development of courses and 
programs. 

7. Student Voice:   

 The Excel class is quite in-depth.  Pivot tables are discussed for a short period of the course but would like to cover information 
regarding how and why they are used.  This seems to be a skill that will be important when working in the field.   

 It would be beneficial to cover more data analysis in the curriculum. 

 Although contract work is increasingly common, students do not seem to feel that this is a barrier, especially for those with little 
experience just starting to work in their field.  However, contract positions that require relocation would present more of a 
barrier due to the short term nature of the position.   

 Midterm marks in second year do not seem to be as transparent and students have more difficulty determining where they 
stand.  Students find that this feedback is very helpful at midterm time.  First year students receive midterm grades through 
MyCampus but these are not published for second or third year students unless teachers do it themselves through the 
gradebook. 

 Discussed choosing a student in semester two next year to represent the first year students for the spring meeting. 

 Students find that it is a challenge to get space to work as enrolment numbers increase and more programs are introduced.  
The Operations Management Society has been unable to obtain rooms for their meetings and has lost contact with students 
from different years.   

 The transportation class takes place during a three hour period one day per week and goes through the curriculum very 
quickly.  Students struggle with the scheduling of the course and find it difficult to make connections between the different 
topics discussed. 

 W. Hamed will be starting a placement at RBC in Toronto as a Junior Analyst.  This will be a four month internship and he is 
very excited to see how operations management fits into the finance sector.  RBC held a presentation for students and stated 
that they are expecting a high rate of retirement over the next 16 months and have hired 600 students across Canada, with a 
focus on hiring in the GTA area. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

1. Send a typical job posting along with the minutes. 

2. Follow up on inclusion of more in-depth information on pivot tables in the curriculum. AGENDA PAGE   180



3. Recruit first year student to the PAC committee in second semester for the next academic year. 

4. Follow-up on scheduling a common hour between students in different years of the program. 

5. Review finalized program standards at the fall meeting if the final standards are available at that time. 

6. Introduce purchasing program in classroom 

7. Look into grade report for students at midterm. 

8. Durham Workforce Authority reports update – C. Dean 

9. Discuss program review. 

10. Next Meeting:  Wednesday, October 28, 2015 Location: CFF  

11. Adjournment: 8:30pm 

 

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM October 22, 2014 MEETING 

1. Share report on annual curriculum review – this was forwarded to the committee after the last meeting. 
2. Report on sufficiency of change management curriculum – J. Shemko has met with the part-time faculty member who is planning 

on re-developing the ERP course.  Based on industry experience he recommends that the course focus more strongly on change 
management as it relates to the implementation of an ERP system and less on the transactional nature of ERP.  This update will 
begin to address the concerns surrounding change management curriculum.  Leadership and Project Management also had 
some change management additions to the curriculum.  This is an interim solution and will be re-evaluated in the future to 
determine if these changes are sufficient when the new program standards are published. 

3. Durham Workforce Authority reports update – C. Deans not present.  Will defer to fall meeting. 
4. Follow-up on presentation by Six Sigma trainers with Continuing Education – this course is scheduled to run from April 27-29

th
 

however still need to determine whether there is a sufficient number enrolled to run.  It seems likely at this time that the course 
will run. 

5. Discuss interim solution to internships – The ability to provide students the opportunity of an internship has continued and from 
student perspective is likely status quo.  The college is trying to create a co-op program as there are several advantages to this 
compared to an internship, including that students may not need to re-pay OSAP during a co-op.  Students would still have a 
$400 administration fee for the co-op but are supported throughout their internship/co-op.  

 
 

REPORT PREPARED BY:  V. Kee           DATE:    April 8, 2015 

DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN:  J. Spring SIGNATURE:     
 
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR:  N. Harris  
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Pharmaceutical & Food Science Technology  
Program Advisory Committee 

School of Science & Engineering Technology 
Minutes of April 16, 2015 

 

Pharmaceutical & Food Science Technology Committee Membership List 
 

Note: an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for this meeting. 
Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair   

*Wendy Smith Consultant/Professor Wendy Smith Executive Search/Durham College 

External Committee Members Title Organization 

Crista Grant Director, QA & Food Safety Hela Spice 

*Elaine Hatch 
Manager, Regulatory Compliance & 
Nutrition 

Kraft Canada Inc. 

Paul Hoogenboom President Hela Spice 

Dave Jagdeo VP of Operations Griffith Laboratories 

Lisa Nicholas-Ash Sales Associate Quadra Chemicals 

Estelle Parnell-Clunies Technical Director Sensient Flavors Canada Inc. 

Simone Porter QC Manager Maple Leaf Foods 

Nancy Rutherford Manager, Agriculture & Rural Affairs Regional Municipality of Durham 

Tamas Szederkenyi Sr. Director, QC Labs Teva Canada 

Margaret VanDeGevel Sensory Manager Griffith Laboratories 

Brenda Watson Principal Watson & Associates 

*Sherralyn Lee Mook 
Supervisor, QC Tech Services 
 

TEVA Canda 

Elected Faculty/Staff Representatives Title Organization 

*Kevin Kelly Professor School of Science & Engineering Technology 

*Christine Hand Professor School of Science & Engineering Technology 

*Iraj Mehrnia Professor School of Science & Engineering Technology 

*Joyce Myers Program Coordinator School of Science & Engineering Technology 

*Susan Todd Dean School of Science & Engineering Technology 

Student Representatives 

 

Title Organization 

Lauren Collins 2
nd

 year Student Durham College 

Clara Taylor 2
rd
 year Student Durham College 

Alicia Bogl 3
rd
 year Student Durham College 

Ben Smith 3
rd
 year Student Durham College 

AGENDA PAGE   182



 

KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

 

1. Welcome and Introductions:  W. Smith welcomed members. 
 

2. Additions to the Agenda:  None 
 

3. Acceptance of the Agenda:  The agenda was accepted by S. Todd. 
 

4. Approval of the Previous Minutes:  S. Todd approved. K. Kelly seconded. 
 

5. Actions arising from Previous Minutes:  None  
 

6. External Membership Information Sharing/Industry Trends:  The new reform with regards to 
proper nutritional facts food labeling is underway.  Industry is requesting a cost benefits analysis 
as there will be an exceptional amount of changes and will be very time consuming and the 
financial impact has yet to be determined.  Food & Consumer Products of Canada (FCPC) have 
listed their concerns with the changes.  The group discussed the importance of full disclosure in 
regards to ingredients vs. cost effectiveness.  
 

7. Student Voice:  L. Collins discussed her feelings in regards to Analytical Chemistry and how a 
change in the current ways that labs are assigned may ease the stress that the students are 
feeling.  She says that the UV Mini is monopolized, with some students not able to access the 
unit in order to finish the lab.  J. Myers said that there was once a time when students were able 
to complete the labs in the order that they chose; perhaps it is time to return that model so that 
the work can be completed.  The students asked if the possibility of having the labs balanced, so 
that overcrowding was not an issue; J. Myers said that the labs are balanced however, students 
who miss labs are currently allowed to join other labs in the week. 
 
B. Smith inquired as to whether the students can get lockers to store their work/items in.  J. Myers 
stated that starting in the Spring, lockers will be mandatory, although there will be a cost 
associated with them.  This was addressed because there were too many students bringing their 
large bags and accessories into the lab, creating an unsafe environment. 
 
The students expressed interest in having access to laboratory report templates.  They feel that if 
they saw a “real world” example of how to fill in a report, what a template looks like, and how to fill 
it in, they would better understand lab reports.  S. Lee Mook will look into getting a generic 
template from Teva.  
 
C. Taylor asked about HACCP certification.  I. Mehrnia said that the University of Guelph offers 
the training for approximately $900.00.  The group discussed the possibility of one person taking 
the training and then returning to “train the trainer”.  I. Mehrnia will investigate further.  
 
A. Bogl asked if it were possible to be provided with marketing materials for her to bring home to 
Windsor.  She said that she has strong ties to the community and former high school, and would 
like to take the opportunity to inform students in her area in regards to our Pharmaceuticals and 
Food Science program.  The group discussed sending A. Bogl with some program cards and 
information regarding Durham College to promote in her area. 
 
The group discussed that the other concerns brought forward by the students (could new 
equipment be purchased for A120, safety concerns regarding enforcement of safe behaviours, 
more pre-labs, placement, etc.); concerns will be discussed in a separate meeting. 
 

8. College/School Update:  S. Todd discussed with the group how the Pharmaceutical and Food 
program was one of the oldest programs in the school and how it is very unique.  To keep with 
provincial standards, the program will be under review in Fall 2015.  S. Todd requested that two 
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RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

1. Faculty to bring in sample to show how lab report should be done and to ensure consistency 
throughout the program.  ACTION BY:  K. Kelly & C. Hand 

2. S. Lee Mook to provide a template to Program Advisory Committee to review for possible student 
distribution as a learning tool.  ACTION BY:  S. Lee Mook 

3. Arrange for placement employers to attend a PAC meeting so that their input regarding 
placement, student effectiveness etc. could be heard.  ACTION BY:  W. Smith  

external members participate in the review because, in the past, external thoughts and ideas 
have helped make the program reviews successful and would add more value. 
 
S. Todd discussed with the group that there will be a posting for a new Field Placement Officer 
who will be responsible for workshops, collecting data, ensuring that all paperwork is submitted to 
Risk Management, and streamlining the placement process.  This individual will work exclusively 
in the Whitby Campus and the position is a welcome addition, relieving much of the stress on 
other faculty members.  Interviews for this position are expected to commence in June 2015. 
 

9. Food Related Outreach Update:  S. Todd is talking with industry leaders regarding Food 
Industry Canada and addressing what they feel they need from our graduates.  In regards to 
Career Ladders, is it possible for the food industry to reach out to the disadvantaged to train and 
put in the workforce?  The group discussed what may be needed to be successful: providing 
modules, food safety consulting, and proper evaluation and involving provincial and regional 
levels. 
 

10. Capital Planning QA/QC/Pharmaceutics:  This has been deferred to the Fall meeting and will 
be discussed by K. Kelly and I Mehrnia.  
 

11. Technical Report Writing, Career Planning& Portfolio Courses:  Learning outcomes are 
needed for this course, suggestions are welcome and encouraged as to what an employer would 
want a student to possess after taking a technical writing course.  S. Lee Mook suggested that 
teaching students how to use templates and how to create a template would be beneficial.  The 
group also discussed the value of students being able to articulate properly how and why 
something went wrong with an analysis. 
 
The Career planning course is expected to start for 2

nd
 year students in the Fall semester, as this 

year is seen as the “transition year”.  This course is expected to teach students interview skills, 
how to properly create a resume, attend workshops, and job searching.  The course would then 
take all the skills that the students have acquired and show them how to build a proper portfolio, 
showcase the culmination of their schooling.  Any suggestions to additional content is 
encouraged and welcomed. 
 

12. Review KPI & ACR Reports:  deferred to Fall 2015 meeting. 
 

13. Review the Food Processing Resources Council HACCP Exam:  This has been deferred to 
the next meeting and will be discussed by J. Myers and I. Mehrnia.  
 

14. Review QA/QC learning outcomes:  deferred to Fall 2105 meeting.  
 

15. STATS Course:  deferred to Fall 2015 meeting. 
 

16. Future Meeting Date:  Thursday, November 12, 2015 
 

17. Adjournment:  7:25 PM 
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4.  Faculty to bring in sample to show how lab report should be done and to ensure consistency  

5.  External PAC members to provide suggestions on what to be included in Technical Writing, 
Career & Portfolio courses.  ACTION BY:  Membership   

6.  Meet with Analytical Chemistry faculty lead to review lab policy.  ACTION BY:  J. Myers 

7.  I. Mehrnia to investigate HACCP certification possibilities.   ACTION BY:  I. Mehrnia 

 

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM October 16, 2014  MEETING 

1. Invite first, second and third year students to the PAC.  ACTION BY:  W. Smith and K. Kelly- 
Complete  

2. Audit PAC attendance, review membership numbers, release members who have not attended 
the last three meetings and send thank you letters to PAC attendees.  ACTION BY:  J. Head 
and S. Todd – completed by S. Todd & S. Barrett 

3. The next meeting invite is to include a message of understanding for members who are unable 
to attend.  The invites will also ask members to provide some external sharing trends and ask if 
members prefer different meeting times/formats.  ACTION BY:  J. Head – to be completed 

4. Connect with industry representatives and invite potential members.  ACTION BY:  I. Mehrnia 
and W. Smith- ongoing 

5. Distribute employer survey to industry representatives and conduct results from feedback 
ACTION BY:  W. Smith - ongoing 

6. Call Sherralyn Lee-Mook and invite her on alternating times for CLBT and PHRM PACS. 
ACTION BY:  K. Kelly and W. Smith - completed 

7. Meet to discuss the members after J. Head sends out minutes; J. Head to set up a meeting. 
ACTION BY:  J. Head, I. Mehrnia, W. Smith and S. Todd 

8. Look at program cards and website and see if it is realistically appealing to an older age 
demographic.  ACTION BY:  Program team - completed 

9. Share with PAC members, the Food and Beverage round table minutes when received.  
ACTION BY:  S. Todd - complete 

10. Send Elaine Hatch the QAQC course specifics.  ACTION BY:  K. Kelly - completed 
11. Program team to meet about modifying the admission criteria.  ACTION BY:  J. Myers, K. Kelly, 

I. Mehrnia – ongoing, math standards have changed. 
 
 

REPORT PREPARED BY:  Sarah Barrett                               DATE:  May 6, 2015 
 

DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN:  Susan Todd SIGNATURE:   
 
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR:  Wendy Smith                 DATE:    
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Recreation & Leisure Program Advisory Committee 
School of Business, IT & Management 

Minutes of April 1, 2015 
 
 

 
Recreation & Leisure Program Advisory Committee Membership List 

 
Note: an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for this meeting. 

 
Name Title Organization 

 

Committee Chair 
 

*Cory Lamb Assistant Aquatic Programmer City of Kawartha Lakes 
 

 
External Committee Members 

 

Sherrie Aldred Program Coordinator Arts Resource Centre 
*Patricia Baker Aquatic Director Boys and Girls Club of Durham 

Brendan Browne Manager of Recreation Services City of Oshawa 
Tanya Budgen Recreation Coordinator Township of Scugog 
Dan Cardoza General Manager Oshawa YMCA 

*Robin Jaffe-Hopkins Director of Recreation Revera Cedarcroft Place 
Cathy Kelly Manager Therapeutic Recreation & 

Volunteer Services 
Grandview 

Shannon Kelly Recreation Coordinator Township of Scugog 
*Jennifer Leo Director of Research Abilities Centre 
Jan McDonnell Aquatic Program Coordinator Legends Centre 

Erica Mittag Community Development Coordinator Municipality of Clarington 
*Amanda O’Keefe Practice Leader Ontario Shores 
Michele Peddle Team Leader Therapeutic Paws of Canada 
Debra Prescott Executive Director Oshawa Senior’s Centre 

*Colleen Zavrel Program and Services Director Oshawa Seniors Centre 
 

 
Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

 
Name Year, Program 
*Daniel Ashmeade Year 2 
Eileen Berardini Alumni 
Josh Bickle Alumni 

*Shelby Evans Year 2 
*Theresa Isaacs Year 1 

 

 
Elected Faculty/Staff 

Representatives 
 

Name Title Department 
*Kelly Ottenbrite Professor School of Business, IT & Management 
*Keri-Ellen Walcer Professor School of Business, IT & Management 

 

 
Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff 

 

Name Title Department/Organization 

*Judy Spring Dean School of Business, IT & Management 

*Donna Boyd Program Officer Continuing Education 

*Victoria Kee Secretary School of Business, IT & Management 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1. Additions to agenda: none 
2. Agenda: accepted by consensus of committee members. 
3. Minutes from November 4, 2014 approved by the consensus of committee members. 
4. External Membership Information Sharing: 

 Retirement homes are changing as the demands of retirees change.  There is an increased focus on offering Wi- 
Fi, computer-based programming and other technologies such as iPads. 

 Seniors are really embracing technology and have the time and desire to connect with their families this way. Web 
surfing, emails and games are popular as well as genealogy research with the use of sites such as ancestor.ca. 

 Current average age in retirement homes is 87-88. 

 In the mental health field yearly satisfaction surveys are given to patients.  Several years ago surveys revealed that 
patients were bored. An increased number of recreational therapists were hired but current surveys still reveal that 
patients are bored.  This puts a great deal of pressure on the recreation therapy department as 400-500 programs 

are currently being offered.  A committee has been formed to examine what other factors may be affecting patient 
satisfaction and hopefully positive action will result. 

 Industry members felt that extending the field placements for the full 14 weeks would be beneficial as most 
students from other schools attend for the full term. It gives students more time to learn and then apply their 
knowledge. 

 An interview night where the college invited employers to interview students would be beneficial as it would save 
agencies time by interviewing several students in a short period of time and allow them to make sure they have the 
right fit with a student. 

 A suggestion was made about the possibility of a full time block at the end of a placement that is otherwise two 
days per week.  However, some employers felt that two days a week allowed them to schedule around other 
placement students. 

 June is senior’s month and there are many events such as the Durham Senior Games, as well as horseshoe and 
badminton tournaments. 

 There is a new grant for aboriginal programming which is popular in Durham Region. 

 Workshops available for training on mental health and first aid, as well as baby boomer workshops. 

 Baby boomers are completely different – they require higher quality and are less concerned about cost. 

 Yoga programs are very popular and often have wait lists. 

 The Community Development class became involved in helping seniors collect plastic bags to make mats for third 
world countries.  There is a news clip from Channel 12 at this link:  http://www.channel12.ca/2015/03/30/oshawa- 
senior-puts-plastic-bags-to-good-use/ . 

 Camps for children will begin soon with high demand for spaces for young children.  The ratio of caregivers is 1:3. 

The caregivers are able to offer medical conditions such as SA catheterization, G-tube and medications.  Many 
different camps are offered such as Day Trippers camp which visits different locations within the community or 
constraint-induced camps which focus on restraining the dominant side in order to strengthen the weak side.  New 
this year in cooperation with speech therapy, is a camp that targets picky eaters by focusing one food each day to 
help alleviate children’s fears of that food. 

 There is a large demand for adult programming in the evening. 

 The leadership program is currently going through a big change due to the fact that Red Cross is re-formatting their 
courses.  There will now be online content and a smaller in-class portion. This could potentially cause a shortage 
of swimming instructors in the area as some municipalities are pulling the courses and there is a high demand for 
swimming instructors.  The result of these changes may be an easier process to earn certification as a swimming 
instructor due to less course time and more at home learning. 

 Many industry members continue to use Class Software.  The old version is not currently supported and the new 
version is not fully developed but many continue to use the old version without support.  Some industry members 
are switching to ActiveNet. 

 Canadian content is important in course material as there are large differences even between provinces. 
5. College/school and Program update: 

 Durham College is doing well with a 3% increase expected for next year. 

 There is a proposal for a joint venture between UOIT, Trent and Durham College for capital investment in a new 
health building. 

 The School of Business, IT & Management has just under 2000 students. 

 In the fall two new programs will be introduced including Insurance as well as Accounting and Payroll.  Recently 
also received approval for a Human Resources – University Transfer program which will involve 5 embedded 
university courses and allow students to directly enter the third year of the degree program at UOIT. 

 In fall 2015, the Recreation & Leisure first year class was smaller than preferred and it is hoped that there will be a 
turnaround. No external pressures seem to be causing this decrease and other related programs were not 
similarly affected. 

 An agreement has been signed with Brock University so that graduates of the Recreation & Leisure program have 
advanced standing, with just over one year. An agreement has also been secured with Hartpury College in 
England where students can obtain a degree in one year for Sports Studies. 

 Recruitment phone calls have been made to students who had selected Recreation & Leisure as first or second 
choice. This has been successful and resulting in meeting several students and made contact with many more. 
There are currently 22 students confirmed for the fall which is increased from last year already. 

 Two placements will be available for students as of the fall of 2016 which will include both a fall and winter 
semester placement. AGENDA PAGE   187
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 There is a new website dedicated to the Recreation & Leisure program which will allow employers and students to 
connect directly.  Postings for volunteer positions, part-time jobs, camp positions and placements can all be placed 
on this website. Will be sending the link and instructions soon. 

 The program was able to get the funding to send two students to the PRO Conference based on recommendations 
from the last PAC meeting. 

6. Continuing Education: 

 There is a continuing trend towards online programming. The Continuing Education department is restructuring to 
continue to focus on online programming.  By September, 80% of courses should be available online and hopefully 
all courses will be available by the end of the next academic year. 

7. Student voice: 

 The conference was amazing and the trade show allowed students the opportunity to see the trends in different 
industries. 

 Two days of class has been enjoyable and offers a lot of freedom and flexibility for other commitments. 

 Business and Community Development was very difficult at first but did become more hands-on as the course 
progressed. 

 Overall, transition from first to second year has been smooth and students find they are applying a lot of 
information gained in first year. 

 The addition of an outdoor recreation certificate would be beneficial to students who want to focus on this area of 
the industry, such as Wilderness First Aid or Low Ropes. 

 Many job postings for positions in Therapeutic Recreation ask for a recreation credential with a minimum of three 
courses that focus on Therapeutic Recreation.  Employers want to see proof that you know how to do an 
assessment. 

 The CICE was a great project and went really well.  Students worked with community integration students in a 
partnership to perform an assessment and then create a program with objectives and complete it. 

 Covering research helped so much with other projects. 

 Students would like more outdoor and hands-on projects. 

 There is very low attendance at the 8 a.m. class on Friday mornings. 

 Smaller communities are realizing the importance of introducing recreation programs.  Seminars are available that 
offer students an opportunity to connect with potential future employers. 

8. Additional Agenda Items: 

 Update on ORSIE and call for research collaboration opportunities – K. Ottenbrite is a research coordinator for the 
School of Business, IT & Management but the focus of most current research is on the IT sector. Currently, an 
attempt is being made to introduce more research into other aspects.  If any industry members have research 
projects that would benefit from collaboration they can contact K. Ottenbrite. 

 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

1. Update on dual credit courses at local high schools. 
2. Update on development of Volunteer Management course through Continuing Education. 

3. Follow-up on marketing through camp managers with program cards and/or guest speakers from the college. 
4. Review course packs as an alternative to textbooks for some courses. 
5. Review placement hours requirement and consider extending to 14 weeks (200 hours) with the possibility of a one 

week block at the end of the semester. 
6. Update on the implementation of an interview night for the winter semester for field placement supervisors. 
7. Investigate an added certification opportunity to the Outdoor Recreation course. 
8. Follow-up on the potential of additional Therapeutic Recreation content in the program. 
9. Provide information on the website forum for posting field-placement, volunteer and employment opportunities. 

10.  Next Meeting: Wednesday, November 4, 2015 Location: TBA 
11.  Adjournment:  10:05 a.m. 

 

 
STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM November 4, 2014 MEETING 

1. Update on dual credit courses at local high schools – Currently have a dual credit running at Brock High School in 
Cannington which is going well.  The class came to visit the campus here at Durham College.  Experiencing 
difficulty touching base with other high schools. Will follow up with Gail McKenzie. 

2. Update on development of Volunteer Management course through Continuing Education – This is an additional 
offering that may be attractive to people working in the industry.  There is a Management Volunteer course offered 
by the Activation Coordination in Gerontology graduate certificate and this course material may be adaptable. 
Donna Lockhart is an industry expert. 

3. Review progress on updated marketing campaign and Durham College booth at a conference – There is a video in 
progress for the website taken in class and on field trips.  The website is currently being updated as there was 
some outdated information.  Two students were sent to the PRO Conference this year.  This was a great 
experience for the students but a booth may not be beneficial as far as marketing the program due to the fact that 
attendees of the conference are industry members and therefore there is not necessarily a good applicant pool. 
There was a suggestion at the meeting of targeting students who are starting summer jobs at community centers 
by providing them with marketing materials or possibly even involvement in orientation/training days. Programs 
cards were distributed at the meeting. Another suggestion was to target a college with a PSW program as this is 
an untapped market. 
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4. Follow-up on promotion of program through visits to high school leadership classes – K. Ottenbrite visited one high 
school and felt that the presentation to students was very positive. Will continue to follow up with schools as it was 
difficult to obtain responses. S. Evans will be making a presentation in Career Classes and will provide K. 
Ottenbrite with contact information. 

5. Discuss review of textbook requirements – There is very mixed opinion among students regarding textbook and 
this is a topic that is always under review.  Many students do make use of their textbooks to supplement lectures 
while others choose not to.  Comments made on surveys from graduating students are taken into consideration 

when deciding whether or not to keep a textbook.  Some textbooks were removed due to cost.  Suggestion was 
made to create a course pack with required readings to collect Canadian content from different sources and 
provide a lower cost alternative to textbooks for the students. 

 

 
 
 
REPORT PREPARED BY:  V.Kee DATE: April 1, 2015 

DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN: J. Spring SIGNATURE:  

APPROVED BY CHAIR: C. Lamb SIGNATURE: 
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Water Quality Advisory Committee 
School of Science & Engineering Technology 

Minutes of April 8, 2015 
 

 

 
 

Water Quality Advisory Committee Membership List 
 
Note:  An asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for the meeting. 
 

Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair   

*Lory Jackson Wastewater Technician Ontario Clean Water Agency 

External Committee Members Title Organization 

Shannon Boland Drinking Water Inspector Ministry of the Environment 

*Ian Chin Manager, Water Treatment Toronto Water 

Jim Cunningham Supervisor, Technical Support The Regional Municipality of Durham 

Jodi Glover CEO Real Tech Inc. 

Ian King Construction Coordinator York Region 

Jim MacFarlane Manager of Water Services Lakefront Utility Services Inc. 

*Gord Newlands Plant Technician Wastewater Region of Durham 

*Rebecca Pinsent Wastewater Operator City of Toronto 

Don Ross Operations Manager, Kawartha 
Hub 

Ontario Clean Water Agency 

*Miroslaw (Mirek) Szafirowski Chief Maintenance Operator The Regional Municipality of Durham 

*Alex Vukosavljevic Consultant Toronto Water/Region of York 

*Craig Brooks   

Elected Student/Alumni Representatives Year/Program/Alumni Organization 

*Kyle Lowenreid 1
st
 Year Student Durham College 

*Kevin Round 1
st
 Year Student Durham College 

Elected Faculty/Staff Representatives Title Organization 

*Beau James Professor Science  Engineering Technology 

Joy Lavergne Program Officer Continuing Education 

*Ron Motum Professor Science & Engineering Technology 

Teresa Sweetman Professor Science & Engineering Technology 

*Corrie Stender Professor Science & Engineering Technology 

*Susan Todd Dean Science & Engineering Technology 

Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff Title Organization 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

 

1. Welcome & Introductions:  L. Jackson welcomed members and asked everyone to introduce 
themselves. 
 

2. Additions to the Agenda:  Report from Continuing Education from J. Lavergne, reported by S. 
Barrett. 
 

3. Acceptance of the Agenda:  L. Jackson accepted and A. Vukosavljevic seconded 
 

4. Approval of Previous Minutes from October 8, 2014:  L. Jackson approved, and R. Motum 
seconded. 
 

5. Discussion Items: 
  
5.1 External Membership Information Sharing/Industry Trends:  A. Vukosavljevic reported that 

in York Region, they have switched to 7/24 split operations.  I. Chin reported that there are 
many employees retiring from Toronto Water; posting of tech jobs quarterly; students should be 
keeping their eyes out for postings soon.  I. Chin also added that Toronto Water has developed 
programs to grab students out of school.  L. Jackson contributed that all employees who retire 
before 2017 from OCWA will get 100% of their benefits paid out.  The College is encouraged to 
inform students to apply.  S. Todd asked if any of the representatives would be willing to come 
to campus to recruit, or if they could ask their HR departments about partnering with the college 
for a job fair; remind the employers that Durham College is a resource.  
 
The group discussed what is important to know when applying for jobs, which programs and 
courses would help students most when applying.  The group discussed the importance of 
SCADA, and how it benefits the students.  L. Jackson says that 24 operators in OCWA are 
using SCADA and it is very useful to know and have.  M. Szafirowski said that the large 
SCADA project at Durham Region is going ahead in waste & water, although it is hitting some 
hurdles. The ultimate goal is to use SCADA fully.  iFix software is being used in Toronto, York 
and Cobourg.  Could more SCADA training for students be useful for when they are applying 
for positions, and on the job?  B. James said that the students are using SCADA in case 
studies and learning how the SCADA works. 
 
C. Brooks suggested that Durham College could come and speak at the next EOWWA 
conference, upcoming on October 14

th
 & 15

th
.  S. Todd is welcome to discuss with the 

attendees about certificates/certification and professional development.  
 

5.2 Student Voice:  The students are enjoying using MS Word, Excel, PowerPoint, but 
recommend less PowerPoint to focus on more Excel - is there a way to learn how to integrate 
the software?  The group discussed the pros and cons to adding and taking away from courses 
and decided that the STATS course provides additional Excel.  K. Lowen-Reid feels that the 
Communications classes are taught backwards, that the interviews and resume work should 
have been closer to the beginning of the semester.  The “Mix & Mingle” would have benefitted 
better if the students had prepared resumes and cover letters.  The math classes are hit and 
miss; UOIT students are allowed to use a “cheat sheet”.  S. Todd confirmed that the graduates 
of the water program learn math the way that it would be used in the field, unlike UOIT students 
who would be manipulating data and changes to the current math would be unnecessary.  K. 
Round asked if it were possible for the students to be introduced to and involved with, 
professional groups.  C. Stender and R. Motum will compile a list of professional groups to 
send out.  
 

5.3 College/School Update:  There will be a new Vice President, Academic starting in June, Judy 
Robinson is retiring.  
 
Pathways for students are being explored by enhancing the diploma – a pathway to a 
Bachelor’s and perhaps beyond.  A pathway to UOIT is inevitable, with other universities in 
sight.  The group discussed other possible universities:  Thompson Rivers University, California 
State University and Trent University. 
 
The “Mix & Mingle” is being considered a success as there was an excellent industry turn out, 
and holding the event during the day seemed to capture more people.  It was agreed that the AGENDA PAGE   191



Centre for Food might be too small to hold everyone next time; perhaps out in the community 
would be better.  S. Todd suggested Duffin’s Creek in Ajax; maybe further west to grab 
attention from Halton region as well.  
 
OWWA is looking for 10 students to attend the conference.  C. Stender has told 1

st
 and 2

nd
 year 

students, could be a good networking opportunity.  S. Todd said that networking will be 
discussed in the upcoming Career Development course.  A. Vukosavljevic brought up the fact 
that some students were confused and thought that it was a job fair. 
 

5.4 New Water Course:  C. Stender described the new water course as a “topics course” 
discussing different hot topics of the year (anything new from industry, new technologies, 
reverse osmosis, deceleration, precious metals residuals).  Input is welcomed because the new 
course will be fluid and ever changing, unlike the more static courses. The group discussed the 
importance of emergency preparedness, how to address spills, the huge industry for water 
towers and cooling towers.  
 

5.5 Technical Writing Course: S. Todd described the need for a new type of writing course for the 
School of Science students.  S. Todd asked the group for any suggestions that they see/feel 
out in the industry that the students would benefit from.  The committee discussed the 
importance of focusing on writing, articulation, etiquette, compliance, getting student to read 
annual water reports and use raw data to build a report, e-mailing. C. Brooks added that the 
better your writing skill, the better chances you have in moving up in a company. 
 

5.6 Career Planning & Development: S. Todd opened the discussion in regards to what the 
students should focus on for career development.  The consensus from the group was email 
etiquette and social media presence should be discussed in length so that students are aware 
that what they put out into the world can be seen by anyone. C. Stender says that career 
development is important so that students can find jobs themselves; the feedback from 
employers is that most students are interviewing poorly, and many students do not follow up on 
interviews. 
 

5.7 Canadian Council of Technician & Technologist Accreditation:  S. Todd asked the group 
the value of being accredited and if the College should pursue accreditation from CTAB.  R. 
Motum suggested that OACTTT is not required, but helpful. G. Newlands said that the East is 
very big on OACETT and that anything you do should be added to your resume; more valued 
by companies. 
 

5.8 Continuing Education Update:  In lieu of J. Lavergne, S. Barrett shared with the group the 
contribution from Con-Ed:  There are 61 people being trained from Region of Durham who will 
be taking Intro to Water and Waste Water.  
 
The group discussed the possibility of working with the Region to get them more involved;  
possibility of Region employees taking full college course; perhaps even including Toronto and 
Cobourg. C. Brooks suggested that he could meet with J. Lavergne in regards to getting the 
East involved.    
 

6. Elect New Chair:  TBD 
 

7. Future Meeting Date:  November 5, 2015 
 

8. Adjournment:  7:10pm 
 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1. Elect new chair for Fall advisory meeting.  ACTION BY:  S. Barrett 
2. Set up meeting between S. Todd, C. Brooks, I. Chin & J. Lavergne regarding Con-Ed opportunities 

for other regions to take classes and CEUs.  ACTION BY: S. Barrett  
3. Susan Todd to discuss professional development at next EOWWA conference in October. Lory 

Jackson to participate as alumni.  ACTION BY: S. Todd 
4. Susan Todd to follow-up regarding Municipal Management certificate, UOIT Pathways and new 

Water course.   ACTION BY:  S. Todd 
5. Email sent to PAC containing current professional organizations, suggestions to be made to add to 

and prepared for Fall.  ACTION BY:  C. Stender, R. Motum and S. Barrett  
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STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM  October 8, 2014 MEETING 

1. Check when this PAC is due for a re-election of new chair.  ACTION BY: J. Head Complete: 
L. Jackson has chaired for the past 6 advisory meetings.  A new chair should be elected at the 
spring advisory. 

2. Discuss adding a thank-you letter writing field placement seminar with Wendy Smith as well as the 
possibility of developing an online survey for feedback from field placement supervisors.  ACTION 
BY: S. Todd and W. Smith - ongoing 

3. Compile the course outlines and send them out; Revaluate GNED courses.  ACTION BY:  C. 
Stender - ongoing 

4. Submit GNEDs to W. Smith by January.  ACTION BY:  C. Stender - complete 
5. Email Doug Suppelsa and copy Corrie Stender and Sue Todd to check on status of action number 

4 from February 19, 2014 meeting. Share waste water portion of the minutes as well.  ACTION BY: 
J. Head – Complete 

6. A Student Social is to be planned sometime in October.  ACTION BY: C. Stender - ongoing 
7. Send program cards to the Region of Cobourg.  ACTION BY:  J. Head - Complete 
8. Ask Joy if the online water courses offered are CEU certified.  ACTION BY: C. Stender  
9. Send pictures to the PAC regarding pump carts.  ACTION BY:  C. Stender 

 

  

 
 
REPORT PREPARED BY:  Sarah Barrett             DATE:   Thursday, April 30, 2015 
 

DRAFT REVIEWED BY DEAN:  Susan Todd SIGNATURE:   
 
 
APPROVED BY CHAIR:   SIGNATURE:    
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Youth Justice & Interventions Program Advisory Committee 
School of Justice & Emergency Services 

Minutes of May 26, 2015 
 

 
Youth Justice & Interventions  Program Advisory Committee Membership List 
 
Note:  an asterisk in front of the name indicates the member was present for this meeting. 
 
Name Title Organization 

Committee Chair 

Craig Knight 

 

External Committee Members 

 

DDSB Special Education Teacher 

  

Grove School 

Paul.Baff 

Jarek Baginski 

Nancy Best 

*Jill Dallaire 

Sharon Kilstoff 

*Shelley Lawrence 

Mary Jarrell 

*Geoff Leatherdale 

Angela Moncada 

Janice McLeod 

*Marlene Pike 

Jennifer Phillips 

Tammy Tully 

Barb Yarrow 

 

Elected Student/Alumni 
Representatives 

Supervisor 

 

Executive Director 

Youth Justice Services 

 

Director, Community & Just. Serv. 

Assistant Crown Attorney 

Program Coordinator 

Youth Services 

Community Corrections 

Executive Director 

Day Treatment Manager 

 

 

 

 

Year/Program/Alumni  

Kinark/Syl Apps Youth Centre 

Durham Family Court Clinic 

Murray McKinnon Foundation 

Boys & Girls Club of Durham 

Durham CAS 

John Howard Society 

Ministry of Attorney Gen. 

Ajax Kennedy House 

Kennedy House 

Durham Regional Police 

Kinark/Sl Apps Youth Centre 

Enterphase Child & Family 

Joanne’s House 

Durham Regional Police 

 

 

 

Melanie O’Neill 

 

Elected Faculty/Staff   
Representatives 

Name 

*Stephanie Ball 

Jennifer Laffier 

*Tracey Marshall 

Shameen Sandhu 

Alumni 

 

 

 

Title 

Dean 

Professor 

Coordinator/Professor 

Professor 

UOIT 

 

 

 

Organization 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

Durham College 

 

Guests/Unelected Faculty/Staff  

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
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KEY POINTS OF DISCUSSION 

1. Minutes of November 20, 2014 were approved by M. Pike and seconded by T. Marshall with the 

amendment to #6.  Last sentence should read:  M. Pike volunteered to do a presentation on the 

restructured Durham Children and Youth Planning Network (strategic planning alliance.)  CARRIED                                                                                                                                   

2. Industry Trends:  Children’s Mental Health released a report card on waiting times for mental health 

assistance, strengths, improvements and required actions.  Members of DRPS, Durham District School 

Board and Children’s Aid attended Saskatchewan Day which formalized the collaboration of all the 

agencies.  Kennedy House is hiring front line youth workers and part time staff.   Human trafficking has 

become an emerging trend amongst all the agencies.  The Ministry of Attorney General’s website offers a 

certificate on human trafficking which is comprised of 12 modules.   Youth Justice Services is seeking 

volunteers of all ages for a commitment of 2 hours per month minimum and MAG will provide the weekend 

training.  Youth Justice Services are recruiting for volunteers for the Justice Conference that will be held 

this fall.  The Bowmanville Lions Club held a community session on aboriginal training. 

3. Youth Conference Update:  The conference held on April 14
th
 at Ontario Shores was organized by our YJI 

students with 120 in attendance.  It provided a one-day training session on the use of structured 
assessment of violence risk in youth by Dr. Forth.   Plans for next year’s conference will commence in the 
fall and the intent is to offer another training certificate. 

4. Applications for 2015-2016:  To date, there are 25 confirmed applicants for 30 seats in the program that is 
offered at the Pickering Learning Site. 

5. Mental Health First Aid:  The mental health/first aid training was embedded into the curriculum this year. 
6. Field Placement:  The feedback from the host agencies was very positive, and they were impressed with 

the caliber of our students.  The students displayed some anxiety on the type of youth they would be 
dealing with. 

7. Membership:  Suggestion was made to invite someone from the Kawartha Pines School Board to 
participate on this committee.   

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS  

1. The Children’s Mental Health Report Card will be forwarded by M. Pike to M. Bartosik for inclusion with the 
minutes. 

2. Content on human trafficking will be investigated and incorporated into the curriculum by T. Marshall and 
faculty. 

3. Members are asked to submit any suggestions/ideas on a training certificate or guest speakers for next 
year’s YJI Conference to T. Marshall.  

4. S. Baker from Safe Schools at the Kawartha Pines School Board will be invited as a new member of this 
committee by T. Marshall. 

5. Information on aboriginal training will be forwarded by S. Lawrence to T. Marshall. 

6. S. Baker from the Kawartha Pines School Board will be invited to participate on the committee by T. 
Marshall. 

 

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONSFROM (MAY  15, 2014) MEETING:  

1. The brochure for the YJI (YCI) conference will be forwarded to all the advisory committee members by T. 
Marshall when it is available.    COMPLETED 

2. The new Principal of Grove School, Caysi Stark, will be invited by T. Marshall to be a member of the 
advisory committee.    ONGOING 

3. Marlene Niskala of the Murray McKinnon Foundation will be invited by T. Marshall to be a member of the 
advisory committee.   COMPLETED 

 

 

 

 

 

 
REPORT PREPARED BY:  M. Bartosik           DATE:    May 27, 2015 

DRAFT REVIEWED BY   DEAN:  S. Ball  SIGNATURE:    ____ _______ 
 

APPROVED BY  ACTING CHAIR:  T. Marshall                         ____ 
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 Board of Governors - 1 - June 8, 2015 
PUBLIC 

BOARD REPORT 
 
       Action Required: 
Public        Information/Discussion  
In-camera      Decision    
  

 
MEETING DATE: June 8, 2015 
 
REPORT DATE: June 2, 2015 
 
FROM:  David Chambers, president, Durham College Foundation 
 
SUBJECT: Durham College Foundation – Annual Investment 

Performance Report 
 
 
A. Purpose 

A report to update the Board of Governors on the annual investment performance 
report. 
 
B. Background 

As per the Minister’s Binding Policy Directive 2.0 Finance and Administration – The 
Board of Governors is to review and approve at least annually an investment 
performance report.  The Durham College Foundation Investment Policy requires the 
Foundation to report annually on the status of its investments to the Durham College 
Board of Governors. This report was reviewed by the Audit and Finance Committee at 
its meeting of June 1, 2015. The Audit and Finance Committee recommended that 
the Board receive the report. 
 
C. Discussion/Options 

The total value of the equity of the Durham College Foundation increased from 
$15,143,052 to $16,029,648 during the 2014-15 fiscal year. This represents an 
increase of $886,596. The following table shows the movement in the value of the 
equity during the 2014-15 fiscal year.  

 

Beginning value of equity as at April 1, 2014 $ 15,143,052 

Add: contributions made during 2014-15 fiscal year $      268,127 

Add: interest, dividends and gains on portfolio $   1,363,293 

Less: withdrawals made $    (744,824) 

Ending value of the equity as at March 31, 2015 $ 16,029,648 

Net increase/(decrease) in the value of the equity $      886,596 
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 Board of Governors - 2 - June 8, 2015 
PUBLIC 

Contributions of $268,127 include donations received for endowed and expendable 
scholarships and bursaries.  Please note capital contributions by definition are not 
included in this investment report.  
 
Withdrawals of $744,824 from the portfolio included $199,824 for funding the annual 
scholarship and bursary awards, and athletic awards, the one-time grant from the 
Durham College Foundation of $345,000 to the Centre for Food (CFF) campaign, and 
$200,000 interest from the Lois Sleightholm account for the CFF.  
 
The total of interest, dividends and capital gain on portfolio represents 9.0% of the 
beginning value which is above the 6-8% return we set as our goal. 
 
The investment portfolio at the end of the 2014-15 fiscal year was comprised of 43% 
Fixed Income and 57% Equity. Under the current market conditions, this reflects an 
increase in Fixed Income and a reduction in Equity exposure. This portfolio mix 
complies with the Foundation Investment Policy, that total investments in Fixed 
Income remain above a minimum of 30% and that Equity remain below a maximum of 
65%. This is part of our long term objective to achieve a 50-50 ratio.  
 
I would like to extend appreciation to the Durham College Foundation Investment 
Committee chaired by Gordon Sedgewick and to the Durham College Department of 
Finance for their input to adhere to the Investment Policy parameters, navigate in 
uncertain times, earn income and of utmost importance, to safeguard the principle i.e. 
the donor’s contributions in the endowment fund. 
 
D. Financial/Human Resource Implications 

Not applicable 
 
E. Implications for the Joint Campus Master Plan (if applicable) 

Not applicable 
 
F. Implications for UOIT (if applicable) 

Not applicable 
 
G. Recommendation(s) 

That the Durham College Board of Governors receives the 2014-2015 Durham 
College Foundation Investment Performance Report. 
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BOARD REPORT 
 
        Action Required: 
Public:        Discussion  
In-Committee:       Decision  
  

 
MEETING DATE: June 8, 2015 
 
REPORT DATE: June 2, 2015 
 
FROM:   Nevzat Gurmen, VP Corporate Services and CFO 
 
SUBJECT:   Durham College 2014 – 2015 Audited Financial 

 Statements 
 
 
A. Purpose 

A report to recommend approval of the Durham College 2014-2015 Audited 
Financial Statements.  

 
B. Background 

As per Minister’s Binding Policy Directive 1.0 Governance and Accountability, 
Audited Financial Statements, each college is required to provide the Ministry 
with audited financial statements after the end of every fiscal year.  The key 
purpose envisioned here is transparency and accountability to the public and to 
the government. 

The directive states the Board of Governors is responsible for: 

 Approving the audited financial statements. 

 Ensuring that the audited financial statements are submitted to the 
Ministry by June 15 of each year. 

 Ensuring that the audited financial statements are made available to the 
public. 

This report also aligns with Durham College By-law #1, per the Audit and 
Finance Committee terms of reference. 

As is common practice of the College, the audited financial statements were first 
reviewed and received by the Audit and Finance Committee on June 1, 2015 and 
are recommended for approval by the Board of Governors.  Therefore, Durham 
College presents the year end consolidated financial statements for 2014-2015 
as compiled by BDO Canada, external auditor. 

 
C. Discussion/Options 

Once approved by the Board of Governors in public session the audited financial 
statements shall be filed with MTCU by the June 15, 2015 deadline.   
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D. Financial/Human Resource Implications 

N/A 
 

E. Implications for the Joint Campus Master Plan (if applicable) 

N/A 
 
F. Implications for UOIT (if applicable) 

N/A 
 
G. Recommendation(s) 

That the Board of Governors approves the 2013-2014 Audited Financial 
Statements. 
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BOARD REPORT 
 
       Action Required: 
Public   X      Information/Discussion X  
In-camera      Decision    
  

 
MEETING DATE: June 8, 2015 
 
REPORT DATE: June 3, 2015 
 
FROM:  Judy Robinson 
 
SUBJECT:  Quality Assurance and Program Review 
 
 
A. Purpose 

This report provides an overview of compliance with the college’s quality assurance 
requirement to conduct a comprehensive program review for each Program of 
Instruction, or cluster of programs, every 5 to 7 years.  This report is provided for 
information.   

 
B. Background 

Durham College embraces a culture of quality and continual improvement. Each 
postsecondary program undergoes a rigorous review and assessment every five to 
seven years to ensure the quality of the program and to ensure the program 
continues to:  

 Be responsive to economic and societal needs, as well as meet the  
   expectations of students and employers.  

 Comply with the Minister’s Binding Policy Directive, Framework for Programs  
   of Instruction;  

 Meet or exceed the MTCU Program Standards (where they exist); and 

 Fulfill the expectations of the Ontario College Quality Assurance Services  
(OCQAS)– Program Quality Assurance Process Audit (PQAPA) Criteria.   

 
 

The program review and renewal process consists of a rigorous assessment of the 
current quality of the program using the program review and renewal Self-Study that 
is based on the criteria of the OCQAS PQAPA audit process. The Self-Study is 
conducted by the faculty program teams and it includes the collection and analysis of 
data against established criteria. The goal of the data collection and analysis is to 
review the data/evidence to determine program areas of strength and areas in need 
of improvement. The program review process culminates in a Final Report that 
includes recommended actions to ensure the continued quality of the program and 
the preparedness of its graduates. In addition, the program review process 
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determines currency of the program within the existing program mix at Durham 
College. 
C. Discussion/Options 

 
Table 1 provides the list of programs that completed their comprehensive review, 
recommendations for improvement and presented the analysis of their data and 
actions for continuous improvement to Academic Council for information sharing 
during the 2014-15 academic year: 
 
Table 1. 

School  Program 

Business, IT & Management Business Fundamentals 

Computer Programmer 

Computer Programmer Analyst 

Computer Systems Technician 

Computer Systems Technology 

Human Resources Management 

Health & Community Services Addictions and Mental Health 

Dental Reception and Administration 

Early Childhood Education 

Fitness and Health Promotion 

Justice & Emergency Services Advanced Law Enforcement 

Media, Art & Design Game Development 

Science & Engineering Technology Chemical Engineering  

Water Quality  

Skilled Trades, Apprenticeship & 
Renewable Energy 

Gas Technician II 

Heating and Ventilating and Air Conditioning 
Technician 

 
 
Table 2 provides the list of programs that are in the process of reviewing their 
program and identifying recommendations for improvement.  They will be scheduled 
to present the analysis of their data and actions for continuous improvement to 
Academic Council for information sharing during the 2015-16 academic year. 
 
Table 2. 

School  Program 

Business, IT & Management Business Administration - Marketing 

Business Marketing 

Health & Community Services Dental Assisting II 

Social Services Worker 

Justice & Emergency Services Court Support Services 

Protection, Security and Investigations 

Media, Art & Design Fine Arts 

Foundations of Art and Design 

Science & Engineering Technology Mechanical Engineering Technician 

AGENDA PAGE   201



 “Board of Governors” - 3 - June 8, 2015 
PUBLIC 

Mechanical Engineering Technology 

 
 
The college’s criteria for comprehensive program review is being updated to reflect 
the benchmarks to be achieved with the movement by the Ontario College Quality 
Assurance Services (OCQAS) from a quality assurance model to an accreditation 
model beginning September 2016.  
 
Financial/Human Resource Implications 
Recommendations resulting from the program review process that have financial 
implications such as the hiring of additional faculty, acquisition of instructional capital 
and/or refurbishing/retrofitting teaching space are presented for approval through the 
annual budget process. 
 
D. Implications for the Joint Campus Master Plan (if applicable) 

None anticipated. 
 
E. Implications for UOIT (if applicable) 

None anticipated. 
 
F. Recommendation(s) 

That the Board of Governors receives this report for information on the programs that 
completed a comprehensive program review in 2014-2015 and the programs 
currently in process of completing a comprehensive program review in 2015-2016.   
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BOARD REPORT 

 
        Action Required: 
Public:        Discussion  
In-Committee:       Decision  

  

 

MEETING DATE: June 8, 2015 
 
REPORT DATE: May 26, 2015 
 
FROM:  Don Lovisa, President 
 
SUBJECT:  Program Advisory Committee Annual Compliance Report 
 

A. Purpose 

 

A report to provide the Board of Governors with a summary of the compliance of 

Durham College’s post-secondary programs with By-Law #2 regarding Advisory 

Committees for Programs of Instruction. This Compliance Report covers the period 

of September 2014 to June 2015.   

 

B. Background 

 

Under the Minister’s Binding Policy Direction 3.0, Framework for Programs of 

Instruction, Section C. Advisory Committees, the Board of Governors ensures that 

an advisory committee for each program or cluster of programs of instruction is 

established and operates in compliance with By-Law #2 with respect to the 

committee structure, terms of reference and procedures for reporting the work and 

recommendations of the program advisory committees.   

 

Durham College By-Law No. 2, Section 3.9 regarding Advisory Committee for 

Programs of Instruction, sets out in part that “… Advisory Committees will meet twice 

yearly.”   

 

C. Discussion/Options 

 

Attached is the Program Advisory Committee Compliance Report outlining the 

meetings held by the Schools for the period September 2014 to June 2015.  A 

tracking system was implemented in June 2011 to ensure compliance with the By-

Law No. 2, regarding Advisory Committees across all Schools.   
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D. Financial/Human Resource Implications 

 

N/A 

 

E. Implications for the Joint Campus Master Plan 

 

N/A 

 

F. Implications for UOIT (if applicable) 

 

N/A 

 

G. Recommendation(s) 

That the Durham College Board of Governors receive the 2014 - 2015 Program 

Advisory Committee Compliance Report for information. 

 

Durham College Program Advisory Committee Compliance  
Report 2014 – 2015 

 

 

SCHOOL 

# of PAC 

Committees 

Frequency 

of 

meetings 

 

Met twice 

Frequency 

of 

meetings 

 

Met once 

Frequency 

of  

meetings 

 

Did not meet 

Business, IT & Management 

 

11 11   

Health & Community 

Services 

11 11   

Interdisciplinary Studies & 

Employment Services 

4  4   

Justice & Emergency 

Services 

12 12   

Media, Art & Design 

 

12 12   

Science & Engineering 

Technology 

15 14 1*  

Skilled Trades, 

Apprenticeship & 

Renewable Technology 

12 10 2**  

* Energy Management Sustainable Building Technology:  Fall meeting cancelled due to lack of quorum. 

** Construction and Hoisting Techniques:  Fall meeting cancelled due to lack of quorum. 

** Electrical Technician – Instrumentation and Control & Electrical Techniques:  Fall meeting cancelled due to lack of quorum. 

Note:  Twelve Program Advisory Committee meetings are scheduled between June 8 – June 30, 2015. 
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Public:       Information/Discussion  
In-Camera:      Decision    
 
MEETING DATE: June 8, 2015 
 
REPORT DATE: June 5, 2015  
 
FROM:  Don Lovisa, President 
 
SUBJECT:  Annual Compliance Report 2014 – 2015  
 
A. Purpose 
 
A report to confirm with the Board of Governors required compliance with existing Board 
policy.   
 
B. Background 
 
Durham College Board of Governors uses a policy governance approach to governance 
of the College. This approach places the Board in control of the organization, but at a 
very broad level. Through clear and proactive delegation of expectations and authority to 
the President, it simultaneously fulfills the board's fiduciary role and empowers the 
President to flexibly and creatively perform what the Board has defined.  As part of this 
approach a section on monitoring was added to the Board policies. Several of these 
monitoring sections require a statement of compliance from the President.  These 
statements are consolidated in the report. 
 
New this year, and at the request of the Board, a statement confirming compliance with 
legislated health and safety reporting requirements of the Ministry of Health and WSIB 
has been added to the report. 
 
C. Discussion/Options 
 
The following information confirms compliance on behalf of the President and/or 
designated staff.  
 
Outcomes Policies:  Mission, Vision and Values, and, Strategic Goals  
I hereby confirm that the Board has received the 2014-2015 Annual Report 
demonstrating the College’s commitment and achievements related to the Vision 
Statement, the Mission Statement and the Strategic Goals.  
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Board-President Relationship Policy: Delegation to the President 
This policy is monitored through Executive Limitations which constrain the President to 
act within acceptable boundaries of prudence, ethics and legality.  I hereby confirm 
compliance with the policy.  
 
Board-President Relationship Policy: Entrepreneurial Activities and Subsidiaries 
I hereby confirm that I have neither caused nor knowingly permitted any practice, 
activity, decision or organizational circumstance related to Entrepreneurial Activities and 
Subsidiaries that is unlawful, imprudent, or in contravention of the policy. 
 
Executive Limitations Policy: General Executive Constraint 
I hereby confirm that I have neither caused nor knowingly permitted any practice, 
activity, decision or organizational circumstance that is unlawful, imprudent or in 
violation of commonly accepted business and professional ethics.  
 
Executive Limitations Policy:  Whistle Blowing  
I hereby confirm compliance with the Whistle Blowing Policy which requires that the 
Board receive quarterly reports on any ongoing whistle blowing investigation along with 
periodic updates on the number of complaints received under the policy.  
 
Executive Limitations Policy:  Financial Matters  
I hereby confirm compliance with the Policy - Financial Matters. 
 
Additionally, this policy requires the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) to annually provide a 
signed statement that the College is in compliance with relevant legislative requirements 
in force; and in compliance with Minister’s Binding Policy Directive 2.0 Finance and 
Administration: Proceeds from Sale or Encumbrance of College Property.  The signed 
statement is attached as Appendix A.  
 
Executive Limitations Policy:  Program Advisory Committees 
I hereby confirm compliance with the Program Advisory Committees policy through 
regular reports providing minutes of program advisory committees and an annual 
compliance report (May 26, 2015).  
  
Executive Limitations Policy:  Staff, Student, Client and Visitor Treatment 
I hereby confirm that I have neither caused nor knowingly permitted any practice, 
activity, decision or organizational circumstance that is unlawful, imprudent or in 
violation of commonly accepted business and professional ethics. 
 
Executive Limitations Policy:  Programs of Instruction  
I hereby confirm the provision of the Key Performance Indicator (KPI) report to the 
Board on May 13, 2015; the annual report to the Board in the agenda package for the  
June 8, 2015 meeting of the Board; and further confirm that all programs of instruction 
are developed and implemented consistent with provincial standards. 
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In addition, I hereby confirm that that the College has submitted the all reports regarding 
health and safety to the Ministry of Health and the Workplace Safety and Insurance 
Board as required by legislation. 
 
D. Financial/Human Resource Implications 

None.  
 
E. Implications for the Joint Campus Master Plan (if applicable) 

N/A 
 
F. Implications for UOIT (if applicable) 

N/A 
 
G. Recommendation(s) 
 
That the Board of Governors receives the president’s 2014-2015 report confirming 
compliance with Board policy.  
 
 
I, Don Lovisa, hereby confirm that the above statements are true and complete.                

                                                                
       Don Lovisa, president      Date 

 
 
Appendix A  
 
I hereby confirm Durham College is in compliance with relevant legislative requirements 
in force; and in compliance with Minister’s Binding Policy Directive 2.0 Finance and 
Administration: Proceeds from Sale or Encumbrance of College Property.   
 
Please note that there are on-going discussions between the Ministry of Training, 
Colleges and Universities and Ontario colleges as Crown Agencies about the 
enforcement of Section 28 of the Financial Administration Act. Subject to the completion 
of these discussions, there is a possibility that the scope of Section 28 could be 
assessed to be broader than its present implementation.  Upon such occurrence, 
Durham College shall immediately change its implementation to ensure full compliance 
with the requirements of Section 28 of the Financial Administration Act. 

 
________________________________________ 
Nevzat Gurmen, VP Corporate Services and CFO 
June 5, 2015 

June 5, 2015 
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2015-2016 Board of Governors and Board Committee Meeting Schedule  
(Note: annual accountabilities and events only; dates in parentheses are tentative) 

 
Month Board Mtg/Activity Ctte Mtg Key Agenda Items 

September 
2

nd
 Wednesday 

September 9 

New (and 
returning) 
Governors 

 New Governor Orientation  

 Hail and Farewell Dinner 

September 14 (A&F)  As needed, for contract approval, etc. 

 Current Year Budget Update 

Exec  Any pressing items 

 Attendance at CO Board Orientation and ACCC Conference 

 Annual Board Work Plan 

September 28 GRC  Policy review 

 By-Law review 

Nom  Plans for recruitment, reappointment and elections for next Board year 

October Tuesday, October 6  A&F  Current Year Budget Update 

 Next Fiscal Year Budget Process Update 

(Exec)  If necessary 

2
nd

 Wednesday 
Mtg #1 

October 14 

All  Annual Board Work Plan 

 DC Foundation Business Plan, Board Membership and Annual Report 

 Enrolment Report 

 Annual Report on Accessibility Plan 

 Next Fiscal Year Budget Process Update 

October 29 All Convocation  

November November 2 A&F  Annual External Audit Plan 

 Risk Management Report 

 Current Year Budget Update 

Exec  President’s mid-year performance update 

November 14-15 New 
Governors 

CO Board Orientation (Toronto, Saturday and Sunday) 

Approved 
Governors 

Higher Education Summit (Toronto, Sunday and Monday) 

December 2
nd

 Wednesday 
Mtg #2 

December 7 

All  Risk Management Report 

 Business Plan Update 

 SMA Report-Back  
Governor Appreciation Event follows the meeting (spouses and partners invited) 

January January 13 New and 
Early-Term 
Governors 

Informal question and answer session (continuation of orientation). 

January 25 GRC  Review policies 
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February February 1 A&F   Review preliminary upcoming year budget 

 Interim current year budget submission to MTCU 

 Tuition and Ancillary Fees 

 Current Year Budget Update 

(February 1) Nom  Initiate Recruitment for external direct appointment governors if necessary 

2
nd

 Wednesday 
Mtg #3 

February 10 

  Enrolment Update 

 Interim MTCU Budget Submission 

 Update on implementation of PQAPA recommendations / preparation for Accreditation 

 Tuition and Ancillary Fees 

March 2
nd

 Wednesday 
March 9 

  BOG & PAC Chairs Roundtable 

(March 21-22) Nom  Interview prospective governors if necessary 

March 21 (or 23) Nom  Appointments and Reappointments 

 Standing Committees 

 Co-populous appointments 

 Chair and Vice-Chair Elections 

April Board Retreat 
April 1 (evening) – 2 

All Retreat –  

 Annual Board Goals 

 Strategic Planning Framework 

 Other topics for in-depth discussion 

April 4 A&F  New Fiscal Year’s Annual Budget 

Exec  President’s Performance Appraisal 

 Semi-annual review of annual Board goals 

Mtg #4  
April 13 

 

  New Fiscal Year’s Annual Budget  

 President’s Performance Appraisal 

 Announce Chair and Vice-Chair Election Results 

 Standing Committee membership 

 Appointments and Reappointments  

 Recommend co-populous appointments 

May 
 

May 2 Exec  President’s Goals and Objectives 

 Current fiscal year Annual Business Plan 

 Endorse Annual Board Self-Assessment Survey 

2
nd

 Wednesday 
Mtg #5 
May 11 

  Report on Previous Year’s Business Plan 

 Approve Annual Business Plan 

 Approve President’s Goals and Objectives 

 Salary and Performance Pay Adjustments for Administrative Staff 

 KPI Report 

May 16 GRC  Update Board Skills Matrix 

 Review Board Policies (as per schedule) 

May 25 A&F  Audited Financial Statements 

 Risk Management Update 

Exec  Review annual evaluation of governance effectiveness 
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May (cont.) May 29-31 Approved 
Governors 

CICan Conference 

June 2
nd

 Wednesday 
Mtg #6 

  Approve past year’s Annual Report 

 DC Foundation’s past year’s Investment Report 

 Risk Management Update 

 Audited Financial Statements 

 Program Advisory Verification for past year 

 President’s Letter of Verification for past year 

 Schedule of Board and Committee meeting dates for upcoming Board year 

TBD All Convocation 

July and August No regular BOG or Ctte mtgs  Special meetings called as needed. 
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BOARD REPORT 
 
       Action Required: 
Public        Information/Discussion  
In-camera      Decision    
  

 
MEETING DATE: June 8, 2015 
 
REPORT DATE: June 1, 2015 
 
FROM:  Judy Robinson, vice president, Academic 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of New Continuing Education Programs of   

Instruction 
 
 
A. Purpose 

To obtain approval from the Board of Governors for the following continuing education 
programs of instruction for the fall 2015 intake: 
 
1. Social Media 

 Credential: Durham College Certificate 

 Duration: 297 hours – Course Based – total of 7 courses 

 School: Continuing Education 
 
2. Customs and Logistics Professional 

 Credential: Durham College Certificate 

 Duration: 330 Hours – Course Based – total of 8 courses  

 School: Continuing Education 
 
 
B. Background 

The goal of the School of Continuing Education is to introduce new programming and 
courses, with particular emphasis on flexible delivery options, including in-class and 
online options. The delivery of the proposed programs fulfills this goal by offering its 
target market access to flexible online learning options for students. These programs 
also align to the components identified in our SMA including Jobs, Innovation and 
Economic Development by enhancing knowledge and employability skills; Program 
Offerings in areas of strength and growth in social services and business; and 
Teaching and Learning as a leader in online course delivery through OntarioLearn 
Consortium colleges. 
 
As per Minister’s Binding Policy Directive 3.0 Programs, Framework for Programs of 
Instruction, a board of governors is responsible for approving programs of instruction 
a college will offer. 
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It is the role of the Durham College Board of Governors to ensure that programs of 
instruction are developed and implemented consistent with provincial standards 
where they exist; ensuring that all new and modified postsecondary programs of 
instruction lead to one of the following credentials – Durham College Certificate, 
Ontario College Certificate, Ontario College Diploma, Ontario College Advanced 
Diploma, Ontario College Graduate Certificate or Bachelor Degree. 
 
The Board will request validation that the programs of instruction conform to the 
Credentials Framework and are consistent with accepted college system principles, 
and that such credentials are awarded to students on successful completion of their 
respective programs of instruction, and are consistent with the Credentials 
Framework. 
 
We confirm that Durham College is in compliance with all Minister’s Binding Policy 
Directives noted above, for programs of instruction. 
 
C. Discussion/Options 

 

1. Social Media, Durham College Certificate 
 
This certificate program will provide students with the academic base to pursue 
careers in the fast-paced, ever-changing industry of social media.  Individuals looking 
to enhance their knowledge, diversify their skills and leverage their education, will 
impress potential employers who use social media as an important communications 
tool for promoting and marketing their brand, goods, and services.    
 
Graduates from this program may find employment opportunities as social media 
coordinators, content curators, and digital media specialists, among others.  Persons 
holding a college diploma or university degree in marketing, business or 
communications, and acquired this certificate program, may seek advancement in 
their current employment or pursue new careers opportunities in this dynamic 
industry. 
 
The courses comprising this program are delivered online through OntarioLearn by 
various colleges including Durham College. 

 
The full submission for this Durham College Certificate program is attached to this 
Board Report. 
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2. Customs and Logistics Professional, Durham College Certificate 
 
The Customs and Logistics Professional program will prepare students for future 
employment in the fields of boarder services, customs and freight forwarding, custom 
brokerage, and importing and exporting of goods. Students will learn about the rules 
and regulations pertaining to this complex industry, gain important skills in conflict 
resolution and problem solving, and learn how to complete forms and documents 
related to the industry.  
 
Graduates may seek employment in private industry, Canadian Customs agencies, or 
the Canadian Border Services Agency. Program graduates may also wish to further 
their employment possibilities by obtaining Certified Customs Specialist (CCS) 
designation through the Canadian Society of Customs Brokers (CSCB). 
 
Courses in this online program are currently delivered through the OntarioLearn 
Consortium by various colleges, including Durham.  
   
The full submission for this program is attached to this Board Report. 
 
D. Financial/Human Resource Implications 

There are no human resources implications for the delivery of the Customs and 
Logistics Professional certificate as courses are fully-developed and are currently 
delivered online by various faculty through OntarioLearn Consortium colleges.  There 
are human resources and financial requirements of approximately $5,000.00 for the 
curriculum development of two courses for the Social Media certificate program.  
 
E. Implications for the Joint Campus Master Plan (if applicable) 

N/A 
 
F. Implications for UOIT (if applicable) 
N/A 
 
G. Recommendation(s) 

That the Durham College Board of Governors approves the programs of instruction 
for the Social Media and Customs and Logistics Professional Local Board Certificate 
programs.  
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Submission for Board Approval: New Continuing Education Program  
 

Durham College Certificate: Social Media 

School: School of Continuing Education 

Program Title: Social Media 

Credential: Durham College Certificate  

Total Program Hours: 297 hours, course based – 7 courses in total 

Proposed Start Date: Fall 2015 

Frequency of Intakes Per year: Part-time delivery in all three intakes 

Delivery Mode: Online courses will be offered by various institutions (Conestoga, 
Durham, George Brown , Seneca, St. Lawrence) 

Host College(s) [if applicable]: N/A 

Curriculum Development Required: 2 courses require development by Durham College at the cost of 
$5,000.00 

Capital Needs: N/A 

Staffing Needs: N/A 

Space Requirements: N/A  

Student Cost Per Course: $325.06 to $344.35 per course, plus cost of textbooks 

Total Program Cost For Student: $2,294.71 (based on the current tuition rate plus additional costs 
for required textbooks) 

Expected Revenue: $1,950.36 to $2,066.10 per course (based on a varying hours per 
course with enrolment of 6 students) 
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1.0 APPROVAL STAGES: 
 

Check () Approval Stage 

 New concept paper reviewed by Director of Continuing Education 

 Career Opportunities Assessed 

 Student Demand Assessed 

 New Program Proposal Document Reviewed by Manager, Program 
Development and Quality Assurance  

 Reviewed by Program Proposal Review Committee, May 20, 2015 

 Approved by Vice President - Academic 

N/A Approved by Credentials Validation Service [if applicable] 

 Reviewed by President 

 Approved by Board of Governors 

 
2.0 PROGRAM OVERVIEW: 

 
Description: 
 
The Social Media Certificate program will explore how social media is changing the business and 
communication practices of organizations. The program will prepare students to use social media 
for a variety of purposes, including marketing, public relations, employee recruitment, and client 
engagement. Graduates will acquire transferable skills which will enable them to analyze and 
engage in the constantly evolving realm of social media. 
 
Program Learning Outcomes: 
 
Program Learning Outcomes in Continuing Education are built from the individual course 
outcomes.  Students receiving credits for these courses will have reliably demonstrated their ability 
to: 

 
1. Analyze the impact of social media on communication methods and business practices. 
2. Explore current trends, emerging technologies and future applications of social media. 
3. Communicate effectively with intended audiences using social media. 
4. Create and use social media accounts for specific business or marketing purposes. 
5. Evaluate the effectiveness of a social media initiatives in relation to intended goals. 
6. Apply social media solutions in ways that use current best practices, and adhere to ethical, 

legal and privacy regulations and legislation. 
7. Develop, oversea and lead a social media strategy. 
 
Essential Employability Skills: 
 
1. Communicate clearly, concisely and correctly in the written, spoken, and visual form that fulfills 

the purpose and meets the needs of the audience. 
2. Respond to written, spoken, or visual messages in a manner that ensures effective 

communication. 
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3. Apply a systematic approach to solve problems. 
4. Use a variety of thinking skills to anticipate and solve problems. 
5. Locate, select, organize, and document information using appropriate technology and 

information systems. 
6. Analyze, evaluate, and apply relevant information from a variety of sources 
7. Show respect for the diverse opinions, values, belief systems, and contributions of others. 
8. Interact with others in groups or teams in ways that contribute to effective working 

relationships and the achievement of goals. 
9. Take responsibility for one’s own actions, decisions, and consequences. 
 
Admission and Certificate Requirements: 
Applicants must be 19 years of age, or have completed an Ontario Secondary School Diploma 
(OSSD) or equivalent, or have a Grade 12 equivalency certificate achieved through College 
academic upgrading. 
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3.0 PROGRAM OF STUDY:  
There are seven academic courses required to complete this certificate program. Students will 
complete the courses online through various OntarioLearn consortium colleges.  
 

Course 
Hours 

Course Title and Course Description 

45 

Managing Social Media (CG) 
Businesses are ever-evolving with the advent of social media.  This course will help the student 
understand the importance of strategically using social media by looking at the methods, issues, 
barriers, and opportunities associated with adopting and managing social media in human 
resources, marketing, product development, public relations, customer service and operations. 

42 

Quantitative and Qualitative Research (GB) 
This introductory course will enable students to develop an understanding of the multiple 
research methods and strategies used in business services.  Students will perform systematic 
empirical investigation of business, consumer and user phenomena via statistical, mathematical 
or computational techniques and gather an in-depth understanding of human behavior and the 
reasons that govern such behavior.  

42 

Search Engine Strategies (new – to be developed by Durham College) 
Prerequisite:  Managing Social Media  
An integrated and inclusive business strategy utilizes all aspects of social media.  This course will 
look at the purpose of a search engines, search engine optimization (SEO), how SEO can help 
organizations improve search engine rankings and Pay-Per-Click (PPC) tools and techniques.  In 
addition to PPC, students will develop well crafted, organic content which has a principal role in 
SEO and helps to increase search rankings, making it possible to optimize organic posts for 
search.  Students will learn the aspects and importance of a social media plan and schedule for 
business operations. 

42 

Social Media and Society (DU) 
With the advent of social media tools such Facebook, YouTube, Wikipedia, and Twitter, more 
and more people are connecting and collaborating online, and creating and distributing content 
in ways we have never seen before.  This course will provide a summary of the major 
developments in social media and will examine how social media is changing media, business, 
government, the economy, development, and education in fundamental ways.  Students will be 
introduced to a variety of social media environments and will gain hands-on experience with 
many of the leading social media applications.   

42 

Social Media Marketing (SL) 
Sometimes referred to as digital or mobile marketing, social media marketing will provide 
students with a fundamental understanding of the different digital channels of communication.  
Strategies using the channels, messages and media will be developed to achieve marketing 
objectives. 

42 

Web Mining and Analytics (new – to be developed by Durham College) 
Prerequisite:  Social Media Marketing and Quantitative and Qualitative Research 
It is important to measure the effectiveness of social media strategy and the ability to 
communicate conversion rates to stakeholders.  This course will explore the integration of 
email profile data and web analytics; site recency, frequency, monetary (RFM) analysis; site and 
device usage; and social media monitoring and dashboards.  Students will also examine social 
media monitoring such as Google Analytics for a high level view as well as Tweetdeck, Sprout 
Social, Topsy which helps businesses understand the effectiveness of their social media 
campaign and Share of Voice (SoV). 

42 Writing for the Web (DU) 

AGENDA PAGE   217



Office of Research Services, Innovation and Entrepreneurship  5 
 

This course will take students inside the fast moving world of writing for the internet by 
examining writing for emphasis and visual impact, the basics of SEO (Search Engine Optimized) 
writing, sourcing images and video and simple techniques for incorporating them with text.  
Students will examine the various styles and requirements involved in writing for blogs, online 
magazines, commercial websites and other text-based models with social media.  

 
4.0 APPLICANT MARKET AND CAREER OPPORTUNITIES: 

 
This program will be of interest to adult learners looking for a career offering skills, knowledge, and 
expertise in social media. It may also appeal to graduates of business-related programs or 
individuals currently employed who are looking to enhance their skills and knowledge in this 
discipline. 
 
Graduates of this certificate may seek careers as social media coordinators, content curators, 
digital media specialists, marketing coordination, and media relations. This certificate will be the 
advantage employees need in a fast-paced, ever changing work place where social media is a more 
prevalent means of communicating, marketing, and branding. 

 
5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 

Existing Programming: 
Durham College does not offer a similar full-time program in this discipline. Faculty from the School 
of Business, IT & Management have reviewed the program are in full support of Continuing 
Education offering this certificate.  A representative from Marketing and Communications was also 
consulted for his input and expertise.   
 
The program meets the hours for Local Certificate standards. 
 
Funding Implications: 
Each course is offered individually; students register for each course independently. 

 
Budget Information: 
These courses are currently delivered online through various OntarioLearn Consortium colleges 
including, Conestoga, Durham, George Brown, Seneca, and St. Lawrence. Durham College will 
develop two courses, Search Engine Strategies and Web Mining and Analytics for an approximate 
cost of $5,000.00 
 
Students register on a course by course basis and registrations may vary from semester to 
semester. 
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6.0 PERATING REVENUE AND EXPENSES – PROJECTION: 
 

 

SOCIAL MEDIA  
Budget Projections 

This program is operated with part-time course revenues and expenses are offset by the revenues. 
Tuition based on $6.43/credit hour. 

Ministry Grant based on $3.53/credit hour. 
Projections are based on tuition and grant for 42 and 45 hour courses  
with an eventual enrolment of 6 students (per course, per semester) 

Revenue Per Course X # Courses 
X # Students  
Per Semester 

Tuition/Admin (x 42 hrs x 6 courses) $325.06 $1,950.36 $11,702.16 

Tuition/Admin (x 45 hrs x 1 course) 344.35 344.35 2,066.10 

Grant (x 42 hrs x 6 courses) 148.26 889.56 5,337.36 

Grant (x 45 hrs x 1 course) 158.85 158.85 953.10 

Hosting Fee (x 2 courses x # students) 33.00 66.00 396.00 

Total Revenue $1009.52 $3,409.12 $20,454.72 

Expenses Per Student X # Courses 
X 6 Students  
Per Semester 

Instructor Fees (x 7 courses x # students) $105.00 $735.00 $4,410.00 

Embanet (x 7 courses x # students) $48.59 340.13 2,040.78 

Hosting (x 5 courses x # students) $33.00 165.00 990.00 

OL Marketing (x 7 courses x # students) $4.00 28.00 168.00 

Total Expenses $190.59 $1268.13 $7,608.78 

NET CONTRIBUTION PER SEMESTER $12,845.94 

NET YEARLY CONTRIBUTION (3 semesters) $38,537.82 
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Submission for Board Approval: New Continuing Education Program  
 

Durham College Certificate: Customs and Logistics Professional 

School: School of Continuing Education 

Program Title: Customs and Logistics Professional 

Credential: Durham College Certificate  

Total Program Hours: 330 hours, course based – 8 courses in total 

Proposed Start Date: Fall 2015 

Frequency of Intakes Per year: Part-time delivery in all three intakes 

Delivery Mode: Online courses will be offered by various institutions (Loyalist, 
Sault, Algonquin, Seneca, and Durham colleges) 

Host College(s) [if applicable]: Loyalist College 

Curriculum Development Required: N/A – Courses are already developed 

Capital Needs: N/A 

Staffing Needs: N/A 

Space Requirements: N/A  

Student Cost Per Course: $325.06 to $363.64 per course, plus cost of textbooks 

Total Program Cost For Student: $2,639.06 (based on the current tuition rate plus additional costs 
for required textbooks) 

Expected Revenue: $1,950.40 to $2,181.84 per course (based on a varying hours per 
course with enrolment of 6 students) 

 
  

AGENDA PAGE   220



Office of Research Services, Innovation and Entrepreneurship  2 
 

 
1.0 APPROVAL STAGES: 
 

Check () Approval Stage 

 New concept paper reviewed by Director of Continuing Education 

 Career Opportunities Assessed 

 Student Demand Assessed 

 New Program Proposal Document Reviewed by Manager, Program 
Development and Quality Assurance  

 Reviewed by Program Proposal Review Committee, May 20, 2015 

 Approved by Vice President - Academic 

N/A Approved by Credentials Validation Service [if applicable] 

 Reviewed by President 

 Approved by Board of Governors 

 
2.0 PROGRAM OVERVIEW: 

 
Description: 
This program is geared towards individuals looking for a new career or for those currently 
employed in the field of customs and freight forwarding, custom brokerage, and importing and 
exporting of goods.  Students will examine Canadian legislation and regulations pertaining to 
border services, learn to prepare industry-related documentation, gain invaluable conflict 
resolution techniques, plan job searches, and develop report writing skills. 
 
Program Learning Outcomes: 
 
Program Learning Outcomes in Continuing Education are built from the individual course 
outcomes.  Students receiving credits for these courses will have reliably demonstrated their ability 
to: 

 
1. Examine the rules, regulations and documentation of the Canada Border Services Agency 

(CBSA), Canada Customs and Canadian Immigration & Citizenship (CIC), relating to 
import/export, tariffs and the classification and movement of persons and goods into and out 
of Canada. 

2. Articulate to customs brokers and to private industry regarding their responsibilities to their 
clients, the freight forwarding business, and the import/export of goods globally. 

3. Assess factors that may contribute to conflict, crisis situations and implement solutions to 
defuse and mediate, using problem-solving models. 

4. Prepare and present business-related documents and formal/informal reports. 
 
Essential Employability Skills: 
 
1. Communicate clearly, concisely and correctly in the written, spoken, and visual form that fulfills 

the purpose and meets the needs of the audience. 
2. Respond to written, spoken, or visual messages in a manner that ensures effective 

communication. 
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3. Apply a systematic approach to solve problems. 
4. Use a variety of thinking skills to anticipate and solve problems. 
5. Locate, select, organize, and document information using appropriate technology and 

information systems. 
6. Analyze, evaluate, and apply relevant information from a variety of sources 
7. Show respect for the diverse opinions, values, belief systems, and contributions of others. 
8. Interact with others in groups or teams in ways that contribute to effective working 

relationships and the achievement of goals. 
9. Take responsibility for one’s own actions, decisions, and consequences. 
 
Admission and Certificate Requirements: 
Applicants must be 19 years of age, or have completed an Ontario Secondary School Diploma 
(OSSD) or equivalent, or have a Grade 12 equivalency certificate achieved through College 
academic upgrading. 
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3.0 PROGRAM OF STUDY:  
There are eight academic courses required to complete this certificate program. Students will 
complete the courses online through OntarioLearn consortium colleges.  
 

Course 
Hours 

Course Code Course Title and Course Description 

42 CUST 1382 

Border Services (DU) 
The first part of this course is designed to provide the student with an understanding of Canada 
customs: the Customs Act as it relates to the movement of persons and goods into and out of 
Canada.  The second part is designed to provide the student with an understanding of 
Employment and Immigration Canada as it relates to the administration and enforcement of the 
Immigration Act and Regulations with particular emphasis on the admissibility and inadmissibility 
of persons entering Canada. 

42 CUST 2384 

Brokerage and Logistics I (LO) 
Prerequisite or Co-requisite:  Border Services 
This course will introduce the student to the import and export business, concentrating on the 
customs brokerage industry in Canada.   

42 CUST 3384 

Brokerage and Logistics II (LO) 
Prerequisite:  Brokerage and Logistics I and Customs Administration I 
This course will look at the movement of goods, geographical problems that may occur in 
transportation and general transportation systems. 

42 
COMM 4250 
COMM 4280 
COMM 3202 

Communications for Business II (DU) 
The appropriate documentation and research required to execute an effective job search strategy 
will be created in this course.  Report writing skills, involving detailed research and problem 
solving of current issues and solutions will be applied.  This course will allow students to further 
develop effective oral presentation skills which will be invaluable in career development. 

48 
PFP 8405 
PFP 405 

Conflict Management (SA) 
This course will introduce students to the process of conflict management from the perspective 
of law enforcement intervention and will examine some occurrences commonly encountered.  
Relevant legislation and problem management techniques to assist with effectively managing 
such occurrences will be analysed. 

42 CUST 2383 

Customs Administration I (LO) 
Prerequisite or Co-requisite:  Border Services 
This course provides students with an introduction in the application of legislation and 
regulations governing Canada Boarder Services Agency (CBSA) and the import/export community 
utilized in the importation and exportation of goods.  

42 CUST 3383 

Customs Administration II (LO) 
Prerequisite:  Customs Administration I 
This course will give students an in-depth look into the working and practice of customs 
administration.  A working knowledge of customs requirements in reference to regulations and 
administration of the importation and exportation of goods will be stressed. 

42 COMP 4284 

Trans-border and Customs Procedures (SE) 
Prerequisite: Brokerage and Logistics I & II and Customs Administration I 
This course will examine the rules and regulations of the Canada Border Services Agency.  The 
main focus will be on the principles of tariff classification, duties and taxes due on importations, 
as well as the documentation required to trade goods into Canada. 

Total Hours – 330  LO=Loyalist DU=Durham SA=Sault AL=Algonquin SE=Seneca 

 
 

AGENDA PAGE   223



Office of Research Services, Innovation and Entrepreneurship  5 
 

4.0 APPLICANT MARKET AND CAREER OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
This program will be of interest to adult learners looking for a new career. It may also appeal to 
graduates of related programs such as Police Foundations or Protection, Security and 
Investigations. In addition, individuals currently employed in this sector who are looking to enhance 
their industry skills and knowledge may be interested in pursuing this certificate.  
 
Graduates of this program can seek employment in Canadian Customs or the Canada Border 
Services Agency.  They may also seek employment in private industry in logistics for 
importing/exporting companies dealing in international trade. 
 
Canadian Society of Customs Brokers (CSCB) 
The Certified Customs Specialist (CCS) designation is the standard in the customs marketplace, 
recognized and demanded by those who use brokerage services throughout Canada. 
 
Graduates of this certificate program may attempt to gain their CCS designation through the CSCB.   
Graduates who immediately gain employment with a Canadian Society of Customs Brokers 
member http://cscb.ca/content/ccs-designation) and acquire at least two years’ experience, may 
challenge the examination to achieve their Certified Customs Specialist (CCS) designation.   
 
Upon approval of this program, Durham will apply to the CSCB to be recognized as a provider of 
training in order to enable graduates to be eligible to enroll in the certification/designation 
program. http://cscb.ca/content/ccs-course. 
 
 

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 

Existing Programming: 
Durham College does not offer a similar full-time program in this discipline. The School of Justice 
and Emergency Services endorses this program for delivery through the School of Continuing 
Education.  The program meets the hours for Local Certificate standards. 
 
Funding Implications: 
Each course is offered individually; students register for each course independently. 

 
Budget Information: 
These courses are currently delivered online through Ontario Learn consortium. Loyalist College is 
the host and courses within the program are offered at Loyalist, Durham, Seneca and Sault 
colleges. There are no other development or capital costs required to run this program. 
 
Students register on a course by course basis and registrations may vary from semester to 

semester. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA PAGE   224

http://cscb.ca/content/ccs-designation
http://cscb.ca/content/challenge-ccs-exam
http://cscb.ca/content/ccs-course


Office of Research Services, Innovation and Entrepreneurship  6 
 

6.0 OPERATING REVENUE AND EXPENSES – PROJECTION: 
 

CUSTOMS AND LOGISTICS PROFESSIONAL 
Budget Projections 

This program is operated with part-time course revenues and expenses are offset by the revenues. 
Tuition based on $6.43/credit hour. 

Ministry Grant based on $3.53/credit hour. 
Projections are based on tuition and grant for 42 and 48 hour courses  
with an eventual enrolment of 6 students (per course, per semester) 

Revenue Per Course X # of Courses 
X 6 Students 
Per Semester 

Tuition/Admin (x 42 hrs x 7 courses) $325.06 $2,275.42 $13,652.52 

Tuition/Admin (x 48 hrs x 1 course) 363.64 363.64 2,181.84 

Grant (x 42 hrs x 7 courses) 148.26 1,037.82 6,226.92 

Grant (x 48 hrs x 1 course) 169.44 169.44 1,016.64 

Hosting Fee (x1 course x # students) 33.00 33.00 198.00 

Total Revenue $1039.4 $3,879.32 $23,275.92 

Expenses Per Student X # Courses 
X 6 Students 
Per Semester 

Instructor Fees (x 8 courses x # students) $105.00 $840.00 $5,040.00 

Embanet (x 8 courses x # students) $48.59 388.72 2,332.32 

Host College (x 6 courses x # students) $33.00 198.00 1,188.00 

OL Marketing (x 8 courses x # students) $4.00 32.00 192.00 

Total Expenses $190.59 $1458.72 $8,752.32 

NET CONTRIBUTION PER SEMESTER $14,523.60 

NET YEARLY CONTRIBUTION (3 semesters) $43,570.80 
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BOARD REPORT 
 
       Action Required: 
Public        Information/Discussion X 
In-camera X     Decision    
  

 
MEETING DATE: May 13, 2015 
 
REPORT DATE: May 6, 2015 
 
FROM:  Don Lovisa, President 
 
SUBJECT:  2014-2015 Business Plan results 
 
 
A. Purpose 

To provide the Board of Governors with a detailed final report on the execution of the 
objectives and deliverables in the Durham College 2014-2015 Business Plan.  
 
B. Background 

The Business Plan allows Durham College to plan its operations for the fiscal year 
within the framework outlined in its Strategic Plan and in support of its mission, vision 
and values. The Business Plan identifies to the public and provincial government the 
operational outcomes that the college expects to achieve in the coming fiscal year. 
The Ministry of Training, Colleges and Universities (MTCU) uses the information 
provided in college business plans to advise and inform government planning and 
policy-making.  
 
The Durham College Board of Governors approved the 2014-2015 Business Plan in 
May 2014. The plan was developed with input, direction, review and guidance 
representing all departments and areas of operation on campus, led by the Durham 
College Leadership Team (DCLT). 

 
Consistent with the Board of Governors’ Communication and Counsel to the Board 
Policy and expectations of the Minister’s Binding Policy Directive for Business Plans, 
the college president is required to bring Business Plan reports to the Durham 
College Board of Governors throughout the year. 
 
C. Discussion/Options 

In looking at the accomplishments and activities that have flowed from the 2014-2015 
Business Plan objectives, it has been another year of success for Durham College. 
The 65 objectives within the four-high level goals (Responsible, strategic growth;  
Dynamic partnerships; Student-focused teaching and learning; and Core institutional 
priorities) have resulted in hundreds of actions being taken that have collectively 
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strengthened our academic operations, continued to grow and renew our campus, 
provided students with more support and services than ever before, increased our 
visibility in the community, and furthered our research and innovation activities. 
Among the many highlights of the past year, are:  
 
 Continued overall enrolment growth, even as the system flattened; 
 International enrolment growth of 32 per cent, leadership on international projects 

and recruitment activities in new markets; 
 A brand awareness campaign that is unique and innovative in connecting with 

students and drawing attention to the college; 
 Significant milestones in moving toward completion of the campus master plan 

with UOIT, along with the completion of an MOU with UOIT regarding staffing 
within Shared Services; 

 Submission of a joint proposal with UOIT and Trent University to the provincial 
government for its Major Capacity Expansion program; 

 Enhancements, additional opportunities and a new delivery model for students in 
a number of service areas, including our Access and Support Centre, Financial 
Aid and with for the credit transfer process; 

 Launch of a new core institutional documents to guide us in the years ahead, 
including a renewed Academic Direction, renewed Strategic Research Plan and a 
new Academic Information Technology Plan.  

 Launch of four new programs and development of new hybrid and online courses; 
 Submission to the government of an application for our first-ever degree program;  
 Overall growth in KPIs that was better than the system as a whole; 
 A fifth consecutive year with balanced budget results; 
 The successful launch of a coaching model; 
 Improvements and investments within our IT infrastructure; and 
 A continued commitment to campus safety through lockdown exercises and the 

launch of a new Sexual Assault and sexual violence policy and procedure.  
 
The successes and actions were made possible through the efforts of all departments 
across the college and have positioned the college well for further success in 2015-
2016. Of the 65 objectives, 56 have been completed, while another nine remain in 
progress due a range of circumstances. The following pages capture activities and 
actions taken over the past year in support of the Business Plan. 
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65 objectives established 
57 completed 8 in progress 0 not started 
 
 

 
 
 

By specific goal 
Responsible, strategic growth 
 
15 objectives established 
13 completed 2 in progress 0 not started 
  
Dynamic partnerships 
 
14 objectives established 
13 completed 1 in progress 0 not started 
 
Student-focused teaching and learning 
 
16 objectives established 
14 completed 2 in progress 0 not started 
 
Core institutional priorities 
 
20 objectives established 
17 completed 3 in progress 0 not started 
  
 
D. Financial/Human Resource Implications 
 

Business plan objectives 

In progress

Not started

Completed
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Activities and actions in the business plan were funded through the 2014-2015 
budget. 
 
E. Implications for UOIT (if applicable) 

 
Eight objectives in the plan either directly apply to UOIT or there is some form of 
partnership with the university in realizing an outcome. 
 
F. Recommendation(s) 

 
That the Durham College Board of Governors receives this report for information.  
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Responsible, strategic growth 
 
DC has become Ontario’s fastest growing college over the past number of years by planning 
strategically, introducing new programs and opportunities that are in demand by students and 
employers and being innovative in all partnerships and activities. The college understands that to keep 
pace with the needs of today’s students, it has to be willing and able to react quickly and efficiently to 
the needs of students and its communities. In 2014-2015, the college will:  
 
Continue to respond to its rapidly growing communities by strategically increasing its student 
population by six per cent, including growing international enrolment by 16 per cent. 
 

Status: In Progress 
Summary of successes: 

 
 Fall 2014 enrolment grew by 2.5 per cent over Fall 2013 as the provincial enrolment trend took a 

turn over the past number of years. The system as a whole has gone flat after years of growth, 
however Durham bettered the trend with this growth. 

 International student enrolment realized a 32-per cent increase to 453 enrolled for Fall 2014 and 
continued to climb to more than 520 for the Winter semester. Continue to see positive results from 
our efforts to reach out to new markets around the globe. 

 Successfully launched four new full-time post-secondary programs in September: 

 Event Management 

 Hospitality Skills 

 Activation Coordinator – gerontology 

 Journalism – Broadcast and Electronic Media 

 Two new Fast-Track programs 

 Mechanical Engineering Technician – NDE 

 Law Clerk Advanced 
 In addition, enrolment increased through the first offering of Year 2 for programs launched in 2013: 

 Occupational Therapist Assistant/Physical Therapist Assistant 

 Architectural Technician  
 Where unmet demand has been identified, programs have added seats, restructured to overcome 

barriers to increased enrolment, and added fast-track options, which are attractive to a domestic 
and international market.  

 Academic division works closely with Durham International Office to recruit international students 
and successfully compete for internationally funded projects, such as the ‘Science without Borders’ 
project that brought 40 Brazilian students to campus. 

 Enrolment projections and new program development for 2014-2017 have been aligned with the 
college’s Strategic Mandate Agreement. 

 

Develop a flexible, multi-year plan to best manage and respond to continued enrolment growth.  
 

Status: Completed  
Summary of successes to date: 
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 Investigation of Customer Relationship Management processes and supporting software underway 
to identify best options to support growing population in recruitment and retention efforts.  
Modules for recruitment and admissions have been researched and identified. Partnership 
established between Admissions and International Centre, where a similar module was 
implemented in 2014. Staffing to assist in implementation has been identified. Installation and pilot 
of software use to commence in May 2015.   

 Communications audit for Recruitment, Admissions, Student Life and academic programs completed 
in December 2014.  Audit used to identify gaps, excesses and inconsistencies in communication to 
prospective and current students. Plan for more strategic communications mapped and 
implemented February 2015.  Project involved collaboration of Admissions, Student Life, 
Communications and Marketing, ITS, and others to identify best channels and timing for 
communications.   

 
Develop plans to retire the Simcoe building, the college’s original academic building, and replace it 
with a new building that will support 21st-century teaching and learning and offer third-party 
incubation and entrepreneurial space.  
 
Status: Completed  
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Plan developed that would see Simcoe building demolished and replaced with three-phase new 

building on the same location. Phase 1 plans developed to establish a Centre for Collaborative 
education, featuring: 

o New space for the School College Work Initiative, in collaboration with five school board 
partners. 

o New dedicated space for the Global Classroom initiative; and  
o New dedicated space for students in General Arts and Science streams designed to prepare 

them for direct entry to second year of university through articulation agreements. 
 Initial concept shared with MTCU and by the school boards with the Ministry of Education. Next 

steps are to meet with MTCU and Education to further advance and discuss the vision.  
 
Construct a greenhouse and begin development of demonstration plots, plants, gardens, landscaping 
and other aspects to support the ‘field’ component of the Centre for Food’s (CFF) field-to-fork 
concept.  
 
Status: Completed  
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Greenhouse construction completed and handed over to academic school. 
 Development of demonstration plots, plants, gardens, landscaping underway.  
 Additional head house constructed to house growth chambers. 
 Professors from various programs in CFF are collaborating on the redevelopment and integration of 

curriculum to enhance the learning experience for students and further develop the Field-to-Fork 
vision. 
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Invest $2.8 million in campus renewal and revitalization, allowing for new teaching, learning, social 
and support space for students, along with renovations to residence.  
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Campus renewal and revitalization investment completed, with investment focused in three key 

areas: renovations, deferred maintenance, and residence. Work included: 
o Significant renovation of the second floor C Wing. 
o Renovations to the G213 (Dining Room), Second Floor L-wing, C113 Lecture Hall; resurfacing 

of receiving driveway, wing of the Simcoe Village Residence. 
o Deferred maintenance projects focused on priority being given to facilities with high student 

usage, energy conservation projects, life safety projects, multiple deficiencies and projects 
that complement other projects: roof replacements; lighting retrofits; exterior building 
restoration; building automation controls; central utility metering; demand management 
controls for exhaust hoods; and energy retrofits. 

 
Grow Corporate Training Services’ high-value client base by four companies.  
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 New contracts in place with 8 clients in the energy, health care, manufacturing and automobile sales 

sectors. 
 
Initiate a plan to determine future recreational space needs. 
 
Status: In Progress 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Master planning completed.   
 Consultant to engage in review of varsity and campus recreation space and funding needs in 

Summer 2015. UOIT commitment to support funding for review received in February 2015.   
 New gym completed at Whitby campus in Fall 2014 and more than 200 visits per week throughout 

January and February.   
 
Restructure and realign departments within the Student Affairs portfolio to meet evolving student 
needs for access, wellness support and leadership.  
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Position realignment completed for new executive director of Strategic Enrolment Services and 

directors of individual operational areas. Position descriptions for staff updated as vacant positions 
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filled and new processes implemented. Assistant director, Technical Support, hired in December to 
lead transition of processes to e-based transactions and support MEP.   

 Realignment complete for student Access and Support Centre (formerly Centre for Students with 
Disabilities) as result of UOIT discontinuing use of services.  All staff trained as e-coaches to work 
with students. Internal practices updated and revised to facilitate significant increase in number of 
student contacts and reduced staff numbers. Student contact numbers were 1,977 for January.   

 Notice given to UOIT on Diversity Services – DC discontinued provision of services as of December 
2014. As of January 2015, diversity co-ordinator working exclusively with Durham College. Highly 
engaged with ensuring Sexual Violence Policy and Procedure and associated materials ready for 
April 1 roll out. In addition, she is working with the first seven students registered for Red Seal 
apprenticeship programs through the Weston Foundation sponsorships.   

 Health Services no longer providing counselling support to UOIT students. One staff member retired 
as part of this process.  Focus is on outreach, mental health nurses and referrals. Realignment 
completed for September 2014. Most of the fall semester spent educating UOIT students on what 
services are and are not available to them through the Health Centre. Durham College students 
accessed external mental health provider, Aspiria, in record numbers as a result of referrals by the 
mental health nurses. 

 RFP for supplemental health care and exploring option for contract for Athletic Therapy completed 
and issued, however, two companies that expressed interest in 2014 did not submit proposals. 
Negotiated new agreement with the previous external provider of supplemental care (chiropractic, 
massage, etc.) and continuing to operate Athletic Therapy in-house.    

 
Realize greater efficiencies across college operations through the revitalization of enterprise resource 
planning system software.  

 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Achieved 2014-15 targets for the enterprise resource planning system software revitalization. Work 

included:  
o Implementation of Operational Data Store and Cognos 10 for BI reporting. 
o Implementation of Position Control Budgeting for comparisons of actual incumbent costs versus 

budgeted position costs, vacancy tracking and tracking of shared positions. 
o Demonstration of new technologies and modules, e.g. CRM. 
o Acquisition of Banner Document Management System for scanning and storing documents. 

 
Continue to expand student financial aid and awards services, including additional self-serve 
opportunities to all campuses.  
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Implementation of Banner Student Aid Module provided students with 24/7 access to all 

institutionally managed aid applications, as well as access to the results of their application through 
MyCampus self-serve.  Over 1,500 applications processed in the first semester utilizing BSA 
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functionality to assess and disburse funding, eliminating the need for Finance to manually enter 
invoices for disbursement. 

 As of March 2015, the longest funding distribution time for most applicants was two to three days. 
Summer 2015 will be the first full season of testing the new Ministry software with the Banner 
Student Aid Module at Durham College.   

 
Explore strategic partnerships, such as an Energy Savings Company (ESC), to assess energy retrofits 
and provide guaranteed savings on projects. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Met with three different vendors to assess services offered, experience in post-secondary 

institutions and evaluate methodology.  
 As a result of college assessment, a major ESC conducted site survey to identify a number of 

potential energy retrofit projects in terms of capital cost, guaranteed annual savings, work plan and 
schedule, financial analysis. 

 
Introduce large-scale brand/general awareness campaign in Durham Region, the rest of the Greater 
Toronto Area, Northumberland County and the Peterborough area to support recruitment, 
government relations, community relations, fundraising and strategic enrolment management efforts. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes: 
 
 Launched campaign July 30, 2014 with 14 team Experience students. Currently in Phase 2 which runs 

until August 2015. Targets and results to date:  
o 81,000+ visits to the Experience site  

July 2014 target for Sept.1, 2015 was 100,000 – currently at 81 per cent of goal. 
o 160,000+ YouTube video views  

Target for Sept.1, 2015 – 150,000, currently at 107 per cent of goal 
o 20,000+ engagements on Facebook  

Target for Sept.1, 2015 – 20,000, achieved 100 per cent of goal 
o 6,500+ Twitter posts  

Target for Sept.1, 2015 – 4,000, currently at 163 per cent of goal 
o 15 media stories/mentions  

Target for Sept.1, 2015 – 14 to 18, currently at 100 per cent of goal 
o 240+ blogs and videos created by Team Experience 

Target for Sept. 1, 2015 – 200, currently at 120 per cent of goal 
 First and second phase of marketing launched in Durham Region, 

Northumberland/Kawartha/Peterborough, and Scarborough/Markham/Stouffville 
locations. Marketing placement included: Cineplex theatres, GO transit ‘station domination’, Durham 
and Peterborough transit, bus shelters, Pickering Town Centre, newspapers, speciality publications, 
radio, online advertising, taxi toppers, on-campus brand awareness, community promotions  
including Pickering Town Centre and GM Centre. 

AGENDA PAGE   234



  
 

6 
 

 All DC publications aligned with Experience campaign brand, including program guide, international 
viewbook, grad programs guide and student handbook. 

 
Work with the University of Ontario Institute of Technology (UOIT) to complete a campus master plan 
that will meet the long-term growth needs of both institutions. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes: 

 
 All 2014-2015 milestones achieved.  
 Concept plans and draft plan completed.  
 Update shared at the March meeting of the joint Durham College and UOIT Boards of Governors 

meeting.  
 Open houses held in March to gain further on- and off-campus input. 
 Final draft of campus master plan is complete and will be submitted to Board for approval in June 

2015. 
 
Explore partnering with UOIT on a proposal for the provincial government’s major capacity expansion 
program. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Joint application with UOIT and Trent University submitted to the provincial government on 

September 26.  
 Provincial government shared in its April budget that it would have an MCE announcement in the 

coming months.  
 
Develop and implement a new delivery model for access and accommodation for students with 
disabilities.  
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 New director started July 1.    
 New staffing model developed. Counsellor position converted to Case Manager. All staff trained as 

e-coaches. Aspiria counsellor on site for mental health supports. Position description forms (PDFs) 
all updated as of March 2015.    

 Three staff departures in August 2014 for UOIT – short-term contracts successfully filled and start-
up completed successfully.   

 Partnerships with Centre for Academic and Faculty Enrichment (CAFE) and Student Academic 
Learning Services (SALS) to expand resources for faculty and students. New training module for staff 
and faculty on use of assistive technology and developing accessible presentations developed jointly 
by ASC and CAFE and delivered to several departments.   

 New hours of operation include Wednesday evenings for workshops for faculty and students. 
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 E-coaching and success plan development for all ASC registered students to commence May 1, 2015. 
 Summer transitions programs historically drawing approximately 40 students will be merged with 

the broader summer transition programs for new students and offered throughout the summer of 
2015. Dates set.   
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Dynamic partnerships 
 
DC contributes greatly to the economic and social well-being of its communities. Partnerships with all 
levels of government, other post-secondary institutions, businesses and the broader community within 
and beyond the borders of Durham Region play a critical role in delivering high-quality education. By 
working with the community, understanding employer needs and tracking employment trends, Durham 
College students realize success in finding jobs after graduation. In 2014-2015, the college will continue 
to seek out new partnerships and agreements and will:  
 
Work with partners, the broader community and government to see advancement of the Durham 
Learning and Business Innovation Park (dLAB). 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes: 
 
 Extensive work has been completed to have the project construction-ready for Summer 2015. 

Agreement needs to be reached with regional and/or Town governments to extend Consumers 
Drive or provide another access from proposed new road. 

 Work toward establishing ‘Ontario Beverage Institute’ in the first building has been very successful 
and nearing realization. Town of Whitby working on a FedDev application to support the OBI. 

 Meetings have continued with a number of other potential partners about occupancy. 
 International marketing company retained to market the lands. 
 Provincial public affairs firm retained to gain support from key stakeholders, including government 

and media. 
 Detailed new website developed.  
 
Develop business and functional space plans for a college entrepreneurial incubator to strengthen 
connections between students and businesses and pursue new industry-led research partnerships 
with local businesses in areas of importance to the community and government. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 As a result of On-Campus Entrepreneurial Activities, funding received early in 2014. Durham College 

now delivering FastStart services, through collaboration with UOIT, Fleming College, Trent 
University, Spark Centre, and Greater Peterborough Innovation Cluster. FastStart aimed at students, 
alumni, and youth in the community interested in developing entrepreneurial interests.   

 Entrepreneurship co-ordinator hired to support students and organize events and competitions. 
Three work study students hired to provide peer-to-peer support and to assist with planning events. 

 Kick-off activities took place on January 28 and 29, 2015 at the Oshawa and Whitby campuses, and 
included several local entrepreneurs and service providers to celebrate entrepreneurship and the 
services available to youth.  

 Planning framework developed and a number of events held with the primary purpose of creating 
awareness of entrepreneurship as a viable alternative to traditional employment. In total, more 
than 30 events have taken place with over 700 student participants. 
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 Student space allocated for FastStart events.  B233, called the Vibe, has been branded and now 
features space for information displays, student events, and mentoring/consultations. 

 Collaborated on a contest with the Student Association to send 11 students to St Mary’s University 
in Halifax, Nova Scotia for the Starting Point Student Entrepreneurship Conference, fully funded by 
the SA. 

 New industry-led partnerships continue to be developed; 19 projects took place in the past year, 
involving 33 students and 21 faculty and staff; five additional projects now formally under 
development and several other potential projects being assessed. 

 
Complete the installation and setup of research equipment funded through the Applied Research and 
Tools and Instruments grant. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Request for proposals issued for rapid prototyper in May 2014 and contract awarded in June 2014. 

Machine delivered in August 2014 and training provided to faculty in late August. 
 First NSERC proposal involving the rapid prototyper was developed in the fall; received approval in 

December 2014 and project started in January 2015. Additional proposals now under development. 
 Request for proposals issued for growth chambers in September 2014 after decision made to build 

additional head house at the Whitby campus and contract awarded in November 2014. Due to the 
company’s production schedule, estimated delivery date is late May 2015. Project management 
office is working with Facilities to ensure electrical/plumbing requirements are met. Following 
installation, orientation/training will be provided to faculty who will use the growth chambers, 
ideally in June 2015. 

 Request for proposals issued for the brew line in October 2014 and contract awarded in January 
2015. Due to company’s production schedule, estimated delivery date is May 2015. Project 
management office working with Facilities to ensure electrical/plumbing requirements are met. 
Orientation/training will follow. 
 

Pursue opportunities to further enhance the college’s research agenda in the area of agri-business, 
advanced manufacturing, and craft brewing. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Project involving new rapid prototyper for advanced manufacturing approved for funding and 

underway. Project team will design prototypes and print them using the new Fortus 360. Second 
proposal developed and awaiting funding, while a third larger project is in the preliminary stages of 
consideration. 

 Report received in July 2014 looking at potential strategies for agricultural research. As a result, 
additional market research undertaken and the college is pursuing research possibilities in precision 
agriculture, which makes use of sensors and intelligence built into feedback control systems. 

 Further agricultural project opportunities are being developed in the following areas: pest 
management utilizing the new growth chamber, including hops; drone applications; cold chambers 
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for over-winter growing; sustainable pollination in squash; and technology to certify safe food 
practices. 

 Discussions held with local craft brewers to determine interest in projects in the following areas: 
development of new recipes including the use of local ingredients, projects that would enhance craft 
brewer control of batch quality and consistency from brew to brew, and development of more 
affordable control systems and equipment better sized for craft brewers. Once brew line installation 
is finalized, specific projects will be developed with local craft brewers. 

 
Develop an updated Strategic Research Plan. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Plan presented to DCLT in March 2015 and will be printed for distribution and posted on the 

Durham College website. 
 Formal consultation took place during Fall 2014, consisting of focus groups and online surveys 

engaging with college faculty and staff, and external stakeholders. Research Advisory Committee 
and the research co-ordinators provided considerable input into objectives and themes. 
 

Explore opportunities to participate in the recently announced Social Innovation Fund for colleges, 
which will be administered through the Social Sciences and Humanities Research Council of Canada. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 

 Social Innovation Fund announced in November 2014 with the goal of funding colleges in 
collaborative projects with community organizations and businesses to address social issues such as 
poverty, crime prevention, community safety and economic development at the community level.  

 Staff and faculty participated in webinars and faculty and community collaborations quickly formed. 
Eleven faculty from the School of Health and Community Services expressed an interest in 
conducting research; seven potential projects considered and significant effort went into the 
development of four.  

 Of the four proposals under development, one with a health focus was deemed not suitable for the 
social innovation fund by the funder, so other funding is being sought to implement the research. 
For a variety of reasons, the remaining three proposals were not ready for submission by the 
deadline but work is expected to continue for submission in the next round or other funding 
opportunities.  
 

Implement an Ontario Council on Articulation and Transfer research project dealing with credit 
transfer. 
 

Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Participation of 22 colleges confirmed and research ethics approval received from all participating 

institutions. 
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 All data collection activities, including an online student survey, interviews with registrars, and 
student focus groups have now been completed. Literature review completed. 

 Data will now be analyzed for trends and themes, with the final reporting, including 
recommendations, due in December 2015. 

 
Develop a minimum of seven partnerships or agreements with universities and other colleges that 
establish new student pathways, including new opportunities for university graduates to pursue 
college studies that better prepare them for securing careers. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 School of Business, IT & Management (BITM): Human Resources University Transfer with UOIT 

(HRTU) – In May 2015, students who completed Year 1 Human Resources with a GPA of 3.5 will be 
given the opportunity to take one UOIT course during the summer and proceed to second year 
HRTU with four courses embedded in second year.  Successful students can apply to third year of 
the UOIT Bachelor of Commerce (Honours) degree and can major in Human Resources or take a 
General Bachelor of Commerce. Graduates earn a two-year Business – Human Resources diploma 
and a B.Com. (Honours) in four years. 

 BITM: Computer Systems University Transfer with UOIT (CSTU) – In September 2015, Computer 
Systems students with a GPA of 3.5 will have the opportunity to participate in a bridge program with 
UOIT.  Five UOIT courses will be embedded into their curriculum allowing them to complete a two-
year Computer Systems Technician diploma and a Bachelor of Information Technology (Honours) 
degree in four years. 

 BITM: University of South Wales – graduates of Durham College in Business/Business Administration 
– Marketing and Business – Operations/Business Administration – Operations Management will be 
given 2/3 years (depending upon the length of their program) advanced standing towards a 
Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Marketing or in Logistics and Supply Chain Management respectively.  
Graduates of the Computer Programmer/Analyst and Computer Systems Technician/Technology will 
be granted 2/3 years advanced standing in the Bachelor of Science (Honours) Computer Science or 
B.Sc. (Honours) Computer Security programs.   

 BITM: University of the West of England (Hartpury College) – graduates of the Sport Administration, 
Sport Management, and Recreation and Leisure Services programs will be given advanced standing 
allowing them to complete a Bachelor of Science (Honours) Sports Studies in one year. 

 School of Science and Engineering Technology (SET): Signed Environmental Technology pathway 
with Western University Faculty of Science – Bachelor Environmental Science.  

 SET: Biotechnology pathway: Signed with UOIT Faculty of Health for a Bachelor, Medical Laboratory 
Science. 

 School of Interdisciplinary Studies and Employment Services:  New agreement for General Arts and 
Science students to transfer into select Trent University liberal arts program has been finalized. 

 School of Health & Community Services (HCS):  Discussions with Trent University regarding pathway 
for Social Service Worker to Bachelor of Social Work. 

 HCS: In discussion with UOIT Faculty of Education for a pathway for Early Childhood Education grads. 
 HCS: In discussion with UOIT Faculty of Health Sciences for a pathway for the Occupational Therapist 

Assistant/Physiotherapist Assistant program. Approval likely for September 2015. 
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 School of Justice and Emergency Services (JES): Exploring partnership with Justice Institute of B.C. 
regarding fire programs. 

 JES: Nearing completion of partnership with Waterford (Ireland) for Police Foundations and 
Protection, Security and Investigation. 

 
Develop new opportunities for faculty, staff and domestic students to gain international experience. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 College awarded two international development projects in Peru; implementation currently under 

way. 
 Under the Science Without Borders project, more than 40 students from Brazil attending DC 

programs.  
 Developed new Study Abroad general education elective in co-operation with the college 

International office.  
 Development of project for online delivery of Critical Care Nursing program in partnership with 

Rochester University and Kare Partners, a US-based innovation start-up, was explored but not 
pursued following due diligence on feasibility. 
 

Participate in new strategic international recruitment events run by agents, the Canadian government 
and partner organizations. Activities will be expanded into new markets in Africa, Russia and Eastern 
Europe.  
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Activity in Africa took place in January 2014 with participation in organized education exhibitions in 

Nigeria, Kenya and Tanzania.   
 In May 2014, a full-time West Africa Representative appointed based in Abuja, Nigeria.   
 Plans to enter the Russia and Eastern Europe markets (Ukraine) have been put on hold due to unrest 

in the region and therefore a reported decline in the visa approval rate. Continuing to monitor the 
situation and plan to enter market as soon as stability improves.  

 Level of activity in the Caribbean region increasing with further visits and attendance to fairs. 
 Contacts made to open a south China representation office in the city of Wuxi in collaboration with 

the Region of Durham and for increased activity in Turkey through agents and by participating at 
international student fairs. 

 As a result of these activities, international student enrolment has exceeded 500 in winter semester. 
 

Implement a new Community Outreach plan that will allow the college to be more strategic and 
focused on core priorities with its community activities. 
 

Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
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 New plan developed and focused on three key areas of outreach: Community education/student 
recruitment; Partnerships of mutual benefit; and Employee expertise. 

 Significant changes in focus for community investment, including funding commitments to First 
Robotics and art exhibitions that provide opportunities to DC students. 

 New central budget established for community outreach, allowing for focused tracking of dollars 
spent.  

 Tracking system implemented to capture all community work done by college employees. 
 
Participate in an online collaborative reference service with 10 other Ontario college libraries.  
 
Status: Completed  
Summary of successes to date: 

 
 Participating in collaborative with other colleges. 
 
Raise $1 million for the completion of the CFF landscaping.  
 
Status: In progress 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 As of year-end, over $800,000 committed; 15 gifts are in progress; over 30 solicitations are 

imminent. 
 Additionally, Durham College Office of Development staff have confirmed the following: bequests of 

over $4 million; more than $90,000 in Affinity Programs; over $350,00 in scholarships and bursaries.   
 A number of opportunities are being pursued to raise funds for various departments/schools.  

 
Develop a memorandum of understanding with UOIT about staffing within shared services. 
 
Status: Completed  
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 MOU signed in September. 
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Student-focused teaching and learning 
 
DC faculty and staff take great pride each day in living the college’s mission that the student experience 
comes first. They understand teaching and learning for the 21st century is different than at any point 
before. In 2014-2015, Durham College will begin to implement its new academic vision and introduce 
new support services and resources to foster student success. It will: 
 
Finalize and begin implementation of a renewed Academic Direction – The Road Ahead. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
Quality Programs 
 New plan introduced to faculty in spring and August. 
 Developed policy and procedure for minor and major program changes. Successfully implemented in 

Fall 2014. 
 Refined process for prioritizing academic capital requests. Successfully implemented in December 

2014. Working closely with Facilities and IT Services to streamline process. 
 Implemented web-based survey tool to evaluate students’ perception of their courses. 
 Redesigned common year of Office Administration programs to include hybrid and online delivery 

methods for all vocational courses. Will be implemented for Fall 2015. 
 Redesigned communications curriculum and preparing for pilot.  
 Preparing for administration of post-admission testing pilot. Work is continuing, as IT supports and 

communication strategies are developed to support implementation. 
 Faculty Performance Evaluation policy and procedure reviewed and revised to increase the 

frequency of student evaluation (annual) and the survey tool was reviewed and revised to align with 
provincial project. 

 Continued focus on increasing student pathway opportunities and options. 
 Implemented partnership between Garfield Weston Foundation, Oshawa Community Health Centre 

and Durham College. 
 
Evolution of Teaching and Learning 
 Completion of the Academic IT Plan to support and encourage the use of technology. 
 Development of the ‘8 Minute Professor’ series to share promising practices. 
 Experimentation with ‘gamification’. 
 Post admission diagnostic testing for communication  
 Expansion of the Global Classroom to expose students to the thinking of industry and societal 

experts and interact with students from around the world. 
 Increased the number of online and hybrid course offerings. 
 Redesigned Communications curriculum. 
 Redesigned the Office Administration curriculum to incorporate higher levels of online and hybrid 

learning opportunities. 
 Support and encourage entrepreneurial activities through FastStart. 
 Utilize DC Live (Adobe Connect) to increase access to program meetings for contract faculty 
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Develop standards for hybrid programs from which a strategy for future development can be derived. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes: 
 

 Standard template developed. Introduced to participants of the Online Hybrid Institute and used 
during course development.  

 Checklist template will assist with quality assurance processes. Continuing Education piloted the 
checklist, and it successfully highlighted areas of strength and areas requiring improvement in our 
fully online courses. As a result of the courses reviewed with the checklist, it was determined that a 
new template for all Continuing Education online courses was needed.  Template created in Fall 
2014 and 15 courses have been redeveloped in the new design. 
 

Build on the success of current practices and develop a model framework that will allow the college to 
further strengthen its approach to program prioritization. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 

 Work with Institutional Research to explore enhancement of the Program Health Matrix (PHM) 
based on the analysis of work completed by the Program Prioritization PIF Task Force in Spring 2014. 

 Program Score Card developed to replace existing Program Health Matrix. Program Score Card 
(metrics) piloted in February 2015. 

 
Develop one or two ‘model’ courses that will lead to a template that can be used to redesign, in the 
coming years, all DC courses offered through OntarioLearn.  
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 New template incorporating the JumpStart model and interactive elements from the Ontario Online 

Initiative courses finalized in September. Accompanying documentation, teaching examples, and 
training delivered in September.  

 Fifteen courses redeveloped using the new template. Fourteen launched in the winter semester. 
One redeveloped course to be launched in the spring. 

 Winter courses in JumpStart model: 
o Adult Learning,  
o Assessment and Evaluation 
o Curriculum Development 
o Entrepreneurship 
o Instructional Techniques 
o Payroll Administration 
o Psychology Introduction 

o Sociology Introduction 
o Stress, Wellness and Nutrition 
o Anatomy and Physiology I 
o Pathophysiology I for RPN 
o French I 
o Social Media 
o Principles of Sales

 
 Spring course in JumpStart model: 

o Communications for Business 
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Offer 15 to 20 new programs through Continuing Education, with a focus on online courses and 
programming at the CFF. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 

 
 Two programs began Spring 2014 (Home Improvement, Thanatology) 
 Six programs began Fall 2014 (Culinary Arts, Teaching Adult Literacy, Fundamentals of Addictions, 

Victimology, Gas/Health Prep, and Social Service Worker) 
 Five programs began Winter 2015 (Perioperative Nursing, Cake Decorating, Food Service Worker, 

Perinatal Obstetrics, and BES Facility Manager) 
 Of these 13 programs, eight are fully online. One more will begin a hybrid delivery (Perinatal) in Fall 

2015. 
 Development for four other programs complete; undergoing final internal approvals.  
 At the CFF, 40 courses offered in Fall 2014 and 33 in Winter 2015.  Inaugural Cooking summer camp 

ran successfully in Summer 2014 with two weekly sessions.  
 
Support Ontario Online course development by implementing a $525,000 project to develop seven 
new courses. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 

 
 All courses completed as required by September 30. 
 Courses presented in a showcase to college and Ministry stakeholders in Fall 2014. 
 Five courses developed for Continuing Education began successfully in Winter 2015 term and 

offered provincially through the OntarioLearn consortium (Training and Development, Human 
Resources Management Principles, Labour Economics, Court Clerk Criminal, and Court 
Reporter/Monitor). 

 
Introduce a pilot project that connects students with campus coaches to set goals and identify 
strategies for academic, personal and professional success, from admission to graduation.  
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Pilot came to a close in April 2015. Data will be analyzed as part of report on pilot. 
 Forty-two coaches trained and all new post-secondary students to Durham College for Fall 2015 will 

be assigned an e-coach. Coaches will meet with students during summer transition sessions.   
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Complete a full redesign of the communications curriculum across all programs including the 
development of material for hybrid and online learning components and a communications plan to 
inform all relevant stakeholders of the implementation strategy. 
 
Status: In Progress 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Pilot planning in progress with full IT support and communications strategy being developed. 

Delivery – Fall 2016. 
 Individual curriculum sharing/consultations with program teams/schools occurred in Fall 2014. 
 Implementation committee included Strategic Enrolment Services, IT Services, Communications and 

Marketing and Central Scheduling. 
 
Complete new hybrid and online components for the Office Administration program, allowing for 
increased enrolment. 
 
Status: Completed  
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Implementation scheduled for Fall 2015 
 
Finish more than two years of work and achieve ministry approval for the launch of the college’s first-
ever four-year degree programs: Bachelor of Health Care Technology Management and Bachelor of 
Behavioural Sciences. 
 
Status: In Progress 
Summary of successes: 
 
 Meeting between President Lovisa and Minister in March confirmed the Health Care Technology 

Management application was received in December but is still being reviewed by Ministry staff. It 
will be forwarded with a recommendation in the coming weeks.  

 Behavioural Sciences curriculum development completed and sent to an external expert (Brock 
University) with completion date of May 1, 2015.   

 Feedback will be reviewed and curriculum revised, as needed, prior to submission of the full 
proposal to MTCU by September 2015.  

 All degree breadth courses finalized and coded. 
 

Expand academic support service delivery locations and methods to meet growing populations in 
Whitby and Pickering, with attention on support for accounting and math.  
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Completed realignment of Whitby space to provide additional office space for Career Services, 

Diversity, Student Academic Learning Services (SALS) and Access and Support Centre (ASC).  
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 Workshop space added for SALS and workshops well-attended. Accounting, learning skills and 
writing workshops have been delivered at the request of faculty now that space is available. Student 
groups are doing homework in the additional space. The area is now provided with teaching 
technology and a whiteboard, which will expand ability to run more types of workshops. 

 Online comprehensive student transition program through ASC completed and available on DC 
connect. This provides another avenue for students to access transition support and is accessible 24 
hours a day. IT working to ensure this program will have the capability to self-register online for this 
August. 

 Over 20 SALS classroom visits completed by March 2015 and Accounting workshops and Learning 
Skills workshops conducted in CFF. Additional visits planned in Whitby after tests and assignments to 
ensure students know help is available in high difficulty courses. Professors are using EAIP (Early 
Academic Intervention Program) slips regularly. These visits are in Animal Care, Math and 
Accounting, to name a few. 

 SALS delivered in-class training to Pickering students on how to use DC Connect/SALS online 
supports. Provided dedicated peer tutoring professor for Accounting, and delivered Writing 
workshops as requested. Telephone appointments were taken for writing as per student requests.  

 
Complete an Academic Information Technology Strategic Plan. 
 
Status: Completed  
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Plan completed and endorsed by DCLT in February.  
 Wide consultation occurred in the development of the plan, including with faculty through 

Academic Council and the Academic Leadership Team. 
 
Launch four new post-secondary programs (Event Management; Hospitality Skills; Activation 
Coordination in Gerontology; and Journalism – Broadcast and Electronic Media) and two new fast-
track delivery models for two existing programs (Law Clerk Advanced and Mechanical Engineering 
Technician – Non-Destructive Evaluation). 
 
Status: Completed  
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 All programs successfully launched.  

 
Conduct a review of and then develop a plan forward for apprenticeship programs.  
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes: 
 
 Apprenticeship programs financial review completed and presented to DCLT. 
 Data collected informed decision to cancel the General Machinist, Tool and Die, and Small Engine 

programs and transfer the Hairstylist program to the Durham District Catholic School Board. 
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Pilot a new, web-based course outline tool. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Full implementation planned for Spring 2015. 
 
Improve transparency and efficiency of the credit transfer process. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 

 Continued to support the Pathways and Credit Transfer Co-ordinator position to allow for forward 
progress on a number of credit transfer initiatives.   

 Redesigned credit transfer application form to allow for multiple credit transfer requests via one 
form – less paperwork for students. Streamlined internal credit transfer processes to improve 
application flow to the school offices – information better organized for ease of access when 
reviewing requests in school offices. 

 Created new part-time position of Credit Transfer Clerk to allow for faster processing of credit 
transfer applications and student advisement. Position is also assisting with the process of 
identifying and loading previously approved credits on Student Information System.  Ultimately this 
work will allow greater automated approval of transfer credits.  It is anticipated that this role will 
continue through 2015-2016. 

 Improved data capture of credit transfer information between Durham College and Ontario Council 
on Articulation and Transfer (ONCAT). 

 Started the process of amalgamating the Credit Transfer and Advanced Standing processes to 
ensure a consistent set of practices and processes for awarding credit for prior post-secondary 
courses. This change will be rolled out in May 2015. 

 Initiatives have helped improve credit transfer awareness, increased applications, and improved 
response times. Statistics to validate these improvements are as follows: 

 

 Fall 2013 Fall 2014 Change Winter 
2014 

Winter 
2015 

Change 

Credit Transfer 
Applications 

1,013 1,326 +31% 673 885 +31.5 % 

Average 
Response Time 
(days) 

14 11 -27% 19 10 +90.0% 
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Core institutional priorities 
 
Continuing to grow strategically, developing new partnerships and further advancing academic 
excellence are all key areas of focus for DC in 2014-2015. Additionally, the college will introduce a 
number of other initiatives and actions in the year ahead to best support students, staff, faculty and the 
community: 
 
Realize a change in the average Durham College Key Performance Indicator (KPI) score that is better 
than the average change in the college system, when measured across the five core benchmark areas.  
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes: 

 
 Durham College cumulative increase was ahead of the provincial average change.  
 
Demonstrate fiscal responsibility by achieving a balanced budget.  
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 

 Small surplus projected for 2014-2015. Final audited financial statements will be available in May 
2015. 

 
Begin work on an information security framework. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Achieved 2014-15 targets for initiating information security framework. 
 Initiated information security risk assessment based on ISO 27001/2 information security 

framework. 
 Identified and procured material that will be used for information security awareness at the college. 
 
Implement a solution to more effectively manage mobile traffic on the network. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 The Aruba Airwave solution implemented in 2014-2015, allowing the college to monitor the health 

of and effectively manage the wireless network. 
 
Implement a computerized maintenance management system. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
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 2014-2015 milestones achieved. System will go live in August 2015 due to new added functionality. 

 Purchased Archibus Computerized Maintenance Management System (CMMS) and it is currently 
installed under a cloud-based solution.  

 Series of initial information/training sessions have been held for all facilities management and staff.  
 Hired project manager to oversee data input of all relevant assets in the system.  Project manager 

supervised a group of our students from related technical academic programs in carrying out the 
data collection and inputting   

 BRG, the CMMS vendor, has been contracted to guide college through the data input stage and 
through to final implementation of the system. Anticipate going live with the system on July 15, 
2015. 

 
Implement changes and best practices regarding organization operational policies and procedures 
that will position Durham College as a leader in this area.  
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Policy and procedures committee established with terms of reference and issues log in place. 
 Student recruited to ensure all policy and procedure documents are in an accessible format for 

individuals with a variety of exceptionalities. 
 Updating of policy and procedure development and review guidelines well underway. 
 
Provide students with additional dining options by establishing agreements to have campus ‘Flex’ 
dollars accepted at a minimum of six off-campus restaurants.  
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Project went live on October 20, 2014 but abandoned later on because of very low student 

participation. None of the restaurant partners able to cover costs of participating in the program. 
Have since worked with the restaurants to promote a student discount program. 

 
Redesign the look of the Oshawa campus bookstore and investigate new commercial opportunities 
including the sale of items from the Pantry. 
 
Status: Completed  
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Store redesign process included: painting, shelving being moved to create better sight lines and 

open feeling in store; new featured product display at store entrance; two new self-serve terminals 
in store for students needing booklists; new counter at Oshawa store; new digital monitor for 
promotions; new display cases for memorabilia items; new cash stations for rush period; new crowd 
control system for peak periods; new clothing lines to meet specific price points.  

 Updated website to include online ordering of clothing and sundry items. 
 Introduced book price match policy.  
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 Introduced DC Adidas sportswear 
 Wide selection of dry and frozen items available for sale from Pantry. 

 
Deliver a range of support services specific to the needs of international students including 
orientation, housing assistance and advice on immigration-related issues. 
 

Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Fall 2014 Orientation reworked to achieve a more professional and engaging environment and 

format. New format followed in Winter 2015 orientation and improvements will continue to be 
made. 

 Housing assistance provided to students with an arrangement with a private realtor to assist 
students with private off-campus accommodation.   

 Closer relationship forged with the management team of Village Suites, and Fall 2014 has seen the 
highest proportion of International students in this form of accommodation to date.   

 In early 2014, a public RFP process was undertaken to engage an immigration consultant to provide 
a series of workshops and other advice services to international students. Workshops, which include 
both immigration and career services themes, commenced in late September 2014 and have been 
well-received by students as demonstrated through good attendance.  

 Series of fact sheets being produced in conjunction with immigration consultant to improve 
information and advice provided to students, whilst remaining compliant with immigration laws. 

 
Create and implement an enhanced international student recruitment program by utilizing electronic 
media and stronger relationship-marketing strategies. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 In early 2014 the Durham College International webpage was launched and through targeted 

advertising, achieved a significant and growing following. Medium has been utilized for competitions 
and targeted, themed advertising to further the reach of this promotional tool.   

 Virtual fair platform, Collegeweeklive.com, utilized with great attendance (virtual) at the fairs. 
Communications and Marketing branded the DC international recruitment pages, provided videos 
and provided design files to promote online recruitment fairs over social media. All recruitment 
offices in India, China, Nigeria and Canada participated in the virtual events. Between August 2014 
and February 2015 there were 7,568 unique visitors to the CollegeWeekLive DC site.  

 Communications and Marketing provided International Office with email template for Mail Chimp 
and a series of marketing campaigns set up and implemented for international prospective students. 

 The following marketing collateral created specific to international students: 
 International viewbook, international student brochure, DC-UOIT Pathways brochure for 

international students, student orientation materials and zaps. 
 A template for the international student brochure, which was provided in English and 

translated to Chinese, Portugese, Russian and Turkish. 
 Branded international PowerPoint presentations 
 Country-specific digital ads. 
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 Three international student videos presenting students from China, Brazil and Peru. 
 International Office worked closely with Communications and Marketing to redesign and launch the 

International website. Determined new direction on website architecture, design, features and 
requirements to be more intuitive and visually appealing to the International market. Website 
design and development completed in testing environment. Expected launch date of the website is 
April 2015. 

 International student from Peru participates in Experience campaign and is a member of Team 
Experience. 

 Work on the development and implementation of Customer Relations Management (CRM) software 
is underway with Salesforce application selected as the platform. 

 International Admissions microsite created and will be launched in May 2015 with email template 
and a photo contest mirroring a similar campaign for domestic students 

 
Implement a media relations strategy with an emphasis on earned media and enhanced media 
engagement to ensure Durham College is the go-to source for media requests. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Generated approximately 785 media hits since March 2014.  
 Developed targeted editorial calendar outlining special sections for major print outlets across the 

GTA, including determining if each section is based on advertising dollars spent. Appropriate 
sections not dependent on ad buys have been researched and pitches submitted for publications 
including the Toronto Star, Toronto Sun, Globe and Mail, Metroland, Metro, Marketing Magazine, 
Reader’s Digest, Now Magazine, 24 Hours, Loupe Magazine and Move Magazine. As part of the pitch 
content we have continually worked to differentiate Durham College from its competition by 
heightening its unique attributes to the Ontario post-secondary landscape including the college’s 
relationship with UOIT, pathways (in and out of college), the Centre for Food, applied research 
collaborations, skilled trades expertise.  

 Leveraged strategic partnerships to increase coverage including relationships with Jamie Kennedy, 
FastStart (Through the On-Campus Entrepreneurship Activities program, managed by Ontario 
Centres of Excellence), FIRST Robotics Canada, FIRST Lego League, Science Rendezvous, WindReach 
Farm, IFTech, Colleges and Institutes Canada. 

 Punctuated strategic, ongoing communications activities with additional high-visibility special 
projects to drive awareness including media relations support for the Experience and Field to Fork 
campaigns. 

 Increased focus on proactive pitching of broadcast and radio outlets (CityTV, CTV, Channel 12, 
Rogers News, CKDO, KX96) resulting in coverage of events such as FIRST Lego League, Jamie 
Kennedy dinner at Bistro ’67, Open House, Countdown to Grad and the Experience DC campaign. 

 Capitalized on existing media opportunities to insert Durham College into the conversation resulting 
in positive media coverage i.e. Virgin Radio Make it Merry 

 Use of compelling examples of institution, faculty, student and research successes for media 
releases and web stories. 
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 Secured promotion from non-traditional media through pitching Ontario-based bloggers/social 
media influencers in order to secure coverage of the college for events such as the Jamie Kennedy 
dinner at Bistro ’67 and the Experience campaign. 

 Instituted the practise of promoting our events via community event listing sites and calendars 
increasing exposure and reach of event promotion. 

 Currently developing overall college key messages to be used by spokespeople during interview 
opportunities. 
 

Develop a plan to review and then implement actions and recommendations that will increase 
institutional knowledge of privacy laws. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Plan in place and a number of actions taken, including presentation on privacy and access to 

information to administrative staff this past year to raise institutional knowledge of privacy and 
legislative expectations.  

 Greater awareness of privacy on campus, as evidenced in part by the increase in reporting versus 
historic numbers. Maintaining awareness will now be an ongoing practice.  

 
Implement the next stages of records management for the college, specifically a finalizing of records 
management procedures, completed file plans and organization of all electronic files. 
 
Status: In Progress 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Department files plans 85 per cent completed. 
 Inactive storage area being maintained, annual destruction of records scheduled to be destroyed 

taking place in July & August  
 Departments now implementing next phase of organizing electronic records according to the 

Common Records Schedule. 
 
Review and assess processes to ensure the best candidates possible are being hired for all college 
vacancies and that hiring practices reflect system averages in regards to full-time, sessional, partial 
load and part-time faculty. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Ongoing review to ensure we are continually meeting and exceeding needs of college departments. 
 As part of the ongoing development and establishing various networks, Human Resources staff 

attended international job fair, will be hosting Skilled Trades job fair and offered workshop for 
associate deans in using LinkedIn to help and assist in attracting qualified candidates. 

 Continue to streamline processes to speed up recruitment cycle. Improved business practices 
implemented to ensure faculty recruitment processes are further aligned with collective agreement, 
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thereby reducing the number of grievances and further improving union/management labour 
relations. Work flow analysis study may assist in identifying additional improvements to business 
practices especially as they relate to hiring and recruiting part-time faculty. 

 Human Resources submitted business plan to support the acquisition of an applicant tracking 
software system for the 2015-2016 budget cycle, which will improve overall efficiencies of key 
aspects of the recruitment cycle. 

 Review of province-wide survey conducted in October 2014 will be completed in May 2015, (or once 
the report is issued), to benchmark Durham College’s performance in relation to the use of full-time, 
sessional, partial-load and part-time faculty against the provincial averages data. 

 
Develop and submit applications for various categories of the Top Employer Awards. 
 
Status: Completed  
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Applications submitted for Canada’s Top 100 Employers; Canada’s Best Diversity Employer; Canada’s 

Greenest Employers; and Canada’s Top Employer for Young People.  Durham College was once again 
on the shortlist of eligible employers for the Top 100 Employers in Canada category.  

 Named to the list of the GTA’s Top Employers for the fifth consecutive year. 
 
Conduct three lockdown simulation exercises at campuses and other college locations. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 First lockdown exercise was conducted June, 2014, with subsequent exercises in November 2014 

and February 2015.   
 Debriefing and lessons learned sessions held after each exercise with the EMRT and any identified 

deficiencies dealt with appropriately.  
 
Play a leadership role in the rollout of Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act standards and 
related training, policies and procedures. 
 
Status: In Progress 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Return to Work Policy and Procedure updated to ensure AODA compliance. 
 AODA Employment Standard – Recruitment: All requirements of the AODA employment standard 

for recruitment have been implemented. 
 AODA considerations implemented into all new and updated college policies and procedures. 

Summer student hired for 2015 to ensure all policy and procedure documents are AODA compliant.  
 Integrated Accessibility Standard Regulation (IASR) training has been provided to all employees. 
 Individual Accommodation Plan document is developed and ready for use as needed. 
 Accessibility Working Group reconfigured to Accessibility Coordinating Committee – task groups 

formed for 2014.   
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 Web design for Accessibility pages and for all new websites now fully accessible. 
 Integrated standard criteria met. 
 Accessibility Report completed. 
 
Monitor and assess the current campus identification program, ensuring there are appropriate 
technical resources to adequately meet the existing and future planned level of activity. 
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes to date: 

 
 This is an ongoing review to ensure the services provided meet demand as the student populations 

at our campuses continue to grow. 
 Current resources provide the required technology to meet current demand. This includes six 

mobile stations in addition to the two desktop units in the main ID office.   
 Mobile stations permitted Campus ID Services to set up a new location, in the Student Services 

Building, for September start-up. New service accommodated 214 DC students and was also 
available for UOIT students. 

 
Create and implement a new strategic Continuing Education marketing program using website, print 
and marketing strategies. 
 
Status: In Progress 
Summary of successes to date: 
 
 Objective: to increase Continuing Education’s (CE) enrolment by one per cent; results as of February 

17, 2015: overall winter enrolment up by 9.7 per cent.  
 Developed key messages to ensure all marketing going forward is focused and aligned with the 

college’s vision. 
 Completed Course Calendar redesign, which included: 

o Research of best practices in comparison to all Ontario college course calendar design and 
functionality. 

o Reduced pages from 144 to 88. 
o Cover redesigned to target Generation X and Y demographic. 
o Executed communication strategy regarding course calendar changes to all stakeholders, 

internal and external. 
 Completed Marketing Strategies to include increased electronic advertising messages to current 

students using Campaign Monitor, Metroland Mega Wrap, GO Poster Campaign and Reach Local 
Online Campaign. 

 Completed promotional video. 
 Completed social media marketing analysis and strategy. 
 Completed a Request for Proposal and selected outside firm specializing in online/social media 

marketing to develop a strategy for CE online/social media marketing for Fall 2015 semester. 
 Positioned CE as an industry leader resulting in four media stories from November 2014 to March 

2015 on the topics of online learning, stackable credentials and culinary skills. 
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 Completed website design research phase and developed long- and short-term plans for web 
development. Due to the large and potentially costly scope of the website redesign, ITS was unable 
to fit this project into its timelines for the 2014-2015 fiscal year. It was decided to break this project 
into two phases. 

Phase 1 
 Refresh the home page and potential 20 standalone pages, design only. 
 Reorganize the ‘Where do I Find’ tab and ‘Important Information’ PDF. 
 Work to commence April 2015 with a targeted completion date of August 2015. 
Phase 2 
 Formed Website Redesign Committee to work with ITS on both the website redesign and Banner 

upgrade selection process.  
 Step 1 – Completed wireframe design for new website redesign. 
 Step 2 – Completed the documentation required to describe the scope of the project to be 

submitted to the IT Prioritization Council for its March 2015 meeting. 
 Step 3 – Research phase – functionality, design and cost details. Pending decision of IT Prioritization 

Council. Time required approximately six to eight months. 
 Step 4 – Commence work on full website redesign project.  Pending decision of IT Prioritization 

Council. 
 Time required one to two years. 

 
Review results of the employee engagement survey and present strategies, actions and plans based 
on those findings to the Board of Governors.  
 
Status: Completed 
Summary of successes: 
 
 In-camera report provided to Executive Committee on April 7, 2015.  
 Each vice-president submitted action plan to address local departmental issues and the broader 

corporate issues of improved communication around the strategic plan and annual business 
planning processes and ensuring we celebrate our successes. 

 Three main themes emerged from the 2014 Engagement survey: improved employee 
communications, improved employee development, and improved team development. 

 Durham College compared very well when results compared to benchmark data of other academic 
institutions in Canada. We had fewer employees that were actively disengaged and more engaged 
employees when compared to the benchmark.  
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Board of Governors - 1 - June 8, 2015 
PUBLIC 

BOARD REPORT 
 
       Action Required: 
Public   X     Information/Discussion  
In-camera      Decision   X 
  

 
MEETING DATE: June 8, 2015 
 
REPORT DATE: June 2, 2015 
 
FROM: Don Lovisa, President 
 
SUBJECT: 2014-2015 Annual Report 
 
A. Purpose 

 
To present the Durham College 2014-2015 Annual Report to the Board of Governors 
for review and approval.  
 
B. Background 

 
As per the Minister’s Binding Policy Directive on Governance and Accountability and 
Section 8 of O. Reg. 34/03 under the OCAAT Act, all colleges are required to prepare 
an annual report, make it available to the public, and submit the report to the minister. 
The report is to be prepared in accordance with the Annual Report Operating 
Procedure established in the Binding Policy Directive and must be submitted to the 
Ministry of Training, Colleges and Universities and other required agencies by July 
31. 
 
C. Discussion/Options 

The Annual Report provides a highly visible opportunity to celebrate a year’s worth of 
successes and activities at Durham College. The report is shared with employees on 
campus and in the community with partners and donors in an effort to capture the 
work that is done every day at Durham College in support of student success and 
ultimately to help build stronger communities.  
 
The 2014-2015 report theme focuses on the strategic pillar, Our People, and 
spotlights four employees and the role they play in delivering an outstanding 
educational experience for students. The report also shares specific data, information, 
awards and other recognition the college and its people have achieved over the past 
year. The theme of our people carries on from last year’s report that focused on the 
success of our graduates (Our Students) and the year before that when we looked at 
Our Community.  
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PUBLIC 

The report has been reviewed by all members of the Durham College Leadership 
Team. Additionally, the audited financial statement will be included with the final 
published report, as is required under the Minister’s Binding Policy Directive on 
Governance and Accountability, once approved by the Board of Governors.  
 
This year’s annual report will be posted in an interactive online format, allowing for 
videos and other features to be inserted for a more dynamic report. 
 
D. Financial/Human Resource Implications 

 
The cost to produce and distribute the annual report is accounted for through the 
annual Durham College budget.  
 
E. Implications for the Joint Campus Master Plan (if applicable) 

The work undertaken by the DC and UOIT on the Campus Master Plan and the 
intention to launch the plan in September 2015 is included in the report. 
 
F. Implications for UOIT (if applicable) 

 
There are references in the annual report to partnerships with UOIT.  
 
 
G. Recommendation(s) 

 
That the Board of Governors approve the Durham College 2014-2015 Annual Report. 
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Durham College 2014-2015 Annual Report Content  

 
Section One: A letter from our President 
 
It’s been another successful year at Durham College (DC). We continue to foster innovation and 
drive the college forward as one of Ontario’s leading post-secondary institutions. 
 
One of the goals at DC is to support and empower OUR PEOPLE to make the best possible 
contribution towards the student experience; we do this by capitalizing on their vast experiences 
and expertise. One of the resounding sentiments we hear when speaking with DC’s employees 
is that the college is like a family. It’s a sentiment that shapes how we operate the college and 
underlies everything we do – that is why we captured its importance in our Strategic Plan. 
 
With roots firmly entrenched in our local community and branches that span the globe, DC is 
working to prepare its graduates for the demands of a complex and changing economy and 
world by offering best-in-class teaching and learning. 
 
As you read through the pages of this annual report you will see DC’s innovation in action and 
learn more about some of the incredible employees who help make the college what it is today. 
From applied research achievements to hosting high-profile visitors on campus and mapping 
out the road ahead, DC’s future is bright. 
 
This is our annual report, from our family to yours. 
 
Don Lovisa 
President 
 
Section Two: Family Values – Our Mission, Vision, Values and Goals 
 
Mission 
 
The student experience comes first at Durham College. 
 
Vision 
 
Durham College is the premier post-secondary destination for students who succeed in a 
dynamic and supportive learning environment. Our graduates develop the professional and 
personal skills required to realize meaningful careers and make a difference in the world. 
 
Values 
 
Our values drive our organizational culture and behaviour in delivering our vision and mission. 
 
We value: 
 

 Integrity and transparency – we behave and communicate sincerely and honestly. 

 Respect – we treat everyone with dignity deliver superior service and offer a safe 
environment. 

 Equal access and diversity – we embrace diversity, ensure accessibility and champion 
all learners. 
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 Personal and team accountability – we do what we say we will do and are creative and 
innovative in how we conduct our business. 

 
Goals 
 

 Our students – To provide students with the best possible learning experiences by 
offering new opportunities for experiential learning, fostering greater mobility within the 
post-secondary system and ensuring all necessary supports are in place. 

 Our people – To capitalize on the vast experiences and expertise of our people and help 
them make the best possible contribution towards the student experience. 

 Our business – To be prudent stewards of all resources so that we are financially 
responsible, demonstrate good governance and are system leaders in making decisions 
that support outstanding teaching and learning. 

 Our community – To ensure the college, in all its actions and decisions, is contributing to 
the economic and social prosperity of our communities. 
 

Infographic Stats: 
 

 GTA Top Employer Five Years Running 

 Top 25 Research Colleges 

 Sixth consecutive Balanced Budget 

 777 Full-Time Employees 

 974 Part-Time Employees 

 325 Continuing Education Instructors 

 More than 30,000 students  
 
Section Three: Family members  
 
Spend some time getting to know some of our family. 
 
Our Research Family 
 
Stephen Forbes, professor, School of Business, IT & Management and principal 
investigator, Office of Research Services, Innovation and Entrepreneurship (ORSIE) 
 
Whether spending time in the classroom, office or lab, Stephen Forbes understands the value of 
research for students, employees and the college as a whole. 
 
In addition to his teaching role, Stephen also acts as a principal investigator with ORSIE, 
overseeing project teams in applied research by guiding them to resources and development 
principles and providing them with an authentic learning experience. As project manager he 
focuses on communicating with clients to determine their needs and DC’s role in their projects 
and applies for funding.  
 
Stephen is making an active difference in moving the applied research agenda forward for the 
college and cites the importance of exploration as a major research benefit. 
 
“By establishing ORSIE and allocating resources to nurture its role as a conduit for research, 
Durham College has become a wonderful incubator for ideas benefitting faculty, employees and 
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especially students,” said Stephen. “Without the college supporting us materially and financially, 
none of these exceptional experiences would be possible.” 
 
Whether it’s solving a problem for a local business or witnessing a student’s ah-ha moment, 
Stephen is proud to call DC home. His role gives him the opportunity to do what he loves to do 
for the betterment of the college and community. 
 
Our Community Family 
 
Stephanie Ball, dean, School of Justice & Emergency Services 
 
Durham College (DC) is an integral part of Durham Region and is highly regarded as a strong 
contributor to the economic and social well-being of the community.  As dean of the School of 
Justice & Emergency Services (JES), one of Stephanie Ball’s major focuses is ensuring that her 
students learn first-hand the importance of supporting the communities where they ultimately 
hope to work upon graduation.  
 
Many of the programs under Stephanie’s supervision focus on and build community interests at 
the local, provincial, federal, and international levels into their academic agendas; student 
involvement in all of this is encouraged and supported.  
 
For example, in the past four years, students and faculty from all of the JES programs have 
supported Team Chesson in the Terry Fox Run, resulting in raising over $50,000, in support of 
both the overall cause and part-time faculty member Mike Chesson who successfully battled 
cancer. 
 
DC’s Police Foundations students, led by faculty members, provide support to the CIBC Run for 
the Cure at the Oshawa site each year. They also participate in community service hours with 
three elementary public schools in Oshawa that are home to high-risk students. The success of 
that initiative has led to requests for similar involvement from other schools. 
 
Stephanie also leads by example, having personally volunteered extensively in Durham Region. 
“I am very proud of the culture of community service that exists in the School of Justice & 
Emergency Services through the examples provided by our administration and our faculty 
members,” she said. “As a result of these deep-rooted involvements, my colleagues and I have 
the chance to provide our students with opportunities that they may not have otherwise.” 
 
Just like police, firefighting and youth justice programs are integral to local communities, so too 
is building that sense of service above self. It’s an integral part of how both DC and JES 
operate.  
 
Our Global Family 
 
Lon Appleby, professor, School of Interdisciplinary Studies & Employment Services 
 
You don’t need a passport to explore the world if you sign up for Professor Lon Appleby’s 
Global Classroom. As founder of this unique course, Lon has created a teaching methodology 
that allows students to participate in a virtual classroom, learning from students and experts 
from around the world in real-time. 
 

AGENDA PAGE   261



4 

 

Lon cites the nature of the world today as the impetus for global learning. By reinventing 
traditional classroom models, DC is teaching students the importance of critical-thinking, 
creativity, and resilience, helping to build a worldview that is based on an understanding of 
diversity, shared problems and the consequences of human progress.  
 
Students are being exposed to diverse cultures while also being challenged to think beyond 
their immediate environment. DC benefits by acting as the catalyst that brings participating 
institutions together, furthering its already internationalized campus and learning experience. 
 
Lon is grateful to be working in an environment where this commitment to innovation is genuine. 
“There is a positive, can-do atmosphere on campus and some first-rate people in administration 
who are unafraid to push the envelope,” said Lon. “They know how important it is to provide 
students with global learning opportunities and understand the digital revolution we are living in. 
It’s not just about textbooks anymore.” 
 
High-quality teaching is critical to everything DC does and faculty are willing to engage students 
in different ways of learning. Whether it’s offering hybrid and online classes or promoting hands-
on experiential education, students are benefitting. Globalizing the classroom is another 
example of innovative education in action. As the international presence on DC’s campuses 
continues to grow, so too does the college’s influence globally as we welcome students from 
around the world into our virtual family. 
 
 
Our Diverse Family 
 
Allison Hector-Alexander, diversity consultant, Diversity Office 
 
Every family is comprised of people with different personalities, preferences and beliefs and DC 
is no exception. The college is filled with employees and students who each bring their own 
unique social identities to campus. Allison Hector-Alexander’s job is to help make the college 
environment a welcoming one regardless of race, sex, gender, religion, sexual orientation or 
socio-economic status. 
 
Whether it’s designing and facilitating diversity training for employees and students, creating 
policies and procedures that support the college’s mandate of inclusion or overseeing 
campaigns and initiatives, Allison is proud to act as a champion for inclusiveness. 
 
“I absolutely love my job,” said Allison. “When it comes to creating spaces of inclusion, Durham 
College recognizes the value of ensuring that systems are in place so that everyone feels 
comfortable bringing all of themselves to campus. We operate like family and that is so 
important for those who have not always felt that in other spaces.” 
 
From creating all-gender washrooms and multi-faith prayer spaces to the yes-means-yes 
initiative, Allison ensures diversity is a way of life at DC.  
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Section Four: Sharing Success 
 
At DC success matters and we achieved some amazing things in 2014-2015. 
 
Good Influence – August, September and October 2014 
 
DC’s reputation as a leading post-secondary institution was confirmed when all three of 
Canada’s top political leaders were welcomed to campus. In three separate visits over three 
consecutive months, Prime Minister Stephen Harper, Thomas Mulcair, official Opposition leader 
and leader of the New Democratic Party (NDP), and Liberal leader Justin Trudeau all visited the 
college, speaking with students and employees and touring both the Oshawa and Whitby 
campuses. Three political parties, three opportunities for engagement and three opportunities 
for DC to help shape the federal post-secondary discussion. 
 
Good Eats – November 2014 
 
Celebrity chef and Centre For Food (CFF) ambassador Jamie Kennedy hosted an exclusive 
lunch for the community in Bistro ’67, DC’s 70-seat, full-service, green-certified teaching-
inspired restaurant which is open to the public. He also met with students in the college’s 
culinary and hospitality programs. Four courses, over 50 guests and an exploration of the field-
to-fork philosophy.  
 
Good Connections – December 2014 
 
Social media monitoring and analysis company MediaMiser named DC one of Canada’s top 
social media colleges. By tracking social media metrics such as Twitter and Facebook 
mentions, page activity, likes, followers, and retweets, MediaMiser was able to compile a list of 
which Canadian colleges rank as the best in the country for using social networks as a strong 
means of communication. DC finished in the top 10 in several categories, including social media 
mentions. Over 8,400 Twitter followers and a reach of over 924,000. 
 
Good Policy – March 2015 
 
Durham College finalized its stand-alone policy and procedure on sexual assault and violence. 
These documents provide precise definitions of sexual assault and sexual violence, set clear 
standards for reporting and responding to incidents of sexual violence, and establish clear 
processes for complaints and investigations. The policy also includes measures to ensure that 
people who make complaints are protected from reprisals, retaliation or threats. As well, it 
includes provisions to ensure that confidentiality is strictly observed. One policy, one procedure 
and a landmark first step in the fight against sexual violence. 
 
Section Five: Honour Roll 
 
DC’s students aren’t the only ones achieving success. The college’s employees work hard to 
earn their place on the honour roll, receiving both internal and external recognition for their 
contributions, innovations and hard work.   
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Lifetime Achievement 
 
In May 2014, Gary Gannon, professor and program co-ordinator of the Human Resources 
program in the School of Business, IT & Management, received a Lifetime Contribution Award 
from the Human Resources Professional Association (HRPA), Durham Chapter. 
 
The HRPA recognizes Human Resources Management (HRM) professionals who have shown 
leadership and contributed to the development of the profession within the chapter during their 
career. Gary was honoured for his work in forging close partnerships between the college’s 
HRM programs and the region’s professional community. 
 
Providing better care 
 
Margret Campkin, a co-ordinator and professor in the Critical Care Nursing e-Learning Graduate 
Certificate program, received the President’s Award at Lakeridge Health in August 2014 for her 
work on the Resuscitation Strategy Implementation Project. The award is presented to people 
who go above and beyond to make health-care facilities a better place for employees to work 
and for patients to receive care.  
 
As the clinical lead of the project, Margret collaborated with and supported the resuscitation 
team to create new policies and procedures; implement basic cardiac life support guidelines; 
provide education to over 1,400 registered nurses, registered practical nurses and registered 
respiratory therapists; deliver 50 mock code blues (cardiac arrest scenarios); and roll out 
standardized resuscitation equipment, including automated external defibrillators and manual 
defibrillators and on-the-go live dates to four Lakeridge Health sites. 
 
For the Love of Books 
 
In August 2014, Jane Hilton, a project manager in the Office of Research Services, Innovation 
and Entrepreneurship became the 2015 President of the Ontario Library Association (OLA), the 
largest library association in Canada with over 5,000 members. Jane is the first library board 
member in 35 years to attain the office of president.  
 
Committed to the importance of libraries to a community, Jane has gained much of her 
governance experience from her years on the Whitby Public Library Board to which she was 
recently reappointed.  
 
Solid Gold 

 
In March 2015, Durham College’s (DC) Communications and Marketing department was 
awarded gold medals at the National Council for Marketing & Public Relations (NCMPR) 
Paragon Awards in the Video Shorts and Electronic College Annual Report categories. It also 
won bronze in Special Events Promotion. The prestigious awards are part of the only national 
competition of its kind showcasing outstanding achievement in communications at community 
and technical colleges. 
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Section Six: Our Research  
 
Research is at the heart of what DC does as a post-secondary institution. The college’s Office of 
Research Services, Innovation and Entrepreneurship (ORSIE) is responsible for driving 
innovation and, since its inception in 2009, has created a strong applied research agenda for 
DC.  
 
It’s an agenda designed to respond to the significant business and industry need for practical 
solutions through applied research and innovation activities, while remaining focused on 
providing unique and real-world experiences to students.  
 
As the students are learning, ORSIE is also helping community businesses innovate, 
commercialize and advance ideas. Whether developing a solution to a business problem, 
improving a commercial product or system or providing consultancy services, ORSIE’s 
involvement with its industry partners creates a win-win situation; students gain invaluable 
experience and businesses benefit from DC’s best-in-class expertise. 
 
ORSIE’s work includes:  

 Collaborating with local small- and medium-sized businesses in the information 
technology, energy, mechanical and electronics engineering technology, social sciences 
and humanities fields. 

 Developing and implementing a strategic research plan. 

 Maintaining a Research Ethics Board. 

 Receiving important research funding from several government agencies. 
 

ORSIE is unique in that it embraces all manner and types of research and quality assurance 
activities that occur throughout the college, by supporting those who are new to research as well 
as those who are more experienced to participate and lead interdisciplinary research 
opportunities.  
 
Research Stats 
 

 Project funding received in 2014-15 fiscal year - $393,073  

 19 projects involving 33 students and 21 faculty and staff 

 Total amount of administration funding - $76,683 

 Total amount of Industry Cash - $17,000 and Industry In-kind cash - $103,512 
 
Research highlights 
 
Top Research 
 
Durham College was ranked number 25 on the list of Canada’s Top 50 Research Colleges for 
the second year in a row.  
 
3D Printing 
 
DC installed a new Fortus® 360mc rapid prototyper in its Integrated Manufacturing Centre (IMC) 
at the college’s Oshawa campus. The installation is the result of a $150,000 Natural Sciences 
and Engineering Research Council of Canada (NSERC) Applied Research Tools and 
Instruments (ARTI) grant that was awarded to the college via NSERC’s College and Community 
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Innovation (CCI) Program. Students are using the machine to print parts for their pneumatic 
engine designs. These include pistons, cams, connecting rods and various brackets. 
 
Entrepreneurial Spirit 
 
Durham College and ORSIE launched the FastStart program (FastStart), a powerful new 
resource designed to help college students acquire entrepreneurial skills and convert innovative 
business ideas into successful companies through programs such as student incubators and 
boot camps. 
 
Section Seven: Our Extended Family 
 
The concept of family applies not only to the college employees and students but also to the 
wider community. DC is proud to call Durham Region home, partnering with local organizations, 
contributing to the economic stability of the region and supporting the communities that in turn 
support us. 

 Total number of charities that benefitted from working with a DC employee in 2014-15: 
more than 150 

 Total employee hours spent on community projects in both personal and professional 
capacities: approx. 17,600  

 A third-party review found that Durham College’s economic impact on Durham Region 
was valued at $816 million in 2012-2013. 

 Campuses in Oshawa and Whitby and the Pickering Learning Site 

 More than 1,000 local industry and business leaders sitting on 77 Program Advisory 
Committees (PACs) means DC can tap into participant expertise to ensure its programs 
are current and aligned with industry trends. 

 
Community Outreach Highlights 
 
Open House 
 
DC welcomed over 7,400 future students, their families and friends to its annual Spring and Fall 
Open Houses. Guests had the opportunity to tour campus, meet with employees and students 
and experience the college first-hand. 
 
Making it Merry for a local Mom In-Need 
 
DC’s employees and members of the Experience DC team, a group of 14 students who are part 
of the a unique marketing and awareness campaign to help potential students connect with the 
college, helped make the holidays a little brighter for a local mom-in-need. After hearing the call 
for assistance via radio station Virgin 99.9, DC’s Team Experience jumped into action, 
purchasing everything the pregnant mom would need from diapers to a crib. One year of tuition 
was also donated to help her achieve her dream of attending college. 
 
Section Eight: Growing our Roots 
 
Whether at home or abroad DC is proud of its international presence and global partnerships. 

 DC is home to 523 international students from around the world. 

 The college is currently working on international projects with three countries – Guyana, 
India and Peru. 
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 DC offers more than 450 pathway opportunities where students can earn both a diploma 
and degree in less-than-traditional time, including more than 60 opportunities to transfer 
to our campus partner, the University of Ontario Institute of Technology. 

 DC has four offices in three countries overseas – China, India and Nigeria. 

 10 international students were recipients of in-course Academic Excellence 
scholarships. 

 
Include international student map/graphic 
 
International Highlights 
 
Pathways and Connections in Ireland 
 
Durham College (DC) and the Irish Institute of Technology, Tralee (ITT) aligned on an 
articulation agreement that will enable graduates of several of the college’s two- and three-year 
programs to enter ITT’s bachelor programs with advanced standing, allowing them to earn their 
degree in as little as two additional semesters of study. In addition, DC, along with the University 
of Ontario Institute of Technology (UOIT) and Trent University co-hosted the first Irish-Canadian 
Higher Education in Transformation Symposium, held at both the Dublin Institute of Technology 
and the Printworks, Dublin Castle. Representatives from DC were on-hand to share their 
expertise and showcase the excellent programs offered at the college. 
 
Developing an Automotive Electronics Program in Guyana 
 
Durham College (DC), long with additional educational partners, are working with the 
Government Technical Institute (GTI) in Georgetown, Guyana to help it develop a new 
Automotive Electronics Technician program. The three institutions will partner with faculty and 
administrators at GTI to develop a program responsive to the needs of Guyana’s auto industry, 
which has seen a significant increase in the number of cars on the road with new electronic 
systems. 
 
Promoting Education for Employment in Peru 
 
Durham College (DC) alongside other Canadian educational institutions announced new 
partnerships with Peruvian technical institutes. Working with Colleges and Institutes Canada 
(CICan), DC will help strengthen skills and technical training in key sectors of the Peruvian 
economy, which will set students up for employment success.  
 
Section Nine: Looking Ahead 
 
DC honours its past, celebrates its present and eagerly anticipates and plans for the future. It 
has been one of the fastest growing colleges in Ontario over the past five years in terms of 
enrolment, new programs and reputation and its connection to students and the broader 
community is stronger than ever.  The college family continues to develop and grow to meet the 
demand for innovative, quality education and research for the betterment of its students and 
community.  
 
Campus Master Plan 
 
DC and the University of Ontario Institute of Technology (UOIT) are working together on a 
Campus Master Plan designed to address the future expansion and needs of both institutions. 
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Two open houses were held in 2014-15 to share the development plans and progress with the 
college and university community. Local media and members of the community attended to hear 
about the developments, ask questions and share in the excitement about the road ahead. 
Another open house is scheduled for the fall of 2015 to present the Campus Master Plan to the 
community. 
 
dLAB 
 
DC is proud to be taking a leadership role in the development and realization of the Durham 
Learning and Business (dLAB) district (www.dlab.ws). dLAB has been designed to create links 
that will develop opportunities for students to get involved in research and manufacturing and 
entrepreneurial activities, which will in turn create stable and long-term employment. 
 
This development project brings private enterprise together with higher education and emerging 
technology – a dynamic new urban hub of talent, innovation and growth. 
 
2014-2015 Annual Report Appendices 
 
Durham realizes success with business plan 
 
Strategic planning is a key factor in Durham College finding short-, medium- and long-term 
success. In that context, 2014-2015 saw the college put forward another ambitious corporate 
Business Plan that resulted in significant efforts, activities and successes across campus.  
 
The provincial government’s Minister Binding Policy Directive for Annual Reports requires that 
college annual reports include a summary of the results of the previous year’s Business Plan. 
Below is a summary of how DC did. 
 
The college’s 2014-2015 Business Plan contained four high-level goals Responsible, strategic 
growth; Dynamic partnerships; Student-focused teaching and learning; and Core institutional 
priorities that set out 65 specific objectives.  
 
Hundreds of actions were taken across college campuses to realize success in the four goals, 
and the results have collectively strengthened academic operations, helped grow and renew 
campus, provided students with more support and services than ever before, increased the 
college’s visibility in the community, and furthered research and innovation activities.  
 
Among the many highlights of the past year, were:  
 
Responsible, strategic growth 
 

 Continued overall enrolment growth, even as the system flattened. 

 International enrolment growth of 32 per cent, leadership on international projects and 
recruitment activities in new markets. 

 Submission of a joint proposal with UOIT and Trent University to the provincial government 
for its Major Capacity Expansion program. 
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Dynamic partnerships  
 

 College awarded two international development projects in Peru; implementation currently 
under way. 

 Under the Science Without Borders project, more than 40 students from Brazil attended DC 
programs.  

 Launched FastStart, a new post-secondary collaboration that is designed to increase 
entrepreneurial skills and awareness, while also helping students create solid business 
plans that take their products and services to market – quickly and successfully. 

 Developed multiple new partnerships that provide new academic pathways for college 
students to pursue a university education in Ontario, England and Ireland.  

 
Student-focused teaching and learning 
 

 Team Experience, a brand awareness campaign that is unique and innovative in connecting 
with students and drawing attention to the college. 

 Enhancements, additional opportunities and a new delivery model for students in a number 
of service areas, including our Access and Support Centre, Financial Aid and with for the 
credit transfer process. 

 Launch of four new programs and development of new hybrid and online courses. 

 A continued commitment to campus safety through lockdown exercises and the launch of a 
new Sexual Assault and sexual violence policy and procedure.  

 The successful launch of an innovative coaching model for students. 
 
Core institutional priorities 
 

 Launch of new core institutional documents to guide us in the years ahead, including a 
renewed Academic Direction, renewed Strategic Research Plan and a new Academic 
Information Technology Plan.  

 Submission to the government of an application for our first-ever degree program. 

 A fifth consecutive year with surplus financial results. 
 
2014-2015 Durham College Board of Governors  
 

 Ron Chatterton, chair of the Board 

 Pierre Tremblay, vice-chair of the Board 

 Douglas I. Allingham 

 Nneka Bowen 

 Dan Borowec 

 Ivan DeJong 

 Kevin Dougherty 

 Joanne Dykeman 

 Darren Fisher 

 Renate Ilse 

 Paul Macklin 

 Debbie McKee Demczyk 

 Donna Raetsen-Kemp 

 Steve Stewart 

 Heather Quantrill 
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 Doug Wilson 

 Don Lovisa, president, ex-officio 
 
Durham College Leadership Team 

 Don Lovisa, president, Durham College 

 Judy Robinson, vice-president, Academic 

 Meri Kim Oliver, vice-president, Student Affairs 

 Nevzat Gurmen, vice-president, Corporate Services and chief financial officer 

 Scott Blakey, vice-president, Administration 
 
Summary of advertising and marketing complaints received.  
 
None received. 
 
Report on College Council 
 
College Council plays an important role in helping to inform and shape decisions and 
documents that are key to Durham College operations. Council met two times during 2014-
2015, providing feedback on a range of new operational policies and procedures; reviewed the 
college’s construction plans, its major capacity expansion proposal, and campus master plan; 
and also offered feedback on campus security and class scheduling, among other issues of 
importance. College Council is made up of representatives from across all employee groups – 
faculty, support and administrative staff – and is chaired by the college president.  
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